
         Online Copy

Board of Trustees 
Special Board Meeting 

Tuesday, November 19, 2024 
5:30 p.m. 

Pecan Campus 
Ann Richards Administration 

Building 
Board Room 

McAllen, Texas



SOUTH TEXAS COLLEGE 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES SPECIAL MEETING 
Tuesday, November 19, 2024 @ 5:30 p.m. 

Ann Richards Administration Building Board Room 
Pecan Campus, McAllen, Texas 78501 

  

AGENDA 
“At anytime during the course of this meeting, the Board of Trustees may retire to Executive Session under Texas 
Government Code 551.071(2) to confer with its legal counsel on any subject matter on this agenda in which the duty 
of the attorney to the Board of Trustees under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of the State Bar of 
Texas clearly conflicts with Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code.  Further, at anytime during the course of this 
meeting, the Board of Trustees may retire to Executive Session to deliberate on any subject slated for discussion at 
this meeting, as may be permitted under one or more of the exceptions to the Open Meetings Act set forth in Title 5, 
Subtitle A, Chapter 551, Subchapter D of the Texas Government Code.  At this meeting, the Board of Trustees may 
deliberate on and take any action deemed appropriate by the Board of Trustees on the following subjects:” 

 
COVID-19 Public Health / Attendance Measures 

Due to COVID-19 and Social Distancing recommendations, members of the public are 
encouraged to watch the live broadcast of the meeting at: 
https://admin.southtexascollege.edu/president/agendas/live.html. 

 

I. Call Meeting to Order 

II. Determination of Quorum 

III. Invocation 

IV. Mission Moment 

V. Public Comments 

VI. Update by the College President  

VII. Consideration and Action on Consent Agenda 

A. Approval of Board Meeting Minutes 

1. October 29, 2024 Regular Board Meeting .......................................... 6 - 33 
2. November 2, 2024 Board Retreat ..................................................... 34 - 35 

VIII. Consideration of New Items 

A. General Agenda Items 

1. Report of New Grant Awards ................................................................ 36 - 37 

2. Approval of Resolution #2025-005 and Ballot Casting Votes for Members of 
the Hidalgo County Appraisal District Board of Directors for Calendar Years 
2025 – 2027 .......................................................................................... 38 - 50 

3. Presentation on Enrollment ................................................................... 51 - 54 

 

https://admin.southtexascollege.edu/president/agendas/live.html


November 19, 2024 Special Board Meeting @ 5:30 p.m.  

Page 2 of 5   

 

B. Education and Workforce Development 

1. Review and Action as Necessary on Proposed Institutional Credentials 
Leading to Licensure or Certification (ICLC) ......................................... 55 - 59 

C. Finance, Audit, and Human Resources Items 

1. Presentation of the Delinquent Tax Collection Report for the Period Ending 
August 31, 2024 .................................................................................... 60 - 75 

2. Presentation on South Texas College Foundation Annual Report ...... 76 - 105 

3. Presentation on the Interlocal Agreement between Hidalgo County and South 
Texas College for American Rescue Plan Act Recovery Funds ....... 106 - 115 

4. Review and Action as Necessary on Award of Proposals, Rejection of 
Proposals, Purchases, and Renewals .............................................. 116 - 132 

            Award of Proposals 
1) Campus Dining and Food Trucks - Mid Valley Campus 
2) Catering Services II 
3) Purchase of Laser Projectors 
4) Sport Utility Vehicles 
Rejection of Proposals 
5) Sport Utility Vehicles 
Purchases 
6) Bench Lathes and Tire Changer 
7) Rotary Mobile Column Lifts (Grant Funded) 
8) Telescopic Handler 
9) Training Systems  (Grant Funded) 
10) Computers, Laptops, Monitors, Printers, and Tablets 
Renewals  
11) Investment Advisory Services 
12) Primary Bank Depository Services Agreement 
13) Cisco Umbrella, Cisco Identity Services Engine (ISE), and DUO 

Software License Agreements 
14) Red Hat Licenses Maintenance and Support Agreement 

5. Review and Recommend Action on 2024 Tax Roll/Tax Levy for Hidalgo and 
Starr Counties ................................................................................... 133 - 138 

6. Review and Action as Necessary on Appraisal District Allocated Cost 
Payments for Starr County ................................................................ 139 - 141 

7. Review and Recommend Action on Annual Investment Report for FY 2023 - 
2024 .................................................................................................. 142 - 144 

8. Review and Action as Necessary on Quarterly Investment Report for Quarter 
Ending August 31, 2024.................................................................... 145 - 154  

9. Review and Recommend Action on Change Order for Contract with Precision 
Task Group (PTG) / Workday ........................................................... 155 - 156 

10. Review and Recommend Action on South Texas College Public 
Transportation Agency Safety Plan .................................................. 157 - 192  



November 19, 2024 Special Board Meeting @ 5:30 p.m.  

Page 3 of 5   

11. Discussion and Action as Necessary on Proposed Facility Use Rental Fees
 .......................................................................................................... 193 - 221 

12. Discussion and Action as Necessary on Proposed Revision to Tuition and 
Fees Schedule for FY 2024 – 2025 for Out-Of-District Dual Credit Students 
Sponsored by Partnering School Districts within Texas but Outside the STC 
Service District .................................................................................. 222 - 224 

13. Review and Recommend Acceptance of Internal Audit Report in the Area of 
Faculty Overloads ............................................................................. 225 - 234 

14. Review and Recommend Action to Adopt New Business and Support Services 
Policy and Retire Current Policies .................................................... 235 - 237 
A-1. Adopt CJ (Local) Transportation Management 
A-2. Retire Policy #3620: College Sanctioned Travel for Students 
A-3. Retire Policy #6420: Transportation Management 
A-4. Retire Policy #6425: Use of College-Owned Vehicles 
A-5. Retire Policy #6426: Authorization to Drive College-Owned Vehicles 

 

15. Review and Recommend Action to Adopt Community and Governmental 
Relations Policy and Retire Current Policy ....................................... 238 - 240 
A-1. Adopt GCB (Local) Public Information Program – Requests for Information 
A-2. Retire Policy #2510: Requests for Public Information 

16. Review and Recommend Action to Adopt New Instruction Policy .... 241 - 242 
A-1.  Adopt EA (Local) Academic Year and Calendar 

 

17. Review and Recommend Action to Adopt Local Governance Policies and 
Retire Current Policies ...................................................................... 243 - 246 
A-1. Adopt BFB (Local) Chief Executive Officer - Contract 
A-2. Retire Policy #32130:  Contract of Employment for the President 
A-3. Retire Policy #2150:  Annual Salary of the President 
B-1. Adopt BFC (Local) Chief Executive Officer – Termination of Employment 
B-2. Retire Policy #2170: Non-Renewal of the President’s Contract 
B-3. Retire Policy #2180: Dismissal of the President 

18. Review and Recommend Action to Adopt New Students Policies and Retire 
Current Policies  ............................................................................... 247 - 252 
A-1. Adopt FAA (Local) Equal Educational Opportunity 
A-2. Retire Policy #3216: Discrimination Against Pregnant and Parenting Students 
Prohibited 
B-1. Adopt FC (Local) Attendance 
B-2. Retire Policy #3335: Student Attendance 
C-1. Adopt FMA (Local) Discipline and Penalties – Discipline Procedure 

19. Review and Recommend Action to Revise Policies .......................... 253 - 256 
A-1.  Revise CC (Local) Annual Operating Budget 
A-2.  Revise EBA (Local) Alternate Methods of Instruction – Distance Education 

 
20. Review and Recommend Action to Retire Current Policies .............. 257 - 261 

A-1. Policy #2250: Evaluation of the Internal Auditor 
B-1. Policy #3331: Students Called to Active Military Duty 



November 19, 2024 Special Board Meeting @ 5:30 p.m.  

Page 4 of 5   

C-1. Policy #3630: Student Organizations 

D. Facilities Items 

1. Review and Status Update on Pecan Campus Kinesiology Building
 ......................................................................................................................... 
 .......................................................................................................... 262 - 270 

2. Review and Action on Authorization to Solicit for Architectural Services for the 
Pecan Campus Institutional Support Services Building N Expansion
 .........................................................................................................................  
 ......................................................................................................     271 - 277 

3. Review and Action on Authorization to Solicit Architectural Services for the 
Pecan Campus Administration Building ............................................ 278 - 282 

4. Review and Action on Contracting Engineering Services for the Pecan 
Campus Physical Plant Building E Cooling Tower Above Group Piping System
 .......................................................................................................... 283 - 294 

5. Review and Action on Contracting Architectural Services for the Nursing and 
Allied Health Campus East Building A Renovation of Radiology Lab to 
Multipurpose Skills Lab and Community Pharmacy Lab 
 .......................................................................................................... 295 - 313 

6. Review and Action on Contracting Construction Services for the Pecan 
Campus Cooper Center for Performing Arts Building L Expansion and 
Renovations for Music and Dance Programs .................................... 314 - 328 

7. Review and Action on Contracting Construction Services for the Technology 
Campus Resurface of Parking Lot #2 and Regrading of Existing Swales
 ......................................................................................................................... 
 .......................................................................................................... 329 - 340 

8. Review and Action on Contracting Construction Services for the Regional 
Center for Public Safety Excellence Parking Lot #1 Additional Spaces
 ......................................................................................................................... 
 .......................................................................................................... 341 - 352 

9. Review and Action on Final Completion of the District Wide Flooring 
Replacements Phase III at Mid Valley Campus North Academic Building G
 .......................................................................................................... 353 - 360 

IX. Approval of Financial Reports for September 2024 .................................... 361 

X. Review of Informational Reports as of October 2024 .................................. 362 

XI. Establishment of an Executive Committee of the Board ............................ 363 

XII. Review and Action as Necessary on Executive Session Items .................. 364 

A. Discussion and Action as Necessary Review and Discussion of College 
President’s Contract (Texas Government Code 551.074, Personnel Matters)
 .................................................................................................................... 364 



November 19, 2024 Special Board Meeting @ 5:30 p.m.  

Page 5 of 5   

B. Update and Action as Necessary Update and Action as Necessary 
Regarding Acquisition of Real Property (Texas Government Code 551.072, 
Deliberation Regarding Real Property) ....................................................... 364 

XIII. Announcements ............................................................................................. 365 

A. Next Meetings: 

• Tuesday, January 14, 2025 
 3:00 p.m. – Education and Workforce Development Committee 
 4:00 p.m. – Facilities Committee 
 5:00 p.m. – Finance, Audit, and Human Resources Committee 

 
 

• Tuesday, January 28, 2025 
 5:30 p.m. – Regular Board Meeting 

 
B. Other Announcements: 

• The College will be closed November 28 – 29, 2024 in observance of the  
Thanksgiving holiday 

• STRC Laptop Distribution will be December 3, 2024 at 10:00 AM 

• Graduation ceremonies will be Sunday, December 15, 2024 

• The College will be closed December 19, 2024 – January 5, 2025 for Winter 
Break 



November 19, 2024 Special Board Meeting 
Page 1, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 9:06 AM 

 

Approval of Board Meeting Minutes 

The following Board Meeting Minutes are submitted for approval: 

1) October 29, 2024 Regular Board Meeting
2) November 2, 2024 Board Retreat

The Chair is asked to call for revisions to the Minutes, if any are necessary. 

If no revisions are suggested, the Chair is asked to adopt the Minutes as presented. 

If any trustee has revisions to suggest, the Chair is asked to call for a motion to approve 
the Minutes with the suggested revision. 

6



October 29, 2024 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 1, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 7:43 AM 
 

  10/29/2024 
  Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

SOUTH TEXAS COLLEGE 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES REGULAR MEETING 

Tuesday, October 29, 2024 @ 5:30 p.m. 
Ann Richards Administration Building Board Room 

Pecan Campus, McAllen, Texas 78501 
 

Minutes 

Call Meeting to Order: 

The Regular Board Meeting of the South Texas College Board of Trustees was held on 
Tuesday, October 29, 2024 in the Ann Richards Administration Building Board Room at 
the Pecan Campus in McAllen, Texas.  The meeting commenced at 5:33 p.m. with Chair 
Dr. Alejo Salinas presiding. 
  
Members present: Mr. Paul R. Rodriguez, Mr. Danny Guzman, Ms. Rose Benavidez, Ms. 
Dalinda Gonzalez-Alcantar, Ms. Victoria Cantu, and Mr. David De Los Rios 
  
Members absent: None 
 
Also present: Dr. Ricardo J. Solis, Ms. Mary Del Paz via teleconference, Dr. Anahid 
Petrosian, Dr. Rodney Rodriguez, Mr. George McCaleb, Ms. Deyadira Leal, Mrs. Myriam 
Lopez, Ms. Claudia Olivares, Ms. Cecilia Villagran, Taegan Wade, Ms. Liyah Uvalle, Mr. 
Frank Jason Gutierrez, Ms. Olivia De La Rosa, Ms. Amanda Sotelo, Ms. Yolanda 
Martinez, Dr. Jesus Campos, Chief Ruben Suarez, Lt. Johnny Barboza, Mr. Danny 
Montez, Mr. Ethan Montez, Mr. Joaquin Becerra, Mr. Robert Cuellar, Mr. Ian Loera, Mr. 
Eli Nguma, Mr. and Mrs. John Ingle, Ms. Myra De La Garza, Mrs. Carla Rodriguez, Mr. 
Jorge Sanchez, Mr. Daniel A. Montez, Mr. Javier Villalobos, Ms. Lynda Lopez, Ms. Julissa 
Canales, Mrs. Nadia Ochoa, Dr. Matt Hebbard, Mr. Luis De La Garza, Mrs. Olivia Gomez, 
Dr. Zachary Suarez, Dr. Brett Millan, Mr. Sam Saldana, Ms. Kelly Nelson, Mr. Martin 
Villarreal, Mr. Andrew Fish, and Ms. Venisa Earhart. 
 

Determination of a Quorum 

A quorum was present and a notice of the meeting was posted. 
 

Invocation 

Dr. Zachary Suarez, Executive Director of Human Resources and Talent Development 
said the invocation. 
 

Mission Moment 

This Mission Moment was presented by Mr. Danny Montez, Mid Valley Campus 
Administrator.  Mr. John Ingle was recognized for his inspiring letter that praised the Child 
Development Center that is located at the Mid Valley Campus.  In his letter, he stated that 
the Center’s services allowed him to return to school so that he could begin earning his 
Associate Degree in Fire Science Technology. 

7



October 29, 2024 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 2, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 7:43 AM 
 

  10/29/2024 
  Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

Public Comments 

No public comments were given and a notice of the meeting was posted. 
 

Presentations 

Presentation on the Food Pantry Initiative in Collaboration with the 
STC Foundation 

Mr. Elibariki Nguma, Director of Student Activities and Wellness and Dr. Matt Hebbard, 
VP of Student Affairs and Enrollment Services provided information regarding the Food 
Pantry Initiative in Collaboration with the STC Foundation. 
 
This information was presented to the Board for discussion and feedback, and to 
empower the trustees with a greater depth of knowledge about the about the STC Food 
Pantry. 

No action was requested 
 

Introduction of the New Student Government Association Officers 

Mr. Elibariki Nguma, Director of Student Activities and Wellness presented the newly 
elected Student Government Officers from all STC Campuses. 
 
No action was required from the Board. This item was presented for information purposes. 
 

Update by the College President 

Dr. Ricardo J. Solis, College President, provided a brief update, including the following 
items: 

 
• Attended the reaffirmation event for SACSCOC at Miami Dade. 
• Attended the Dell Foundation meeting. 
• Attended New Heights Charter High School Initiative meeting in Dallas/Ft. Worth 

area. 
• Attended the TEDx Event.  

 

Consideration and Action on Consent Agenda 

Approval of Board Meeting Minutes 

The following Board Meeting Minutes were submitted for approval: 
 

1) September 24, 2024 Public Hearing and Special Board Meeting  
2) September 24, 2024 Regular Board Meeting 

The Chair called for any proposed revisions to the Minutes as written. 
 
No revisions were suggested, and the Chair adopted the Minutes as written. 

8



October 29, 2024 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 3, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 7:43 AM 
 

  10/29/2024 
  Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

Consideration and Action on New Items 

Report of New Grant Awards 

Mrs. Carla M. Rodriguez, Executive Director of the Office of Sponsored Initiatives, 
reported the following listing of grants recently accepted by the College. 
 
These grants were approved and accepted by the College President, in compliance with 
Board Policy CAM – Appropriations and Revenue Sources: Grants, Funds, Donations 
from Private Sources, and were reported here for the Board’s information and feedback 
to administration. 
 
• Development Corporation of McAllen, Inc. (DCMI) in the amount of $500,000 for 

Nursing and Allied Health Division. 

• Development Corporation of McAllen, Inc. (DCMI) in the amount of $450,000 for 
Center for Advanced Training & Apprenticeships.  

• U.S. Department of Homeland Security Citizenship and Integration Training 
Academy –in the amount of $399,840.   

• National Science Foundation Hispanic Serving Institutions (HSI) 
Implementation and Evaluation Project Subaward – UTRGV in the amount of 
$258,005.   

• Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board (THECB) Student Success 
Acceleration Program 2.0 Grant (SSAP 2.0) in the amount of $150,000.   

• U.S. Department of Education Child Care Access Means Parents in School 
(CCAMPIS) Program in the amount of $352,062. 

 
Dr. Rodney Rodriguez was available at the meeting to answer any questions for the 
Board. 
 
Ms. Victoria Cantu asked for the criteria for U.S. Department of Education Child Care 
Access Means Parents in School (CCAMPIS) Program grant. 
 
No action was requested on this item. 
 
  

9



October 29, 2024 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 4, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 7:43 AM 
 

  10/29/2024 
  Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

Consideration and Action on Committee Items 

Review and Action as Necessary on Consent Agenda Items from the 
Education and Workforce Development Committee 

The following Consent Agenda item was thoroughly discussed by the Education and 
Workforce Development Committee.  All trustees, whether a member of the Committee 
or not, received all supporting documentation and were invited to participate in the 
deliberation on the item.  Non-committee members did not participate in Committee votes 
for recommendation of Board action. 
 
Administration believes that all questions raised during the Committee discussion of 
Consent Agenda items were resolved to the Committee’s satisfaction at the meeting, and 
the item is presented here substantially as recommended by the Committee, for approval 
by the Board of Trustees. 
 
Any trustee may request the item be removed from the Consent Agenda for further 
discussion.  Otherwise, the Board is asked to formally act on the full consent agenda, 
according to the details and recommended action presented for each item in the following 
pages. 
 
The Education and Workforce Development Committee recommended Board action on 
the following items as presented: 
a. Approval on Proposed Free GED Program Partnership. 

 
Upon a motion by Ms. Victoria Cantu and a second by Ms. Dalinda Gonzalez-Alcantar, 
the Board of Trustees of South Texas College approved and authorized item “a” of the 
Education and Workforce Development Committee Consent Agenda as presented. 
 
The motion carried 
 

Consent Agenda: 
a.  Approval on Proposed Free GED Program Partnership 

Purpose Administration requested approval to negotiate and execute an 
Interagency Cooperation Agreement with Hidalgo County officials 
to partner in offering a free GED Program to communities in need. 

Justification The Office of Continuing Education and Workforce Development 
has developed the enclosed proposal, which would allow STC to 
provide a tuition-free GED program, with instruction, tutoring, and 
graduation celebrations held at Hidalgo County facilities 
convenient to communities in the greatest need for these 
resources. 

Enclosed 
Documents 

• Presentation outlining the proposed program and 
• Brochure: South Texas College and Hidalgo County 

Proposal for a Free GED Program Partnership were 
included in the packet for the Board’s information and 
review. 

10



October 29, 2024 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 5, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 7:43 AM 
 

  10/29/2024 
  Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

 
The Committee recommended Board approval of the Proposed Free GED Program 
Partnership as presented. 
 
This item was approved by the Board as part of consent agenda action 
 
 

Review of Presentations Delivered to Education and Workforce 
Committee 

The following presentation was delivered to the Education and Workforce Committee on 
Tuesday, October 15, 2024: 
 
A. Presentation on the Division of Nursing and Allied Health 
Dr. Margo Vargas Ayala, Interim Dean for Nursing and Allied Health highlighted the 
programs of the Division of Nursing and Allied Health, including program and student 
performance as well as ongoing and future program development plans. 
 
No action was requested.  

This information was presented to the Education and Workforce Development 
Committee for discussion and feedback. 

Review of Presentations Delivered to Finance, Audit, and Human 
Resources Committee 

The following presentation was delivered to the Finance, Audit, and Human Resources 
Committee on Tuesday, October 15, 2024: 
 
A. Presentation on The Records Management Program 

Purpose Mr. Frank Jason Gutierrez, Director - Business Process and 
Accountability Administration provided information regarding The 
Records Management Program at South Texas College (College). 
The purpose of the program is to establish a structured program 
focused on College record preservation and accessibility in 
compliance with applicable laws and with College policy CIA – 
Equipment and Supplies Management: Records Management. 

 
Justification Under the leadership and direction of the College’s Records 

Management Officer, Mary Del Paz, Vice President for Finance and 
Administrative Services, the Business Process and Accountability 
Department manages records management operations, including, 
but not limited to, policy and procedure development, record storage, 
digital records, and training. 
 

Enclosed  
Documents 
 

Appendix A –  PowerPoint Presentation was included in the packet 
for the Board’s information and review. 

 
 No action was requested on this item.  It was presented for 

information purposes only. 

11



October 29, 2024 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 6, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 7:43 AM 
 

  10/29/2024 
  Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

Review and Action as Necessary on Consent Agenda Items from the 
Finance, Audit, and Human Resources Committee 

The following Consent Agenda items were thoroughly discussed by the Finance, Audit, 
and Human Resources Committee.  All trustees, whether a member of the Committee or 
not, received all supporting documentation and were invited to participate in the 
deliberation on each item.  Non-committee members did not participate in Committee 
votes for recommendation of Board action. 
 
Administration believes that all questions raised during the Committee discussion of 
Consent Agenda items were resolved to the Committee’s satisfaction at the meeting, and 
the items are presented here substantially as recommended by the Committee, for 
approval by the Board of Trustees. 
Any trustee may request any item be removed from the Consent Agenda for further 
discussion.  Otherwise, the Board is asked to formally act on the full consent agenda, 
according to the details and recommended action presented for each item in the following 
pages. 
 
The Finance, Audit, and Human Resources Committee recommended Board action on 
the following items as presented: 

 
a. Approval of Award of Proposals, Purchases, Renewals, Interagency Agreements, and 

Interlocal Agreements a total cost of $2,283,041.79 
b. Approval of Compensatory Time for Winter Break Holidays Worked by Exempt 

Personnel on the Enterprise Resources Planning (ERP) Implementation  
c. Approval of Resolution #2025-003 Authorizing Investment Brokers/Dealers  
d. Approval of Change Order for Contract with Precision Task Group (PTG) / Workday  
e. Approval to Reclassify Existing Vacant Position(s) in Accordance with Policy DEA 

(Local)  
f. Approval of Jurisdictional and lnteragency Support Memorandums of Understanding 

(MOU) Between the University of Texas Rio Grande Valley (UTRGV) Police 
Department and the South Texas College (STC) Police Department  

g. Approval to Revise Business and Support Services Policy  
A-1. Revise CAK (Local) Appropriations and Revenue Sources: Investments 

h. Approval to Adopt New Basic District Foundations Policy and Retire Current Policy 
A-1. Adopt AD (Local) Educational Role, Mission, Purpose, and Responsibility 
A-2. Retire Policy #900: Comprehensive Mission Incorporating Institutional Vision, 
Mission, and Core Values 

i. Approval to Adopt New Local Governance Policy  
A-1. Adopt BH (Local) Administrative Rules and Regulations 

j. Approval to Adopt New Business and Support Services Policies and Retire Current 
Policies  
A-1. Adopt CHF (Local) Site Management – Weapons 
A-2. Retire Policy #6326: Concealed Carry and Weapons on Campus 
B-1. Adopt CF (Local) Purchasing and Acquisition 
B-2. Retire Policy #5200: Purchasing Authority 
B-3. Retire Policy #5210: Purchasing 

12



October 29, 2024 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 7, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 7:43 AM 
 

  10/29/2024 
  Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

B-4. Retire Policy #5220: Contractors: Consultant Services, Professional Services and 
Honoraria 
B-5. Retire Policy 5225: Authorization for the President to Award Contracts After 
Informal Bidding for Expenditures of Up to $10,000 and Purchasing Procedures for 
Personal Property and Public Works 
B-6. Retire Policy 5226: Contracts 
C-1. Adopt CM (Local) Facilities Construction 
C-2. Retire Policy #6120: Physical Facilities Planning and Educational Specifications 

k. Approval to Adopt New Instruction Policy and Retire Current Policies  
A-1. Adopt ECC (Local) Instructional Arrangements – Course Load and Schedules 
A-2. Retire Policy #3240: Off-Setting Drops and Adds 
A-3. Retire Policy #3301: Definition of Semester Credit Hour 
A-4. Retire Policy #3330: Withdrawal from Semester Credit Courses 
A-5. Retire Policy #3336: Requirements for Students Registering for a Course More 
than Once 
A-6. Retire Policy #5555: Schedule Changes 

l. Approval to Adopt New Personnel Policy and Retire Current Policy  
A-1. Adopt DMC (Local) Termination of Employment – Reduction in Force 
A-2. Retire Policy #4912: Termination or Reduction of Personnel Due to Financial 
Exigency or Program Change 

m. Approval to Adopt New Students Policies and Retire Current Policies  
A-1. Adopt FI (Local) Student Solicitations 
B-1. Adopt FK (Local) Student Activities 
B-2. Retire Policy #3631: Student Activities 
B-3. Retire Policy #3633: Intramural and Recreational Sports Program 
C-1. Adopt FKC (Local) Student Activities – Registered Student Organizations 
D-1. Adopt FLB (Local) Student Rights and Responsibilities – Student Conduct 
D-2. Retire Policy #3010: Academic Integrity 
D-3. Retire Policy #3323: Academic Integrity and Dishonesty 
D-4. Retire Policy #3650: Student Rights and Responsibilities, Conduct and Discipline 
E-1. Adopt FLC (Local) Student Rights and Responsibilities – Interrogations and 
Searches 
F-1. Adopt FLD (Local) Student Rights and Responsibilities – Student Complaints 
F-2. Retire Policy #3312: Student Appeal of Course Grades 
F-3. Retire Policy #3313: Student Grievance or Complaint 
G-1. Adopt FLE (Local) Student Rights and Responsibilities – Involvement in Decision 
Making 

n. Approval to Retire Current Policies  
A-1 Retire Policy #5500: Texas Public Education Grants 
B-2 Retire Policy #6110: Use of College Facilities 
 

Mr. Danny Guzman asked for clarification of policy # 5220 under item j, sub-item B-4 
regarding the President’s authorization to approve any contract under $50,000.  VP Mary 
stated that the current policy is that the President does have the authority to approve any 
contract under $50,000 but anything over that amount must be approved by the Board.  
Mr. Guzman stated that he was specifically focusing on consulting services. 
 

13



October 29, 2024 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 8, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 7:43 AM 
 

  10/29/2024 
  Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

Dr. Alejo Salinas asked that item “l” with sub-items A-1 and A-2 be removed from the 
consent agenda to be discussed and deliberated by the Board at a later time. 
 
Upon a motion by Ms. Dalinda Gonzalez-Alcantar and a second by Mr. David De Los Rios 
the Board of Trustees of South Texas College approved and authorized items a – k and 
m - n of the Finance, Audit, and Human Resources Committee Consent Agenda deferring 
approval of item “l” sub-items A-1 and A-2 until the Board has had an opportunity to 
discuss and deliberate this item further. 
 
The motion carried. 
 

Consent Agenda: 
a. Approval of Award of Purchases, Renewals, and Interlocal Agreements at a total 

cost of $2,283,041.79 
 
Award of 
Proposals  

1) Grounds Maintenance: award the proposal for grounds maintenance 
to TLC - Total Lawn Care Service LLC (San Antonio, TX) for the 
period beginning November 1, 2024 through August 31, 2025, with 
two one-year options to renew, at an estimated total amount of 
$735,000.00. The services are as follows: 
 

Services Amount 
Mowing, Tree Trimming, Grass Shredding, and 
Irrigation Inspections and Repair 
(Estimated Amount) 

552,193.42 

Plants, Replacement Plants, and Landscaping 
(Not Exceeding) 

107,806.58 

Sprinkler System Repairs (Not Exceeding) 75,000.00 
Total Amount:  $735,000.00 

 

2) Industrial Supplies, Materials, and Accessories: award the 
proposals for industrial supplies, materials, and accessories for the 
period beginning November 25, 2024 through November 24, 2025, 
with two one-year options to renew, at an estimated total amount of 
$180,000.00, which is based on prior year expenditures. The vendors 
are as follows: 
 

Vendor (City, State) Vendor (City, State) 
Airgas USA LLC (McAllen, TX) AOC (Brownsville, TX) 
Burton Companies  
(Weslaco, TX) 

CV Industrial Hardware LLC 
(Mission, TX) 

Industrial Supplier Larey, Inc 
/dba International Industrial 
Supply Co (Brownsville, TX) 

Linde Gas and Equipment Inc 
(Pharr, TX) 

Matheson Tri Gas  
(San Benito, TX) 

Triple S Steel /dba Alamo 
Iron Works (San Antonio, TX) 

United Welding Supply LLC 
(Edinburg, TX) 

 

 
 

14



October 29, 2024 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 9, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 7:43 AM 
 

  10/29/2024 
  Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

Purchases  3) Instructional Equipment: purchase instructional equipment from PSI 
JF Petroleum Group, Inc. (Edinburg, TX), a Texas Association of 
School Boards – Buyboard approved vendor, at a total amount of 
$83,817.88; 

4) Law Enforcement Vehicles: purchase law enforcement vehicles 
from Caldwell Country Chevrolet (Caldwell, TX), a Texas 
Association of School Boards – Buyboard approved vendor, at an 
estimated total amount of $112,880.00; 

5) Parts and Supplies: purchase parts and supplies from Johnson 
Supply (Houston, TX/Pharr, TX), a Texas Association of School 
Boards – Buyboard approved vendor, for the period beginning 
September 1, 2024 through August 31, 2025, at an estimated total 
amount of $100,000.00, which is based on prior year expenditures; 

6) Computers, Laptops, Monitors, and Printers: purchase computers, 
laptops, monitors, and printers as follows: 
 

Vendor (City, State) / Purchasing Cooperative Amount 
Dell Marketing, LP (Dallas, TX)/ State of Texas 
Department of Information Resources (DIR) 

$274,871.51 

CRC Computer Repair Center (McAllen, TX)/ State 
of Texas Department of Information Resources (DIR) 

3,240.00 

Total Amount $278,111.51 
 

7) Network Equipment, Licenses, and Accessories: purchase 
network equipment, licenses, and accessories from Netsync Network 
Solutions, Inc. (Houston, TX), a State of Texas Department of 
Information Resources (DIR) approved vendor, for the period 
beginning October 1, 2024 through August 31, 2025, at an estimated 
total amount of $100,000.00, which is based on prior year 
expenditures; 
 

Renewals 8) Case Management and Mentoring Services: renew the case 
management and mentoring services contract with Valley Initiative 
for Development and Advancement (VIDA) (Mercedes, TX), a sole 
source vendor, for the period beginning January 1, 2025 through 
December 31, 2025, at an estimated total amount of $81,000.00, 
based on prior year expenditures; 

9) Carpet and Flooring Services: renew the carpet and flooring 
services contracts for the period beginning February 1, 2025 through 
January 31, 2026, at an estimated total amount of $100,000.00, which 
is based on prior year expenditures. The awarded vendors are as 
follows: 
 

Vendor (City, State) Vendor (City, State) 
Diaz Floors & Interiors, Inc.  
(Pharr, TX) 

Ontiveros Floor Covering, LLC  
(Alamo, TX) 

 

10) Graduation Regalia:  renew the graduation regalia contract with the 
awarded vendor Jostens, Inc. (Minneapolis, MN) for the period 
beginning January 1, 2025 through December 31, 2025, at an 

15



October 29, 2024 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 10, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 7:43 AM 
 

  10/29/2024 
  Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

estimated total amount of $98,900.00, which is based on prior year 
expenditures; 

11) Institutional Membership: renew the institutional membership with 
the Texas Association of Community Colleges (TACC) (Austin, 
TX), a sole source vendor, for the period beginning September 1, 
2024 through August 31, 2025, at a total amount of $103,100.00; 

12) Printing of Stationery: renew the printing of stationery contracts for 
the period beginning February 1, 2025 through January 31, 2026, at 
an estimated total amount of $30,000.00, which is based on prior year 
expenditures. The awarded vendors are as follows:  
 

Primary Vendor  UBEO, LLC /dba Copy Zone (McAllen, TX) 
Secondary Vendor Slate Group (Lubbock, TX) 

 

13) Signs, Banners, and Related Products: renew the signs, banners, 
and related products contracts for the period beginning February 1, 
2025 through January 31, 2026, at an estimated total amount of 
$80,000.00, which is based on prior year expenditures. The awarded 
vendors are as follows:  
 

Vendor (City, State) Vendor (City, State) 
Brand Boosters Co., LLC 
(McAllen, TX)  

FedEx Office and Print 
Services, Inc. (Plano, TX) 

Gateway Printing (Edinburg, 
TX) 

Huntington Sky Production, 
Ltd. /dba Fastsigns (McAllen, 
TX) 

Imprezos Pro Uniforms, LLC 
(Pharr, TX) 

Promo Universal, LLC (Corpus 
Christi, TX) 

Slate Group (Lubbock, TX) UBEO, LLC /dba Copy Zone, 
Ltd. (McAllen, TX) 

 

14) Vehicle Fuel Program: renew the vehicle fuel program with U.S. 
Bank / Voyager Fleet Systems (Kansas City, MO), the State of 
Texas Procurement and Support Services (TPASS) approved vendor, 
acting by and through the State of Texas Council of Competitive 
Government (CCG), for the period beginning January 1, 2025 through 
December 31, 2025, at an estimated total amount of $160,000.00, 
which is based on prior year expenditures; 
 

Interagency 
Agreements 

15) Employee Assistance Program (EAP) Agreement: renew the 
employee assistance program (EAP) agreement with The University 
of Texas Health Science Center at Houston (Houston, TX) through 
an interagency agreement for the period beginning November 1, 2024 
through October 31, 2025, at an estimated total annual amount of 
$22,532.40 for 1,707 full-time employees, at a monthly rate of $1.10 
per employee; 

16) State Record Inquiry Access Agreements: renew the state records 
inquiry access through interagency agreements for the period 
beginning January 1, 2025 through December 31, 2025, at an 
estimated total amount of $14,000.00, which is based on prior year 
expenditures. The State of Texas agencies are as listed:  

16



October 29, 2024 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 11, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 7:43 AM 
 

  10/29/2024 
  Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

 
 

Agencies  Amount 
Texas Department of Public Safety (DPS) (Austin, TX) 10,000.00 
Texas Department of Motor Vehicles (DMV) (Austin, 
TX) 

3,000.00 

Texas Department of Family and Protective Services 
(DFPS) (Austin, TX) 

1,000.00 

Total Amount: $14,000.00 
 

Interlocal 
Agreements 

17) City Vehicle Usage Agreement Extension: ratify the city vehicle 
usage agreement extension through an interlocal agreement with the 
City of McAllen (McAllen, TX) for the period beginning October 1, 
2024 through August 31, 2025, at no cost to the College; 

18) Facility Rental Agreement: enter into a facility rental agreement with 
the City of Mission (Mission, TX) for the use of the Mission Event 
Center through an interlocal agreement for December 11, 2024, at a 
total amount of $3,700.00. 

 
This item was approved by the Board as part of consent agenda action. 
 

Consent Agenda: 
b. Approval of Compensatory Time for Winter Break Holidays Worked by Exempt 

Personnel on the Enterprise Resources Planning (ERP) Implementation 
Purpose To approve the request for exempt personnel working on the 

Enterprise Resources Planning (ERP) implementation during the 
FY2024 - 2025 Winter Break holiday to be allowed to receive 
compensatory time to be taken at a later date. 
 

Justification The Finance and Human Capital Management Workday ERP 
implementation project commenced in October 2023.   Exempt 
personnel will be required to work with the vendor on the ERP 
implementation project during the College’s winter break scheduled 
for December 19, 2024 through January 5, 2025, in order to complete 
the project by the scheduled go-live date of January 1, 2025.   
 

 
The Committee recommended Board approval for exempt personnel working on the 
Enterprise Resources Planning (ERP) implementation during the FY2024 - 2025 Winter 
Break holiday to be allowed to receive compensatory time to be taken at a later date as 
presented. 
 
This item was approved by the Board as part of consent agenda action. 
 

Consent Agenda: 
c. Approval of Resolution #2025-003 Authorizing Investment Brokers/Dealers 

Purpose To approve Resolution 2025-003 to update the Investment 
Brokers/Dealers list. 
 

Justification The Texas Public Funds Investment Act (PFIA) requires that the 
Board of Trustees approve all broker and dealer firms that will be used 

17



October 29, 2024 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 12, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 7:43 AM 
 

  10/29/2024 
  Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

to transact investment business with the College.  As per Policy CAK: 
Appropriations and Revenue Sources: Investments and in 
accordance with the PFIA, the Board of Trustees shall, at least 
annually, review, revise, and adopt a list of qualified Investment 
Brokers/Dealers. 

A name change for one of the brokers is included in the list. 

The Resolution Authorizing Investment Brokers/Dealers was 
approved and authorized on November 28, 2023, as amended.  A 
revised list of brokers/dealers is included in Appendix A. 
 

Enclosed 
Documents 
 

Appendix A – Resolution was included in the packet for the Board’s 
review. 

 
The Committee recommended Board approval of Resolution No. 2025-003 Authorizing 
Investment Brokers/Dealers as presented. 
 
This item was approved by the Board as part of consent agenda action. 
 

Consent Agenda: 
d. Approval on Change Order for Contract with Precision Task Group (PTG) / 

Workday 
Purpose To approve Change Order for Contract with Precision Task Group 

(PTG) / Workday.   
 

Justification To gain approval of a change order in the amount of $105,321, which 
will offset the deductive change order approved by the President in 
May 2024 in the same amount.  
 
The change order outlines the amendments to the contract with 
Precision Task Group (PTG) Statement of Work required for a 
successful implementation that encompasses the following: 

• Additional project management, configuration/testing, and no 
change in scope/timeline 

• Scope addition:  reporting, functional, conversion (employees 
to new hourly plans) 

• Scope to change:  integration types and complexity 
 

Enclosed 
Documents 
 

Appendix A – Summary of Contract Change Orders and 
Appendix B – Change Order were included in the packet for the 
Board’s information and review. 

 
The Committee recommended Board approval to modify approvals a Change Order in 
the amount of $105,321, for the Contract with Precision Task Group (PTG) / Workday as 
presented. 
 
This item was approved by the Board as part of consent agenda action 

18



October 29, 2024 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 13, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 7:43 AM 
 

  10/29/2024 
  Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

 
Consent Agenda 

e. Approval to Reclassify Existing Vacant Position(s) in Accordance with Policy 
DEA (Local) 

Purpose To reclassify existing vacant position(s) in accordance with Policy 
DEA (Local) Compensation and Benefits: Compensation Plan.  
 

Justification To align the job title and pay grade with the expanded duties and 
responsibilities.  
 
The placement of the new proposed position(s) within the College’s 
Compensation Plan for FY 2024 – 2025 and rationale are listed in 
Appendix A. 
 

Enclosed 
Documents 
 

Appendix A – Reclassification of Vacant Non-Faculty Positions, 
Appendix B – Policy DEA (Local), 
Appendix C – Job Descriptions, and 
Appendix D – Organizational Charts were all included in the packet 
for the Board’s information and review. 
 

 
The Committee recommended Board to reclassify existing vacant position(s) in 
accordance in accordance with Policy DEA (Local) as presented. 
 
This item was approved by the Board as part of consent agenda action. 
 

Consent Agenda: 
f.  Approval of Jurisdictional and lnteragency Support Memorandums of 

Understanding (MOU) Between the University of Texas Rio Grande Valley (UTRGV) 
Police Department and the South Texas College (STC) Police Department 

Purpose To approve the MOU between the UTRGV Police Department and 
the STC Police Department. 
 

Justification The MOU outlines the jurisdiction of each Police Department, the 
cooperation protocols, and identifies which Police Department is 
responsible for responding to incidents in geographical locations at 
the property adjacent to the STC Starr County Campus. 
 

Enclosed  
Documents 
 

Appendix A – MOU for UTRGV Police Department was included in 
the packet for the Board’s information and review. 

 
 

The Committee recommended Board approval of the Jurisdictional and lnteragency 
Support Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between the University of Texas Rio 
Grande Valley Police Department (UTRGV) and the South Texas College Police 
Department as presented. 

This item was approved by the Board as part of consent agenda action. 
 

19



October 29, 2024 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 14, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 7:43 AM 
 

  10/29/2024 
  Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

 
Consent Agenda: 

g. Approval to Revise Business and Support Services Policy 
Purpose To approve Policy CAK (Local): Appropriations and Revenue 

Sources: Investments as required by The Public Funds Investment 
Action (PFIA), Chapter 2256.005 9 (e). 
 

Justification The Public Funds Investment Act (PFIA), Chapter 2256.005 (e) and 
the College’s Policy requires the governing body of an investing entity 
to review its Investment Policy and Investment Strategy Statement 
not less than annually.  The governing body must adopt a written 
instrument by rule, order, ordinance, or resolution stating that it has 
reviewed the Investment Policy and Investment Strategy Statement 
and that the written instrument so adopted shall record any changes 
made to either the Investment Policy or Investment Strategy 
Statement.  
 
Administration brings the Investment Policy and Investment Strategy 
Statement to the Board of Trustees annually, as required. 
 
The policy was adopted at the April 23, 2024 Board Meeting, and at 
this time, there are no changes to the policy. 
 

Enclosed 
Documents 
 

Appendix A – Policy CAK was included in the packet for the Board’s 
information and review. 
 

 
The Committee recommended Board approval and authorization of Business and Support 
Services Policy CAK(L) Appropriations and Revenue Sources: Investments as presented, 
and which supersedes any previously adopted Board policy as presented. 
 
This item was approved by the Board as part of consent agenda action. 
 

Consent Agenda: 
h. Approval to Adopt New Basic District Foundations Policy and Retire Current 

Policy 
Purpose To adopt the new Basic District Foundations Policy and retire the 

current policy to align with the Texas Association of School Boards 
(TASB) policy manual. 
 

Justification To provide the new policies in the TASB standardized format and 
contain all, some, or none of the content from the retired policies. In 
addition to the policy and, as applicable, internal procedures are 
currently in place and will continue to be enhanced. 
 
The new and retired policies have been reviewed by staff, 
administrators, TASB staff, STC Legal Counsel, and the College 
President. 
 

20



October 29, 2024 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 15, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 7:43 AM 
 

  10/29/2024 
  Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

Enclosed 
Documents 
 

Appendix A – List of New and Retired Policies and 
Appendix B – New and Retired Policies were included in the packet 
for the Board’s information and review. 
 

 
The Committee recommended Board approval and authorization to adopt the new Basic 
District Foundations Policy and retire current policy as presented, and which supersedes 
any previously adopted Board policy. 
 
This item was approved by the Board as part of consent agenda action. 
 

Consent Agenda: 
i. Approval to Adopt New Local Governance Policy 

Purpose To adopt the new Local Governance Policy to align with the Texas 
Association of School Boards (TASB) policy manual. 
 

Justification To provide the new policy in the TASB standardized format. In 
addition to the policy and, as applicable, internal procedures are 
currently in place and will continue to be enhanced. 
 
The new policy has been reviewed by staff, administrators, TASB 
staff, STC Legal Counsel, and the College President. 
 

Enclosed 
Documents 
 

Appendix A – List of New Policy and 
Appendix B – New Policy were included in the packet for the Board’s 
information and review. 
 

 
The Committee recommended Board approval to adopt the new Local Governance Policy 
as presented, and which supersedes any previously adopted Board policy. 
 
This item was approved by the Board as part of consent agenda action. 
 

Consent Agenda: 
j. Approval to Adopt New Business and Support Services Policies and Retire 

Current Policies 
Purpose To adopt new Business and Support Services Policies and retire the 

current policies to align with the Texas Association of School Boards 
(TASB) policy manual. 
 

Justification To provide the new policies in the TASB standardized format and 
contain all, some, or none of the content from the retired policies. In 
addition to the policy and, as applicable, internal procedures are 
currently in place and will continue to be enhanced. 
 
The new and retired policies have been reviewed by staff, 
administrators, TASB staff, STC Legal Counsel, and the Vice 
President for Finance and Administrative Services. 
 

21



October 29, 2024 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 16, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 7:43 AM 
 

  10/29/2024 
  Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

Enclosed 
Documents 
 

Appendix A – List of New and Retired Policies and 
Appendix B – New and Retired Policies were included in the packet 
for the Board’s information and review. 
 

 
The Committee recommended Board approval and authorization to adopt new Instruction 
Policy and retire current policies as presented, and which supersedes any previously 
adopted Board policy. 
 
This item was approved by the Board as part of consent agenda action. 
 

Consent Agenda: 
k. Approval to Adopt New Instruction Policy and Retire Current Policies 

Purpose To adopt the new Instruction Policy and retire the current policies to 
align with the Texas Association of School Boards (TASB) policy 
manual. 
 

Justification To provide the new policy in the TASB standardized format and 
contain all, some, or none of the content from the retired policies. In 
addition to the policy and, as applicable, internal procedures are 
currently in place and will continue to be enhanced. 
 
The new and retired policies have been reviewed by staff, 
administrators, TASB staff, STC Legal Counsel, the Vice President 
and Provost for Academic Affairs and Economic Development, and 
the Vice President for Student Affairs and Enrollment Management. 
 

Enclosed 
Documents 
 

Appendix A – List of New and Retired Policies and 
Appendix B – New and Retired Policies were included in the packet 
for the Board’s information and review. 
 

 
The Committee recommended Board approval and authorization to adopt new Business 
and Support Services Policies and retire current policies as presented, and which 
supersedes any previously adopted Board policy. 
 
This item was approved by the Board as part of consent agenda action. 
 

Consent Agenda: 
l. Approval to Adopt New Personnel Policy and Retire Current Policy 

Purpose To adopt a new Personnel Policy and retire the current policy to align 
with the Texas Association of School Boards (TASB) policy manual. 
 

Justification To provide the new policy in the TASB standardized format and 
contain all, some, or none of the content from the retired policy. In 
addition to the policy and, as applicable, internal procedures are 
currently in place and will continue to be enhanced. 
 

22



October 29, 2024 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 17, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 7:43 AM 
 

  10/29/2024 
  Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

The new and retired policies have been reviewed by staff, 
administrators, TASB staff, STC Legal Counsel, and the Vice 
President for Finance and Administrative Services. 
 

Enclosed 
Documents 
 

Appendix A – List of New and Retired Policies and 
Appendix B – New and Retired Policies were included in the packet 
for the Board’s information and review. 
 

 
The Committee recommended Board approval and to adopt new Personnel Policy and 
retire current policy as presented, and which supersedes any previously adopted Board 
policy. 
 
Approval of this item was deferred by the Board until further discussion on the policy can 
be had. 
 

Consent Agenda: 
m. Approval to Adopt New Students Policies and Retire Current Policies 

Purpose To adopt new Students Policies and retire the current policies to align 
with the Texas Association of School Boards (TASB) policy manual. 
 

Justification To provide the new policies in the TASB standardized format and 
contain all, some, or none of the content from the retired policies. In 
addition to the policy and, as applicable, internal procedures are 
currently in place and will continue to be enhanced. 
 
The new and retired policies have been reviewed by staff, 
administrators, TASB staff, STC Legal Counsel, and the Vice 
President for Student Affairs and Enrollment Management. 
 

Enclosed 
Documents 
 

Appendix A – List of New and Retired Policies and 
Appendix B – New and Retired Policies were included in the packet 
for the Board’s information and review. 
 

 
The Committee recommended Board approval and authorization to adopt new Students 
Policies and retire current policies as presented, and which supersedes any previously 
adopted Board policy. 
 
This item was approved by the Board as part of consent agenda action. 
 
 

Consent Agenda: 
n. Approval to Retire Current Policies 

Purpose To retire the current policies to align with the Texas Association of 
School Boards (TASB) policy manual. 
 

Justification Based on internal operations and functions, content from the retired 
policies may transition to a procedure, handbook, or operations 
manual as deemed appropriate by College staff. 

23



October 29, 2024 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 18, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 7:43 AM 
 

  10/29/2024 
  Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

 
The retired policies have been reviewed by staff and administrators. 
 

Enclosed 
Documents 
 

Appendix A – List of Retired Policies 
Appendix B –Retired Policies 
 

 
The Committee recommended Board approval and authorization to retire current policies 
as presented. 
 
This item was approved by the Board as part of consent agenda action. 
 
 
Discussion and Action as Necessary to Amend Online Test Proctoring Software 

Agreement 

Purpose To amend the online test proctoring software agreement with 
Honorlock, Inc. (Boca Raton, FL), originally approved by the Board 
on March 26, 2024. 
 

Justification To meet the needs of the College by transitioning to an institution 
license-based agreement for a software that verifies student identity. 
 
The original agreement was quoted on a “per student usage model”.  
This amendment will be based on the College’s Full Time Equivalent 
(FTE) to ensure we do not exhaust our allotted user count before the 
academic year ends and will lower the cost per user from the low $20s 
to approximately $13 per user based on current projections and 
growth in software use of approximately 8,000 additional students. 
 
The Southern Association of Colleges and Schools Commission of 
Colleges (SACSCOC) and the US Department of Education require 
all institutions to have such a strategy.  This strategy includes 
password protection and a variety of other methods aligning with best 
practices to ensure the work submitted was completed by the student 
who is enrolled.  
 
This software is being used by all STC Instructional Divisions, 
including Continuing Education and Dual Credit Programs. 
 

Enclosed  
Documents 
 

Appendix A – Project Timeline and Information was included in the 
packet for the Board’s information and review. 
 

 
Upon a motion by Ms. Dalinda Gonzalez-Alcantar and a second by Mr. Paul Rodriguez 
the Board of Trustees of South Texas College approved and authorized to amend the 
online test proctoring software agreement with Honorlock, Inc. (Boca Raton, FL), an 
OMNIA Partners purchasing cooperative approved vendor, for a period beginning April 1, 
2024 through August 31, 2027, with three (3) annual payments. The original Board 

24



October 29, 2024 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 19, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 7:43 AM 
 

  10/29/2024 
  Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

approved agreement of $812,313.33 will be increased by $551,839.20, resulting in a grand 
total of $1,364,152.53 as presented. 
 
The motion carried. 
 

Review of Presentations Delivered to Facilities Committee 

The following presentation was delivered to the Facilities Committee on Tuesday, October 
15, 2024: 
Purpose Administration provided an update on the status of the 2010 District 

Wide College Master Plan. 
 

Justification The Board of Trustees requested an update on which buildings from 
the 2010 District Wide College Master Plan had been completed. 
 

Enclosed  
Documents 
 

Report of the Status of the 2010 Master Plan is included for the 
Board’s review and information. 

 
Funding No funds are required. 

 
Staff Resource Mary Del Paz, Vice President for Finance and Administrative 

Services 
Rick De La Garza, Director of Facilities Planning and Construction 
 

Recommendation No action was required. This item was presented for information 
purposes. 

 
 

Review and Action as Necessary on Consent Agenda Items from the 
Facilities Committee 

The following Consent Agenda items were thoroughly discussed by the Facilities 
Committee.  All trustees, whether a member of the Committee or not, received all 
supporting documentation and were invited to participate in the deliberation on the items.  
Non-committee members did not participate in Committee votes for recommendation of 
Board action. 
 
Administration believes that all questions raised during the Committee discussion of 
Consent Agenda items were resolved to the Committee’s satisfaction at the meeting, and 
the items are presented here substantially as recommended by the Committee, for 
approval by the Board of Trustees. 
 
Any trustee may request an item or items be removed from the Consent Agenda for 
further discussion.  Otherwise, the Board is asked to formally act on the full consent 
agenda, according to the details and recommended action presented for each item in the 
following pages. 
 
The Facilities Committee recommended Board action on the following items as 
presented: 

25



October 29, 2024 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 20, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 7:43 AM 
 

  10/29/2024 
  Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

The Facilities Committee recommended Board action on the following items as 
presented: 

a. Approval to Proceed with Solicitation of Architectural Services for the Pecan Campus 
Business & Science Building G Engineering Labs Renovation 

b. Approval to Proceed with Solicitation of Engineering Services for the District Wide 
HVAC Replacements Phase II at Pecan Campus 

c. Approval to Proceed with Solicitation of Construction Services for the Mid Valley 
Campus Child Development Center Canopy for Portable Building L2 

d. Approval of Rescindment of Awards of Construction Services for the District Wide 
Stucco Repainting at Pecan Campus, Mid Valley Campus, and Starr County Campus 

e. Approval of Substantial Completion of the District Wide Flooring Replacements Phase 
III at Mid Valley Campus North Academic Building G 

f. Approval of Renewal of Lease Agreement with El Milagro Clinic and the City of McAllen 
for Use of the El Milagro Clinic Parking Lot 

 
Upon a motion by Mr. Paul Rodriguez and a second by Ms. Rose Benavidez the Board of 
Trustees of South Texas College approved and authorized items a - f of the Facilities 
Committee Consent Agenda as presented. 
 
The motion carried. 
 
 

Consent Agenda: 
a. Approval to Proceed with Solicitation of Architectural Services for the Pecan 

Campus Business & Science Building G Engineering Labs Renovation 
Administration requested Board approval to proceed with the solicitation of architectural 
services for the Pecan Campus Business & Science Building G Engineering Labs 
Renovation project as presented. 
 
Justification 
Solicitation of Request for Qualifications (RFQ) for architectural services is necessary to 
procure a design team to prepare all necessary design development drawings and 
specifications in preparation for construction. Once the statements of qualifications are 
received, an evaluation team will evaluate the responses using the Board approved 
procurement process and propose an architect to the Facilities Committee at a later date. 
 
Enclosed Documents 
Following in the packet was a presentation of the project for the Board’s review and 
information. 
 
The Committee recommended Board approval to proceed with the solicitation of 
architectural services for the Pecan Campus Business & Science Building G Engineering 
Labs Renovation project as presented. 
  
This item was approved by the Board as part of consent agenda action. 
 

 
 

26



October 29, 2024 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 21, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 7:43 AM 
 

  10/29/2024 
  Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

Consent Agenda: 
b. Approval to Proceed with Solicitation of Engineering Services for the District 

Wide HVAC Replacements Phase II at Pecan Campus 
Administration requested Board approval to proceed with the solicitation of engineering 
services for the District Wide HVAC Replacements at Pecan Campus project as 
presented. 
 
Justification 
Solicitation of Request for Qualifications (RFQ) for engineering services is necessary to 
procure a design team to prepare all necessary design development drawings and 
specifications in preparation for construction. Once the statements of qualifications are 
received, an evaluation team will evaluate the responses using the Board approved 
procurement process and propose an engineer to the Facilities Committee at a later date. 
 
Enclosed Documents 
Following in the packet was a presentation of the project for the Board’s review and 
information. 
 
The Committee recommended Board approval to proceed with the solicitation of 
engineering services for the District Wide HVAC Replacements at Pecan Campus project 
as presented. 
 
This item was approved by the Board as part of consent agenda action. 
 
 

Consent Agenda: 
c. Review and Recommend Action on Approval to Proceed with Solicitation of 
Construction Services for the Mid Valley Campus Child Development Center 

Canopy for Portable Building L2A 
Administration requested approval to proceed with the solicitation of construction services 
for the Mid Valley Campus Child Development Center Canopy for Portable Building L2 
(PB-L2) project as presented. 
 
Construction services are necessary to construct a covered walkway for the portable 
building to be used by the Child Development Center program. If solicitation is approved, 
documents will be issued for solicitation of construction proposals.  Once received, 
construction proposals will be evaluated and submitted to the Board of Trustees with a 
recommendation to award a construction contract.   
 
Enclosed Documents 
Following in the packet were presentations of the projects and site plans of the areas 
for the Board’s review and information. 
 
The Committee recommended Board approval to proceed with the solicitation of 
construction services for the Mid Valley Campus Child Development Center Canopy for 
Portable Building L2 (PB-L2) project as presented. 
 
This item was approved by the Board as part of consent agenda action. 
 
 

27



October 29, 2024 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 22, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 7:43 AM 
 

  10/29/2024 
  Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

Consent Agenda: 
d. Approval to Rescind Awards of Construction Services for the District Wide 
Stucco Repainting at Pecan Campus, Mid Valley Campus, and Starr County 

Campus  
 

Administration requested approval to rescind the awards of construction services to 
Calidad Construction, LLC and AJ3 Construction, LLC for the District Wide Stucco 
Repainting at Pecan Campus, Mid Valley Campus, and Starr County Campus project as 
presented. 
 
Background 
On August 27, 2024, the Board approved contracting with Calidad Construction, LLC for 
the portions of the project scope at Pecan Campus, and with AJ3 Construction, LLC for 
the Mid Valley and Starr County Campuses.  The vendors have informed the College that 
they are unable to honor their proposals. 
 
The Committee recommended Board approval to rescind the awards of construction 
services to Calidad Construction, LLC and AJ3 Construction, LLC for the District Wide 
Stucco Repainting at Pecan Campus, Mid Valley Campus, and Starr County Campus 
project as presented. 
 
This item was approved by the Board as part of consent agenda action. 
 

Consent Agenda: 
e. Approval of the Substantial Completion of the District Wide Flooring 

Replacements Phase III at Mid Valley Campus North Academic Building G 
Administration requested Board approval of the substantial completion of the District Wide 
Flooring Replacements Phase III at Mid Valley Campus North Academic Building G project 
as presented: 
 

Project Completion 
Recommended 

Date Received 

1. District Wide Flooring Replacements Phase 
III at Mid Valley Campus North Academic 
Building G Project 2024-012R  
 
Contractor: Intertech Flooring 

Substantial 
Completion 

Recommended 

October 7, 2024 

 
This project is part of the Deferred Maintenance plan developed by the Facilities 
Operations & Maintenance (FOM) and Facilities Planning & Construction (FPC) 
departments. The project was reviewed by the FPC and FOM departments, the 
President’s Cabinet, and the Coordinated Operations Council, the Facilities Committee, 
and the Board of Trustees. This project was scheduled as the third phase of a routine 
improvement to replace flooring in buildings district wide as necessary.  
 

College staff visited the site and developed a construction punch list on October 7, 2024.  
A Certificate of Substantial Completion has been issued. Substantial Completion was 
accomplished within the time allowed in the Owner/Contractor agreement for this project 
by Intertech Flooring.  The original cost approved for this project was $360,800.  
 
The following table summarizes the current budget status: 

28



October 29, 2024 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 23, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 7:43 AM 
 

  10/29/2024 
  Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

 

Enclosed Documents 
A copy of the Substantial Completion Certificate and photos were enclosed for the 
Board’s review and information. 
 
The Committee recommended Board approval of substantial completion of the District 
Wide Flooring Replacements Phase III at the Mid Valley Campus North Academic 
Building G project as presented. 
 
This item was approved by the Board as part of consent agenda action. 
 

Consent Agenda: 
f. Approval of the Renewal of Lease Agreement with Milagro Clinic and the City of 

McAllen for Use of the El Milagro Clinic Parking Lot 
Administration requested approval of renewal of the lease agreement with El Milagro 
Clinic and the City of McAllen for use of the El Milagro Clinic Parking Lot by South Texas 
College as presented.   
 
Purpose  
Authorization was being requested to renew the current lease agreement to continue 
providing parking at the Nursing and Allied Health Campus adjacent to the El Milagro 
Clinic.  
  
Justification  
The continuation of this lease is needed to provide eighty (80) parking spaces at the 
Nursing and Allied Health Campus.  
 
The Committee recommended Board approval of renewal of the lease agreement with 
El Milagro Clinic and the City of McAllen for use of the El Milagro Clinic Parking Lot by 
South Texas College for the period of October 21, 2024 to October 20, 2026 as 
presented. 
 
This item was approved by the Board as part of consent agenda action. 
 
  

District Wide Flooring Replacements Phase III at  
Mid Valley Campus North Academic Building G 

Construction 
Budget 

Approved 
Proposal 
Amount 

Net Total 
Change 
Orders 

Current 
Project Cost 

Previous 
Amount Paid 

Remaining 
Balance 

$360,800.00 $360,800.00 $0 $360,800.00 $323,440.80 $37,359.20 

29



October 29, 2024 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 24, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 7:43 AM 
 

  10/29/2024 
  Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

Review and Recommend Action on Contracting Construction for the 
District Wide Stucco Repainting at Pecan Campus, Mid Valley 

Campus, and Starr County Campus 

Administration requested approval to contract construction services with the next highest-
ranked vendor for the District Wide Stucco Repainting at Pecan Campus, Mid Valley 
Campus, and Starr County Campus project will be requested at the Board meeting. 
 
Scheduling Priority 
This project is part of the Deferred Maintenance plan developed by the Facilities 
Operations and Maintenance and Facilities Planning and Construction departments. The 
Facilities Operations and Maintenance, Facilities Planning and Construction, and 
Administration have reviewed it.  It is scheduled as a non-educational improvement to 
repaint the stucco facades of the buildings. 

 
Background 
On October 15, 2024, the Facilities Committee approved a recommendation to the Board 
to rescind the construction awards to Calidad Construction, LLC. for the portions of the 
project scope at Pecan Campus, and to AJ3 Construction, LLC. for the Mid Valley and 
Starr County Campuses, which the Board of Trustees had approved on August 27, 2024. 
 
After consulting with legal counsel on October 17, 2024, it was advised that the College 
may proceed to contact the next highest-ranked vendors for the Pecan and Starr County 
campuses.  College staff requested proposal and pricing confirmation from the next 
highest-ranked vendors, and these vendors failed to respond by the deadline provided by 
the College. 
 
The College contacted the next highest-ranked vendor for both of the projects, Terra 
Fuerte Construction, LLC., who confirmed that the pricing submitted was still valid for all 
three (3) campuses.  The original proposal solicitation information is detailed below. 
 
Request for Proposals (RFP): 
Advertised RFP July 10, 2024 and July 17, 2024 
RFP Responses Due July 25, 2024 
RFP Issued To Forty-Five (45) Vendors 
Responses Received From Six (6) Vendors 

Responses Reviewed By Facilities Operations and Maintenance, Facilities 
Planning and Construction, and the Purchasing Dept. 

Recommended Vendor 
Pecan Campus – Terra Fuerte Construction, LLC. 
Mid Valley Campus – Terra Fuerte Construction, LLC. 
Starr County Campus – Terra Fuerte Construction, LLC. 

 
Recommended Vendor 
College staff reviewed and evaluated the competitive sealed proposals and recommend 
Terra Fuerte Construction, LLC, in the amount of $140,000 for the Pecan Campus, 
$294,000 for the Mid Valley Campus, and $240,000 for the Starr County Campus as the 
highest-ranked vendor whose proposals are valid. 
 
 

30



October 29, 2024 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 25, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 7:43 AM 
 

  10/29/2024 
  Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

Enclosed Documents 
The revised summary of proposals followed in the packet for the Board’s information and 
review. 
 
Upon a motion by Dr. Alejo Salinas and a second by Mr. Danny Guzman the Board of 
Trustees of South Texas College approved and authorized of contracting construction 
services with Terra Fuerte Construction, LLC. in the amount of $140,000 for the Pecan 
Campus, $294,000 for the Mid Valley Campus, and $240,000 for the Starr County 
Campus for the District Wide Stucco Repainting at Pecan Campus, Mid Valley Campus, 
and Starr County Campus project as presented. 
 
The motion carried. 

Update on Status of Unexpended Plant Fund Construction Projects 
and Renewals & Replacements Projects 

The Facilities Planning and Construction staff prepared the attached design and 
construction update. This update summarized the status of each capital improvement and 
renewals & replacements project currently in progress, including a categorization based 
on priority. Mary Del Paz and Rick de la Garza were present to respond to questions and 
address concerns of the Board. 
 
No action was necessary on this item. 

Approval of Financial Reports for August 2024 

Administration recommended Board approval of the financial reports for the month of 
August 2024.  
 
The following financial reports were provided under separate cover: 
 
1) Quarterly Investment Report and Money Market Accounts for August 2024. 
2)  Summary of Revenues for August 2024. 
3)  Summary of State Appropriations Revenue for August 2024. 
4)  Summary of Property Tax Revenue for August 2024. 
5)  Summary of Expenditures by Classification for August 2024. 
6)  Summary of Expenditures by Function for August 2024. 
7)  Summary of Auxiliary Fund Revenues and Expenditures for August 2024. 
8)  Summary of Grant Revenues and Expenditures for August 2024. 
9)  Foundation Financial Activity for August 2024. 
 
Ms. Mary Del Paz, Vice President for Finance and Administrative Services, was available 
to respond to any questions posed by the Board. 
 
Upon a motion by Mr. Paul Rodriguez and a second by Mrs. Victoria Cantu the Board of 
Trustees of South Texas College approved and authorized the submitted financial reports 
for the month of August 2024.   
 
The motion carried. 
 

31



October 29, 2024 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 26, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 7:43 AM 
 

  10/29/2024 
  Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

Review of Informational Reports as of September 2024 

Administration recommended Board approval of the checks for release for the month of 
September 2024 as follows: 
 
Administration included the following informational reports as of September 2024 for the 
Board’s information. 
 
Also included for the Board’s information were the following items: 
 
1) Checks for $125,000 and above for September 2024. 
2) Check Register for September 2024. 
3) Summary of Purchase Orders (Purchasing) for September 2024. 
4) Summary of Bid Solicitations (Purchasing) for September 2024. 
5) Employee New Hires for September 2024. 
6) Employee Resignations/Retirements for September 2024. 
 
The reports were presented for review by the Board and are provided under separate 
cover. 
 
Ms. Mary Del Paz, Vice President for Finance and Administrative Services, was present 
to respond to questions posed by the Board. 
 
Upon a motion by Mr. Paul Rodriguez and a second by Mr. David De Los Rios the Board 
of trustees of South Texas College approved and authorized the Informational reports as 
of September 2024.  
 
The motion carried. 
 

Announcements 

A. Next Meetings: 

• Tuesday, November 12, 2024 
 3:30 p.m. - Education & Workforce Development Committee 
 4:00 p.m. – Facilities Committee 
 5:00 p.m. – Finance, Audit and Human Resources Committee 

• Tuesday, November26, 2024 
 5:30 p.m. – Regular Board Meeting 

 
B. Other Announcements: 

• Board Retreat will be held on Saturday, November 2, 2024 

• Laptop Distribution at Mid Valley Campus November 7, 2024 at 10:00 AM 
in Bldg F (Cafeteria) 

• Laptop Distribution at Starr County Campus November 11, 2024 at 10:00 
AM in Room H1.502 

• The College will be closed November 28 – 29, 2024 for Thanksgiving 

32



October 29, 2024 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 27, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 7:43 AM 
 

  10/29/2024 
  Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

Adjournment 

There being no further business to discuss, the Regular Board Meeting of the South 
Texas College Board of Trustees adjourned at 7:12 p.m. 
 
I certify the foregoing are the true and correct minutes of the Tuesday, September 24, 
2024 Regular Board Meeting of the South Texas College Board of Trustees. 
 
X 
Mr. Danny Guzman 
Board Secretary 

33



November 2, 2024 Board Retreat Minutes 
Page 1, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 7:48 AM 
 

   
11/02/2024 

Board Retreat Minutes 

SOUTH TEXAS COLLEGE 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES WORK SESSION 
Saturday, November 2, 2024 @ 8:00 a.m. 

Nursing and Allied Health Building B 
Conference Room 3.203 

Nursing & Allied Health Campus, McAllen, Texas 78501 

Minutes 

Call Meeting to Order: 

The Board Retreat of the South Texas College Board of Trustees was held on Saturday, 
November 2, 2024 in the Nursing and Allied Health Building B Conference Room 3.203 at the 
Nursing and Allied Health Campus in McAllen, Texas.  The meeting commenced at 8:20 a.m. 
with Dr. Alejo Salinas, Jr. presiding. 
 
Members present: Dr. Alejo Salinas, Jr., Ms. Rose Benavidez, Mrs. Victoria Cantu, Mrs. 
Dalinda Gonzalez-Alcantar, Mr. Danny Guzman, and Mr. David De Los Rios. 
  
Members absent: Mr. Paul Rodriguez.  
 
Also present: Dr. Ricardo J. Solis, Ms. Mary Del Paz, Mr. Andrew Fish, Ms. Bonnie Gonzalez, 
and Ms. Venisa Earhart. 
 

Determination of a Quorum 

A quorum was present and a notice of the meeting was posted. 

Update on STC Foundation  

Ms. Bonnie Gonzalez, President of the South Texas College Foundation, gave an update on 
the Foundation and its activities for the year.   

Review Current Agenda and Packet Format 

The Board of Trustees reviewed the most current Board Meeting Agenda and Packet Format 
and discussed ways to make both more concise without compromising pertinent information. 
 
 

34



November 2, 2024 Board Retreat Minutes 
Page 2, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 7:48 AM 
 

   
11/02/2024 

Board Retreat Minutes 

Review and Evaluation of Themes Submitted for Further Discussion by 
Trustees 

The following items were discussed and evaluated by the Board of Trustees. 
 
a. Board of Trustees Goals and Evaluation 
b. Board of Trustees Protocols and Structure 
c. CEO Goals and Evaluation 
d. Strategic Planning 
e. Fiscal Stewardship 
f. Facilities Management and Growth 
g. Personnel Recruitment, Relations, and Retention Procedures 
h. STC Foundation Relations 
i. Public Relations and Marketing 
j. External Affairs and Partnership Strategies 
k. Student Affairs 
l. Academic and Workforce Programs 
 
No formal action by the Board of Trustees was taken at this Board Retreat. 
 

Adjournment 

There being no further business to discuss, the Board Work Session of the South Texas 
College Board of Trustees adjourned at 1:44 p.m. 
 
I certify the foregoing are the true and correct minutes of the Saturday, November 2, 2024 
Board Retreat of the South Texas College Board of Trustees. 
 
X 
Mr. Danny Guzman 
Board Secretary 
 

35



November 19, 2024 Special Board Meeting 
Page 2, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 9:06 AM 
 

   

Report of New Grants 

Mrs. Carla M. Rodriguez, Executive Director of the Office of Sponsored Initiatives, has 
reported the following listing of grants recently accepted by the College. 
 
These grants have been approved and accepted by the College President, in compliance 
with Board Policy CAM – Appropriations and Revenue Sources: Grants, Funds, 
Donations from Private Sources, and are reported here for the Board’s information and 
feedback to administration. 
 
Grant Title: GE Aerospace Foundation Donation 
Awarding Agency: GE Aerospace Foundation 
Division Awarded: Business, Public Safety, & Technology  
Department Awarded: Advanced Manufacturing Technology 
Amount Awarded: $165,000 
Strategic Goal #3 Alignment: Create Educational Opportunities for Students 
Project Summary: The Advanced Manufacturing Technology Department is 
receiving a donation to support workforce development efforts in the manufacturing 
industry. Funds will offer student support, access, and opportunities to approximately 25 
students in an industry that is essential to our community.  
 
 
Grant Title: FY 2024-2025 Texas Reskilling and Upskilling Through Education (TRUE) 
Awarding Agency: Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board 
Divisions Awarded: Center for Advanced Training and Apprenticeships (CATA) and 
Business, Public Safety, and Technology (BPST) 
Amount Awarded: $279,870 
Funding Period: December 2024 - November 2025 
Strategic Goal #4 Alignment: Foster Student Success 
Project Summary: Funding for this project will help the divisions develop a new and 
affordable post-secondary noncredit program for students. These funds will be used for 
instructional software, equipment, financial aid, outreach, and salary for one instructor.  
 
 
Grant Title: Occupational Safety and Health – Susan Harwood Training Grant 
Awarding Agency: U.S. Department of Labor 
Division Awarded: Center for Advanced Training & Apprenticeships (CATA)  
Amount Awarded:  $159,928 
Funding Period: September 30, 2024 – September 30, 2025 
Strategic Goal #1 Alignment: Lead Community Engagement 
Project Summary: Funding for this project will allow CATA to deliver 4 hours of 
Warehousing Safety training to workers and employers in the manufacturing, 
construction, warehousing, and service industries. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

36



November 19, 2024 Special Board Meeting 
Page 3, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 9:06 AM 
 

   

 
 
Grant Title: Improving Undergraduate STEM Education: Directorate for STEM 
Education  
Awarding Agency: National Science Foundation (NSF) 
Division Awarded: Division of Mathematics, Science, I.T. and Bachelor Programs 
Department Awarded: Biology Department 
Amount Awarded: $400,000  
Funding Period: October 15, 2024 – September 30, 2027 
Strategic Goal #4 Alignment: Foster Student Success 
Project Summary: The Biology Department will promote the opportunity to students 
interested in transferring into UTRGV STEM programs. Throughout the period of 
performance, STC will assist with recruitment efforts, provide registration/transfer 
assistance, and create awareness of STEM and careers in the field.  
 
 
 
  

37



November 19, 2024 Special Board Meeting 
Page 4, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 9:06 AM 
 

   

Approval of Resolution #2025-005 and Ballot Casting Votes for 
Members of the Hidalgo County Appraisal District Board of Directors 

for Calendar Years 2025 – 2027 

Approval of a Resolution and Ballot casting votes for members of the Hidalgo County 
Appraisal District Board of Directors for Calendar Years 2025 - 2027 is requested. 
 
The Appraisal District Board of Directors consists of nine (9) members: five (5) voting 
members who are appointed by participating entities, three (3) members elected by voters 
of the county, and one (1) ex-officio member, by which state statute is the County Tax 
Assessor/Collector, Pablo “Paul” Villarreal, Jr. 
 
At the November 28, 2023 Regular Board Meeting, the Board of Trustees approved a 
nomination of Joe D. Olivarez by written resolution. 
 
Since that time, eleven (9) candidates have been declared by Mr. Rolando Garza, Chief 
Appraiser, and the South Texas College Board of Trustees is asked to cast their votes by 
written resolution at the first or second open meeting after having received this notice, 
which was delivered to South Texas College on Tuesday, October 31, 2024.  South Texas 
College is allowed 390 votes. Votes can be cast for one candidate or distributed among 
any number of candidates.   A voting unit can only cast its votes for candidates named on 
the ballot.  There is no provision for write-in candidates. 
 
The nine candidates declared by the Chief Appraiser are: 

 
• Eddy Betancourt • Christina Jaramillo 
• Albert Cardenas • Joe D. Olivarez 
• Fernando Castillo • Amador Requenez 
• Yolanda Castillo  
• Pete Garcia  
• Richard A. Garza  

 
The Supporting Documentation and Resolution #2025-005 are provided in the packet. 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Trustees of South Texas College approve the 
following Minute Order proposed for consideration: 
It is recommended that the Board of Trustees of South Texas College approve and adopt 
Resolution #2025-005 casting their votes on the official ballot for the members of the 
Hidalgo County Appraisal District Board of Directors for Calendar Years 2025 - 2027 as 
presented. 
 
Approval Recommended: 
 
Dr. Ricardo J. Solis 
President 
  

38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



November 19, 2024 Special Board Meeting 
Page 5, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 9:06 AM 
 

   

Presentation on Enrollment 

Purpose Dr. Matt Hebbard, Vice President of Student Affairs and Enrollment 
Management will present the Enrollment update to the Board.  
 

Justification To inform the Board about the updated enrollment numbers and 
strategies.  
 
 

Enclosed  
Documents 
 

Appendix A – Enrollment PowerPoint Presentation 
 

Staff Resource Dr. Matt Hebbard, VP of Student Affairs and Enrollment 
Dr. Fernando Chapa, Dean of Institutional Research & Effectiveness   
 

Recommendation No action is required from the Board. This item is presented for 
information purposes. 

 
 
  

51



52



53



54



November 19, 2024 Special Board Meeting 
Page 6, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 9:06 AM 
 

   

Review and Action as Necessary on Proposed Institutional 
Credentials Leading to Licensure or Certification (ICLC) 

Purpose The Board is asked to approve offering the following proposed 
Institutional Credentials Leading to Licensure or Certification (ICLC) 
effective Spring 2025.   
 

Justification 
 
There are a total of 9 credentials for non-credit offerings from the Continuing Education and 
Workforce Development and Center for Advanced Training & Apprenticeship departments and 
4 credentials from the Business, Public Safety & Technology division. 
 

Non-Credit 
 
Title Avg. 

Wage 
Origination 

Year 
Completions 

(3yrs) 
Contact 
Hours 

AY25 
HD 

Field 
Commercial Truck Driving  $20.02 2002 186 160  
Bus Driving with Passenger 
Endorsement 

$17.39 2002 25 80  

Real Estate Agent $27.14 2008 96 180  
Community Health Worker $18.28 2015 54 160  
Dental Assistant $16.72 2019 33 315  
EKG Technician $15.33 2010 137 94  
Phlebotomy Technician $15.99 2007 172 124  
Construction Technology I $13.80 2022 15 85  
Industrial Robotics $23.02 2021 6 144  

 
Credit 

 
Title Avg. 

Wage 
Origination 

Year 
Completions 

(3yrs) 
Credit 
Hours 

AY25 
HD 

Field 
NCCER Core - Construction $13.80 2022 Pending1 10  
NCCER Core - HVACR $20.29 2022 68 8  
NCCER Core - Electrical $19.23 2022 12 12  
FANUC Robot Operator $23.02 2021 11 8  

 
 
 
The Texas Higher Education Coordination Board recently approved proposed rules for Texas 
Administrative Code: Chapter 2, Subchapter L, Rules §2.263 – 2.268 pertaining to Career and 
Technical Education Certificates.  These rules define a “certificate” to include ICLCs and 

 
1 STC is collaborating with NCCER to confirm student completion records and credentialing processes. 
2 Fifteen students in the credit-side Electrical Technology Program participated in NCCER Core 
credentialing through CATA before a credit-side NCCER Core program was established. Since its 
establishment, one student has completed this certification. 

55



November 19, 2024 Special Board Meeting 
Page 7, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 9:06 AM 
 

   

therefore must comply with the established criteria for approval, which includes governing board 
approval. These new rules went into effect August 15, 2024. 
 
An ICLC is defined as a credential “awarded by an institution upon a student’s completion of a 
course or series of courses that represent the achievement of identifiable skill proficiency leading 
to licensure or certification” and must meet the following criteria: 
5 SCH/80 Contact Hours (High Demand Field) OR 9 SCH/144 Contact Hours (Non-High Demand 
Field) 
 
Each proposed ICLC leads to a certification or licensure resulting in a credential of value as 
indicated in the supplemental documentation. 
 
Each ICLC is supported by a proposal that includes: 

• Credential Development Approval Checklist  
• Credential Development Checklist  
• Program Summary  
• Enrollment Management Plan  
• Proposed Curriculum, Course Descriptions 
• Instructional Costs and Projected Revenues   
• Supporting Documentation 

 
These proposals are maintained by the College as documentation for each ICLC, and are 
available for review upon request. 
 
An ICLC is eligible for performance-based funding. The current funded rate for an ICLC is $1,250 
per student if the occupation is in a high-demand field and $1,000 if the occupation is not in a 
high-demand field. The recent implementation of the THECB rules hinders the ability for South 
Texas College to report these credentials for performance-based funding until governing board 
approval is obtained and the credentials are submitted for approval to be added to the College’s 
official inventory. 
  
Funding There is no required funding to support this request. 

 
Staff Resource Dr. Anahid Petrosian, Vice President and Provost for Academic 

Affairs and Economic Development  
Dr. Brett Millan, Associate Vice President for Academic Success & 
Advancement 
Dr. Sara Lozano, Dean of Business, Public Safety & Technology 
Dr. Carlos Margo, Dean of Industry Training & Economic 
Development 
Ms. Olivia de la Rosa, Dean of Continuing Education and Workforce 
Development 
Ms. Christina Cavazos, Director of Curriculum, Planning & 
Compliance 
 

56



November 19, 2024 Special Board Meeting 
Page 8, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 9:06 AM 
 

   

Additional  
Information 

The Education and Workforce Development Committee did not meet 
in November 2024; therefore, this item is presented without a 
committee recommendation.  Administration recommends approval 
as presented. 
 

Recommendation It is recommended that the Board of Trustees of South Texas 
College approve and authorize the following Minute Order 
proposed for consideration: 
The Board of Trustees of South Texas College approves and 
authorizes offering the following proposed Institutional Credentials 
Leading to Licensure or Certification (ICLC) effective Spring 2025.   

 
Approval Recommended: 
 
Dr. Ricardo J. Solis 
President 

 
 

  

57



November 19, 2024 Special Board Meeting 
Page 9, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 9:06 AM 
 

   

APPENDIX A 
 

Proposed Revisions to the Tuition and Fees Schedule are as follows: 
 

  Board 
 Approved  
FY 2023-

2024 

Board 
 Approved  
FY 2024-

2025 

Proposed  
Revision to 

FY 2024-
2025 

DUAL CREDIT TUITION:      

 
Per credit hour tuition for dual credit students in in-
district partnering school districts 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

Per credit hour tuition for out-of-district dual credit 
students sponsored by partnering school districts 
(within Texas, outside of service district) 

87.00 55.00 30.00 

Per credit hour tuition for non-resident dual credit 
students sponsored by partnering school districts 

87.00 Deleted Deleted 

INDEPENDENT DUAL CREDIT TUITION PER CREDIT HOUR:  
In-district dual credit students who are enrolled in 
a school district with a Memorandum of 
Understanding or an Interlocal Agreement with 
South Texas College who do not receive approval 
to enroll in a regular (non-S) section(s). 

50.00  
Plus 

applicable 
differential 

tuition 

55.00 30.00 

In-district home schooled or dual credit students 
who are not enrolled in a school district with a 
Memorandum of Understanding or an Interlocal 
Agreement with South Texas College. 

50.00  
Plus 

applicable 
differential 

tuition 

55.00 30.00 

Out-of-district dual credit students who are 
enrolled in a school district with a Memorandum of 
Understanding or an Interlocal Agreement with 
South Texas College who do not receive approval 
to enroll in a regular (Non-S) section(s). 

87.00  
Plus 

applicable 
differential 

tuition 

55.00 30.00 

Out-of-district home schooled or dual credit 
students who are not enrolled in a school district 
with a Memorandum of Understanding or an 
Interlocal Agreement with South Texas College. 

87.00  
Plus 

applicable 
differential 

tuition 

55.00 30.00 

Non-resident dual credit students who are not 
enrolled in a school district with a Memorandum of 
Understanding or an Interlocal Agreement with 
South Texas College.(Outside of Texas, but within 
U.S.) 

87.00  
Plus 

applicable 
differential 

tuition 

55.00 30.00 

58



November 19, 2024 Special Board Meeting 
Page 10, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 9:06 AM 
 

   

  Board 
 Approved  
FY 2023-

2024 

Board 
 Approved  
FY 2024-

2025 

Proposed  
Revision to 

FY 2024-
2025 

Non-resident dual credit students who are 
enrolled in a school district with a Memorandum of 
Understanding or an Interlocal Agreement with 
South Texas College who do not receive approval 
to enroll in a regular (Non-S) section(s). 

87.00  
Plus 

applicable 
differential 

tuition 

Deleted Deleted 

 

  

59



November 19, 2024 Special Board Meeting 
Page 11, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 9:06 AM 
 

   

Presentation of the Delinquent Tax Collection Report for the Period 
Ending August 31, 2024 

Purpose Mr. Michael G. Cano from Linebarger Goggan Blair & Sampson, LLP, 
will present the Delinquent Tax Collection Report through August 31, 
2024.  
 

Justification To inform the Board about the efforts, methods, and frequency with 
which Linebarger Goggan Blair & Sampson, LLP has contacted the 
delinquent taxpayer to ensure the collection of outstanding taxes.  
 
They will also present the progress made by detailing the amount of 
property taxes collected for Hidalgo County and Starr County.  
 

Enclosed  
Documents 
 

Appendix A - Delinquent Tax Collection Report 
 

Staff Resource Michael G. Cano from Linebarger Goggan Blair & Sampson, LLP 
Mary Del Paz, Vice President for Finance and Administrative 
Services 
Myriam Lopez, Associate Vice President - Finance and Management  
 

Recommendation No action is required from the Board. This item is presented for 
information purposes. 

 
 
 

  

60



Delinquent Tax Collection Report
June 1, 2024 - August 31, 2024

61



2

Important Tax Cycle Dates

January April July

August‐September October‐January February

April July

• Jan. 1: Tax lien 
attaches to all 
property

• Rendition deadline for 
Business Personal 
Property (BPP)

• Appraisal Notices 
mailed

• Appraisal Review Board 
(ARB) Protests begin

• July 25: Appraised Value 
Certified to School 
District

• School District adopts 
Budget and Tax Rate

• Oct 1: Tax Bills mailed
• Oct‐Jan 31: Time period to 

pay taxes with no penalty 
or interest

• Feb 1: Delinquency date 
for Real Estate, Mobile 
Homes and Business 
Personal Property (BPP)

• April 1: BPP taxes turned over to Linebarger
Early BPP Programs Commence:

• Walk and Talk Teams
• Targeted Mailings
• Warrant and Seizure Candidates

• July 1: Real Property Taxes turned over to Linebarger
• Every account is reviewed by Linebarger and 

placed in the collection program
• Every eligible  account is targeted for mailings, 

phone collections, seizures, site visits, and/or 
litigation

62



310 Lawsuits Filed—$277,162

301 Lawsuits Disposed—$182,175

53,198 Statements Mailed

17,078 Incoming/Outgoing Calls 

1,154 Property Inspections

1,086 Pay Off Request
3

Fiscal Year
Linebarger collected 

$3,343,864
in base, penalty & interest

in Hidalgo County

Collection Activities - Hidalgo County
June 2024 – August 2024

63



38 Lawsuits Filed ‐ $40,776

36 Lawsuits Disposed ‐ $43,703

24,791 Statements Mailed

4,340 Incoming/Outgoing Calls 

90 Property Inspections

20 Pay Off Request

Fiscal Year
Linebarger collected 

$740,916
in base, penalty & interest

in Starr County

Collection Activities - Starr County
June 2024 – August 2024

4

64



5

Tax Sale Results - Hidalgo County
June 2024 – August 2024

Sold ($11,188)
11 

Pulled ‐ Paid In Full 
($3,146)

7 
Pulled‐Payment Agreement 

($13,392)
6 

Pulled‐Other ($12,639)
5 

Struck Off ($17,255)
6 

65



6

Tax Sale Results - Starr County
June 2024 – August 2024

Sold ($6,820)
6 

Pulled‐Payment 
Agreement ($1,158)

5 

Struck Off ($5,038)
3 

Pulled ‐ Other ($6,049)
4 

66



7

Collection Comparison – Hidalgo County
4th Quarter: June – August 

$401,965  $404,104 

$204,276  $190,526 

 $‐

 $100,000

 $200,000

 $300,000

 $400,000

 $500,000

 $600,000

 $700,000

 $800,000

June 2023 ‐ August  2023
DTR: $8,656,356

June 2024 ‐ August  2024
DTR: $9,302,237

 P&I

Base Tax

$594,630$606,241

Source:  Hidalgo County Tax Office Data

67



8

Collection Comparison – Hidalgo County
Fiscal Year: September – August

$2,345,263  $2,428,048 

$941,136  $915,816 

 $‐

 $500,000

 $1,000,000

 $1,500,000

 $2,000,000

 $2,500,000

 $3,000,000

 $3,500,000

 $4,000,000

 $4,500,000

September 2022 ‐ August  2023
DTR: $8,656,356

September 2023 ‐ August  2024
DTR: $9,302,237

 P&I

Base Tax

$3,286,399 $3,343,864

Source:  Hidalgo County Tax Office Data

68



9Source:  Hidalgo County Tax Office Data

Tax Roll Analysis - Hidalgo County
Size of Delinquent Accounts

2023 and Prior Base Tax Only

99

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

25,000

0‐$100
$101‐$1,000

$1,001‐$5,000
Over $5,000

23,773
52%

20,420
45%

1,598
3% 36

<1% $0

$1,000,000

$2,000,000

$3,000,000

$4,000,000

$5,000,000

0‐$100
$101‐$1,000

$1,001‐$5,000
Over $5,000

$872,949
9%

$5,933,048
60%

$2,763,354
28%

$326,348
3%

Accounts Dollars

69



10Source:  Hidalgo County Tax Office Data

Tax Roll Analysis - Hidalgo County
Status of Accounts

Base Tax Only as of October 2024

1010

Bad Address
$524,169
5.24%

Bankruptcy
$135,480
1.35%

Clear
$2,248,425
22.48%

Deferral/Exempt
$3,528,705
35.28%

Hold/Dispute
$25,368
0.26%

Homestead
$853,864
8.54%

In Suit/Judgment
$2,678,425
26.78%

Uncollectible
$7,023
0.07%

70



11

Collection Comparison – Starr County
4th Quarter: June – August 

$97,800 

$65,025 

$69,892 

$43,675 

 $‐

 $20,000

 $40,000

 $60,000

 $80,000

 $100,000

 $120,000

 $140,000

 $160,000

 $180,000

June 2023 ‐ August  2023
DTR: $4,251,864

June 2024 ‐ August  2024
DTR: $4,136,855

 P&I

Base Tax

$167,692

$108,700

Source:  Starr County Tax Office Data

71



12

Collection Comparison – Starr County
Fiscal Year: September – August

$384,481 

$536,660 

$247,485 

$204,256 

 $‐

 $100,000

 $200,000

 $300,000

 $400,000

 $500,000

 $600,000

 $700,000

 $800,000

September 2022 ‐ August 2023
DTR: $4,251,864

September 2023 ‐ August 2024
DTR: $4,136,855

 P&I

Base Tax

$740,916

$631,966

Source:  Starr County Tax Office Data

72



13Source:  Starr County Tax Office Data

Tax Roll Analysis - Starr County
Size of Delinquent Accounts

2023 and Prior Base Tax Only

1313

0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

12,000

14,000

16,000

18,000

20,000

0‐$100
$101‐$1,000

$1,001‐$5,000
Over $5,000

17,980
64%

9,283
33%

613
2% 13

<1% $0

$500,000

$1,000,000

$1,500,000

$2,000,000

$2,500,000

0‐$100
$101‐$1,000

$1,001‐$5,000
Over $5,000

$409,784
9%

$2,869,317
65%

$1,000,566
23%

$111,820
3%

Accounts Dollars

73



14Source:  Starr County Tax Office Data

Tax Roll Analysis - Starr County
Status of Accounts

Base Tax Only as of October 2024

1414

Bad Address 
$280,780
6.39%

Bankruptcy 
$128,825
2.93%

Deferral/Exempt 
$463,985
10.57%

Homestead 
$782,272
17.81%

In Suit/Judgment 
$1,486,193
33.84%

Hold/Dispute
$1,435
0.04%

Clear
$1,212,187
27.60%

Uncollectible 
$35,809
0.82%

74



THANK YOU

75



November 19, 2024 Special Board Meeting 
Page 12, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 9:06 AM 
 

   

Presentation on South Texas College Foundation Annual Report 

Purpose The Director of Fundraising and the Foundation is presenting the 
South Texas College Foundation annual report. 
 

Justification To comply with the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) 
requirements, Section 111. Responsibilities of the Parties, 4. 
Controls, which states the following: 
 

f. The Foundation shall annually provide a copy of its Internal 
Revenue Services (“IRS”) Form 990 (not including 
Schedule B to Form 990) to the Trustees (within thirty (30) 
days of filing such a form with the IRS).  

 
g. Once annually, at a public meeting of the Trustees, the 

Foundation will report on its activities. 
 
The annual report presented is based on major activities, funding 
opportunities, and the financial reports for Fiscal Year 2023 – 2024. 
 

Enclosed  
Documents 
 

Appendix A – Presentation on STC Foundation Annual Report 
Appendix B – Completed Tax Form 990 for 2023 
Appendix C – 2nd Annual Gala Budget and Income 
Appendix D – Fiscal Year 2024 Financial Reports 
 

Staff Resource Nadia Ochoa, Director of Fundraising & Foundation 
Julissa Rodriguez, South Texas College Foundation (STCF) 
Accountant II 
Marcela Beas, STCF Events & Project Manager 
 

Recommendation No action is required from the Board. This item is presented for 
information purposes. 
 

 

 

  

76



1

Presentation on 
South Texas College Foundation 

Annual Report

Nadia Ochoa, MPA
Director of Fundraising & Foundation, STC Foundation

Purpose and Justification

• Administration is presenting the South Texas College Foundation 
annual report.

• To comply with the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) 
requirements of the annual report presented is based on major 
activities, funding opportunities and financials for the 2023-2024 
fiscal year. 

77



2

South Texas College Foundation (STCF) Staff: 

• Dr. Rodney Rodriguez, Vice President for Institutional Advancement & 
External Affairs

• Nadia Ochoa, Director of Fundraising & Foundation (start date: May 2024)
• Julissa Rodriguez, Accountant II (start date: May 2024)
• Marcela Beas, Events & Project Manager (start date: July 2024)

STCF Board of Directors:

• Yvonne “Bonnie” Gonzalez, President
• Gary Gurwitz, Vice President
• Sam Vale, Secretary
• Adel Felix, Treasurer/Finance Committee Chair
• Alonzo Cantu, Board Member
• Laura Warren, Board Member
• James “Jim” Collins, Board Member

78



3

STCF Donor Contributions (since inception):

Through the contributions of generous donors and sponsors who support the mission, the foundation has
received over $1M in donations (both restricted and unrestricted). 

• Amy Espinas Memorial Art Student Fund-$ 1,350.00    
• AEP - $ 30,000.00
• Economic Mobility Systems – Valley Promise - $ 89,326.00
• RSTEF – Valley Promise - $ 250,000.00
• Mary J. Killoran Nursing Scholarship-$50,000.00
• Carats - $5,000.00
• Border Pacific Railroad - $10,000.00
• Rose First Starr Scholarship - $ 10,000.00
• City of McAllen - $ 10,000.00
• Jesse Villarreal - $ 7,500.00
• La Joya Windpower Scholarship - $ 40,000.00
• Nassri-Warren Architects - $ 4,000.00
• Progressando Grant - $ 50,000.00
• STC ( President’s discretionary fund) - $ 13,233.00
• STC ( IAEA auxiliary account fund) - $20,000.00
• South Texas Solar Systems Inc - $ 5,000.00

STCF Donor Contributions (since inception, continued):

Through the contributions of generous donors and sponsors who support the mission, the foundation has
received over $1M in donations (both restricted and unrestricted). 

• RGV Lead - $ 5,000.00
• RGV Partnership - $ 15,000.00
• RGV Valley Community Foundation (Mr. Gurwitz Family Trust) - $ 30,244.50
• Santa Fe Foundation - $ 25,000.00
• STHS Scholarship - $ 61,000.00
• Valley Scholars - $ 3,900.00
• VIDA Scholarship - $ 31,766.50
• Mrs. Yvonne “Bonnie” Gonzalez - $ 10,000.00
• CL Scales & Systems - $ 5,000.00
• Dr. Rodney H. Rodriguez Scholarship Fund-$ 4,165.00
• Merit Energy Company - $ 5,948.53
• Monte Cristo/Terra-Gen Development - $ 80,000.00
• Gillesie P Baker Jr. - $ 20,000.00
• Gala – October 2023 - $ 127,810.00
• Gala – October 2024 - $ 196,180.00
• In-Kind Gifts (laptops from AT&T)-$ 80,000.00

79



4

STCF Student Financial Support and Initiatives:
Since 2023, the STCF has provided students and faculty of STC with over $500,000.00 in 
financial support. 
Here is a breakdown of the funds distributed since inception:

• Valley Promise Initiative- $339,326.00 (for operating, hiring of staff and IT)
• Mary J. Killoran Nursing Scholarship- $50,000.00
• Progressando Grant (Nursing) - $ 50,000.00
• Culinary Department Scholarships - $9,000.00
• City of McAllen Scholarship - $2,500.00
• VIDA Scholarship - $ 31,766.50
• STC Food Pantry- $10,000.00
• STC Ascender Program- $7,017.00
• STC Percussion Club- $5,500.00
• Amy Espinas Memorial Art Student Fund -$350.00
• Community Support through Sponsorships- $9,000.00
• RCSPSE Heavy Equipment Operator Training- $2,520.00
• Welding Department - $ 4,000.00
• Dr. Rodney H. Rodriguez Scholarship Fund- $1,850.00
• International Student Fund Support- $1,200.00
• In-Kind Gifts (laptops from AT&T)- $80,000.00

In addition, STCF employees have been working directly with the STCF Board 
of Directors to establish:

 Financial Procedure Manual to ensure the financial stability and transparency of the Foundation

 Tax Form 990; completed in 2023

 Created Foundation Budget; we are utilizing this as a resource guideline 

 Investment Policy; we worked with Valley Consulting Firm to establish investment guidelines for the 

foundation

 Currently have $350,000.00 in secure investments (Money Market and CD’s)

 Financial Forms for Donors and Requests from College; we are now able to track closely donations and 

make sure they are utilized how the donor requests

 Established the STCF Finance Committee; a committee comprised of board members to help ensure the 

foundation maintains its fiduciary responsibility to the community

 Submitted second grant for Valley Promise for $500,000.00 for Valley Promise & Adult Promise

 Working on establishing application process and criteria for STCF Scholarships

 Collaboration efforts with STC VP’s and Deans to remain aware of college needs outside of scholarship 

efforts

 Laptop Giveaway-Pecan Campus, Mid-Valley, and Starr County (total 300 with AT&T)

80



5

Fiscal Year 2024 Financial Reports – Balance Sheet

Fiscal Year 2024 Financial Reports - Income Statement

81



6

2nd Annual STCF Gala

• Approximate Income Raised - $142,731.08

2nd Annual STCF Gala – Thank You

82



7

STC Foundation Night

• STC Foundation night is a community event to build 
awareness about the Foundation. 

• Students and their families, staff and faculty receive 
a special promotion and are able to buy $5 tickets 
to enjoy a fun Vipers game.

83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



November 19, 2024 Special Board Meeting 
Page 13, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 9:06 AM 
 

   

Presentation on the Interlocal Agreement Between Hidalgo County 
and South Texas College for American Rescue Plan Act Recovery 

Funds 

Purpose Administration is providing a final report of the Nursing and Allied 
Health Healthcare Professionals Program.  
 
The purpose and use of these American Rescue Plan Act Recovery 
Funds was to establish the Nursing and Allied Health Healthcare 
Professionals Program to assist South Texas College in recruitment 
and retention of faculty and students, to provide for the educational 
training of nurses and respiratory therapists due to a shortage and 
the need for additional staffing to respond to the ongoing effects of 
the public health emergency. Payments made to South Texas 
College were disbursed on a reimbursement/payment request basis. 

 
Justification A final report of the program’s outcome was requested by the South 

Texas College Board of Trustees. 
 

Enclosed  
Documents 
 

Appendix A –  Nursing and Allied Health Healthcare Professionals 
Program Final Report 

 
Staff Resource Dr. Rodney Rodriguez, Vice President for Institutional Advancement 

and External Affairs 
Ms. Carla M. Rodriguez, Executive Director for Office of Sponsored 
Initiatives 
Dr. Jayson Valerio, Regional Healthcare Liaison 
 

Recommendation No action is required from the Committee. This item is presented for 
information purposes. 

 

 

  

106



INTERLOCAL COOPERATION AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
THE COUNTY OF HIDALGO, TEXAS, AND SOUTH TEXAS COLLEGE 

FOR AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT RECOVERY FUNDS 
 

Date of Report: November 08, 2024 

 
FINAL REPORT 

Agency Name South Texas College 

Project Name Nursing and Allied Health Healthcare Professionals Program 

Period of Performance January 01, 2022 – October 31, 2024 

 

 

Narrative of Actual Budget Expenditures 

Faculty/Staff recruitment, retention stipends, 
payroll, and fringe benefits to encourage 
employees to remain with South Texas College. 

$1,899,234.71 

Faculty educational training, tools and 
resources to facilitate the development of skills 
and knowledge capacity for themselves and 
students enrolled in the ADN and Respiratory 
Care programs. 

$395,088.11 

Budget Summary 
Description Budget Expended 

Award 2,306,435.83  

Recruitment/Retention - Salaries & 
Wages 

 1,663,346.21 

Recruitment/Retention - Benefits  245,503.32 

Educational training, tools, and 
resources - Operating Expenditures 

 145,424.72 

Educational training, tools, and 
resources - Capital Expenditures 

 249,161.58 

Total $2,306,435.83 $2,306,435.83 

107



 
  

Salaries & Wages
72%

Benefits
11%

Operating
6%

Capital
11%

NAH Healthcare Professionals program

Salaries & Wages Benefits Operating Capital

108



Project Impact 
Describe the types of services provided and activities implemented during the reporting period.  

The nursing workforce shortage in the United States poses a significant challenge to 
healthcare delivery. A primary contributor to this shortage is the insufficient number of 
qualified nursing faculty, which limits the capacity of nursing programs to admit and train 
students. According to the American Association of Colleges of Nursing (AACN), in 2022, 
over 90,000 qualified applicants were turned away from nursing programs due to faculty 
shortages. This issue is further compounded by faculty retirements, limited competitive 
salaries, and an aging academic workforce. 

This project addressed these challenges through targeted faculty recruitment, financial 
incentives through stipends, and the adoption of advanced simulation technologies to 
enhance nursing education. 

Services and Activities:  

1. Faculty Recruitment and Retention 
o Developed and implemented competitive faculty recruitment through 

stipends. 
o Provided stipends to attract and retain nursing educators. 

2. Student Skill Enhancement through Simulation 
o Invested in state-of-the-art simulation technology to mimic real-world clinical 

scenarios. 
o Trained faculty to utilize simulation effectively in teaching. 
o Assessed the impact of simulation-based education on student knowledge 

and practiced readiness through qualitative survey from the stakeholders. 
3. Expand Student Admissions 

o Utilized an increase in faculty numbers to admit more students. 
o Collaborated with industry partners to increase adjunct clinical faculty pool. 
o Fostered partnerships with healthcare institutions to support clinical 

placements. 

Reference: 

American Association of Colleges of Nursing (AACN). (2022). 2022-2023 Enrollment and 
Graduations in Baccalaureate and Graduate Programs in Nursing. 

109



Explain how services and activities provided benefit to the College and Community. 
 

The initiatives undertaken in this project have yielded significant benefits for both South 
Texas College and the surrounding community by addressing critical challenges in nursing 
education. By focusing on faculty recruitment, student admissions, and simulation-based 
training, the project has directly impacted the college’s capacity to prepare a well-equipped 
nursing workforce. Below is an analysis of how these services and activities have 
translated into tangible benefits for STC and the community. 

Faculty Recruitment and Retention 

Benefit to the College: 

• Increased Faculty Numbers: By offering competitive stipends and professional 
development opportunities, STC successfully recruited and retained a greater 
number of nursing faculty. This allowed the college to fill critical teaching positions, 
stabilizing its academic infrastructure. 

Academic 
Year by 

Semester 

ADN Program  Respiratory 
Therapy Program 

 Full 
Time  

Adjunct  Advisors Full 
Time 

Adjunct 

Spring 
2022 

25 3    

Fall 2022 26 9    

Spring 
2023 

26 6    

Fall 2023 26 9    

Spring 
2024 

26 6 2 4 3 

Summer 
2024 

19 1 2 No Summer Classes 

Fall 2024 27 9 2 4 2 

 
 
 
 
 
 

110



• Enhanced Academic Excellence: Additional faculty reduced faculty-to-student ratios, 
ensuring personalized instruction and mentorship. This improved the quality of 
teaching and fostered student success. 

Licensure Pass 
Rates 

ADN Program Respiratory Therapy 
Program 

2022-2023 77.16% 

State Ave. Rate: 84.28%% 
National Ave. Rate: 
79.91% 

91.67% 

2023-2024 91.30% 

State Ave. Rate: 91.15% 
National Ave. Rate: 
88.56% 

100% 

• Capacity for Program Growth: With an adequate faculty base, STC was able to 
maintain and increase the number of students admitted into the nursing program, 
meeting the growing demand for nurses in the Rio Grande Valley. 

Total Number 
Admissions 

ADN Program Respiratory Therapy 
Program 

2022-2023 426 44 
2023-2024 484 46 

Benefit to the Community: 

• Increased Workforce Availability: More nursing graduates from STC translated to a 
larger, skilled healthcare workforce available to serve the community. 

• Access to Higher Education: Expanded student admissions provided opportunities 
for aspiring nurses, particularly in underserved populations, to access affordable, 
high-quality education. 

• Economic Impact: Faculty stipends and increased enrollment boosted local 
economic activity, supporting both individual livelihoods and regional development. 

Job Placement Rate ADN Program Respiratory Therapy 
Program 

2022-2023 96.22% 100% 
           Source: THECB Almanac 2023 
 
 

 

 

111



Simulation-Based Training and Skill Development 

Benefit to the College: 

• Enhanced Curriculum: The integration of advanced simulation technology improved 
the curriculum by providing hands-on, experiential learning opportunities. Faculty 
training in simulation techniques ensured consistent and effective utilization of these 
tools. 

• Practice-Ready Graduates: Students graduated with a higher level of competence 
and confidence in clinical skills, which enhanced the college’s reputation as a 
premier institution for nursing education. 

Benefit to the Community: 

• Improved Patient Care: Students trained in simulated environments were better 
prepared to handle complex clinical scenarios, directly benefiting healthcare 
outcomes in the region. 

• Addressing Healthcare Shortages: With an increase in practice-ready graduates, 
STC helped mitigate critical staffing shortages in local healthcare facilities, 
particularly in rural and underserved areas. 

• Community Partnerships: Collaborations with local healthcare providers ensured 
that graduates were aligned with the specific needs of the community, fostering a 
symbiotic relationship between STC and the regional healthcare system. 

Describe project accomplishments.  
 

The accomplishments of this project reflect significant progress in addressing key 
challenges in nursing education while fostering tangible benefits for South Texas College 
and the surrounding community. Below is a description of the project’s achievements, 
categorized by major goals and initiatives. 
I. 1. Faculty Recruitment and Retention 

Accomplishment: 

• Increased Faculty Workforce: Successfully recruited additional nursing faculty 
members addressing critical gaps caused by faculty shortages. 

II. 2. Expanded Student Admissions 

Accomplishment/s: 

• Increased Enrollment Capacity: Achieved a measurable increase in nursing 
program admissions, enrolling more students compared to the previous academic 
year. 

112



III. 3. Implementation of Simulation Technology 

Accomplishment: 

• State-of-the-Art Simulation Facilities: Established or upgraded simulation labs 
equipped with high-fidelity mannequins, virtual reality platforms, and task trainers. 

IV. 4. Collaboration and Community Engagement 

Accomplishments: 

• Partnerships with Local Healthcare Providers: Strengthened collaborations with 
hospitals and clinics, ensuring clinical placement opportunities for students and 
aligning training with community needs. 

• Advocacy and Funding: Secured funding through grants and legislative support to 
sustain faculty stipends, simulation upgrades, and student scholarships like the 
Nursing Shortage Reduction Program Grant and THECB Scholarship Grants.  

• Public Awareness: Conducted outreach campaigns to highlight the importance of 
nursing education, increasing community support and fostering a pipeline of 
prospective students. 

V. 5. Workforce Development 

Accomplishment: 

• Increased Workforce Readiness: Graduates demonstrated improved readiness for 
clinical practice, as evidenced by higher licensure exam pass rates and employer 
satisfaction. 

The project’s accomplishments reflect a comprehensive and strategic approach to 
addressing the dual challenges of nursing faculty shortages and workforce readiness. By 
recruiting and retaining faculty, expanding student admissions, and leveraging advanced 
simulation technology, South Texas College has positioned itself as a pivotal force in 
meeting both academic and community healthcare needs. Moving forward, the college can 
build on these achievements by scaling successful initiatives, securing additional funding, 
and further integrating community and industry partnerships.  

 

113



Explain obstacles encountered, if any, to achieving project goals and course of action taken to 
correct the circumstance.  
 

The project faced several challenges in achieving its goals, particularly in the areas of 
recruiting nursing educators, hiring recruitment staff, and managing the turnover of grantor 
staff. Despite these obstacles, proactive measures were implemented to mitigate their 
impact and ensure the project’s success. 
 

VI. 1. Difficulty in Recruiting Nurse Educators 

The nationwide shortage of qualified nursing faculty significantly hindered efforts to recruit 
educators. Factors such as non-competitive salaries, the rigorous academic qualifications 
required for teaching, and the appeal of higher-paying clinical roles deterred potential 
candidates from transitioning into academia. 

Course of Action: 

• Increased Financial Incentives: STC Institutional leadership offered competitive 
stipends to retain and attract nurse educators. 

• Targeted Recruitment Campaigns: Focused on recruiting local practitioners by 
emphasizing the opportunity to contribute to the region’s healthcare workforce. 

VII. 2. Challenges in Hiring Recruitment Staff 

The college faced delays in hiring dedicated recruitment personnel due to a limited pool of 
qualified candidates. This delayed the execution of recruitment campaigns and outreach 
initiatives. 

Course of Action: 

• Cross-Departmental Collaboration: Leveraged existing staff from other 
departments to assist with recruitment efforts, providing training as needed to 
ensure effectiveness. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

114



Additional Project Notes/Comments 
South Texas College (STC), alongside its committed administrative leaders, Office of 
Sponsored Initiatives, Business Office, faculty, and staff, has undertaken significant 
initiatives to address the critical healthcare shortage in the Rio Grande Valley (RGV), 
particularly in the field of nursing. The college has demonstrated a steadfast 
commitment to increasing the regional healthcare workforce through focused faculty 
recruitment efforts, the integration of advanced simulation-based learning, and 
strategic initiatives to expand student admissions. Despite challenges such as limited 
availability of qualified faculty and delays in recruitment processes, STC has 
prioritized innovative solutions to ensure the delivery of high-quality nursing 
education. 

The results of this project highlight STC’s capacity to address the region’s healthcare 
needs effectively. Through the recruitment of skilled healthcare educators, the 
provision of competitive stipends, and the incorporation of cutting-edge simulation 
technologies, the college has significantly expanded its program. This expansion has 
not only increased the number of qualified nursing graduates but has also ensured 
that these graduates are well-prepared for clinical practice and deeply invested in 
serving their community. As a result, healthcare outcomes in the RGV continue to 
improve, supported by a steady pipeline of highly competent nursing professionals. 

By fostering collaborations with healthcare providers, advocating for local and 
regional support, and making substantial investments in educational infrastructure, 
STC has firmly established itself as a leader in nursing education, not only in the 
region but the entire state. The college’s faculty and staff embody a shared 
commitment to academic excellence, equitable access to education, and the 
enhancement of healthcare systems across the RGV. These efforts directly contribute 
to alleviating the healthcare shortage, enabling the region to meet the increasing 
demands of its diverse population while building a robust, resilient healthcare 
workforce. 

 

 
 

115



November 19, 2024 Special Board Meeting 
Page 14, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 9:06 AM 
 

   

Review and Action as Necessary on Award of Proposals, Rejection of 
Proposals, Purchases, and Renewals at a total cost of $1,440,764.78 

The Director of Purchasing has reviewed each item, including the procurement 
procedures and evaluation of all responses, and recommended approval as follows: 
 
Award of Proposals – 1) Campus Dining and Food Trucks - Mid Valley Campus 
 
Purpose Award the proposal for Campus Dining and Food Trucks – Mid Valley 

Campus to All Affairs and Occasions (McAllen, TX).  
 

Justification To provide a wide range of food options available for faculty, staff, 
and students throughout their time at the Mid Valley Campus. These 
options are available Monday through Friday and encompass a 
selection of tacos, sandwiches, wraps, hot dogs, salads, burgers, 
desserts, fruits, and other culinary offerings. 
 

Funding The College will incur no cost. 
 

Enclosed  
Documents 

Appendix A – Project Timeline and Information  
Other information is included under separate cover in the  Supporting 
Documentation booklet. 
 

Staff Resource Mary Del Paz, Vice President for Finance and Administrative 
Services 
 

Recommendation It is requested that the Board approve to award the proposal for 
Campus Dining and Food Trucks – Mid Valley Campus to All Affairs 
and Occasions (McAllen, TX) for the period beginning February 1, 
2025 through January 31, 2026, with two one-year options to renew, 
at no cost to the College.  
 

 
 

APPENDIX A 

Project Timeline and Information 

 
Advertised RFP October 16, 2024 and October 23, 2024 
RFP Responses Due October 31, 2024 
RFP Issued To Twenty-two (22) Vendors 
Responses Received From One (1) Vendor 
Responses Reviewed By Purchasing Department, Business Office, and Mid Valley 

Campus Administrator 
Highest Ranked Vendor  All Affairs and Occasions 

 
 
 
 
 

116



November 19, 2024 Special Board Meeting 
Page 15, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 9:06 AM 
 

   

Award of Proposals – 2) Catering Services II 
 
Purpose Award the proposals for Catering Services II to the vendors listed in 

Appendix A.  
 

Justification To provide a variety of nutritious meal options and accommodate 
diverse dietary needs during South Texas College events such as 
student activities, professional development events, and sponsored 
events attended by students, faculty, staff, and the community.   
 
The vendor will be selected at the time of purchase based on the 
items needed/provided, pricing, availability, and delivery timeline. 
 

Funding Funds are budgeted in the various auxiliary budgets for FY 2024 – 
2025. Funds for subsequent fiscal years will be included in future 
proposed budgets. 
 

Enclosed 
Documents 

Appendix A – Vendors List  
Appendix B – Project Timeline and Information  
Other information is included under separate cover in the  Supporting 
Documentation booklet. 
 

Staff Resource Mary Del Paz, Vice President for Finance and Administrative 
Services 
 

Recommendation It is requested that the Board approve to award the proposals for 
catering services II to the vendors listed in Appendix A for the period 
beginning November 19, 2024 through November 18, 2025, at an 
estimated total amount of $60,000.00, which is based on prior year 
expenditures. 
 

 
  

117



November 19, 2024 Special Board Meeting 
Page 16, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 9:06 AM 
 

   

APPENDIX A 

Vendors List  

 
Vendor (City, State) Vendor (City, State) 

Atencion Selecta, LLC (Edinburg, TX) Bright Life Investments, LLC DBA 
Cornerstone Cafe (Mission, TX) (New) 

Laredo Comidas / STC-Taco Palenque 
(McAllen, TX) 

 

 
APPENDIX B 

Project Timeline and Information 

 
Advertised RFP October 16, 2024 and October 23, 2024 
RFP Responses Due October 31, 2024 
RFP Issued To Eight (8) Vendors 
Responses Received From Three (3) Vendors 
Responses Reviewed By Purchasing Department 
Highest Ranked Vendor  Vendors listed in Appendix A 

  

118



November 19, 2024 Special Board Meeting 
Page 17, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 9:06 AM 
 

   

Award of Proposals – 3) Purchase of Laser Projectors 
 
Purpose Award the proposal for the purchase of laser projectors to Audio 

Visual Aids (San Antonio, TX).  
 

Justification To procure fifty-four (54) laser projectors for projector upgrades in 
classrooms. Laser projectors enhance visual learning, making 
lessons more engaging and effective. With a longer lifespan than 
traditional projectors, they significantly reduce maintenance and 
replacement costs, maximizing instructional time. This versatile 
technology not only empowers educators but also enriches the overall 
student experience, ultimately fostering a more dynamic and 
interactive learning environment. 
 

Funding Funds for this expenditure are budgeted in the Technology Projects 
budget for FY 2024 – 2025.  
 

Enclosed 
Documents 

Appendix A – Project Timeline and Information  
Other information is included under separate cover in the  Supporting 
Documentation booklet. 
 

Staff Resource Dr. Jesús Campos, Interim Vice President for Information Services, 
Planning, Performance, & Strategic Initiatives 
 

Recommendation It is requested that the Board approve to award the proposal for the 
purchase of laser projectors to Audio Visual Aids (San Antonio, TX) 
at a total amount of $109,566.00. 
 

 
 
 

APPENDIX A 

Project Timeline and Information 

 
Advertised RFP October 16, 2024 and October 23, 2024 
RFP Responses Due October 31, 2024 
RFP Issued To Twenty-eight (28) Vendors 
Responses Received From Eight (8) Vendors  
Responses Reviewed By Purchasing Department and Educational Technologies 
Highest Ranked Vendor  Audio Visual Aids  

 
  

119



November 19, 2024 Special Board Meeting 
Page 18, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 9:06 AM 
 

   

Award of Proposals – 4) Sport Utility Vehicles  
 
Purpose Award the proposal for the purchase of a sport utility vehicle to Spikes 

Ford (Mission, TX). 
 

Justification To procure one (1) mid-size sport utility vehicle for the Division of 
Student Affairs and Enrollment Management. The vehicle will provide 
ample space for transporting staff and equipment for events and 
outreach programs, enhancing the school's ability to engage with the 
community. Additionally, the vehicle will improve operational 
efficiency and support the institution’s mission. 
 

Funding Funds for this expenditure are budgeted in the Student Affairs and 
Enrollment Management budget for FY 2024 – 2025. 
 

Enclosed 
Documents 

Appendix A – Project Timeline and Information  
Other information is included under separate cover in the  Supporting 
Documentation booklet. 
 

Staff Resource Dr. Matthew S. Hebbard, Vice President – Student Affairs and 
Enrollment Management  
 

Recommendation It is requested that the Board approve to award the proposal for the 
purchase of a sport utility vehicle to Spikes Ford (Mission, TX) at a 
total amount of $42,221.00. 
 

 
 

APPENDIX A 

Project Timeline and Information 

 
Advertised RFP October 16, 2024 and October 23, 2024 
RFP Responses Due October 31, 2024 
RFP Issued To Eleven (11) Vendors 
Responses Received From Five (5) Vendors 
Responses Reviewed By Purchasing Department, Enrollment Services, and 

External Affairs 
Highest Ranked Vendor  Spikes Ford 

 
  

120



November 19, 2024 Special Board Meeting 
Page 19, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 9:06 AM 
 

   

Rejection of Proposals – 5) Sport Utility Vehicles  
 
Purpose Reject the proposals for the purchase of a sport utility vehicle. 

 
Justification Administration has determined that the purchase of this vehicle 

should be delayed until the Spring Semester to align with the required 
needs of the department. 
 

Staff Resource Dr. Rodney Rodriguez, Vice President - Institutional Advancement 
and External Affairs 
 

Recommendation It is requested that the Board approve to reject the proposals for the 
purchase of a sport utility vehicle. 
 

 
Purchases – 6) Bench Lathes and Tire Changer  
 
Purpose Purchase bench lathes and a tire changer from O'Reilly Auto Parts 

(McAllen, TX), The Interlocal Purchasing System (TIPS) approved 
vendor.  
 

Justification To enhance the Automotive Technology Program with bench lathes 
and a tire changer which align with emerging automotive industry 
technology. This equipment provides students with hands-on 
experience using tools currently in the field, enhancing their 
readiness for industry advancements. Access to up-to-date 
technology in the classroom prepares students with practical skills for 
new developments in automotive mechanics. 
 

Enclosed 
Documents 

Other information is included under separate cover in the  Supporting 
Documentation booklet. 
 

Funding Funds for this expenditure are budgeted in the Automotive 
Technology budget for FY 2024 – 2025.  
 

Staff Resource Dr. Anahid Petrosian, Vice President and Provost for Academic 
Affairs and Economic Development  
 

Recommendation It is requested that the Board approve to purchase bench lathes and 
a tire changer from O’Reilly Auto Parts (McAllen, TX), The Interlocal 
Purchasing Systems (TIPS) approved vendor, at a total amount of 
$65,887.00. 
 

 
  

121



November 19, 2024 Special Board Meeting 
Page 20, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 9:06 AM 
 

   

Purchases – 7) Rotary Mobile Column Lifts (Grant Funded) 
 
Purpose Purchase rotary mobile column lifts from PSI JF Petroleum Group, 

Inc. (Edinburg, TX), a Texas Association of School Boards – 
Buyboard approved vendor. 
 

Justification To enhance the Diesel Technology Program with rotary mobile 
column lifts which will increase efficiency during lab sessions by 
providing students with practical, hands-on training and allowing 
quicker access to various parts of diesel vehicles. This will enable 
students to work more efficiently, leading to more effective learning 
and better time management. Integrating mobile lifts into the diesel 
program will significantly enhance student safety by minimizing risks 
and improving the efficiency of maintenance and repair tasks while 
also equipping our students with essential skills that are highly valued 
by employers. 
 

Enclosed 
Documents 

Other information is included under separate cover in the  Supporting 
Documentation booklet. 
 

Funding Funds for this expenditure are budgeted in the Carl Perkins Grant for 
FY 2024 – 2025.  
 

Staff Resource Dr. Anahid Petrosian, Vice President and Provost for Academic 
Affairs and Economic Development 
 

Recommendation It is requested that the Board approve to purchase rotary mobile 
column lifts from PSI JF Petroleum Group, Inc. (Edinburg, TX), a 
Texas Association of School Boards – Buyboard approved vendor, at 
a total amount of $64,720.50.  
 

 
Purchases – 8) Telescopic Handler  
 
Purpose Purchase a telescopic handler from Wylie Implement & Sprayers 

(New) (Raymondville, TX), a Sourcewell purchasing cooperative 
approved vendor. 
 

Justification To be utilized by the Regional Center for Public Safety Excellence 
(RCPSE) faculty and staff for instructional purposes, the telescopic 
handler is necessary to move heavy instructional equipment, 
materials, and aids needed for technical rescue, vehicle extrication, 
and public safety classes at the RCPSE.  
    

Enclosed 
Documents 

Other information is included under separate cover in the  Supporting 
Documentation booklet. 
 

Funding Funds for this expenditure are budgeted in the RCPSE budget for  
2024 – 2025. 
 

122



November 19, 2024 Special Board Meeting 
Page 21, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 9:06 AM 
 

   

Staff Resource Dr. Anahid Petrosian, Vice President and Provost for Academic 
Affairs and Economic Development 
 

Recommendation It is requested that the Board approve to purchase a telescopic 
handler from Wylie Implement & Sprayers (Raymondville, TX), a 
Sourcewell purchasing cooperative approved vendor, at a total 
amount of $145,334.00. 
 

 
Purchases – 9) Training Systems  (Grant Funded) 
 
Purpose Purchase training systems from Toolkit Technologies, Inc. (Austin, 

TX), a Texas Association of School Boards – Buyboard approved 
vendor. 
 

Justification To enhance the Diesel Technology Program with an engine training 
system and an interactive hydraulic training system which will provide 
invaluable hands-on learning in engine management, air 
conditioning, and hydraulic systems. 
 
The engine training system facilitates a deeper understanding of AC 
stop-and-start systems by allowing students to engage directly with 
a realistic engine setup, including diesel engines. It also enables 
them to practice troubleshooting and diagnostics in a safe, controlled 
environment.  
 

Enclosed 
Documents 

Other information is included under separate cover in the  Supporting 
Documentation booklet. 
 

Funding Funds for this expenditure are budgeted in the Cark Perkins Grant 
and Automotive Technology budget for FY 2024 – 2025. 
 

Staff Resource Dr. Anahid Petrosian, Vice President and Provost for Academic 
Affairs and Economic Development 
 

Recommendation It is requested that the Board approve to purchase training systems 
from Toolkit Technologies, Inc. (Austin, TX), a Texas Association 
of School Boards – Buyboard approved vendor, at a total amount of 
$105,355.80. 
 

 
  

123



November 19, 2024 Special Board Meeting 
Page 22, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 9:06 AM 
 

   

Purchases – 10) Computers, Laptops, Tablets, Monitors, and Printers 
 

Purpose Purchase computers, laptops, tablets, monitors, and printers from 
the vendors listed in Appendix A. 
  

Justification To provide new systems, replace out-of-warranty systems (over five 
years old), and meet software requirements for those systems that 
exceed the capacity for students, faculty, and staff based on the 
Information Technology criteria. 
 
The requested systems meet the College’s standard configurations. 
 

Enclosed 
Documents 

Appendix A – Vendors List 
Appendix B – District-Wide Technology Request Summary   

Other information is included under separate cover in the  Supporting 
Documentation booklet. 

 
Funding Funds for these expenditures are budgeted in the requesting 

department budgets for FY 2024-2025 as follows: Learning 
Commons and Open Labs, Art, Economics, Business 
Administration, World Language Department, Curriculum 
Department, Human Resources, Teaching and Learning Center, 
Educational Technologies, Library Public Services, Computer 
Science,  Construction Accounts-Unexpended, Bachelors of 
Nursing, Patient Care Technician, Physics, Engineering, Pharmacy 
Technology, Advanced Manufacturing Technology, Political 
Science, Dual Credit Pathways, Institutional Advancement, 
Diagnostic Imaging, Dual Credit Programs, Dual Credit Scheduling 
and Compliance, Educational Technologies Maintenance and 
Replacement, Information Technology, Regional Center for Public 
Safety Excellence, Student Activities and Wellness, Office of 
Sponsored Initiatives, Business Office, Internal Audit, Division of 
Business Public Safety and Technology, Cosmetology, Computer 
Science, Division of Nursing and Allied Health, Advanced 
Manufacturing Technology, and Mathematics. 
 

Staff Resource Lucio Gonzalez, Associate Vice President -Technology and Chief 
Information Officer  
Deyadira Leal, Director of Purchasing 
 

Recommendation It is requested that the Board approve to purchase computers, 
laptops, tablets, monitors, and printers from the vendors listed in 
Appendix A at a total amount of $305,946.25.  

 
 
  

124



November 19, 2024 Special Board Meeting 
Page 23, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 9:06 AM 
 

   

APPENDIX A 

Vendors List 

 
Vendor (City, State) Purchasing Cooperative Amount 

Apple, Inc. (Dallas, TX) Choice Partners Cooperative 12,156.00 
CRC Computer Repair 
Center (McAllen, TX) 

State of Texas Department of 
Information Resources (DIR) 

10,829.00 

Dell Marketing, LP  
(Dallas, TX) 

State of Texas Department of 
Information Resources (DIR) 

282,961.25 

Total Amount:  $305,946.25 
 
 

APPENDIX B 

District-Wide Technology Request Summary   

 

Student Computers 
 

Staff Laptops 

103 Learning Commons and Open Labs  1 Dual Credit Pathways 

Student Monitors 
 

1 Institutional Advancement 

25 Mathematics Program  1 Pharmacy Technology Program 

Faculty Computers 
 

1 Pharmacy Technology Program / 
Diagnostic Imaging 

1 Art Program  2 Dual Credit Programs 

1 Economics Program 
 

1 Dual Credit Scheduling and 
Compliance 

1 Business Administration 
 

13 Educational Technologies 
Maintenance and Replacement 

1 World Language Department  4 Educational Technologies 
1 Curriculum Department  10 Information Technology 

1 Human Resources 
 

1 Regional Center for Public Safety 
Excellence 

Faculty Laptops 
 

6 Student Activities and Wellness 
1 Bachelors of Nursing  1 Office of Sponsored Initiatives 

1 Bachelors of Nursing / Patient Care 
Technician Program  

4 Business Office 

1 Physics Program  1 Internal Audit 

2 Engineering Program 
 

2 Division of Business Public Safety 
and Technology 

2 Pharmacy Technology Program  3 Cosmetology Program 

1 Advanced Manufacturing 
Technology Program  

3 Computer Science  

5 Political Science Program 
 

2 Division of Nursing and Allied 
Health 

125



November 19, 2024 Special Board Meeting 
Page 24, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 9:06 AM 
 

   

Staff Computers 
 

1 Advanced Manufacturing 
Technology Program 

1 Teaching and Learning Center 
 

Staff Printers 

1 Educational Technologies 
 

6 Mathematics Program 

1 Library Public Services  6 Human Resources 
1 Computer Science  3 English Program 

3 
Construction Accounts-
Unexpended / Starr Campus 
Automotive Lab  

1 Developmental reading 

Staff Monitors 
 

1 Associate Degree Nursing 

3 
Construction Accounts-
Unexpended / Starr Campus 
Automotive Lab  

4 Welding Program 

   Staff Tablets 

   4 Educational Technologies 

   
5 Educational Technologies 

Maintenance and Replacement 
 
  

126



November 19, 2024 Special Board Meeting 
Page 25, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 9:06 AM 
 

   

Renewals -  11) Investment Advisory Services  
 
Purpose Renew the investment advisory services contract with Valley View 

Consulting, LLC (Huddleston, VA). 
 

Justification To provide the College with professional advice related to 
investments, yield rate, risks, accuracy and completeness of the 
College’s investment policy, and other important information on an 
as-needed basis. The firm acts as a strategic investment planner for 
the College and develops an investment portfolio plan that is 
diversified and consistent with the College’s Investment Policy, 
objectives and guidelines, and Texas State Law. 
 

Enclosed 
Documents 
 

Appendix A – Renewal Terms   
 

Funding Funds for this expenditure are budgeted in the Investment Advisor 
budget for FY 2024 – 2025.  Funds for subsequent fiscal years will be 
included in future proposed budgets. 
 

Staff Resource Mary G. Del Paz, Vice President for Finance and Administrative 
Services 
Myriam Lopez, Associate Vice President for Finance and 
Management 
 

Recommendation It is requested that the Board approve to renew the investment 
advisory services contract with Valley View Consulting, LLC 
(Huddleston, VA), for the period beginning April 1, 2025 through 
March 31, 2026, at an estimated total amount of $85,000.00, which is 
based on prior year expenditures. 
 

 
 

APPENDIX A 

Renewal Terms   
 

The Board awarded the contracts as follows: 
 

Term: February 14, 2023 – one year with two (2) one-year annual renewals 
Award Board Meeting 

Date 
Original Term Renewal Term 

Original 02/14/2023 04/01/23 – 
03/31/24 

 

First Renewal 01/30/2024  04/01/24 – 
03/31/25 

Final Renewal 11/19/2024  04/01/25 – 
03/31/26 

 
The vendor has complied with all the terms and conditions of the contract, and services 
have been satisfactory. 
 

127



November 19, 2024 Special Board Meeting 
Page 26, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 9:06 AM 
 

   

Renewals -  12) Primary Bank Depository Services  
 
Purpose Renew the primary bank depository services contract with PNC Bank 

(McAllen, TX). 
 

Justification To provide depository bank services to the College for wire services, 
book transfers, ACH transactions, stop payments, balance reporting, 
positive pay, and account reconciliation  
 

Enclosed 
Documents 
 

Appendix A – Renewal Terms   
 

Funding Funds for this expenditure are budgeted in the Bank Fees budget for 
FY 2024 – 2025. Funds for subsequent fiscal years will be included 
in future proposed budgets. 
 

Staff Resource Mary G. Del Paz, Vice President for Finance and Administrative 
Services 
Myriam Lopez, Associate Vice President for Finance and 
Management 
 

Recommendation It is requested that the Board approve to renew the primary bank 
depository services contract with PNC Bank (McAllen, TX), for a two-
year term, beginning February 1, 2025, and ending January 31, 2027, 
at an estimated total amount of $105,000.  
 

 
 
 

APPENDIX A 

Renewal Terms   
 
The Board awarded the contracts as follows: 
 

Term: October 27, 2020 – two years with three (3) two-year annual renewals 
Award Board Meeting 

Date 
Original Term Renewal Term 

Original 10/27/20 02/01/21 – 
01/31/23 

3 – two year 
options 

First Renewal 10/18/22  02/01/23 – 
01/31/25 

Second Renewal 11/19/24  02/01/25 – 
01/31/27 

 
The vendor has complied with all the terms and conditions of the contract, and services 
have been satisfactory. 
 
 

128



November 19, 2024 Special Board Meeting 
Page 27, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 9:06 AM 
 

   

Renewals – 13) Cisco Umbrella, Cisco Identity Services Engine (ISE), and DUO 
Software License Agreements 
 
Purpose Renew the Cisco Umbrella, Cisco Identity Services Engine (ISE), and 

DUO software license agreements with Netsync Network Solutions 
(Houston, TX), a State of Texas Department of Information 
Resources (DIR) approved vendor. 
 

Justification To provide an internet-wide layer of security that protects against 
malware infections and a secure internet gateway with the visibility to 
protect internet access for students, faculty, and staff district-wide, 
Cisco Umbrella and Cisco Identity Services Engine (ISE) are 
essential to the College.  
 
Additionally, the DUO multifactor authentication is vital for quickly 
verifying users' identities by approving push notifications before 
accessing applications.  
 

Enclosed 
Documents 

Other information is included under separate cover in the  Supporting 
Documentation booklet. 
 

Funding Funds for this expenditure are budgeted in the Systems and 
Networking budget for FY 2024 – 2025. Funds for subsequent fiscal 
years will be included in future proposed budgets. 
 

Staff Resource Dr. Jesús Campos, Interim Vice President for Information Services, 
Planning, Performance, & Strategic Initiatives 
Lucio Gonzalez, Associate Vice President - Technology and Chief 
Information Officer  
 

Recommendation It is requested that the Board approve to renew the Cisco Umbrella, 
Cisco Identity Services Engine (ISE), and DUO software license 
agreements with Netsync Network Solutions (Houston, TX), a State 
of Texas Department of Information Resources (DIR) approved 
vendor, for the period beginning December 10, 2024 through 
December 9, 2029, with five (5) annual payments of $73,032.80, for 
a total amount of $365,164.00. 
 

 
  

129



November 19, 2024 Special Board Meeting 
Page 28, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 9:06 AM 
 

   

Renewals – 14) Red Hat Licenses Maintenance and Support Agreement  
 
Purpose Renew the Red Hat licenses maintenance and support agreement 

with Netsync Network Solutions (Houston, TX), a State of Texas 
Department of Information Resources (DIR) approved vendor. 
  

Justification To provide one year of support and maintenance to the servers 
running on Red Hat software. The support provides critical updates 
and patches to mitigate security risks and support for the servers 
running the Red Hat software. The servers running Red Hat support 
applications such as Banner and Jagnet serve students, faculty, and 
staff district-wide. 
 

Enclosed 
Documents 

Other information is included under separate cover in the  Supporting 
Documentation booklet. 
 

Funding Funds for this expenditure are budgeted in the Systems and 
Networking budget for FY 2024 – 2025.  Funds for subsequent fiscal 
years will be included in future proposed budgets. 
 

Staff Resource Dr. Jesús Campos, Interim Vice President for Information Services, 
Planning, Performance, & Strategic Initiatives 
Lucio Gonzalez, Associate Vice President - Technology and Chief 
Information Officer  
 

Recommendation It is requested that the Board approve to renew the Red Hat licenses 
maintenance and support agreement with Netsync Network 
Solutions (Houston, TX), a State of Texas Department of Information 
Resources (DIR) approved vendor, for the period beginning February 
10, 2025 through February 9, 2026, at a total amount of $91,570.23. 
 

 
 
Recommendation:  It is requested that the Board approve the award of proposals, rejection 
of proposals, purchases, and renewals at a total cost of $1,440,764.78, as listed below: 

 
Award of 
Proposals  
 

1) Campus Dining and Food Trucks - Mid Valley Campus: award the 
proposal for Campus Dining and Food Trucks – Mid Valley Campus to 
All Affairs and Occasions (McAllen, TX) for the period beginning 
February 1, 2025 through January 31, 2026, with two one-year options 
to renew, at no cost to the College; 

2) Catering Services II: award the proposals for catering services II for 
the period beginning November 19, 2024 through November 18, 2025, 
at an estimated total amount of $60,000.00, which is based on prior 
year expenditures. The vendors are as follows: 
 

 

Vendor (City, State) Vendor (City, State) 
Atencion Selecta, LLC 
(Edinburg, TX) 

Bright Life Investments, LLC 
DBA Cornerstone Cafe  
(Mission, TX) (New) 

130



November 19, 2024 Special Board Meeting 
Page 29, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 9:06 AM 
 

   

Laredo Comidas / STC-Taco 
Palenque (McAllen, TX) 

 

 

3) Purchase of Laser Projectors: award the proposal for the purchase 
of laser projectors to Audio Visual Aids (San Antonio, TX) at a total 
amount of $109,566.00; 

4) Sport Utility Vehicles: award the proposal for the purchase of a sport 
utility vehicle to Spikes Ford (Mission, TX) at a total amount of 
$42,221.00; 

 
 
 

Rejection of 
Proposals 

5) Sport Utility Vehicles: reject the proposals for the purchase of a sport 
utility vehicle; 
 

Purchases 6) Bench Lathes and Tire Changer: purchase bench lathes and a tire 
changer from O’Reilly Auto Parts (McAllen, TX), The Interlocal 
Purchasing Systems (TIPS) approved vendor, at a total amount of 
$65,887.00; 

7) Rotary Mobile Column Lifts (Grant Funded): purchase rotary mobile 
column lifts from PSI JF Petroleum Group, Inc. (Edinburg, TX), a 
Texas Association of School Boards – Buyboard approved vendor, at a 
total amount of $64,720.50; 

8) Telescopic Handler: purchase a telescopic handler from Wylie 
Implement & Sprayers  (New) (Raymondville, TX), a Sourcewell 
purchasing cooperative approved vendor, at a total amount of 
$145,334.00; 

9) Training Systems  (Grant Funded): purchase training systems from 
Toolkit Technologies, Inc. (Austin, TX), a Texas Association of 
School Boards – Buyboard approved vendor, at a total amount of 
$105,355.80; 

10) Computers, Laptops, Tablets, Monitors, and Printers: purchase 
computers, laptops, tablets, monitors, and printers at a total amount of 
$305,946.25 from the vendors listed below:  
 

Vendor (City, State) Purchasing Cooperative Amount 
Apple, Inc.  
(Dallas, TX) 

Choice Partners 
Cooperative 

12,156.00 

CRC Computer 
Repair Center 
(McAllen, TX) 

State of Texas 
Department of 
Information Resources 
(DIR) 
 

10,829.00 

Dell Marketing, LP  
(Dallas, TX) 

State of Texas 
Department of 
Information Resources 
(DIR) 

282,961.25 

Total Amount: $305,946.25 
 
 

131



November 19, 2024 Special Board Meeting 
Page 30, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 9:06 AM 
 

   

Renewals 11) Investment Advisory Services: renew the investment advisory 
services contract with Valley View Consulting, LLC (Huddleston, VA), 
for the period beginning April 1, 2025 through March 31, 2026, at an 
estimated total amount of $85,000.00, which is based on prior year 
expenditures; 

12) Primary Bank Depository Services: renew the primary bank 
depository services contract with PNC Bank (McAllen, TX), for a two-
year term, beginning February 1, 2025, and ending January 31, 2027, 
at an estimated total amount of $105,000; 

13) Cisco Umbrella, Cisco Identity Services Engine (ISE), and DUO 
Software License Agreements: renew the Cisco Umbrella, Cisco 
Identity Services Engine (ISE), and DUO software license agreements 
with Netsync Network Solutions (Houston, TX), a State of Texas 
Department of Information Resources (DIR) approved vendor, for the 
period beginning December 10, 2024 through December 9, 2029, with 
five (5) annual payments of $73,032.80, for a total amount of 
$365,164.00; 

14) Red Hat Licenses Maintenance and Support Agreement: renew the 
Red Hat licenses maintenance and support agreement with Netsync 
Network Solutions (Houston, TX), a State of Texas Department of 
Information Resources (DIR) approved vendor, for the period beginning 
February 10, 2025 through February 9, 2026, at a total amount of 
$91,570.23. 

 
The Finance, Audit, and Human Resources Committee did not meet in November 2024; 
therefore, this item is presented without a committee recommendation.  Administration 
recommends approval as presented. 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Trustees of South Texas College approve and 
authorize the following Minute Order proposed for consideration: 
The Board of Trustees of South Texas College approves and authorizes the award of 
proposals, rejection of proposals, purchases, and renewals at a total cost of 
$1,440,764.78 as presented. 
 
Approval Recommended: 
 
Dr. Ricardo J. Solis 
President 
  

132



November 19, 2024 Special Board Meeting 
Page 31, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 9:06 AM 
 

   

Review and Recommend Action on 2024 Tax Roll/Tax Levy for 
Hidalgo and Starr Counties  

Purpose To approve the 2024 Tax Roll/Tax Levy for Hidalgo and Starr 
Counties. 
 

Justification To ensure that the College complies with Section 26.09 Item (e) of 
the Property Tax Code, which states: 
 

“The assessor shall enter the amount of tax determined as 
provided by this section in the appraisal roll and submit it to the 
governing body of the unit for approval. The appraisal roll with 
amounts of tax entered as approved by the governing body 
constitutes the unit’s tax roll.” 

 
Mr. Pablo “Paul” Villareal, Jr., RTA, Assessor-Collector of Hidalgo 
County, and Ms. Maria Amedia Salinas, TAC, Assessor-Collector of 
Starr County, have entered the determined tax amounts into the 
appraisal roll as provided by Section 26.09 Item (e) of the Property 
Tax Code.  They have submitted the tax roll/tax levy to South Texas 
College, totaling $97,618,426.83. 
 

Enclosed 
Documents 
 

Appendix A – 2024 Tax Roll Total for each county 
 

Funding No funds are required. 
 

Staff Resource Mary Del Paz, Vice President for Finance and Administrative 
Services 
Myriam Lopez, Associate Vice President - Finance and Management 
 

Additional  
Information 

The Finance, Audit, and Human Resources Committee did not meet 
in November 2024; therefore, this item is presented without a 
committee recommendation.  Administration recommends approval 
as presented. 

 
Recommendation It is recommended that the Board of Trustees of South Texas 

College approve and authorize the following Minute Order 
proposed for consideration: 
The Board of Trustees of South Texas College approves and 
authorizes the 2024 Tax Roll/Tax Levy for Hidalgo and Starr Counties 
to comply with Section 26.09 Item (e) of the Property Tax Code, as 
presented. 

 
Approval Recommended: 
 

Dr. Ricardo J. Solis 
President 

  

133



134



135



136



137



138



November 19, 2024 Special Board Meeting 
Page 32, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 9:06 AM 
 

   

Review and Action as Necessary on Appraisal District Allocated Cost 
Payments for Starr County 

Purpose To approve the Appraisal District Allocated Cost Payments for Starr 
County for property valuation assessments conducted annually for 
tax purposes during the tax year. 
 

Justification The Appraisal District is considered a sole source provider, and the 
College and other taxing entities must utilize their services to 
determine the assessed valuation of properties. 
 
The estimated allocation for Tax Year 2024, according to the Starr 
County budget, amount to $160,710.12 for Starr County Appraisal 
District. The first quarterly invoice is due by December 31, 2024. Each 
taxing unit is responsible for paying its allocation in four equal 
payments. 
 

Enclosed 
Documents 
 

Appendix A – Changes to Tax Year 2024 Allocations 
Appendix B – FY 2025 Allocated payments for Tax Year 2024 

Funding Funds for these expenditures are budgeted in the Starr 
Appraisal/Collection Fee budget for FY2024 - 2025. 
 

Staff Resource Mary Del Paz, Vice President for Finance and Administrative 
Services 
Myriam Lopez, Associate Vice President - Finance and Management 
 

Additional  
Information 

The Finance, Audit, and Human Resources Committee did not meet 
in November 2024; therefore, this item is presented without a 
committee recommendation.  Administration recommends approval 
as presented. 

 
Recommendation It is recommended that the Board of Trustees of South Texas 

College approve and authorize the following Minute Order 
proposed for consideration: 
The Board of Trustees of South Texas College approves and 
authorizes the Appraisal District Allocated Cost Payments for Starr 
County in the amount of $160,710.12. 
 

 
Approval Recommended: 
 
Dr. Ricardo J. Solis 
President 

 
  

139



November 19, 2024 Special Board Meeting 
Page 33, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 9:06 AM 
 

   

Appendix A 
 

Changes to Tax Year 2024 Allocations, with comparison to previous year as follows: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The changes are based on the new year budgets of each Appraisal District. The Starr 
County Appraisal District Budget has increased by $335,296.43 from $1,793,314.40 to 
$2,128,610.83. 
 
  

Tax Year   Starr County  

2024   $160,710.12  

2023     133,826.05  

Increase/(Decrease)   $   26,884.07  

140



141



November 19, 2024 Special Board Meeting 
Page 34, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 9:06 AM 
 

   

Review and Recommend Action on Annual Investment Report for FY 
2023 – 2024 

Purpose To approve the College’s Annual Investment Report for FY 2023 - 
2024. 
 

Justification To comply with the State Auditor’s Office (SAO) requirement that 
higher education institutions report to the SAO certain investment 
information prescribed by the General Appropriations Act (82nd 
Legislature), Article III, Rider 5-Investment Reports.  The governing 
board of each of the educational institutions is required to file with the 
SAO, Comptroller of Public Accounts, Legislative Budget Board, and 
the Governor an annual report of all investment transactions involving 
endowment funds, short-term and long-term investment funds, and 
all other securities transactions.  
 

Enclosed 
Documents 
 

Appendix A – Annual Investment Report 
 

Funding No funds are required. 
 

Staff Resource Dr. Ricardo J. Solis, President 
Mary Del Paz, Vice President for Finance and Administrative 
Services 
 

Additional  
Information 

The Finance, Audit, and Human Resources Committee did not meet 
in November 2024; therefore, this item is presented without a 
committee recommendation.  Administration recommends approval 
as presented. 

 
Recommendation It is recommended that the Board of Trustees of South Texas 

College approve and authorize the following Minute Order 
proposed for consideration: 
The Board of Trustees of South Texas College approves and 
authorizes the Annual Investment Report for FY 2023 - 2024. 

 
Approval Recommended: 
 
Dr. Ricardo J. Solis 
President 

 

  

142



Investment or Deposit Type

Publicly Traded Equity and Similar Investments
Common Stock (U.S. and foreign stocks held in separately managed accounts or internally managed by 
institution investment staff; exclude mutual or commingled funds)
Equity/Stock Mutual Funds
Balanced Mutual Funds (where target allocation is > 50% equities)
"Commonfund" Equity Commingled Funds
Other Equity Commingled Funds (if primarily invested in publicly traded equities)
Preferred Stock
Other - list by type

Total Publicly Traded Equity and Similar Investments -                               

"Other" Investments - Other than Publicly Traded Equity and Debt Investments

Real Estate (include direct ownership & investments in real estate limited partnerships, private REITs, or 
similar vehicles; include a portfolio of publicly traded REITs if managed as a separate asset allocation 
category  rather than comprising part of a broadly diversified stock portfolio )
Other Real Asset Investments (e.g. investments in infrastructure funds)
Private Equity
Hedge Funds
"Commonfund" Alternative Asset Commingled Funds (Real Estate, Private Equity, Hedge Funds, 
Commodities, etc.)
Annuities
Commodities
Collectibles 
Other - Miscellaneous Coins 5,590                         

Total "Other" Investments - Other than Publicly Traded Equity & Debt Investments 5,590                        

Publicly Traded Debt & Similar Investments>1 year maturity
U.S. Government Securities ("Treasuries")
U.S. Government Agency Securities ("Agencies")
Mortgage Pass-Throughs - "Agency"
Mortgage Pass-Throughs - "Private Label"
Asset-Backed Securities (ABS)  (other than mortgage-backed securities)
Sovereign Debt (non-U.S.)
Municipal Obligations 
Collateralized Mortgage Obligations (CMOs) - list below by category
   Interest Only Strips (IOs)
   Principal Only Strips (POs)
   Inverse Floaters
   Stated Final Maturity longer than 10 years
   Other CMOs - "Agency"
   Other CMOs - "Private Label"
Corporate Obligations (U.S. or foreign companies) - list below by rating
   Highly Rated (AAA/AA or equivalent)
   Other Investment Grade (A/BBB or equivalent) 
   High Yield Bonds (<BBB or equivalent)
   Not Rated (NR)
Fixed Income/Bond Mutual Funds (longer term; registered with the SEC)
Balanced  Mutual Funds (where target allocation is > 50% bonds or other debt securities)
"Commonfund" Fixed Income/Bond Commingled Funds
Other Fixed Income/Bond Commingled Funds (primarily invested in publicly traded debt securities; not 
registered with the SEC)
GICs (Guaranteed Investment Contracts)
Other - list by type

Total Publicly Traded Debt & Similar Investments >1 year -                               

August 31, 2024 
Market Value

South Texas College
Annual Investment Report (Including Deposits) 

143



Investment or Deposit Type
August 31, 2024 

Market Value

South Texas College
Annual Investment Report (Including Deposits) 

Short-Term Investments & Deposits
U.S. Government Securities ("Treasuries") 62,661,191                
U.S. Government Agency Securities ("Agencies") 109,008,229               
Bankers' Acceptances
Commercial Paper - A1/P1 (or equivalent)
Other Commercial Paper - lower rated
Repurchase Agreements (Repos)
Money Market Mutual Funds (registered with the SEC)
Short-Term Mutual Funds Other than Money Market Mutual Funds (registered with the SEC)                    
but "2a7-like")
   TexPool (and TexPool Prime)   1,793,616                  
   Other Public Funds Investment Pools Functioning as Money Market Mutual Funds 
Other Investment Pools - Short-Term (not created to function as a money market mutual fund)   
Certificates of Deposit (CD) - Nonnegotiable 156,517,229                
Certificates of Deposit (CD) - Negotiable
Bank Deposits 91,900,811                
Cash Held at State Treasury

Securities Lending Collateral Reinvestments (direct investments or share of pooled collateral)
Other - Cash on Hand 6,375                         

Total Short-Term Investments & Deposits 421,887,451             
TOTAL INVESTMENTS and DEPOSITS 421,893,041             

144



November 19, 2024 Special Board Meeting 
Page 35, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 9:06 AM 
 

   

Review and Action as Necessary on Quarterly Investment Report for 
Quarter Ending August 31, 2024   

Purpose To approve the College’s Quarterly Investment Report for the 
Quarter Ended August 31, 2024 that will be presented by Mr. 
Richard Long from Valley View Consulting, L.L.C. 
 

Justification To comply with the Texas Public Funds Information Act (PFIA) and 
the College’s Policy CAK Appropriations and Revenue Sources: 
Investments that requires an Investment Report to be prepared and 
submitted to the Board of Trustees and the President on a quarterly 
basis.  
 
Mr. Long will present an overview of the investments, the annual 
interest earnings, the quarterly interest earnings, and the economic 
overview. 
 

Enclosed 
Documents 
 

Appendix A - Quarterly Investment Report 
 

Funding No funds are required. 
 

Staff Resource Dr. Ricardo J. Solis, President 
Mary Del Paz, Vice President for Finance and Administrative 
Services 
 

Recommendation It is recommended that the Board of Trustees of South Texas 
College approve and authorize the following Minute Order 
proposed for consideration: 
The Board of Trustees of South Texas College approves and 
authorizes the Quarterly Investment Report for the Quarter Ended 
August 31, 2024. 

 
Approval Recommended: 
 
Dr. Ricardo J. Solis 
President 
 

 

  

145



11/12/2024

1146



11/12/2024

2147



11/12/2024

3148



11/12/2024

4149



11/12/2024

5150



11/12/2024

6151



11/12/2024

7152



11/12/2024

8153



11/12/2024

9154



November 19, 2024 Special Board Meeting 
Page 36, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 9:06 AM 
 

   

Review and Recommend Action on Change Order for Contract with 
Precision Task Group (PTG) / Workday 

Purpose To approve Change Order for Contract with Precision Task Group 
(PTG) / Workday.   
 

Justification To gain approval of a change order for the PTG training services to 
assist in developing training, job-aids, and video.  Actual payments 
will be based on deliverable materials. The total project change 
orders have reduced the budget by $4,041,033. 
 

Enclosed 
Documents 
 

Appendix A – Summary of Contract Change Order 
 

Funding No funds are required. Funds will be reallocated from unused 
advisory services. 
 

Staff Resource Mary Del Paz, Vice President for Finance and Administrative 
Services 
 

Additional  
Information 

The Finance, Audit, and Human Resources Committee did not meet 
in November 2024; therefore, this item is presented without a 
committee recommendation.  Administration recommends approval 
as presented. 
 

Recommendation It is recommended that the Board of Trustees of South Texas 
College approve and authorize the following Minute Order 
proposed for consideration: 
The Board of Trustees of South Texas College approves and 
authorizes a Change Order in the amount of $150,000 for the 
Contract with Precision Task Group (PTG) / Workday as presented. 
 
Approval Recommended: 
 
Dr. Ricardo J. Solis 
President 

 

  

155



November 19, 2024 Special Board Meeting 
Page 37, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 9:06 AM 
 

   

Appendix A 
 
 
 

Summary of Contract Change Order 
 

 

Date Description Original 
Budget 

Change 
Amount 

Revised 
Budget 

February 
2024 

Advisory Services 
Advisory Services Hours 
Reduction for Finance/HCM  

$5,420,800 ($813,925) $4,606,875 

May 2024 ERP Deployment 
Statement of Work Modification 
– Addition and Reduction of 
Services  

16,423,820 (105,321) 16,318,499 
 

May 2024 ERP Subscription 
State of Texas approved 
Colleges to use Commercial 
Cloud, reducing Subscription 
Fees 

14,896,565 (3,227,108) 11,669,457 

October 
2024 

ERP Deployment 
Statement of Work 
Modification – Addition of 
Services  

16,318,499 
 

105,321 16,423,820 

November 
2024 

Advisory Services 
Statement of Work 
Modification – Advisory 
Services 

4,606,875 (150,000) 4,456,875 

Advisory Services 
Statement of Work 
Modification – Training 
Services 

4,456,875 150,000 4,606,875 

Total Cost Reduction to Contract  ($4,041,033)  

 
  

156



November 19, 2024 Special Board Meeting 
Page 38, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 9:06 AM 
 

   

Review and Recommend Action on South Texas College Public 
Transportation Agency Safety Plan  

Purpose To approve the South Texas College Public Transportation Agency 
Safety Plan. 
 

Justification To improve public transportation safety to the highest practicable 
level in the State of Texas and comply with Federal Transit 
Administration (FTA) requirements.   
 
The Plan is reviewed and updated annually, as required, in order to 
be in compliance when operating the STC Jag Express. 
 
The Plan must be approved annually by the Board of Trustees to 
ensure that the necessary processes are in place to accomplish both 
enhanced safety at the local level and the goals of the National Safety 
Plan, the Agency Safety Plan, and the tenets of Safety Management 
System, including a Safety Management Policy and the processes for 
Safety Risk Management, Safety Assurance, and Safety Promotion, 
per 49 U.S.C. 5329.1. 
 

Enclosed 
Documents 
 

Appendix A – South Texas College Public Transportation Agency 
Safety Plan 

 
Funding No funds are required. 

 
Staff Resource Mary Del Paz, Vice President for Finance and Administrative 

Services 
Ruben Suarez, Chief of Police for the Department of Public Safety 
Alina O. Cantu, Public Safety & Transportation Services Manager 
 

Additional  
Information 

The Finance, Audit, and Human Resources Committee did not meet 
in November 2024; therefore, this item is presented without a 
committee recommendation.  Administration recommends approval 
as presented. 
 

Recommendation It is recommended that the Board of Trustees of South Texas 
College approve and authorize the following Minute Order 
proposed for consideration: 
The Board of Trustees of South Texas College approves and 
authorizes the South Texas College Public Transportation Agency 
Safety Plan. 

 
Approval Recommended: 
 
Dr. Ricardo J. Solis 
President 

 

157



South Texas College 
Agency Safety Plan 

1 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

South Texas College 
Public Transportation Agency Safety 

Plan 
Version 2 3 

Approved December, 6, 2023 November 26, 2024 

In compliance with 49 CFR Part 673 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 

158



2 

South Texas College 
Agency Safety Plan 

 

 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
1. Executive Summary............................................................................................................................. 4 

A. Plan Adoption – 673.11(a)(1) ..................................................................................................... 5 
B. Certification of Compliance – 673.13(a)(b) ................................................................................ 5 

2. Transit Agency Information ............................................................................................................... 6 
A. Authorities & Responsibilities – 673.23(d) ............................................................................... 8 

3. Safety Management  Policy ............................................................................................................... 9 
A. Policy Statement – 673.23(a) ................................................................................................. 9 

I. Employee Safety Reporting Program – 673.23(b) ........................................................... 9 
II. Communicating the Policy Throughout the Agency – 673.23(c) ................................... 10 

B. PTASP Development and Coordination with TxDOT – 673.11(d) ........................................ 10 
C. PTASP Annual Review – 673.11(a)(5) ................................................................................... 10 
D. PTASP Maintenance – 673.11(a)(2)(c) ................................................................................. 12 
E. PTASP Documentation and Recordkeeping – 673.31 .......................................................... 12 
F. Safety Performance Measures – 673.11(a)(3) ..................................................................... 12 
G. Safety Performance Target Coordination – 673.15(a)(b) ..................................................... 13 

4. Safety Management Systems .......................................................................................................... 13 
A.   Safety Risk Management – 673.25 ....................................................................................... 15 

I. Safety Hazard Identification – 673.25(b) ....................................................................... 15 

II. Safety Risk Assessment – 673.25(c) ............................................................................... 16 

III. Safety Risk Mitigation – 673.25(d) ................................................................................. 17 

B.   Safety Assurance – 673.27 (a) ............................................................................................... 18 
I. Safety Performance Monitoring and Measuring – 673.27 (b) ....................................... 18 

II. Monitoring Compliance and Sufficiency of Procedures – 673.27 (B)(1) ......................... 18 

III. Monitoring Operations – 673.27(B)(2) ........................................................................... 18 

IV. Safety Event Investigation – 673.27(B)(3) ..................................................................... 19 

V. Monitoring Internal Safety Reporting Programs – 673.27(B)(4) .................................... 20 

C.   Safety Promotion – 673.29 ................................................................................................... 20 
I. Safety Competencies and Training – 673.29(a) ............................................................. 20 

II. Safety Communication – 673.29(b) ............................................................................... 21 
5.     APPENDIX A: .................................................................................................................................. 22 

A.    Glossary of Terms ................................................................................................................ 22 
B.    Acronyms Used .................................................................................................................... 25 

                                    6.     Appendix B:  
                                     A.   Infectious Disease Exposure Response Plan 

159



3 

South Texas College 
Agency Safety Plan 

 

 

 
  7.     Appendix C:  

                                     A.   Board Minutes or Resolution 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 

160



4 

South Texas College 
Agency Safety Plan 

 

 

1. Executive Summary 
 

Moving Ahead for Progress in the 21st Century (MAP-21) granted the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) 
the authority to establish and enforce a comprehensive framework to oversee the safety of public 
transportation throughout the United States. MAP-21 expanded the regulatory authority of FTA to 
oversee safety, providing an opportunity to assist transit agencies in moving towards a more holistic, 
performance-based approach to Safety Management Systems (SMS). This authority was continued 
through the Fixing America’s Surface Transportation Act (FAST Act). 

In compliance with MAP-21 and the FAST Act, FTA promulgated a Public Transportation Safety Program 
on August 11, 2016 that adopted SMS as the foundation for developing and implementing a Safety 
Program. FTA is committed to developing, implementing, and consistently improving strategies and 
processes to ensure that transit achieves the highest practicable level of safety. SMS helps organizations 
improve upon their safety performance by supporting the institutionalization of beliefs, practices, and 
procedures for identifying, mitigating, and monitoring safety risks. 

There are several components of the national safety program, including the National Public 
Transportation Safety Plan (NSP), that FTA published to provide guidance on managing safety risks and 
safety hazards. One element of the NSP is the Transit Asset Management (TAM) Plan. Public 
transportation agencies implemented TAM plans across the industry in 2018. The subject of this document 
is the Public Transportation Agency Safety Plan (PTASP) rule, 49 CFR Part 673, and guidance provided by 
FTA. 

Safety is a core business function of all public transportation providers and should be systematically 
applied to every aspect of service delivery. At South Texas College (STC), all levels of management, 
administration and operations are responsible for safety. To improve public transportation safety to the 
highest practicable level in the State of Texas and comply with FTA requirements, the Texas Department 
of Transportation (TxDOT) has developed this Agency Safety Plan (ASP) in collaboration with STC. 

To ensure that the necessary processes are in place to accomplish both enhanced safety at the local level 
and the goals of the National Safety Plan, the STC Board of Trustees adopt this ASP and the tenets of SMS 
including a Safety Management Policy (SMP) and the processes for Safety Risk Management (SRM), Safety 
Assurance (SA), and Safety Promotion (SP), per 49 U.S.C. 5329.1 While safety has always been a primary 
function at STC, this document lays out a process to fully implement an SMS over the next several years 
that complies with the PTASP final rule. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

1 Federal Register, Vol. 81, No. 24 

161



5 

South Texas College 
Agency Safety Plan 

 

 

 

A. Plan Adoption – 673.11(a)(1) 
This Public Transit Agency Safety Plan is hereby adopted, certified as compliant, and signed by: 

 

 
 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                
Ruben Suarez, Chief of Police                                                                                                                           Date 

 

The main governing body of STC is the STC Board of Trustees. Approval of this plan by the STC Board of 
Trustees occurred on December 6, 2023 November 26, 2024 and is documented in Board Meeting 
Minutes (minute identifier) from the Board meeting. 

 
 

B. Certification of Compliance – 673.13(a)(b) 
Lower Rio Grande Valley Development Council – Valley Metro certified on November 15, 2023 that this 
Agency Safety Plan is in full compliance with 49 CFR Part 673 and has been adopted and will be 
implemented by STC as evidenced by the plan adoption signature and necessary Board of Trustees 
approvals under Section 1.A of this plan. 

162



6 

South Texas College 
Agency Safety Plan 

 

 

 
 

2. Transit Agency Information 
 

The South Texas College – Jag Express provides public transportation in McAllen, Texas.  The South Texas 
College Transportation Services main office is located at 2509 W. Pecan Blvd. McAllen, Texas 78501.   

South Texas College currently operates 2 fixed shuttle bus routes.  The fixed route service is operated five 
(5) days a week, Monday through Friday ranging from 7:00 am to 7:20 pm depending on the route.   

The Transportation Services for the College are managed by the South Texas College Department of Public 
Safety. No additional transit service is provided by South Texas College on behalf of another transit or entity 
at the time of the development of this plan. 

Table 1 contains agency information while an organizational chart for STC is provided in Figure 1. 

TABLE 1: AGENCY INFORMATION 
 

Information Type Information 

Full Transit Agency Name: South Texas College 
Transit Agency Address: 2509 Pecan Blvd, McAllen, TX 78501 
Name and Title of Accountable Executive 
673.23(d)(1) Ruben Suarez, Chief of Police 

Name of Chief Safety Officer or SMS Executive 
673.23(d)(2) Alina O. Cantu, Public Safety and Transportation 

Services Manager 
Key Staff Administrative staff and Drivers 
Mode(s) of Service Covered by This Plan 673.11(b)  Fixed route 
Mode(s) of Service Provided by the Transit Agency 
(Directly operated or contracted service) Fixed route – Directly Operated 

Number of Vehicles Operated Two 

163



7 

South Texas College 
Agency Safety Plan 

 

 

 
 

FIGURE 1: STC ORGANIZATIONAL CHART  

 

 
 
 

 

164



8 

South Texas College 
Agency Safety Plan 

 

 

 

A. Authorities & Responsibilities – 673.23(d) 
As stated in 49 CFR Part 673.23(d), STC is establishing the necessary authority, accountabilities, and 
responsibilities for the management of safety amongst the key individuals within the organization, as 
those individuals relate to the development and management of our SMS. In general, the following defines 
the authority and responsibilities associated with our organization. 

The Accountable Executive (Chief of Police) has ultimate responsibility for carrying out the SMS of our 
public transportation agency, and control or direction over the human and capital resources needed to 
develop and maintain both the ASP (in accordance with 49 U.S.C. 5329), and the agency’s TAM 
Plan, in accordance with 49 U.S.C. 5326. The Accountable Executive has authority and responsibility to 
address substandard performance in the STC SMS, per 673.23(d)(1). 

Agency leadership and executive management are those members of our agency leadership or executive 
management, other than the Accountable Executive, Chief Safety Officer (CSO)/SMS Executive, who have 
authority or responsibility for day-to-day implementation and operation of our agency’s SMS. 

The CSO (Public Safety & Transportation Services Manager) is an adequately trained individual who has the 
authority and responsibility as designated by the Accountable Executive for the day-to-day 
implementation and operation of the STC SMS. As such, the CSO is able to report directly to our transit 
agency’s Accountable Executive. 

Key staff are staff, groups of staff, or committees to support the Accountable Executive, CSO, or SMS 
Executive in developing, implementing, and operating our agency’s SMS. 

Front line employees perform the daily tasks and activities where hazards can be readily identified so the 
identified hazards can be addressed before the hazards become adverse events. These employees are 
critical to SMS success through each employee’s respective role in reporting safety hazards, which is 
where an effective SMS and a positive safety culture begins. 

165



9 

South Texas College 
Agency Safety Plan 

 

 

 
 

3. Safety Management Policy 
A. Policy Statement – 673.23(a) 

Safety is STC's first priority. STC is committed to implementing, developing, and improving strategies, 
management systems, and processes to ensure that all our activities uphold the highest level of safety 
performance and meet required safety standards. 

We will develop and embed a safety culture in all our activities that recognizes the importance and value 
of effective safety management and acknowledges at all times that safety is paramount. 

We will clearly explain for all staff their accountabilities and responsibilities for the development and 
operation of the Safety Management System. 

For passengers and employees, we will minimize the safety risk associated with transit service to as low 
as reasonably practicable and we will work to comply with and, wherever possible, exceed legislative and 
regulatory requirements and standards. We will also work to ensure that all employees are provided with 
adequate and appropriate safety information and training, are competent in safety matters, and are only 
allocated tasks commensurate with their skills. 

We have established Safety Performance Targets (SPT) to help us measure the overall effectiveness of our 
processes and ensure we meet our safety objectives.  

I. Employee Safety Reporting Program – 673.23(b) 

Frontline employees are a significant source of safety data because they are often the first to spot unsafe 
conditions. For this reason, the employee safety reporting program is a major tenet of the PTASP Rule. 
Under this rule, agencies must establish and implement a process that allows employees to report safety 
conditions directly to senior management; provides protections for employees who report safety 
conditions to senior management; and includes a description of employee behaviors that may result in 
disciplinary action. 

 
STC has an open-door policy that allows for communication of complaint, question, or suggestion for 
improvement. This process encourages the employee to first approach their respective immediate 
supervisor. If the matter cannot be resolved with the immediate supervisor, the employee can move up to 
the next management channel. The CSO may also receive employee complaints, questions, or safety 
improvement suggestions. Additionally, a Human Resources representative may be involved at any level.  

The employee safety reporting program will ensure that all employees are encouraged to report safety 
conditions directly to management or their direct supervisor for elevation to senior management. Any 
employee reports of safety concerns such as near misses, accidents, hazards, or any other event will not 
result in disciplinary action, unless the actions were a willful act and rule violations. Employees are 
protected from retaliation when reporting safety concerns in good faith. 

 

166



10 

South Texas College 
Agency Safety Plan 

 

 

II. Communicating the Policy Throughout the Agency – 673.23(c) 

STC is committed to ensuring the safety of our riders, personnel, and public. Part of that commitment 
is developing an SMS and agency wide safety culture that reduces agency risk to the lowest level possible. 
The first step in developing a full SMS and agency wide safety culture is communicating our SMP throughout 
our agency. 

The Safety Management Policy and safety objectives include posting the policy in prominent work locations 
for existing employees. In addition, the policy statement will become part of our agency’s safety 
communications efforts. The policy will be signed by the Accountable Executive so that all employees 
know that the policy is supported by management. 

B. PTASP Development and Coordination with TxDOT – 673.11(d) 

This PTASP was developed by TxDOT on behalf of South Texas College in accordance with all 
requirements stated in 49 CFR Part 673 applicable to a small public transportation provider. South Texas 
College will review the PTASP annually and will present for board approval.  

C. PTASP Annual Review – 673.11(a)(5) 

Per 49 U.S.C. 5329, this plan includes provisions for annual updates of the SMS. As part of STC’s ongoing 
commitment to developing a robust safety culture, STC, in cooperation with frontline employee 
representatives, will review the ASP and all supporting documentation annually. The review will be 
conducted before certifying to FTA that the ASP is compliant with 49 CFR Part 673 and accurately reflects 
the agency’s current implementation status. Certification will be accomplished through STC’s annual 
Certifications and Assurances.  

The annual review will include the ASP and supporting documents (Standard Operating Procedures [SOPs], 
Policies, Manuals, etc.) that are used to implement all the processes used to manage safety at STC. All 
changes will be noted (as discussed below) and the Accountable Executive will sign and date the title page 
of this document and provide documentation of approval by the STC Board of Trustees whether by 
signature or by reference to resolution. The annual ASP review follows the table below.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TABLE 2: ASP ANNUAL UPDATE TIMELINE 

167



11 

South Texas College 
Agency Safety Plan 

 

 

 
 

The implementation of SMS is an ongoing and iterative process, and as such, this PTASP is a working 
document. Therefore, a clear record of changes and adjustments is kept in the PTASP for the benefit of 
safety plan performance management and to comply with Federal statutes. 

 
The following table, Table 3, will be used to record final changes made to the ASP during the annual 
update. This table will be a permanent record of the changes to the ASP over time. 

TABLE 3: ASP RECORD OF CHANGES 
 
 

 

Document 
Version Section/Pages Changed Reason for Change Reviewer 

Name 
Date of 
Change 

Version 1 • Created the entire 
document 

• PTASP Initial Adoption and 
Initial Board Approval 

Alina O. 
Cantu 

11/29/2022 

Version 2 • Transit Agency 
Information on Page 6 

• PTASP Development 
and Coordination with 
TxDOT – 673.11(d) 
Page 9 

• Safety Performance 
Measures Page 11; 

• Safety Risk Mitigation 
Page 15 

• Added Appendix B 

• Organizational Chart 
updated 

• Edited since there was no 
collaboration with TxDot this 
year. 

• Updated Safety Performance 
Targets Updated due to total 
revenue miles increasing  

• Included Bipartisan 
Infrastructure Law changes 
5329(d)(1)(D); minimize 
exposure to infectious 
diseases 

• Created Infectious Disease 
Response Plan 

Alina O. 
Cantu 

12/6/2023 

Version 3 Safety Performance 
Measures Page 12 

• Updated Safety Performance 
Targets due to change in 
total revenue miles 

 

Alina O. 
Cantu 

11/26/2024 

Task Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept 
Review Agency Operations 
Review SMS Documentation 

Safety Policy; 
Risk Management; 
Safety Assurance; and 

• Safety Promotion. 
Review Previous Targets and Set or Continue Targets 
Report Targets to National Transit Database 
(NTD), TxDOT, and MPO 
Make Any Necessary Adjustments to PTASP 
Update Version No., Adopt & Certify 
Plan Compliance 

168



12 

South Texas College 
Agency Safety Plan 

 

 

 
 
 

D. PTASP Maintenance – 673.11(a)(2)(c) 

STC will follow the annual review process outlined above and adjust this ASP as necessary to accurately 
reflect current implementation status. This plan will document the processes and activities related to SMS 
implementation as required under 49 CFR Part 673 Subpart C and will make necessary updates to this ASP 
as STC continues to develop and refine our SMS implementation. 

E. PTASP Documentation and Recordkeeping – 673.31 

At all times, STC will maintain documents that set forth our ASP, including those documents related to the 
implementation of STC’s SMS and those documents related to the results from SMS processes and 
activities. STC will also maintain documents that are included in whole, or by reference, that describe the 
programs, policies, and procedures that our agency uses to carry out our ASP and all iterations of those 
documents. These documents will be made available upon request to the FTA, other Federal entities, or 
TxDOT. STC will maintain these documents for a minimum of three years after the documents are created.  

 

F. Safety Performance Measures – 673.11(a)(3) 

The PTASP Final Rule, 49 CFR Part 673.11(a)(3), requires that all public transportation providers must 
develop an ASP to include Safety Performance Targets based on the safety performance measures 
established under the National Safety Plan. The safety performance measures outlined in the National 
Safety Plan were developed to ensure that the measures can be applied to all modes of public 
transportation and are based on data currently being submitted to the NTD. The safety performance 
measures included in the National Safety Plan are fatalities, injuries, safety events, and system reliability 
(State of Good Repair as developed and tracked in the TAM Plan). 

There are seven (7) SPTs that must be included in each ASP that are based on the four (4) performance 
measures in the National Safety Plan. These SPTs are presented in terms of total numbers reported and 
rate per Vehicle Revenue Mile (VRM). Each of the seven (7) is required to be reported by mode as 
presented in Table 4. Table 5 presents baseline numbers for each of the performance measures. 

TABLE 4: National Safety Plan SAFETY PERFORMANCE MEASURES 
 

Safety Performance Measure SPT SPT 
Fatalities Total Number Reported Rate Per Total VRM 
Injuries Total Number Reported Rate Per Total VRM 
Safety Events (Accident, Incident, Occurrence) Total Number Reported Rate Per Total VRM 
System Reliability Mean distance between major mechanical failure 

 

TABLE 5: SAFETY PERFORMANCE Targets 
 

169



13 

South Texas College 
Agency Safety Plan 

 

 

 
Mode 

 
Fatalities 

 
Rate of 

Fatalities* 

 
Injuries 

 
Rate of 
Injuries* 

 
Safety 
Events 

Rate of 
Safety 
Events* 

Mean Distance 
Between Major 

Mechanical 
Failure 

Fixed Route (Bus) 0 0% 1 0.002% 
0.0026% 

3 0.0064% 
0.0078% 

9,349 9,600 

*rate = total number for the year/total revenue vehicle miles traveled 

As part of the annual review of the ASP, STC will reevaluate our safety performance targets and determine 
if they need to be refined.  

G. Safety Performance Target Coordination – 673.15(a)(b) 

STC will make our safety performance targets available to TxDOT and the Rio Grande Valley MPO to 
aid in those agencies’ respective regional and long-range planning processes. To the maximum extent 
practicable, STC will coordinate with TxDOT and the MPO in the selection of safety performance targets 
during the annual PTASP update process. 

4. Safety Management System 
 

As previously noted, FTA has adopted SMS as the basis for improving safety across the public 
transportation industry. In compliance with the National Safety Program, National Public Transportation 
Safety Plan, and 49 CFR Part 673, STC is adopting SMS as the basis for directing and managing safety and 
risk at our agency. All levels of management and employees are accountable for appropriately 
identifying and effectively managing risk in all activities and operations in order to deliver improvements 
in safety and reduce risk to the lowest practical level during service delivery. 

SMS is comprised of four basic components – Safety Management Policy, Safety Risk Management, Safety 
Assurance, and Safety Promotion. The Safety Management Policy and Safety Promotion are the enablers 
that provide structure and supporting activities that make Safety Risk Management and Safety Assurance 
possible and sustainable. The Safety Risk Management and Safety Assurance are the activities for 
effectively managing safety as presented in Figure 2. 

FIGURE 2: SAFETY MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS 

170



14 

South Texas College 
Agency Safety Plan 

 

 

 

171



15 

South Texas College 
Agency Safety Plan 

 

 

 
 

A. Safety Risk Management – 673.25 
By adopting this ASP, STC is establishing the Safety Risk Management (SRM) process presented in Figure 3 
for identifying hazards and analyzing, assessing and mitigating safety risk in compliance with the 
requirements of 49 CFR Part 673.25. 

FIGURE 3: SAFETY RISK MANAGEMENT PROCESS 

 

 
I. Safety Hazard Identification – 673.25(b) 
The STC safety risk management process is a forward-looking effort to identify safety hazards that could 
potentially result in negative safety outcomes. A hazard is any real or potential condition that can cause 
injury, illness, or death; damage to or loss of the facilities, equipment, rolling stock, or infra-structure of a 
public transportation system; or damage to the environment. STC uses a variety of mechanisms for 
identifying and documenting hazards, namely: 

• STC ensures personnel can identify hazards and that each employee clearly understands that 
the employee has a responsibility to immediately report any safety hazards identified.  

• Employee hazard training coupled with the employee safety report program ensures that STC has 
information for hazard identification. 

• Upon receiving notification of a potential hazard, the CSO will enter the hazard into the Hazard 
Log. Next, the CSO will conduct the risk assessment by utilizing the Risk Matrix presented in 
figure 5 to determine the frequency and severity of hazard.  

• Staff are responsible for performing and documenting regular safety assessments, which include 
reporting and recommending methods to reduce identified hazards. 

• If a hazard is such that an employee would be reluctant to report the information an alternative, 
anonymous reporting mechanisms are available through an anonymous suggestion box. 

• To increase safety knowledge, personnel are also encouraged to participate in professional 
development activities and training as a source of expertise and information on lessons learned 
and best practices in hazard identification. 

• Other sources for hazard identification may include: 
o Employee safety reporting program 
o Inspections of personnel job performance, vehicles, facilities and other data 
o Investigations of safety events 

Safety Hazard 
Identification 

Safety Risk 
Assessment 

Safety Risk 
Mitigation 

172



16 

South Texas College 
Agency Safety Plan 

 

 

o Safety trend analysis on data currently collected 
o Training and evaluation records 
o Internal safety audits 
o External sources of hazard information could include: 

 FTA and other federal or state authorities 
 Reports from the public 
 Safety bulletins from manufacturers or industry associations 

 

FIGURE 4: Sample Hazard Log 

 
 

II. Safety Risk Assessment – 673.25(c) 
As part of the new SRM process, STC has developed methods to assess the likelihood and severity of the 
consequences of identified hazards, and prioritizes the hazards based on the safety risk process. 

 
Safety risk is based on an assessment of the likelihood of a potential consequence and the potential 
severity of the consequences in terms of resulting harm or damage. The risk assessment also considers 
any previous mitigation efforts and the effectiveness of those efforts. As stated above, the CSO will log 
hazards utilizing a Hazard Log that resembles Figure 4. The CSO will evaluate the hazard for severity, 
probability and level of risk utilizing the criteria in the Tables listed in figure 6.   

173



17 

South Texas College 
Agency Safety Plan 

 

 

 
 

FIGURE 5: SAFETY RISK ASSESSMENT MATRIX 
 

 
The Risk Assessment Matrix is an important tool. If a risk is assessed and falls within one of the red zones, 
the risk is determined to be unacceptable under existing circumstances. This determination means that 
management must take action to mitigate the situation 

If the risk is assessed and falls within one of the yellow zones, the risk is determined to be acceptable, 
but monitoring is necessary. If the risk falls within one of the green zones, the risk is acceptable under the 
existing circumstances. 

Once a hazard’s likelihood and severity have been assessed, the information is used to move to the next 
step, which is hazard mitigation. 

 
III. Safety Risk Mitigation – 673.25(d) 
Upon completion of the risk assessment, the CSO will identify mitigations or strategies necessary to reduce 
the likelihood and/or severity of the consequences. The goal of this step is to avoid or eliminate the 
hazard or, when elimination is not likely or feasible, to reduce the assessed risk rating to an acceptable 
level. To accomplish this objective, the CSO, works with subject matter experts from respective 
department or section to which the hazard applies to determine a mitigation strategy.  

 

Once a mitigation strategy is selected and adopted, the strategy is assigned to an appropriate staff 
member, team or department for implementation. The assigned personnel and the personnel’s specific 
responsibilities are entered into the Hazard Log (figure 4). Among the responsibilities of the staff 
member, department or team i s  to c o m m u n i c a t e  the mitigation effort to the CSO, who will 
document whether the mitigation was carried out as designed and whether the intended safety objectives 
were achieved.  

The Bipartisan Infrastructure Law requires transit agencies to address strategies to minimize 
exposure to infectious diseases, consistent with Centers for Disease Control and Prevention 
or State health authority guidelines. STC has strategies in place to minimize exposure to 

174



18 

South Texas College 
Agency Safety Plan 

 

 

infectious disease that are consistent with Centers for Disease Control (CDC), state/county 
orders, and public health agencies, STC Transportation Services developed an Infectious 
Disease Exposure Response Plan which is used to mitigate risk. 

B. Safety Assurance – 673.27 (a) 
Safety Assurance means processes within the STC SMS that function to ensure a) the implementation and 
effectiveness of safety risk mitigation, and b) STC meets or exceeds our safety objectives through the 
collection, measurement, analysis and assessment of information. 

SA helps to ensure early identification of potential safety issues. SA also ensures that safeguards are in 
place and are effective in meeting STC’s critical safety objectives and contribute towards SPTs. 

 
I. Safety Performance Monitoring and Measuring – 673.27 (b) 

 

As the first step in the STC Safety Assurance program, STC collects and monitors data on safety 
performance indicators through a variety of mechanisms described in the following sections. Safety 
performance indicators can provide early warning signs about safety risks. STC currently relies primarily 
on lagging indicators representing negative safety outcomes that should be avoided or mitigated in 
the future. However, initiatives are underway to adopt a more robust set of leading indicators that 
monitor conditions that are likely to contribute to negative outcomes in the future. In addition to the day-
to-day monitoring and investigation procedures detailed below, STC will review and document the 
safety performance monitoring and measuring processes as part of the annual update of this ASP. 
 
II. Monitoring Compliance and Sufficiency of Procedures – 673.27 (B)(1) 

STC monitors our system for personnel compliance with operations and maintenance procedures and 
monitors these procedures for sufficiency in meeting safety objectives.  

Supervisors monitor employee compliance with STC SOPs through direct observation and review of 
information from internal reporting systems such as pre-trip inspection forms and employee safety 
reporting. 

STC addresses non-compliance with standard procedures for operations and maintenance activities 
through a variety of actions, including revision to training materials and delivery of employee and 
supervisor training if the non-compliance is systemic. If the non-compliance is situational, then activities 
may include supplemental individualized training, coaching, and heightened management oversight, 
among other remedies. 

Sometimes personnel are fully complying with the procedures, but the operations and maintenance 
procedures are inadequate and pose the risk of negative safety outcomes. In this case, the cognizant 
person submits the deficiency or description of the inadequate procedures to the SRM process. Through 
the SRM process, the CSO will then evaluate and analyze the potential organizational hazard and assign 
the identified hazard for mitigation and resolution, as appropriate. The CSO will also conduct periodic self-
evaluation and mitigation of any identified deficiencies in the SRM process itself. 
 
III. Monitoring Operations – 673.27(B)(2) 

175



19 

South Texas College 
Agency Safety Plan 

 

 

Department Heads are required to monitor investigation reports of safety events and SRM resolution 
reports to monitor the department’s operations to identify any safety risk mitigations that may be 
ineffective, inappropriate, or not implemented as intended. If it is determined that the safety risk 
mitigation did not bring the risk to an acceptable level or otherwise failed to meet safety objectives, then 
the supervisor resubmits the safety risk/hazard to the SRM process. The CSO will work with the supervisor 
and subject matter experts to reanalyze the hazard and consequences and identify additional mitigation 
or alternative approaches to implementing the mitigation. 
 
IV. Safety Event Investigation – 673.27(B)(3) 

STC currently conducts investigations of safety events. From a SA perspective, the objective of the 
investigation is to identify causal factors of the event and to identify actionable strategies that STC can 
employ to address any identifiable organizational, technical or environmental hazard at the root cause of 
the safety event. 

Safety Event Investigations that seek to identify and document the root cause of an accident or other 
safety event are a critical component of the SA process because they are a primary resource for the 
collection, measurement, analysis and assessment of information. STC gathers various information to 
help in identifying and documenting root causes of accidents and incidents, including but not limited to: 

1. The purpose of these investigations is to: 
a. Identify probable causes and contributing factors. 
b. Verify identified hazards. 
c. Implement remedies to eliminate, reduce or control recurrences of a similar accident. 
d. Provide a means of checking the adequacy of past training. 
e. Make personnel aware of unsafe acts and conditions. 

2. Investigations:  
a. STC Police, Local Police and the CSO will conduct investigations for all minor and major 

accidents or incidents.  
3. The following are necessary for effective investigations: 

a. Determine field personnel responsibilities for investigation. 
b. Utilize the Supervisor's Accident Investigation Procedures. 
c. Integrate Claims' findings into investigations. 
d. Ensure STC Police and Risk Management are notified of minor and major accidents, on both 

an immediate and routine basis.   
e. Develop criteria for investigations. 
f. Prepare procedures, checklists and formats for conducting investigations. 
g. Adopt policies for major accident investigation report publication and follow up systems 

for compliance with report recommendations. In addition, the C S O  will establish 
procedures for coordinating investigations by outside agencies, or peer reviews. 

 
 

176



20 

South Texas College 
Agency Safety Plan 

 

 

V. Monitoring Internal Safety Reporting Programs – 673.27(B)(4) 

As a primary part of the internal safety reporting program, STC monitors information reported through the 
ESRP. When a report originating through the complaint process documents a safety hazard, the 
supervisor submits the hazards identified through the internal reporting process, including previous 
mitigation in place at the time of the safety event. The supervisor submits the hazard report to the SRM 
process to be analyzed, evaluated, and if appropriate, assigned for mitigation/resolution. 

 

C. Safety Promotion – 673.29 
Management support is essential to developing and implementing SMS. SP includes all aspects of how, 
why, when and to whom management communicates safety related topics. SP also includes when and 
how training is provided. The following sections outline both the safety competencies and training that 
STC will implement and how safety related information will be communicated. 

I. Safety Competencies and Training – 673.29(a) 

STC provides comprehensive training to all employees regarding each employee’s job duties and 
general responsibilities. This training includes safety responsibilities related to the employee’s position. 
In addition, regular driver safety meetings are held to ensure that safety related information is relayed to 
the key members of our agency’s safety processes. 

As part of SMS implementation, STC conducts the following activities: 

• Conduct a thorough review of all current general staff categories (administrative, driver, 
supervisor, mechanic, maintenance, etc.) and the respective staff safety related responsibilities. 

• Assess the training requirements spelled out in 49 CFR Part 672 and the various courses required 
for different positions. (STC is not subject to the requirements under 49 CFR Part 672 but will 
review the training requirements to understand what training is being required of other larger 
agencies in the event these trainings might be useful). 

• Assess the training material available on the FTA PTASP Technical Assistance Center website. 
• Review training material available from industry sources such as the Community Transportation 

Association of America and the American Public Transportation Association websites. 
• Identify trainings required to meet the safety related activities for each general staff category. 
• Develop expectations for ongoing safety training and safety meeting attendance. 
• Develop a training matrix to track progress on individuals and groups within the organization. 
• Adjust job notices associated with general staff categories to ensure that new personnel 

understand the safety related competencies and training needs and the safety related 
responsibilities of the job. 

• Include refresher training in all trainings and apply it to agency personnel and contractors. 
 

 

177



21 

South Texas College 
Agency Safety Plan 

 

 

II. Safety Communication – 673.29(b) 
 

STC regularly communicates safety and safety performance information throughout our agency’s 
organization that, at a minimum, conveys information on hazards and safety risks relevant to employees’ 
roles and responsibilities and informs employees of safety actions taken in response to reports submitted 
through the ESRP or other means. 

STC will ensure that any safety related information is shared with STC staff. STC also posts safety related 
and other pertinent information in a common room for all employees. 

STC will begin systematically collecting, cataloging, and, where appropriate, analyzing and reporting 
safety and performance information to all staff. To determine what information should be reported, how 
the information should be reported and to whom, STC will answer the following questions: 

• What information does this individual need to do their job? 
• How can we ensure the individual understands what is communicated? 
• How can we ensure the individual understands what action must be taken as a result of the 

information? 
• How can we ensure the information is accurate and kept up-to-date? 
• Are there any privacy or security concerns to consider when sharing information? If so, what 

should we do to address these concerns? 

In addition, STC will review its current communications strategies and determine whether others are 
needed.  

178



22 

South Texas College 
Agency Safety Plan 

 

 

 

5. APPENDIX A:  
A. Glossary of Terms 

Accident: means an event that involves any of the following: a loss of life; a report of a serious injury to a 
person; a collision of transit vehicles; an evacuation for life safety reasons; at any location, at any time, 
whatever the cause. 

Accountable Executive (typically the highest executive in the agency): means a single, identifiable person 
who has ultimate responsibility for carrying out the SMS of a public transportation agency, and control or 
direction over the human and capital resources needed to develop and maintain both the agency’s PTASP, 
in accordance with 49 U.S.C., and the agency’s TAM Plan in accordance with 49 U.S.C. 5326. 

Agency Leadership and Executive Management: Those members of agency leadership or executive 
management (other than an Accountable Executive, CSO, or SMS Executive) who have authorities or 
responsibilities for day-to-day implementation and operation of an agency’s SMS. 

Chief Safety Officer (CSO): means an adequately trained individual who has responsibility for safety and 
reports directly to a transit agency’s chief executive officer, general manager, president, or equivalent 
officer. A CSO may not serve in other operational or maintenance capacity, unless the CSO is employed 
by a transit agency that is a small public transportation provider as defined in this part, or a public 
transportation provider that does not operate a rail fixed guideway public transportation system. 

Corrective Maintenance: Specific, unscheduled maintenance typically performed to identify, isolate, and 
rectify a condition or fault so that the failed asset or asset component can be restored to a safe operational 
condition within the tolerances or limits established for in-service operations. 

Equivalent Authority: means an entity that carries out duties similar to that of a Board of Directors, for a 
recipient or subrecipient of FTA funds under 49 U.S.C. Chapter 53, including sufficient authority to review 
and approve a recipient or subrecipient’s PTASP. 

Event: means an accident, incident, or occurrence. 

Federal Transit Administration (FTA): means the Federal Transit Administration, an operating 
administration within the United States Department of Transportation. 

Hazard: means any real or potential condition that can cause injury, illness, or death; damage to or loss 
of the facilities, equipment, rolling stock, or infrastructure of a public transportation system; or damage 
to the environment. 

Incident: means an event that involves any of the following: a personal injury that is not a serious injury; 
one or more injuries requiring medical transport; or damage to facilities, equipment, rolling stock, or 
infrastructure that disrupts the operations of a transit agency. 

Investigation: means the process of determining the causal and contributing factors of an accident, 
incident, or hazard, for the purpose of preventing recurrence and mitigating risk. 

179



23 

South Texas College 
Agency Safety Plan 

 

 

Key staff: means a group of staff or committees to support the Accountable Executive, CSO, or SMS 
Executive in developing, implementing, and operating the agency’s SMS. 

Major Mechanical Failures: means failures caused by vehicle malfunctions or subpar vehicle condition 
which requires that the vehicle be pulled from service. 

National Public Transportation Safety Plan (NSP): means the plan to improve the safety of all public 
transportation systems that receive Federal financial assistance under 49 U.S.C. Chapter 53. 

Occurrence: means an event without any personal injury in which any damage to facilities, equipment, 
rolling stock, or infrastructure does not disrupt the operations of a transit agency. 

Operator of a Public Transportation System: means a provider of public transportation as defined under 
49 U.S.C. 5302(14). 

Passenger: means a person, other than an operator, who is on board, boarding, or alighting from a vehicle 
on a public transportation system for the purpose of travel. 

Performance Measure: means an expression based on a quantifiable indicator of performance or 
condition that is used to establish targets and to assess progress toward meeting the established targets. 

Performance Target: means a quantifiable level of performance or condition, expressed as a value for the 
measure, to be achieved within a time period required by the FTA. 

Preventative Maintenance:  means regular, scheduled, and/or recurring maintenance of assets 
(equipment and facilities) as required by manufacturer or vendor requirements, typically for the purpose 
of maintaining assets in satisfactory operating condition. Preventative maintenance is conducted by 
providing for systematic inspection, detection, and correction of anticipated failures either before they 
occur or before they develop into major defects. Preventative maintenance is maintenance, including 
tests, measurements, adjustments, and parts replacement, performed specifically to prevent faults from 
occurring. The primary goal of preventative maintenance is to avoid or mitigate the consequences of 
failure of equipment. 

Public Transportation Agency Safety Plan (PTASP): means the documented comprehensive agency safety 
plan for a transit agency that is required by 49 U.S.C. 5329 and this part. 

Risk: means the composite of predicted severity and likelihood of the potential effect of a hazard. 

Risk Mitigation: means a method or methods to eliminate or reduce the effects of hazards. 

Road Calls: means specific, unscheduled maintenance requiring either the emergency repair or service of 
a piece of equipment in the field or the towing of the unit to the garage or shop. 

Safety Assurance (SA): means the process within a transit agency’s SMS that functions to ensure the 
implementation and effectiveness of safety risk mitigation and ensures that the transit agency meets or 
exceeds its safety objectives through the collection, analysis, and assessment of information. 

Safety Management Policy (SMP): means a transit agency’s documented commitment to safety, which 
defines the transit agency’s safety objectives and the accountabilities and responsibilities of the agency’s 

180



24 

South Texas College 
Agency Safety Plan 

 

 

employees regarding safety. 

Safety Management System (SMS): means the formal, top-down, data-driven, organization-wide 
approach to managing safety risk and assuring the effectiveness of a transit agency’s safety risk mitigation. 
SMS includes systematic procedures, practices, and policies for managing risks and hazards. 

Safety Management System (SMS) Executive: means a CSO or an equivalent. 

Safety Objective: means a general goal or desired outcome related to safety. 

Safety Performance: means an organization’s safety effectiveness and efficiency, as defined by safety 
performance indicators and targets, measured against the organization's safety objectives. 

Safety Performance Indicator: means a data-driven, quantifiable parameter used for monitoring and 
assessing safety performance. 

Safety Performance Measure: means an expression based on a quantifiable indicator of performance or 
condition that is used to establish targets and to assess progress toward meeting the established targets. 

Safety Performance Monitoring: means activities aimed at the quantification of an organization’s safety 
effectiveness and efficiency during service delivery operations, through a combination of safety 
performance indicators and SPTs. 

Safety Performance Target (SPT): means a quantifiable level of performance or condition, expressed as a 
value for a given performance measure, achieved over a specified timeframe related to safety management 
activities. 

Safety Promotion (SP): means a combination of training and communication of safety information to 
support SMS as applied to the transit agency’s public transportation system. 

Safety Risk: means the assessed probability and severity of the potential consequence(s) of a hazard, 
using as reference the worst foreseeable, but credible, outcome. 

Safety Risk Assessment: means the formal activity whereby a transit agency determines SRM priorities 
by establishing the significance or value of its safety risks. 

Safety Risk Management (SRM): means a process within a transit agency’s Safety Plan for identifying 
hazards, assessing the hazards, and mitigating safety risk. 

Safety Risk Mitigation: means the activities whereby a public transportation agency controls the 
probability or severity of the potential consequences of hazards. 

Safety Risk Probability: means the likelihood that a consequence might occur, taking as reference the 
worst foreseeable, but credible, condition. 

Safety Risk Severity: means the anticipated effects of a consequence, should the consequence 
materialize, taking as reference the worst foreseeable, but credible, condition. 

Serious Injury: means any injury which: 

• Requires hospitalization for more than 48 hours, commencing within seven days from the date 

181



25 

South Texas College 
Agency Safety Plan 

 

 

that the injury was received; 
• Results in a fracture of any bone (except simple fractures of fingers, toes, or nose); 
• Causes severe hemorrhages, nerve, muscle, or tendon damage; 
• Involves any internal organ; or 
• Involves second- or third-degree burns, or any burns affecting more than 5 percent of the body 

surface. 

Small Public Transportation Provider: means a recipient or subrecipient of Federal financial assistance 
under 49 U.S.C. 5307 that has one hundred (100) or fewer vehicles in peak revenue service and does not 
operate a rail fixed guideway public transportation system. 

State: means a State of the United States, the District of Columbia, or the Territories of Puerto Rico, the 
Northern Mariana Islands, Guam, American Samoa, and the Virgin Islands. 

State of Good Repair: means the condition in which a capital asset is able to operate at a full level of 
performance. 

 
State Safety Oversight Agency: means an agency established by a State that meets the requirements and 
performs the functions specified by 49 U.S.C. 5329 and the regulations set forth in 49 CFR part 674. 

Transit Agency: means an operator of a public transportation system. 

Transit Asset Management (TAM) Plan: means the strategic and systematic practice of procuring, 
operating, inspecting, maintaining, rehabilitating, and replacing transit capital assets to manage their 
performance, risks, and costs over their life cycles, for the purpose of providing safe, cost-effective, and 
reliable public transportation, as required by 49 U.S.C. 5326 and 49 CFR part 625. 

Vehicle Revenue Miles (VRM): means the miles that vehicles are scheduled to or actually travel while in 
revenue service. Vehicle revenue miles include layover/recovery time and exclude deadhead; operator 
training; vehicle maintenance testing; and school bus and charter services. 

B. Acronyms Used 

ADA: Americans with Disabilities Act 

ASP: Agency Safety Plan 

CAF: Customer Assistance Form 

STC: South Texas College 

ESRP: Employee Safety Reporting Program 

FAST Act: Fixing America’s Surface Transportation Act 

MAP-21: Moving Ahead for Progress in the 21st Century Act 

MOU: Memorandum of Understanding 

182



26 

South Texas College 
Agency Safety Plan 

 

 

MPO: Metropolitan Planning Organization 

NTD: National Transit Database 

SOP: Standard Operating Procedure 

SSPP: System Safety Program Plan 

TxDOT: Texas Department of Transportation 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

183



6. APPENDIX B:  

A.  Infectious Disease Exposure Response Plan  

1. Objectives 
• Provide guidance on how to respond during each Pandemic Alert Phase 
• Inform and advise the employees and community as needed 
• Take reasonable measures to ensure the safety of the employees and patrons 

2. Scope  
Once an outbreak reaches pandemic proportions, the Response Plan will need to be used in conjunction 
with the College’s Multi-Hazard Emergency Operations Plan to provide comprehensive response planning. 
It is intended to cover extraordinary aspects specific to a contagious virus that are not normally covered 
in the Multi-Hazard Emergency Operations Plan. Consequently, if a contagious virus spreads to the degree 
that it limits or restricts a transit agency’s availability of personnel or cripples its ability to deliver normal 
service the Response Plan will be triggered. College notifications, disinfection, sterilization and isolation 
protocols will be executed as recommended by local and state public health authorities. CDC recommends 
to have everyday strategies to prevent the spread of infections as part of your normal operations, such as 
promoting vaccination, staying home when sick, optimizing ventilation, washing hands frequently, and 
following all rules on regular and consistent cleaning, sanitizing, and disinfecting. 

3. Approval of an Infectious Disease Exposure Response Plan  
The Chief Safety Officer or Accountable Executive of the transit agency shall conduct periodic reviews and 
revisions to the Response Plan.  

4. Elements of the Response Plan  
The Response Plan covers specific elements that include the following:   

• Pandemic Alert Phases   
• Information and Education Program (Internal and External) 
• Disinfection Program   
• Sanitary Aids 
• Vaccine/Antiviral medications   
• Self-Screening 
• Service Reduction, Shutdown and Restoration   

A. Pandemic Alert Phases  
Planning and response to a contagious virus will depend on the risk involved. Unlike a catastrophic event 
such as an earthquake, a contagious virus likely will have various phases in the lifecycle of its spread. Each 
phase will need a different response strategy.  

The Response Plan shall be applicable to all contagious viruses however it is based on the phases of a 
pandemic influenza as defined by the World Health Organization (WHO). These WHO phases have been 

184



universally accepted by most health departments and other government and private organizations and 
shall be adopted and adapted by the transit agency. 

Table 1 

World Health Organization Phases 
Inter – Pandemic Period 
Phase 1: Low Risk of Human Cases No new influenza virus subtypes have been detected in humans. An 

influenza virus subtype that has caused human infection may be 
present in animals. If present in animals, the risk of human infection or 
diseases is considered low. 

Phase 2: Higher Risk of Human 
Cases 

No new influenza virus subtypes have been detected in humans. 
However, a circulating animal influenza virus subtype poses a 
substantial risk to humans. 

Pandemic Alert Period 
Phase 3: No or very limited  
human - to – human transmission 

Human infection(s) with a new subtype, but no human - to -  human 
spread, except for rare close – contact instances. 

Phase 4: Evidence of increased 
human – to – human transmission 

Small cluster (s) with limited human - to - human transmission but 
spread is highly localized, suggesting that the virus is not well adapted 
to humans. 
 

Phase 5: Evidence of significant 
human – to – human transmission 

Larger cluster(s) but human - to - human spread still localized, 
suggesting that the virus is becoming increasingly better adapted to 
humans, but may not yet be fully transmissible (substantial pandemic 
risk) 
 

Pandemic Period 
Phase 6: Efficient and sustained 
human – to – human transmission 

Increased and sustained transmission in general population. 

 

B. Information and Education Program  
Communications, in the form of information and educational programs, must be a major part of any 
Response Plan. Communications shall be divided into three distinct areas: communications with 
emergency management; communications to employees (internal) and communications to the riding 
public (external).  

Communications need to be coordinated with local and state emergency management so that the 
message stays consistent. Information and educational training shall be consistent with that 
recommended by local and state health departments, and transit agency staff shall partner with those 
agencies to ensure that accurate and appropriate information is being released.  

 

 

 

185



Table 2 

Internal Communication 

Alert 
Phase 

Actions Responsibility 

1 
 

• Develop materials on employee personal 
hygiene and precautions against contagious 
viruses. 

• Distribute personal hygiene information to 
employees.  

• Publish information on website. 
• Disseminate materials developed through 

emails, the district website, College Emergency 
Notification System and other forms of 
outreach. 

• Partner with public health department, to 
acquire timely information, and coordinate 
appropriate new releases to employees and 
riding public. 

• Develop training video and poster(s) on hygiene 
and precautionary measures against viruses 
both at work and in the home.  

• Commence disseminating the video and 
poster(s) to district departments. 

• Place pertinent information on the Transit 
website. 

CDC, Federal Transit 
Administration, College Public 
Relations, Finance and 
Administrative Services Safety 
Team, Transportation Manager 

2 • Develop and deliver a more formal awareness 
program that includes personal visits to 
employee work location to disseminate facts 
and to address concerns.  
 

CDC, Federal Transit 
Administration, College Public 
Relations, Finance and 
Administrative Services Safety 
Team, Transportation Manager 

3 - 6 • Continue to update employees with status 
reports of the virus conditions, using all 
appropriate means of distribution. 

CDC, Federal Transit 
Administration, College Public 
Relations, Finance and 
Administrative Services Safety 
Team, Transportation Manager 

 

 

 

 

 

 

186



Table 3 

External Communication  

Alert 
Phase 

Actions Responsibility 

1 
 

• In accordance with information provided by the 
health Authority put out passenger’s bulletins in 
the form of a fact sheet on the risks involved. 

• Prepare outreach/education material in the 
form of news releases, patron bulletins and 
website articles that provide guidance on 
personal hygiene, and keep patrons informed on 
the risks involved.  

• Commence disseminating information prepared. 
• Partner with public health departments to 

acquire timely information, and to coordinate 
appropriate news releases to employees and 
riding public. 

CDC, Federal Transit 
Administration, College Public 
Relations, Finance and 
Administrative Services Safety 
Team, Transportation Manager 
 

2 - 6 • Continue to disseminate timely information to 
patrons. Start utilizing station signage and on-
vehicle posters to further the promotion of 
information.  
 

 Transportation Manager, 
Transportation Staff 

 

C. Disinfection Program  
Various contagious viruses can survive on surface materials for several days or longer. Consequently, a 
transit agency shall stay up to date with local and/or state health authority’s recommendations to 
determine a practical response.   

Table 4 

Alert 
Phase 

Action Responsibility  

1 
 

• Commence planning for enhanced cleanliness of 
the system’s buses, particularly hand-contact 
surfaces. The plan should assess in-house 
resources and explore contract services that are 
geared to the different alert phases. An 
estimate of the costs involved should be part of 
the planning process 

• Commence the initiative to provide cleaner 
buses so that patrons are comfortable when 
riding the buses 

Transportation Manager, 
Transportation Staff  

2 - 6 • Commence and continue program of 
disinfecting hand-contact surfaces on buses 
several times throughout each day.  Using the 

Transportation Manager, 
Transportation Staff  

187



Daily Disinfectant Checklist to clean the buses 
and using the Disinfectant Electrostatic sprayer 
daily. 

 

D. Sanitary Aids 
Sanitary aids can assist significantly in limiting the spread of a virus. Additionally, sanitary aids can 
reassure transit employees and provide them with an added layer of protection in performing their daily 
functions.  

Table 5 

Alert 
Phase 

Action Responsibility  

1 • Establish funding authorization for pending 
sanitary aid expenses related to the pandemic.  

• Procure a supply of face masks and 
disinfectant gel for use by employees. 

• Work with suppliers to ensure a steady flow of 
these aids for employees, given a progression 
of the virus to higher alert levels. Estimate 
supplies needed for each alert phase. 

• With reference to alert Phase 4, estimate 
disinfectant gel needed for patrons, and work 
with suppliers to ensure a steady flow of this 
item when the time arrives.  

 

Finance and Administrative 
Services Safety Team, College 
Maintenance Department, 
Transportation Manager 

2 - 6 • Disseminate disinfectant gels for employee 
use. 

Finance and Administrative 
Services Safety Team, College 

Maintenance Department, 
Transportation Manager 

 
      4 • Require employees or patrons to wear 

protective masks if required by Presidential 
Executive Order or the Federal Transit 
Administration.  

• Provide disinfectant gels for use by patrons in 
each bus. 

Transportation Manager, 
Transportation Staff 

5 • Provide protective masks to office employees 
for use within office environments. 

• Promote social distancing (avoid face contact 
meetings, explore telecommuting). 

Finance and Administrative 
Services Safety Team, College 

Maintenance Department, 
Transportation Manager 

 

188



E. Vaccine/Antiviral Medications  
Given the spread of a contagious virus, transit agencies shall work with local health authorities to make 
vaccinations and/or antiviral medications available for transit agency employees.    

Table 6 

Alert 
Phase 

Action Responsibility  

1 • Work with state and local health departments 
to track the U.S. government development of 
guidelines for the allocation of Contagious 
Virus vaccine and antiviral medications.  
 

Finance and Administrative 
Services Safety Team  

3 • Coordinate with local and/or state health 
authority for vaccine clinics to be held 
available on the STC campuses  

Finance and Administrative 
Services Safety Team 

 
       4 • Host vaccines clinics on STC campuses  

 
Finance and Administrative 

Services Safety Team 

F. Self-Screening 
Prior to arriving to campus, employees and students, must, on a daily basis, screen themselves by using 
the Screening Checklist. If you are exhibiting new or worsening signs or symptoms of possible infectious 
disease, such as Covid-19, as listed below, please DO NOT report to campus.   
 
Are you experiencing any new or worsening signs or symptoms?  

•     Cough 
•     Feeling feverish or a measured temperature greater than or equal to 100.0 degrees 

Fahrenheit 
•     Shortness of breath or difficulty breathing 
•     Chills 
•     Fatigue 
•     Repeated shaking with chills 
•     Muscle pain 
•     Headache 
•     Sore throat 
•     Loss of taste or smell 
•     Congestion or runny nose 
•     Nausea or vomiting 
•     Diarrhea 
•     Known close contact with a person who is lab confirmed to have COVID-19 

If you experience any of the signs or symptoms of COVID-19, please immediately notify: 
•         Employees must notify the Office of Human Resources and should notify their healthcare 

provider.  
•         Students must notify Counseling and Student Disability Services and should notify their 

healthcare provider.  
 

189



If you should develop signs or symptoms or start to feel unwell during the day on campus, please notify 
the appropriate parties listed above.   

G. Service Reduction, Shutdown and Restoration 
Throughout the life cycle of a large-scale viral response, a transit agency may need to reduce service due 
to employee availability to maintain and operate transit vehicles or to comply with public health 
department recommendations and directives.    

Service Reduction 

The following indicators will be monitored as potential service reduction triggers:  

• Ridership 
• Employee attendance  
• Asset availability  

Service levels will be adjusted as necessary, with the following anticipated progression:  

• Reduce service 
• Shut down the system  

Service reduction issues are anticipated to include the following:  

• Employee welfare 
• Development of work rules/guidelines regarding hygiene practices in the work environment   

Service Shutdown  

Given the need to shut down service, the primary objective will be to execute an orderly, safe conclusion 
of service, which preserves district assets in a condition that will facilitate later service restoration.  

Major tasks involved in the shutdown of the system consist of the following:  

• Complete operations (complete final service runs and store all vehicles) 
• Deploy property protection  
• Establish communications and logistics plan for administrative work (possible coordination from 

home, individual office or other location as needed)  

Initial Shutdown  

• All revenue vehicles will be appropriately positioned in the yard at close of operations for the 
night. 

• Keys will be secured in the office 
• Office staff will evaluate their essential functions and either suspend work or develop contingency 

work plans as needed. 
• Ongoing security will be provided by STC police.  

Restoration of service 

In anticipation of service restoration, the following actions will be performed: 

190



• Conduct complete system inspection before start-up.  
• Complete any repairs or maintenance identified during the start-up inspections.  
• Inspect revenue vehicle fleet.  

Service will commence after the actions have been accomplished, and contingent upon approvals by the 
Transportation Manager or Chief of Police. 

191



7. APPENDIX C:  
A. Board Minutes or Resolution 
 

192



November 19, 2024 Special Board Meeting 
Page 39, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 9:06 AM 
 

   

Discussion and Action as Necessary on Proposed Facility Use Rental 
Fees for External Entities 

Purpose To approve the facility use rental fees for external entities listed in 
Appendix B. 
 

Justification To charge external entities for the use of common areas district-wide 
listed in Appendix A for trainings, meetings, and other events. 
 
According to Policy GD Community Expression and Use of College 
Facilities, a community member or organization authorized to use 
College District facilities shall be charged a fee for the use of 
designated facilities. 
 
The Board shall establish and publish a schedule of fees based on 
the cost of the physical operation of the facilities, as well as any 
applicable personnel costs for supervision, custodial services, food 
services, security, and technology services. 
 
Fees shall not be charged when College District buildings are used 
for public meetings sponsored by state or local governmental 
agencies. 
 

Enclosed 
Documents 
 

Appendix A – List of Common Areas 
Appendix B – Fee schedules for each campus 
Appendix C – Procedures 
Appendix D – Policy GD 
 

Staff Resource Mary Del Paz, Vice President for Finance and Administrative 
Services 
George McCaleb, Director of Facilities Operations and Maintenance 
 

Additional  
Information 

The Finance, Audit, and Human Resources Committee did not meet 
in November 2024; therefore, this item is presented without a 
committee recommendation.  Administration recommends approval 
as presented. 
 

Recommendation It is recommended that the Board of Trustees of South Texas 
College approve and authorize the following Minute Order 
proposed for consideration: 
The Board of Trustees of South Texas College approves and 
authorizes the proposed facility use rental fees listed in Appendix B 
to charge external entities for the use of common areas district-wide. 

 
 

Approval Recommended: 
 
Dr. Ricardo J. Solis 
President 

 

193



November 19, 2024 Special Board Meeting 
Page 40, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 9:06 AM 
 

   

Appendix A 
 
 

List of Common Areas including, but not limited to, the following: 
 

• Atriums 
• Athletic fields 
• Auditoriums 
• Conference rooms 
• Courtyards 
• Multi-purpose rooms 
• Theatres 

 
 
 
  

194



Building Room Capacity Type of Room Room #

Hourly 

Rate

Half Day 

Rate

Full Day 

Rate Deposit

A, B Outdoor Space Pavilion 50.00$    200.00$    400.00$    50.00$      

C Outdoor Space Athletic Courts 50.00$    200.00$    400.00$    50.00$      

E 15 Small Conference 1.104 25.00$    100.00$    200.00$    25.00$      

F 75-160 Atrium 50.00$    200.00$    400.00$    50.00$      

F Outdoor Space Breezeway 50.00$    200.00$    400.00$    50.00$      

F 20-70 Multi-purpose - Small 154 37.50$    150.00$    300.00$    37.50$      

F 70-150 Multi-purpose - Large 1.301 75.00$    300.00$    600.00$    75.00$      

G 130-175 Auditorium 191 100.00$  400.00$    800.00$    100.00$    

G 15+ Large Conference 288 50.00$    200.00$    400.00$    50.00$      

Areas with a capacity range are dependent on the set up.

Internal departments: Requests scheduled on a Friday or on the weekend may be subject to the services below.

External entities: Personnel rates will be in addition to the facility rental rate.

If any event is planned during normal working hours or after hours, these departmental services fees may apply.

For Profit and Non-Profit Organizations

Hourly Rate

19.05$              

19.55$              

25.87$              

19.05$              Security

Personnel

Mid Valley Campus
Facility Rental Fees

Custodian

Educational Technologies Technician

Maintenance Technician

For Profit Organizations

195



Building Room Capacity Type of Room Room # 

Hourly 

Rate

Half Day 

Rate

Full Day 

Rate Deposit 

Outdoor Space Athletic Courts 50.00$      200.00$   400.00$   50.00$    

A, B 100-160 Atrium 50.00$      200.00$   400.00$   50.00$    

A 5-15 Small Conference 104 25.00$      100.00$   200.00$   25.00$    

B 15+ Large Conference 1.305, 3.203 50.00$      200.00$   400.00$   50.00$    

B 70-100 Multi-Purpose - Large 1.307 75.00$      300.00$   600.00$   75.00$    

Areas with a capacity range are dependent on the set up.

Internal departments: Requests scheduled on a Friday or on the weekend may be subject to the services below.

External entities: Personnel rates will be in addition to the facility rental rate.

If any event is planned during normal working hours or after hours, these departmental services fees may apply.

For Profit and Non-Profit Organizations

Hourly Rate

19.05$                     

19.55$                     

25.87$                     

19.05$                     

Maintenance Technician

Security

Nursing and Allied Health Campus
Facility Rental Fees

Personnel

Custodian

Educational Technologies Technician

For Profit Organizations

196



Building Room Capacity Type of Room Room #

Hourly 

Rate

Half Day 

Rate

Full Day 

Rate Deposit

A Atrium 50.00$       200.00$      400.00$      50.00$        

D 147 Auditorium 102 100.00$     400.00$      800.00$      100.00$      

F 5-15 Small Conference 210 25.00$       100.00$      200.00$      25.00$        

H Outdoor Space Courtyard 50.00$       200.00$      400.00$      50.00$        

H 70-200 Multi-purpose - Large 126, 216 75.00$       300.00$      600.00$      75.00$        

P Outdoor Space Athletic Courts 50.00$       200.00$      400.00$      50.00$        

P Outdoor Space Athletic Fields 75.00$       300.00$      600.00$      75.00$        

Areas with a capacity range are dependent on the set up.

Internal departments: Requests scheduled on a Friday or on the weekend may be subject to the services below.

External entities: Personnel rates will be in addition to the facility rental rate.

If any event is planned during normal working hours or after hours, these departmental services fees may apply.

Hourly Rate

19.05$                       

19.55$                       

25.87$                       

19.05$                       

Maintenance Technician

Security

Pecan Campus
Facility Rental Fees

Personnel

Custodian

Educational Technologies Technician

For Profit Organizations

For Profit and Non-Profit Organizations

197



For Profit Organizations

Building Room Capacity Type of Room Room #

Hourly 

Rate

Half Day 

Rate

Full Day 

Rate Deposit

D, G 15+ Large Conference 1.116, 1.802A 50.00$       200.00$     400.00$      50.00$    

E 130-175 Auditorium 1.606 100.00$     400.00$     800.00$      100.00$  

E, H, J 5-15 Small Conference 2.602, 1.406, 115 25.00$       100.00$     200.00$      25.00$    

H, K 40-70 Multi-purpose - Small 1.202, 1.200 37.50$       150.00$     300.00$      37.50$    

H, K 70-230 Multi-purpose - Large 1.412, 1.502 75.00$       300.00$     600.00$      75.00$    

Outdoor Space Amphitheater 50.00$       200.00$     400.00$      50.00$    

Outdoor Space Athletic courts 50.00$       200.00$     400.00$      50.00$    

Outdoor Space Athletic fields 75.00$       300.00$     600.00$      75.00$    

Areas with a capacity range are dependent on the set up.

Internal departments: Requests scheduled on a Friday or on the weekend may be subject to the services below.

External entities: Personnel rates will be in addition to the facility rental rate.

If any event is planned during normal working hours or after hours, these departmental services fees may apply.

Hourly Rate

19.05$                    

19.55$                    

25.87$                    

19.05$                    

Maintenance Technician

Security

Starr Campus
Facility Rental Fees

Personnel

Custodian

Educational Technologies Technician

For Profit and Non-Profit Organizations

198



For Profit Organizations

Building Room Capacity Type of Room Room #

Hourly 

Rate

Half Day 

Rate

Full Day 

Rate Deposit

B 130 Auditorium 193 100.00$  400.00$      800.00$      100.00$  

B, E 100-160 Atrium 50.00$    200.00$      400.00$      50.00$    

B, E 15+ Large Conference

505A, 542, 

1.307 50.00$    200.00$      400.00$      50.00$    

E 5-15 Small Conference 1.103 25.00$    100.00$      200.00$      25.00$    

Areas with a capacity range are dependent on the set up.

Internal departments: Requests scheduled on a Friday or on the weekend may be subject to the services below.

External entities: Personnel rates will be in addition to the facility rental rate.

If any event is planned during normal working hours or after hours, these departmental services fees may apply.

Hourly Rate

19.05$            

19.55$            

25.87$            

19.05$            

Maintenance Technician

Security

Technology Campus
Facility Rental Fees

Personnel

Custodian

Educational Technologies Technician

For Profit and Non-Profit Organizations

199



1 | P a g e  
 

 

 

  

 

College 
Facility Use 
Procedures 
South Texas College 

2024 

     

       

200



2 
 

Initials: _______     

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

INTERNAL DEPARTMENTAL PROCEDURES  ................................................................ 4-6 

 
REQUEST ..................................................................................................................................................................... 4 

 
PROCESS ................................................................................................................................................................  4-5 

 
APPROVAL PROCESS ................................................................................................................................................. 5 

 
COLLEGE STUDENT CLUBS ...................................................................................................................................... 6 

 
JOINT SPONSORSHIP………………………………………………………………………………………………………….6 
 
FUNDRAISING AND/OR ENTRANCE FEES FOR ANY EVENT/MEETING ............................................................. 6 

 
 

EXTERNAL ORGANIZATIONS PROCEDURES  ............................................................... 6-9 

 
REQUEST ................................................................................................................................................................ 6-7 

 
                            JOINT SPONSORSHIP………………………………………………………………………………………………………... 7  
 

APPROVAL PROCESS ................................................................................................................................................. 7 
 

FOR PROFIT USE ........................................................................................................................................................ 7 
 

NONPROFIT USE ......................................................................................................................................................... 7 
 

CAMPAIGN RELATED USE ......................................................................................................................................... 8 
 

EMERGENCY USE ....................................................................................................................................................... 8 
 

SCHEDULING .............................................................................................................................................................. 8 
 

USE AGREEMENT........................................................................................................................................................ 8 
 

FEES FOR USE ............................................................................................................................................................. 8 
 

EXCEPTION ................................................................................................................................................................ . 8 
 

REQUIRED CONTACT ............................................................................................................................................ 8-9 
 

VIOLATION POLICY .................................................................................................................................................... 9 
 

INTERFERENCE WITH EXPRESSION ........................................................................................................................ 9 
 

APPEALS ................................................................................................................................................................ ..... 9 
 
 

201



3 
 

Initials: _______     

OTHER REQUIREMENTS ................................................................................................ 10-14 

 
INSURANCE .............................................................................................................................................................. 10 

 
SET UP REQUEST ................................................................................................................................................... 10 

 
EDUCATIONAL TECHNOLOGIES ............................................................................................................................ 11 

 
IT SUPPORT/GUEST ACCOUNT REQUEST FORM FOR DOMAIN, EMAIL, WIFI .............................................. 11 

 
FOOD AND BEVERAGES .......................................................................................................................................... 11 

 
ALCOHOL POLICY .................................................................................................................................................... 12 

 
SMOKING POLICY .................................................................................................................................................... 12 

 
DECORATING ........................................................................................................................................................... 12 

 
POST EVENT CLEANLINESS ................................................................................................................................... 12 

 
PROPERTY DAMAGE .............................................................................................................................................. 12 

 
EVENT PARKING ..................................................................................................................................................... 12 

 
EVENT SECURITY ................................................................................................................................................... 13 

 
EVENT ADVERTISING/MARKETING .................................................................................................................... 13 

 
FREEDOM OF EXPRESSION……………………………………………………………………………………………….13 

 
ELECTIONEERING/CAMPAIGN SIGNS…………………………………………………………………………………. 13 

 
POLITICAL ACTIVITY ON CAMPUS………………………………………………………………………………………14 

 
ANTISEMITISM ON CAMPUS .................................................................................................................................. 14 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

202



4 
 

Initials: _______     

College Facilities Use Procedures 

 

Objective:  These procedures allow internal departments and external entities 
(subject to facility use fee structure district wide – pending board approval) 
interested in hosting an event and/or meeting shall follow these procedures. These 

procedures are established for individuals to request the use of campus facilities, furniture, equipment, sports 
fields, and other areas district wide according to Local Policy GD: Community Expression and Use of College 
Facilities.  

 

INTERNAL DEPARTMENTAL PROCEDURES 

I. Request 
 
A. Requesting individuals (internal and external) shall review and acknowledge the 

facilities usage procedures and must submit a request via the online reservation website 
(www.operationshero.com).   
 

B. Request for use of district facilities must be made to the Campus Administrator for 
approval at least ten (10) business days in advance of the event date is required. 

 
C. A maximum of five (5) months is permitted for reservation of facilities. If an event is 

scheduled more than twelve months, the event and/or meeting will not be approved. 
  

D. Blackout dates: 
1. Two weeks before each semester lasting through census day 

**except for student/faculty orientations** 
2. Finals Week  
3. College Holidays  
4. Graduation Weekends 
5. Weekends throughout the calendar year (Friday 12pm to Sunday) – exception 

for internal use with prior approval. 
 

E. Request locations include but not limited to meetings, conferences, multi-purpose, 
theatre, and outside areas.  
 

II. Process 
 
A. Requesting personnel shall review and acknowledge the facilities usage procedures 

and must submit a request via the online reservation website 
(www.operationshero.com).  Allow 48-72 hours for processing. 
 

B. Requests are processed by the Campus Administrator in the order they are received 
and are reviewed to determine the extent of the services provided.  
 

203



5 
 

Initials: _______     

C. Requests are submitted for approval through the college’s online reservation system. 
Allow 48-72 hours for processing. 

 
III. Approval Process 

 
The request will remain tentative until all the following supporting departments can review 
and approve: 

1. Custodial Department  
2. Educational Technologies (if needed) 
3. Informational Technologies (if needed) 
4. Building Administrator (If needed) 
5. Campus Administrator 
6. Executive Director of Facilities Operations and Maintenance (if needed) 

 
A. The Campus Administrator will: 
 

1. Contact the requesting personnel to discuss/finalize the event details. 
2. Confirm all audio/video/technical requests, food, and room setup information 

via email. 
 

B. If there is a conflict with the request, the Campus Administrator will work with the 
event requesting personnel to find an alternate location or change event date. This 
will include any double bookings for an area or campus. 

 
C. Upon receiving the electronic confirmation, it is the responsibility of the event 

requesting personnel to confirm that the request is correct.   

D. If event is scheduled on a Friday or on the weekend, the requesting department may 
be subject to service fees by the following departments as applicable, via an 
Interdepartmental transfer (IDT): 

i. Custodial    $19.05/hr 
ii. Educational Technologies $19.55/hr 
iii. Food Services   Contact 3rd party vendor 
iv. Maintenance   $25.87/hr 
v. Security    $19.05/hr 

If any event is planned during normal working hours or after hours, these 
departmental services fees may apply on a case-by-case basis.  

 
 
 

 

204



6 
 

Initials: _______     

IV. College Student Clubs 
 
A. Clubs/organizations must be chartered for one year prior to hosting an event on campus 

grounds. 
B. Clubs/organizations must obtain approval from the Director of Student Activities for any 

event.  
 

V. Joint Sponsorship 
 

A. An internal department/student club co-sponsoring an external entity’s event may be 
subject to service fees for the event as applicable, via an (IDT).  

 
VI. Fundraising and/or Entrance Fees for any Event/Meeting 

 
A. Departmental/Program must have Director’s approval 
B. Student Club must have Director of Student Activities’ approval 

 

EXTERNAL ORGANIZATION PROCEDURES 

VII. Request 
 
A. To request permission to meet in College District facilities, interested community 

members or organizations shall file a written request with the campus administrator in 
accordance with administrative procedures.  For Campus Administrator Contact Information, 
please visit this website: https://finance.southtexascollege.edu/operations/index.html 

B. The community members or organization making the request shall indicate with initials 
on each page that they have read and understand the policies and rules governing use 
of College District facilities and that they will abide by those rules.  

C. Requests are processed by the Campus Administrator in the order they are received 
and are reviewed to determine the extent of the services provided. 

D. Request for use of district facilities must be made to the Campus Administrator for 
approval at least twenty (20) business days in advance of the event date is required. 

E. A maximum of five (5) months is permitted for reservation of facilities. If an event is 
scheduled more than twelve months, the event and/or meeting will not be approved.  

F. Blackout dates: 
1. Two weeks before each semester lasting through census day 

**except for student/faculty orientations** 
2. Finals Week  
3. College Holidays  
4. Graduation Weekends 
5. Weekends throughout the calendar year (Friday 12pm to Sunday). 

 

205



7 
 

Initials: _______     

G. Request locations include but not limited to meetings, conferences, multi-purpose, 
theatre, and outside areas.  

H. Requests are submitted for approval through the college’s online reservation system. 
Allow 48-72 hours for processing. 
 

VIII. Joint Sponsorship 
 

a. An internal department/student club co-sponsoring an external entity’s event may be 
subject to service fees for the event as applicable, via an (IDT).  
 

VIIII. Approval 

Requests for community use of College District facilities shall be considered on a first-
come, first-served basis. 

The Campus Administrator shall approve or reject the request in accordance with 
provisions of and deadlines set out in this policy and administrative procedures, without 
regard to the religious, political, philosophical, ideological, academic viewpoint, or other 
content of the speech likely to be associated with the community members’ or 
organization’s use of the facility. 

Approval shall not be granted when the official has reasonable grounds to believe that: 

1. The College District facility requested is unavailable, inadequate, or 
inappropriate to accommodate the proposed use at the time requested; 

2. The applicant is subject to a sanction [see Violations of Policy, below] 
prohibiting the use of the facility; 

3. The proposed use would constitute an immediate and actual danger to the 
peace or security of the College District that available law enforcement officials 
could not control with reasonable efforts; 

4. The applicant owes a monetary debt to the College District and the debt is 
considered delinquent; 

5. The proposed activity would disrupt or disturb the regular academic program; or 
6. The proposed use would result in damage to or defacement of property or the 

applicant has previously damaged College District property. 
7. The proposed use would constitute expression that is considered prohibited 

harassment or antisemitism. 
 

IX. For Profit Organization Use 
 
A. The College District shall not permit individuals or for-profit organizations to use its 

facilities for financial gain; however, the College District shall permit private academic 
instruction, as well as public performances or presentations so long as no admission fee 
is charged, when these activities do not conflict with College District use or with Local 
Policy GD Community Expression and Use of College Facilities. These events will be 
subject to board approved facility use and service fees. 

206



8 
 

Initials: _______     

X. Nonprofit Organization Use 
 
A. The College District shall permit nonprofit organizations to conduct events on College 

District property when these activities do not conflict with College District use or with 
Local Policy GD Community Expression and Use of College Facilities.  These events 
may be subject to service fees for the event. 
 

XI. Campaign Related Use 
 
A. Except to the extent a College District facility is used as an official polling place, College 

District facilities shall not be available for use by individuals or groups for political 
advertising, campaign communications, or electioneering, as those terms are used in 
state law. 
 

XII Emergency Use 
 
A. In case of emergencies or disasters, the College President may authorize the use of 

College District facilities by civil defense, health, or emergency service authorities. 
 

XIII Scheduling  
 
A. Academic and extracurricular activities sponsored by the College District shall always 

have priority when any use is scheduled. The campus administrator shall have authority 
to cancel a scheduled use by a community member or organization if an unexpected 
conflict arises with a College District activity. 
 

XIV Use Agreement  
 
A. Any community member or organization approved for a non-school use of College 

District facilities shall be required to complete a written agreement indicating receipt and 
understanding of this procedure and any applicable administrative regulations, and 
acknowledging that the College District is not liable for any personal injury or damages 
to personal property related to the non-school use. 
 

XV Fees for Use 
 
A. A community member or organization authorized to use College District facilities shall 

be charged a fee for the use of designated facilities 
B. The Board shall establish and publish a schedule of fees based on the cost of the 

physical operation of the facilities, as well as any applicable personnel costs for 
supervision, custodial services, food services, security, and technology services 

C. For Profit organizations will be subject to board approved facility use and service fees. 
 

207



9 
 

Initials: _______     

 
XVI Exception 

 
A. Fees shall not be charged when College District buildings are used 

for public meetings sponsored by state or local governmental agencies. 
 

XVII Required Conduct 

Community members and organizations using College District facilities shall: 

1. Conduct business in an orderly manner; 
2. Provide identification when requested to do so by a College District 

representative; 
3. Abide by all laws, policies, and procedures, including, but not limited to, those 

prohibiting the use, sale, or possession of alcoholic beverages, illegal drugs, 
and firearms, and the use of tobacco products or e-cigarettes on College 
District property; [See CHF and GDA] 

4. Make no alteration, temporary or permanent, to College District property 
without prior written consent from the College President; and 

5. Be responsible for the cost of repairing any damages incurred during use and 
shall be required to indemnify the College District for the cost of any such 
repairs. 
 

XVIII Violation of Policy 
 
A. Failure to comply with this policy and associated procedures shall result in appropriate 

administrative action, including but not limited to, withdrawal of consent to remain on 
campus, the suspension of the individual’s or organization’s use of College District 
facilities and the confiscation of nonconforming materials. 
 

XIX Interference with Expression  
 
A. Faculty members, students, or student organizations that interfere with the expressive 

activities permitted by this policy shall be subject to disciplinary action in accordance 
with the College District’s discipline policies and procedures. [See DH, FM, and FMA] 
 

XX Appeals 
 

A. Decisions made by the administration in accordance with this policy may be appealed in 
accordance with GB(LOCAL), DGBA(LOCAL), and FLD(LOCAL) as applicable 

 
 
 

208



10 
 

Initials: _______     

Other Requirements 
 

XXI Insurance 
 
A. If an event or meeting requires an outside speaker, vendor, company, etc., the 

requesting personnel shall have an agreement or purchase order approved by the 
Purchasing Department prior to use.  If insurance is required, the following insurance 
documents shall be provided as evidence of adequate liability insurance coverage in the 
form of a certificate of insurance:  

 
(i) Workers’ Compensation  

o Coverage A (Workers’ Compensation)    Statutory  
o Coverage B (Employers’ Liability)  

Bodily Injury by Accident    $500,000 Each Accident 
       Bodily Injury by Disease     $500,000 Each Employee  
       Bodily Injury by Disease    $500,000 Policy Limit  

 Such insurance shall include a Waiver of Subrogation in favor of South Texas College.  
 

(ii) Commercial General Liability 
o General Aggregate     $2,000,000 
o Products/Completed Operations     $2,000,000 

Aggregate 
o Each Occurrence Limit     $1,000,000 
o Personal/Advertising Injury    $1,000,000 
o Damage to Rented Premises        $50,000 
o Medical Payments (Any One Person)          $5,000 

 
(iii)  Automobile Liability: including owned, hired and non-owned vehicles. 

o Bodily Injury/Death/Property     $1,000,000 
Damage (Each Accident) 

 
 Such insurance shall name South Texas College as an Additional Insured with a Primary and Non-

Contributory endorsement, and Waiver of Subrogation in favor of South Texas College.  
**other insurance may apply depending on the event 

 
XXII Set-up Request 

 
A. Campus Administrator will work with requesting individuals to ensure all event set-up 

needs are met.  
 

B. All costs and fees associated with rental of any additional set-up equipment will be 
charged to organization/department submitting request. 

C. All IDT’s from the Campus Administrator to organization/department will be handled on 
a case-by-case basis with approval from the Executive Director of Facilities Operations 
and Maintenance. 

209



11 
 

Initials: _______     

D. Invoicing for external entities will be handled by Campus Administrator with payment 
being made to the Business Office.  

XXIII Educational Technologies  
 
A. All audiovisual requests will be submitted to the South Texas College Educational 

Technologies department at a minimum of five (5) business days prior to event date. 
 
B. South Texas College Educational Technologies department will contact the Requesting 

personnel to finalize request. Submission of equipment request does not automatically 
guarantee Educational Technologies can fulfill request at scheduled date and time. 

 
C. To reserve equipment from the Educational Technologies Department, please submit 

your request to the Help Desk at https://isphelp.southtexascollege.edu/  
 
All requests for audiovisual equipment and support should be as detailed as possible and 
contain information regarding the event, including the requesting organization; contact name, 
telephone number, and email address; date, and duration of event; and equipment and 
support requested. 

 
XXIV IT Support/Guest Account Request Form for Domain, Email & Wifi 

 
A. Requesting individuals will need to submit a guest account request two weeks prior to the 

event. Form may be found online at https://isp.southtexascollege.edu 
  

B. Requesting personnel must read, abide and submit a signed copy of the Acceptable Use 
Procedures as well as complete the Information Security Awareness Training. 

 
C. Both resources are readily available via the internet at 

https://isphelp.southtexascollege.edu/Ticket/Create.  
 

D. Requesting personnel must submit one request form for a guest account per individual 
requesting temporary computer access. Limit of two guest accounts. 

 
E. Accounts are activated only for the duration of the scheduled event. 

 
F. Accounts from previous events can be renewed by submitting the Guest Account Request 

form for Domain, Email. & Wi-Fi. 
 

G. If a department is using its own laptops, the laptops should have Antivirus software in 
order to connect to the South Texas College wireless network. 

 
H. The link for the Information Security website is https://isp.southtexascollege.edu 

 
XXV Food and Beverages 

 
A. Any events or meetings requiring food and/or refreshments can obtain caterer of their 

choice. Contact Campus Administrators for on-site food vendors that can be of service. 

210



12 
 

Initials: _______     

 
XXVI Alcohol Policy 

 
A. No alcohol may be purchased, sold, or consumed on campus grounds according to 

Local Policy GDA Community Expression and Use of College Facilities: Conduct on 
College District Premises and Local Policy FLBE Student Conduct – Alcohol and Drug 
Use  

 
XXVII Smoking Policy 

 
A. South Texas College has a no smoking policy in all buildings.  There are designated 

smoking areas outdoors according to Local Policy GDA: Community Expression and 
Use of College Facilities – Conduct on College District Premises 
 

XXVIII Decorating  
 
A. No items may be hung, taped, glued or nailed on the interior walls. NO EXCEPTIONS. 

 
B. Glitter/Confetti is not allowed. 

 
C. Contact Campus Administrator for approval of allowable decorations. 

 
XXIX Post Event Cleanliness 

 
A. After the event has been completed, the requesting personnel is responsible to clean up 

the area and make sure all supplies/banners are removed.   
 

B. If the facility/room/area is not cleaned, the requesting personnel will not be permitted to 
use a facility in the future. 
 

XXX Property Damage 
 
A. Requesting personnel will be responsible for any damages incurred during the use of all 

facilities. 
 

XXXI Event Parking 
 
A. Requesting personnel must submit event parking requests to South Texas College 

Police Department at a minimum of one week before event. Request maybe emailed to 
stcdps@southtexascollege.edu  
 
 
 

211



13 
 

Initials: _______     

XXXII Event Security 
 

A. Requesting personnel must notify the South Texas College Police Department at 
956.872.4444 two (2) weeks prior to event if security is going to be required for 
attendee’s safety. This includes access to all major crosswalks around campus. 
 
 

XXXIII Event Advertising/Marketing 
 
A. If event requires any advertising and/or marketing, the requesting personnel shall have 

prior approval from PR/Marketing Department.  This will include any banners, flyers, 
and or printing material. 
 

B. To request items from PR/Marketing Department such as event signage, retractable 
banners, pipe/drape, please submit the request at 
https://admin.southtexascollege.edu/pr/start.html 

 
XXXIV Freedom of Expression 

 
A. The College shall permit any person to engage in expressive activities in these areas of 

the College campuses freely, as long as the person’s conduct is not unlawful, and does 
not materially and substantially disrupt the functioning of the institution. 
 

B. The College reserves the right to impose reasonable restrictions on the time, place, and 
manner of expressive activities in the common outdoor areas. 

 
C. The College’s designated common outdoor areas are limited to areas not used for 

educational purposes or college events.  
 

D. A space reservation is not required to engage in expressive activities in common 
outdoor areas.  

 
E. Faculty, staff and student club/organizations are permitted to use any college buildings 

and facilities to engage in the expressive activities only during operational hours. 
 

F. Guest speakers invited by a student, faculty or student club/organization may engage in 
expressive activities in college buildings and facilities with the college representative 
present during the activity.  

 
XXXV Electioneering/Campaign Signs 

 
A. Electioneering and placement of campaign signs will be permitted on college campuses 

but only in selected areas. 
 

212



14 
 

Initials: _______     

B. Electioneering and placement of campaign signs must be 100 feet from the polling 
location entrance (state law), and within selected areas.  

 
C. Signs may not be higher than 3 feet from the ground and may not be staked more than 

14 inches in depth. 
 

D. Candidates must remove signs 72 hours after election day. 
E. All candidates and their representatives must follow the Hidalgo County Election 

Department guidelines for polling places as well as the Texas Election Code (TITLE 6. 
CONDUCT OF ELECTIONS). 

 
XXXVI Political Activity on Campus 

 
A. Prior approval from the VP/Dean of the sponsoring department is required to allow a 

political candidate access to the college buildings and facilities. 
 

B. A candidate for political office can gain access to the college facilities as a guest 
speaker by invitation from a student, faculty or student club/organization. 

 
C. Requests for usage of the college buildings and facilities must be submitted 72 hours 

before the time the event is scheduled to take place.  
 

D. The registered student, faculty, or student club/organization must make it clear that the 
organization, and not the college, invited the speaker and that the views expressed do 
not represent the views of the college. 

 
E. If granted permission, such activities must not disturb or interfere with the student 

instruction or college events and must abide by the following: 
 

i. Must not interfere with entry to or exit from a building, structure, or facility.  
ii. Must not interfere with the flow of pedestrians or vehicular traffic on 

sidewalks or streets.  
iii. Must not harass, or intimidate the person or persons being solicited.  
iv. Does not violate applicable state, federal, or local laws and regulations. 

 
XXXVII Antisemitism on Campus 

 

Any individual or group engaged in acts of Antisemitism shall disciplined in accordance with 
Administrative Regulations: Disciplinary Action Procedures, Standards of Conduct, and 
College Policies 
 
The College District will ensure that employees engaged in acts of Antisemitism are 
disciplined in accordance with Administrative Regulations: Disciplinary Action Procedures, 
Standards of Conduct, and other related College District Policies [DGC Local]. 

 

213



15 
 

Initials: _______     

 

The requesting department and/or external entity must also ensure that all required documentations 
listed below are submitted with the request for service.  For your request to be considered complete 
and processed for review, it must include all of the following documents: 

 Facility Use Acknowledgement Initials 
 Guest Account Request Form for Domain, Email & Wi-Fi (complete information of computer 

user) 
 Certificate of insurance 

 
The request will not be processed until all required documents are received.  These guidelines and 
procedures are for the safety and well-being of all who use South Texas College facilities. By signing 
this form, the requesting personnel acknowledges and is in agreement with the College Facilities 
Procedures.  

 

___________________________________________                            ________________ 
Requesting Name                                          Contact Number 
 

___________________________________________                            ________________ 
Requesting Title                                                                     Email 
 

___________________________________________                            ________________ 
Name of South Texas College Department                                                        Date 
Or/External Organization 

 

 

_________________________________                                               ________________ 
Campus Administrator                        Date 
 
 
 
 

 
 

214



16 
 

Initials: _______     

 
   

COLLEGE FACILITIES REQUEST FORM                  

 

Date: ______/______/______ 

Name of Event: ______________________________________________________________________ 

Date of Event: ______/______/______   Times: _____:_____am/pm to _____:_____am/pm 

Estimated Attendance: _______ persons   Set Up Time: _____:_____am/pm  

 

Campus: ____________________________________________ 

 

Room(s): ____________________________________________ 

 

Furniture/Equipment Requested (Check all that apply, include quantities): 

 Round Tables                Qty: ____   Document Camera    LCD Projector 

 Rectangular Tables            Qty: ____   Laptop Computer   Podium 

 Chairs         Qty: ____   Microphone    DVD/VCR 

 Trash Cans              Qty: ____   Other: _____________________________________ 

 Registration Table             Qty: ____  Please contact STC Police Department for visitor parking at 872-2589.  

(1 Table & 2 chairs) 

 

 

 

215



COMMUNITY EXPRESSION AND USE OF COLLEGE FACILITIES GD
(LOCAL)

DATE ISSUED: 11/11/2019 1 of 6
UPDATE 37
GD(LOCAL)-AJC

Note: For expression and use of College District facilities and
distribution of literature by students and registered stu-
dent organizations, see FLA. For expression and use of
College District facilities by employees and employee or-
ganizations, see DGC. For use of the College District’s
internal mail system, see CHE.

As defined by the Texas Government Code 448.001, “Antisemi-
tism,” means a certain perception of Jews that may be expressed
as hatred toward Jews. The term includes rhetorical and physical
acts of antisemitism directed toward Jewish or non-Jewish individu-
als or their property or toward Jewish community institutions and
religious facilities. Examples of antisemitism are included with the
International Holocaust Remembrance Alliance's "Working Defini-
tion of Antisemitism" adopted on May 26, 2016.

The grounds and facilities of the College District shall be made
available to members of the College District community and com-
munity organizations, including College District support organiza-
tions, when such use is for educational, recreational, civic, or social
activities and the use does not conflict with use by, or any of the
policies and procedures of, the College District.

To request permission to meet in College District facilities, inter-
ested community members or organizations shall file a written re-
quest with the campus administrator in accordance with adminis-
trative procedures.

The community members or organization making the request shall
indicate that they have read and understand the policies and rules
governing use of College District facilities and that they will abide
by those rules.

Requests for community use of College District facilities shall be
considered on a first-come, first-served basis.

The campus administrator shall approve or reject the request in ac-
cordance with provisions of and deadlines set out in this policy and
administrative procedures, without regard to the religious, political,
philosophical, ideological, academic viewpoint, or other content of
the speech likely to be associated with the community members’ or
organization’s use of the facility.

Approval shall not be granted when the official has reasonable
grounds to believe that:

Use of College
District Facilities

Requests

Approval

168216



COMMUNITY EXPRESSION AND USE OF COLLEGE FACILITIES GD
(LOCAL)

DATE ISSUED: 11/11/2019 2 of 6
UPDATE 37
GD(LOCAL)-AJC

1. The College District facility requested is unavailable, inade-
quate, or inappropriate to accommodate the proposed use at
the time requested;

2. The applicant is subject to a sanction [see Violations of Policy,
below] prohibiting the use of the facility;

3. The proposed use would constitute an immediate and actual
danger to the peace or security of the College District that
available law enforcement officials could not control with rea-
sonable efforts;

4. The applicant owes a monetary debt to the College District
and the debt is considered delinquent;

5. The proposed activity would disrupt or disturb the regular aca-
demic program; or

6. The proposed use would result in damage to or defacement
of property or the applicant has previously damaged College
District property.

7. The proposed use would constitute expression that is consid-
ered prohibited harassment or antisemitism.

Common outdoor areas are traditional public forums and are not
subject to the approval procedures. Community members and or-
ganizations may engage in expressive activities in common out-
door areas, unless:

1. The person’s conduct is unlawful, including, but not limited to,
expression that is considered prohibited harassment or anti-
semitism;

2. The use would constitute an immediate and actual danger to
the peace or security of the College District that available law
enforcement officials could not control with reasonable efforts;

3. The use would materially or substantially disrupt or disturb the
regular academic program; or

4. The use would result in damage to or defacement of property.

The College District shall not permit individuals or for-profit organi-
zations to use its facilities for financial gain; however, the College
District shall permit private academic instruction, as well as public
performances or presentations so long as no admission fee is
charged, when these activities do not conflict with College District
use or with this policy.

Common
Outdoor Area
Exception

For-Profit Use

169217



COMMUNITY EXPRESSION AND USE OF COLLEGE FACILITIES GD
(LOCAL)

DATE ISSUED: 11/11/2019 3 of 6
UPDATE 37
GD(LOCAL)-AJC

The College District shall permit nonprofit organizations to conduct
fundraising events on College District property when these activi-
ties do not conflict with College District use or with this policy.

Except to the extent a College District facility is used as an official
polling place, College District facilities shall not be available for use
by individuals or groups for political advertising, campaign commu-
nications, or electioneering, as those terms are used in state law.

No approval shall be required for nonschool-related recreational
use of the College District’s unlocked, outdoor recreational facili-
ties, such as the track, tennis courts, and the like, when the facili-
ties are not in use by the College District or for another scheduled
purpose.

The campus administrator shall provide the applicant a written
statement of the grounds for rejection if a request is denied.

In case of emergencies or disasters, the College President may
authorize the use of College District facilities by civil defense,
health, or emergency service authorities.

The College District shall permit repeated use by any community
member or organization in accordance with administrative proce-
dures.

Any limitations on repeated use by a community member or organi-
zation shall not apply to any group or organization when the pri-
mary participants in the activities are College District students, fac-
ulty, or staff.

Academic and extracurricular activities sponsored by the College
District shall always have priority when any use is scheduled. The
campus administrator shall have authority to cancel a scheduled
use by a community member or organization if an unexpected con-
flict arises with a College District activity.

Any community member or organization approved for a nonschool
use of College District facilities shall be required to complete a writ-
ten agreement indicating receipt and understanding of this policy
and any applicable administrative regulations, and acknowledging
that the College District is not liable for any personal injury or dam-
ages to personal property related to the nonschool use.

A community member or organization authorized to use College
District facilities shall be charged a fee for the use of designated fa-
cilities.

Nonprofit Use

Campaign-
Related Use

No Approval
Required

Written Notice if
Request
Rejected

Emergency Use

Repeated Use

Exception

Scheduling

Use Agreement

Fees for Use

170218



COMMUNITY EXPRESSION AND USE OF COLLEGE FACILITIES GD
(LOCAL)

DATE ISSUED: 11/11/2019 4 of 6
UPDATE 37
GD(LOCAL)-AJC

The Board shall establish and publish a schedule of fees based on
the cost of the physical operation of the facilities, as well as any
applicable personnel costs for supervision, custodial services, food
services, security, and technology services.

Fees shall not be charged when College District buildings are used
for public meetings sponsored by state or local governmental
agencies.

Community members and organizations using College District facil-
ities shall:

1. Conduct business in an orderly manner;

2. Provide identification when requested to do so by a College
District representative;

3. Abide by all laws, policies, and procedures, including, but not
limited to, those prohibiting the use, sale, or possession of al-
coholic beverages, illegal drugs, and firearms, and the use of
tobacco products or e-cigarettes on College District property;
[See CHF and GDA]

4. Make no alteration, temporary or permanent, to College Dis-
trict property without prior written consent from the College
President; and

5. Be responsible for the cost of repairing any damages incurred
during use and shall be required to indemnify the College Dis-
trict for the cost of any such repairs.

Written or printed materials, handbills, photographs, pictures, films,
tapes, or other visual or auditory materials not sponsored by the
College District shall not be sold, circulated, distributed, or posted
on any College District premises by any community member or or-
ganization, including a College District support organization except
in accordance with this policy.

The College District shall not be responsible for, nor shall the Col-
lege District endorse, the contents of any materials distributed by a
community member or organization.

Materials shall not be distributed by a community member or or-
ganization on College District property if:

1. The materials are obscene;

2. The materials contain defamatory statements about public fig-
ures or others;

3. The materials advocate imminent lawless or disruptive action
and are likely to incite or produce such action;

Exception

Required Conduct

Distribution of
Literature

Limitations on
Content

171219



COMMUNITY EXPRESSION AND USE OF COLLEGE FACILITIES GD
(LOCAL)

DATE ISSUED: 11/11/2019 5 of 6
UPDATE 37
GD(LOCAL)-AJC

4. The materials are considered prohibited harassment or anti-
semitism [see DIA series and FFD series];

5. The materials constitute unauthorized solicitation [see Use of
College District Facilities, above]; or

6. The materials infringe upon intellectual property rights of the
College District [see CT].

Distribution of materials shall be conducted in a manner that:

1. Is not disruptive [see FLB];

2. Does not impede reasonable access to College District facili-
ties;

3. Does not result in damage to College District property;

4. Does not coerce, badger, or intimidate a person;

5. Does not interfere with the rights of others; and

6. Does not violate local, state, or federal laws or College District
policies and procedures.

The distributor shall clean the area around which the literature was
distributed of any materials that were discarded or leftover.

The campus administrator shall designate times, locations, and
means by which materials that are appropriate for distribution, as
provided in this policy, may be made available or distributed by
community members or organizations to others in College District
facilities and in areas that are not considered common outdoor ar-
eas.

For the purposes of this policy, “sign” shall be defined as a bill-
board, decal, notice, placard, poster, banner, or any kind of hand-
held sign; and “posting” shall be defined as any means used for
displaying a sign.

No signs may be posted on College District property by a commu-
nity member or organization unless the posting qualifies as a per-
mitted campaign-related use or is in a common outdoor area sub-
ject to administrative procedures.

A College District support organization may post a sign in College
District facilities with prior approval of the campus administrator in
accordance with the procedures developed for that purpose.

Time, Place, and
Manner Restrictions

Posting of Signs

Exception

Identification

172220



COMMUNITY EXPRESSION AND USE OF COLLEGE FACILITIES GD
(LOCAL)

DATE ISSUED: 11/11/2019 ADOPTED: 6 of 6
UPDATE 37
GD(LOCAL)-AJC

A community member or organization distributing materials on
campus shall provide identification when requested to do so by a
College District representative.

Failure to comply with this policy and associated procedures shall
result in appropriate administrative action, including but not limited
to, withdrawal of consent to remain on campus, the suspension of
the individual’s or organization’s use of College District facilities
and the confiscation of nonconforming materials.

Faculty members, students, or student organizations that interfere
with the expressive activities permitted by this policy shall be sub-
ject to disciplinary action in accordance with the College District’s
discipline policies and procedures. [See DH, FM, and FMA]

Decisions made by the administration in accordance with this pol-
icy may be appealed in accordance with GB(LOCAL), DGBA(LO-
CAL), and FLD(LOCAL) as applicable.

This policy and associated procedures must be posted on the Col-
lege District’s website and distributed in the employee and student
handbooks and other appropriate publications.

Violations of Policy

Interference with
Expression

Appeals

Publication

173221



November 19, 2024 Special Board Meeting 
Page 41, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 9:06 AM 
 

   

Discussion and Action as Necessary on Proposed Revision to Tuition 
and Fees Schedules for FY 2024 – 2025 for Dual Credit Students  

Purpose Approve proposed revisions to the Tuition and Fees Schedules for 
FY 2024 – 2025 for dual credit students. 
 

Justification Dr. Ricardo J. Solis, College President, proposes revising the Dual 
Credit Tuition per credit hour for out-of-district dual credit students 
sponsored by partnering school districts. 
 
Dr. Solis has been in discussion with school districts outside the 
College’s two-county district, but within Texas, which are interested 
in pursuing dual credit partnerships with South Texas College for their 
students. 
 
The Board is asked to approve the reduction of the tuition for students 
of these districts, once a partnership agreement is in place, from 
$55.00 per Semester Credit Hour (SCH) to $30.00 per SCH. 
 
While South Texas College will not execute any further dual credit 
partnership agreements during the FY 2024 – 2025 period affected 
by this tuition change, this approval will allow administration to 
complete the necessary collaboration with interested districts to 
develop dual credit program models appropriate to each district’s 
needs. 
 
Administration will recommend maintaining the same $30.00 per SCH 
tuition rate for the next year, when partnerships can be expected to 
be in place. 
 

Funding There is no required funding at this point.  
 
Once partnerships are in place and students are enrolled, there may 
be some need to use institutional funding to offset direct and in-direct 
costs incurred by the College. 
 

Staff Resource Dr. Ricardo J. Solis, College President 
 

Additional  
Information 

The Finance, Audit, and Human Resources Committee did not meet 
in November 2024; therefore, this item is presented without a 
committee recommendation.  Administration recommends approval 
as presented. 
 

Recommendation It is recommended that the Board of Trustees of South Texas 
College approve and authorize the following Minute Order 
proposed for consideration: 
The Board of Trustees of South Texas College approves and 
authorizes the proposed revisions to the Tuition and Fees Schedules 
for FY 2024 – 2025 for dual credit students. 

 

222



November 19, 2024 Special Board Meeting 
Page 42, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 9:06 AM 
 

   

Approval Recommended: 
 
Dr. Ricardo J. Solis 
President 

 
 
 

APPENDIX A 
 

Proposed Revisions to the Tuition and Fees Schedules for FY 2024 – 2025 for  
Dual Credit Students are as follows: 

 
  Board 

 Approved  
FY 2023-2024 

Board 
 Approved  

FY 2024-2025 

Proposed  
Revision to 

FY 2024-2025 

DUAL CREDIT STUDENTS  SPONSORED BY  
PARTNERING SCHOOL DISTRICTS   
TUITION AND FEES SCHEDULE 

  

 

DUAL CREDIT TUITION:      
Per credit hour tuition for dual credit students in in-
district partnering school districts 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

Per credit hour tuition for out-of-district dual credit 
students sponsored by partnering school districts 
(within Texas, outside of service district) 

55.00 55.00 30.00 

Per credit hour tuition for non-resident dual credit 
students sponsored by partnering school districts 

Deleted Deleted Deleted 

DUAL CREDIT STUDENTS - NON-SPONSORED  
TUITION AND FEES SCHEDULE 

INDEPENDENT DUAL CREDIT TUITION PER CREDIT HOUR:  
In-district dual credit students who are enrolled in 
a school district with a Memorandum of 
Understanding or an Interlocal Agreement with 
South Texas College who do not receive approval 
to enroll in a regular (non-S) section(s). 

55.00  
 

55.00 30.00 

In-district home schooled or dual credit students 
who are not enrolled in a school district with a 
Memorandum of Understanding or an Interlocal 
Agreement with South Texas College. 

55.00  
 

55.00 30.00 

Out-of-district dual credit students who are 
enrolled in a school district with a Memorandum of 
Understanding or an Interlocal Agreement with 
South Texas College who do not receive approval 
to enroll in a regular (Non-S) section(s). 

55.00  
 

55.00 30.00 

223



November 19, 2024 Special Board Meeting 
Page 43, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 9:06 AM 
 

   

  Board 
 Approved  

FY 2023-2024 

Board 
 Approved  

FY 2024-2025 

Proposed  
Revision to 

FY 2024-2025 

Out-of-district home schooled or dual credit 
students who are not enrolled in a school district 
with a Memorandum of Understanding or an 
Interlocal Agreement with South Texas College. 

55.00  55.00 30.00 

Non-resident dual credit students who are not 
enrolled in a school district with a Memorandum of 
Understanding or an Interlocal Agreement with 
South Texas College.(Outside of Texas, but within 
U.S.) 

55.00  55.00 30.00 

Non-resident dual credit students who are 
enrolled in a school district with a Memorandum of 
Understanding or an Interlocal Agreement with 
South Texas College who do not receive approval 
to enroll in a regular (Non-S) section(s). 

Deleted  Deleted Deleted 

  

224



November 19, 2024 Special Board Meeting 
Page 44, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 9:06 AM 
 

   

Review and Recommend Acceptance of Internal Audit Report in the 
Area of Faculty Overloads 

Purpose To recommend Board acceptance of the Internal Audit Report in the 
Area of Faculty Overloads after discussion of the procedures, 
finding, and recommendation conducted by Mr. Khalil Abdullah, 
Chief Internal Auditor. 
 

Justification The Internal Audit Function, reviews and appraises business 
activities, integrity of records, and effectiveness of operations in 
accordance with the Institute of Internal Auditors International 
Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing.  It assists 
the College in accomplishing its objectives by evaluating and 
improving the effectiveness of the College’s risk management, 
governance, and internal controls.  
 
The Faculty Overloads audit was included in the FY 2024 Audit Plan 
and encompassed a review of the Pay Plan and the Faculty 
Handbook.   
 

Enclosed 
Documents 
 

Appendix A – Internal Audit Report 

Staff Resource Dr. Ricardo J. Solis, President 
Dr. Anahid Petrosian, Vice President and Provost for Academic 
Affairs and Economic Development 
Dr. Brett Millan, Associate Vice President for Academic Success & 
Advancement  
Khalil Abdullah, Chief Internal Auditor 
 

Additional  
Information 

The Finance, Audit, and Human Resources Committee did not meet 
in November 2024; therefore, this item is presented without a 
committee recommendation.  Administration recommends approval 
as presented. 
 

Recommendation It is recommended that the Board of Trustees of South Texas 
College approve and authorize the following Minute Order 
proposed for consideration: 
The Board of Trustees of South Texas College approves and 
authorizes acceptance of the Internal Audit Report in the Area of 
Student Organization Funds Handling as presented. 

 
 
Approval Recommended: 
 
Dr. Ricardo J. Solis 
President 
  

225



 
OFFICE OF INTERNAL AUDITS  

SOUTH TEXAS COLLEGE 
 

3201 W. Pecan Blvd. • McAllen, Texas 78501 • Office (956) 872-6709 
 
 

 
 
 
October 23, 2024 
 
 
Dr. Ricardo J. Solis, President 
South Texas College 
3201 W. Pecan Blvd. 
McAllen, TX 78501 
 
 
Dr. Solis, 
 
 
As part of the fiscal year 2024 Audit Plan, the Office of Internal Audits completed the Faculty 
Overloads Audit.  The objective of the audit was to evaluate the adequacy and effectiveness of the 
system of internal controls over faculty overloads. 
 
We appreciated the assistance provided by South Texas College’s management and other 
personnel and hope that the information presented in this report is helpful.  
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 

 
 
Khalil M. Abdullah CPA, CIA, CGAP, MAcc 
Chief Internal Auditor 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
cc: Dr. Anahid Petrosian, Vice President of Academic Affairs 
 Dr. Brett J. Millan, Associate VP Academic Success & Advancement 

Ms. Mary G. Del Paz, Vice President Finance and Administrative Services 
 Finance, Audit, and Human Resources Committee, South Texas College Board of Trustees

226



South Texas College 
Office of Internal Audits 
Faculty Overloads Audit 
          
 
 

 

  2 

 

 

 
FACULTY OVERLOADS 

AUDIT REPORT 

 

OFFICE OF INTERNAL AUDITS 

October 23, 2024 

 

 

227



South Texas College 
Office of Internal Audits 
Faculty Overloads Audit 
          
 
 

 

  3 

 

 

Table of Contents 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ........................................................................................................................ 4 

BACKGROUND ......................................................................................................................................... 5 

AUDIT OBJECTIVE .................................................................................................................................. 5 

AUDIT SCOPE & METHODOLOGY ..................................................................................................... 5 

AUDIT RESULTS ...................................................................................................................................... 6 

CONCLUSION ........................................................................................................................................... 8 

APPENDIX A .............................................................................................................................................. 9 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

228



South Texas College 
Office of Internal Audits 
Faculty Overloads Audit 
          
 
 

 

  4 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
The Faculty Overloads Audit was included in the South Texas College Board of Trustee’s 
approved fiscal year 2024 Audit Plan.  The audit included a review of the College’s Pay Plans as 
well as the Faculty Handbook.  
 
The objective of the audit was to evaluate the adequacy and effectiveness of the system of internal 
controls over faculty overloads. 
 
The scope of the audit included activity from September 1, 2022 through August 31, 2023. The 
audit was not designed nor intended to be a detailed study of every relevant control system, 
procedure, or transaction.  Accordingly, any opportunities for improvement presented in this report 
may not be all-inclusive of areas where improvements could be made.     
 
 
Overall, it was determined that the Division of Academic Affairs established an adequate system 
of internal controls over faculty overloads and the following controls were observed: 
 
 

 Overloads reported through FLAC matched to Banner as well as to support maintained 
at the department;  

 Overloads reported by Nursing and Allied Health (NAH) were supported by adequate 
documentation.  Underlying documentation was appropriately signed-off by 
management;  

 The rate at which the overloads were paid matched to the College’s Pay Plan for all 
employees within our sample.  

 
 
Additionally, the following opportunity to improve process efficiency was identified: 
 
 Overload budgets are not adjusted despite the actual costs being much higher each year.  

While the overall practice avoids overbudgeting, it imposes a less efficient process 
whereby multiple transfers are required throughout the year.  Transfers greater than 
$25K require the approval from the Financial Manager, two Vice Presidents and the 
President.    

229



South Texas College 
Office of Internal Audits 
Faculty Overloads Audit 
          
 
 

 

  5 

 

BACKGROUND 
 

Full-Time Regular Faculty (FTR) are typically assigned a 9-month contract to teach 15 Lecture 
Hour Equivalents (LHEs) each semester.  LHEs assigned above this amount are considered an 
overload (i.e., extra work for additional compensation).  Upon approval from the Department 
Chair, faculty may accept an overload of up to 6 LHEs each Fall and Spring semester.  Assignment 
of LHE’s over 6 LHEs requires the following approvals:  
 

 6+ LHEs requires approval from the Dean;  
 11+ LHEs requires approval from the Vice President of Academic Affair’s;  
 16+ LHEs requires approval from the Vice President as well as a justification memo.  

 
The College uses two separate processes for reporting overloads.  Nursing and Allied Health 
(NAH) reports faculty overloads through a paper-based Notice of Employment (NOE), while all 
of the other divisions of the College report electronically in Banner through the Faculty Load and 
Compensation (FLAC) module.  NAH reporting of overloads is a more complicated process due 
to several additional inputs (i.e., clinicals, simulations, substitutions, practicums, etc.).  
Additionally, the calculation takes into account various components of a course being taught by 
different individuals.   
 

AUDIT OBJECTIVE 
 

The objective of the audit was to evaluate the adequacy and effectiveness of the system of internal 
controls over faculty overloads. 

AUDIT SCOPE & METHODOLOGY 
 
 

The scope of the audit included activity from September 1, 2022 through August 31, 2023. To 
accomplish the audit objective, we performed the following: 
 
 Reviewed policy 3800 Full Time Regular (On Board Approved Staffing Plan) Assignments 

and Workloads as Conditions of Employment;  
 Reviewed policy 3803 Conditions of Employment of Full-Time Faculty Teaching during 

Summer Terms; 
 Obtained and reviewed the Faculty Handbook and Pay Plan;  
 Interviewed Dept. Secretaries, Chairs, and NAH Dean; 

230



South Texas College 
Office of Internal Audits 
Faculty Overloads Audit 
          
 
 

 

  6 

 

AUDIT RESULTS 
 
Faculty Load and Compensation (FLAC):  
Faculty workload processed through the FLAC module is uploaded electronically through Banner.  
Department Administrative Assistants run reports in Argos providing them with information on 
course LHEs.  The Administrative Assistants typically update a spreadsheet that helps them keep 
track of the faculty member’s base 15 LHEs and assists in calculating any faculty overloads in 
excess of the faculty member’s base load.  A listing of faculty who received overload compensation 
within scope was obtained, and a sample of 25 faculty was selected for further testing.  The test 
verified that the overload hours traced to the amounts reported in Banner as well as to the 
underlying supporting documentation maintained by the departments.  No exceptions were noted 
in this area.  
 
Nursing & Allied Health (NAH):  
Nursing and Allied Health were never set up to report overloads through FLAC, and therefore, the 
division submits overloads through a paper-based process.  Submitting overloads for NAH requires 
additional inputs and is, overall, a much more complex process.  Due to the complexity of this 
process, employees from Academic Affairs stated that in the past, NAH department staff struggled 
to accurately request approval for faculty overload hours and would often submit requests for 
overloads that contained errors.  Procedures, along with better communication and training, have 
since been updated to reduce the likelihood of NAH department staff requesting excessive 
overloads.   
 
Academic Affairs has created and distributed a spreadsheet that includes embedded formulas to 
assist the departments in calculating LHEs.   To evaluate the accuracy of overload LHEs, a sample 
of 20 employee records (i.e., Notice of Employment for overload assignments) was requested.  The 
documentation provided by Academic Affairs showed that each of the selected employee’s 
requested overloads matched to the hours reported in the system.  Additionally, all of the 
documentation was appropriately signed off by the faculty member, the department chair, the Vice 
President for Academic Affairs, and Director of Human Resources.  Additionally, HR provided 
documentation to substantiate that the rate at which the overload LHE were paid out was correct 
based on the employee’s qualifications.  No exceptions were noted in this area.  
 
Overload Instructional Pool Budget vs. Actual Comparison: 
Funds are budgeted in Instructional Pools for faculty overloads by division.  For divisions that 
exceed their budgets, funds are transferred from the Academic Affair’s Reserve Pool to make up 

231



South Texas College 
Office of Internal Audits 
Faculty Overloads Audit 
          
 
 

 

  7 

 

the short fall.  Transfer of funds in excess of $25,000 requires processing a Request for Change in 
Position Control Funding form.  This form requires signature approval from each of the following: 
 

 Financial Manager;  
 Area Vice President; 
 VP of Finance and Administrative Services; and  
 The College President.  

 
In reviewing the Instructional Pools for faculty overloads, we found that the instructional pools’ 
budgeted amounts remained the same each year.  However, the actual funds expended for faculty 
overloads was often times much greater than the budgeted amount.  See Appendix A for a 
comparison of budgeted vs. actual faculty overload expenditures by division from FY 2022 – 2024.  
The largest variance over a period of 3-years is from the Business, Public Safety, and Technology 
division.  Each year that division’s actual overloads were twice as much as the amount budgeted. 
 

Recommendation: 
1. Management should consider adjusting overload budgets annually, so as to decrease the 

number of transfers throughout the year.   
 

Management Response: 
Accept audit recommendation as presented 
1. Overload budgets have been managed to avoid overbudgeting by transferring from pools 

that accrue a surplus during the year.  However, moving forward, during the budget 
creation process, the Academic Affairs division will review the individual divisional 
budgets and adjust the annual requests to minimize the number of transfers during the 
course of the fiscal year.  

 
 
Responsible Individual: 
VP Academic Affairs 

  
 
Implementation Date: 
3/1/2024  
 
 

232



South Texas College 
Office of Internal Audits 
Faculty Overloads Audit 
          
 
 

 

  8 

 

 

CONCLUSION 
 
Overall, we determined that the Division of Academic Affairs established an adequate system of 
internal controls over faculty overloads, However, an opportunity was identified to improve 
processing efficiency in the area of evaluating instructional pools budgets. 
 
 
 
 

                                                                         10/23/2024 
Khalil M. Abdullah CPA, CIA, CGAP, MAcc                                      
Chief Internal Auditor          

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

233



South Texas College 
Office of Internal Audits 
Faculty Overloads Audit 
          
 
 

 

  9 

 

Appendix A  
Comparison of Budgeted vs. Actual Faculty Overloads by Division 

 

Divison Budgeted Actual Variance
Percentage 

Variance

Business, Public Safety & Tech 862,816.00$            1,769,559.61$        906,743.61$        105%

Liberal Arts 1,007,668.00$        1,777,232.21$        769,564.21$        76%

Social & Behavioral Sciences 745,620.00$            1,391,405.62$        645,785.62$        87%

Math, Science, IT & Bachelors 1,870,052.00$        2,411,713.61$        541,661.61$        29%

Nursing & Allied Health 822,654.00$            1,067,840.28$        245,186.28$        30%

5,308,810.00$        8,417,751.33$        3,108,941.33$    

FY 2022

 
 

Divison Budgeted Actual Variance
Percentage 

Variance

Business, Public Safety & Tech 862,816.00$            1,853,669.22$        990,853.22$        115%

Liberal Arts 1,007,668.00$        1,808,367.74$        800,699.74$        79%

Social & Behavioral Sciences 745,620.00$            1,206,288.88$        460,668.88$        62%

Math, Science, IT & Bachelors 1,870,052.00$        2,410,669.54$        540,617.54$        29%

Nursing & Allied Health 822,654.00$            1,050,207.26$        227,553.26$        28%

5,308,810.00$        8,329,202.64$        3,020,392.64$    

FY 2023

 
 

Divison Budgeted
Actual YTD as of 

6/30/2024
Variance

Percentage 

Variance

Business, Public Safety & Tech 862,816.00$            1,720,146.34$        857,330.34$        99%

Liberal Arts 1,007,668.00$        1,662,343.78$        654,675.78$        65%

Social & Behavioral Sciences 745,620.00$            985,578.27$            239,958.27$        32%

Math, Science, IT & Bachelors 1,870,052.00$        2,501,450.65$        631,398.65$        34%

Nursing & Allied Health 822,654.00$            1,003,606.94$        180,952.94$        22%

5,308,810.00$        7,873,125.98$        2,564,315.98$    

FY 2024

 

 

234



November 19, 2024 Special Board Meeting 
Page 45, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 9:06 AM 
 

   

Review and Recommend Action to Adopt New Business and Support 
Services Policy and Retire Current Policies  

Purpose To adopt new Business and Support Services Policy and retire the 
current policies to align with the Texas Association of School Boards 
(TASB) policy manual. 
 

Justification To provide the new policy in the TASB standardized format and 
contain all, some, or none of the content from the retired policies. In 
addition to the policy and, as applicable, internal procedures are 
currently in place and will continue to be enhanced. 
 
The new and retired policies have been reviewed by staff, 
administrators, TASB staff, STC Legal Counsel, and the Vice 
President for Student Affairs and Enrollment Management. 
 

Enclosed  
Documents 
 

Appendix A – List of New and Retired Policies 
Appendix B – New Policies 
 

Staff Resource 
 
 
 

Dr. Matthew Hebbard, Vice President for Student Affairs and 
Enrollment Management 
Elibariki V. Nguma, Director of Student Activities and Wellness 
 

Additional  
Information 
 

The Finance, Audit, and Human Resources Committee did not meet 
in November 2024; therefore, this item is presented without a 
committee recommendation.  Administration recommends approval 
as presented. 
 

Recommendation 
 

It is recommended that the Board of Trustees of South Texas 
College approve and authorize the following Minute Order 
proposed for consideration: 
The Board of Trustees of South Texas College approves and 
authorizes to adopt new Business and Support Services Policy and 
retire current policies as presented, and which supersedes any 
previously adopted Board policy. 
 

 
 

  

235



November 19, 2024 Special Board Meeting 
Page 46, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 9:06 AM 
 

   

Appendix A  
 

List of New and Retired Policies 
 

Adopt New Policy Retired Policy(ies) Retired Policy  
Content Transition 

A-1.  CJ (Local) 
Transportation 
Management 

A-2. Policy #3620: College 
Sanctioned Travel for 
Students 

 
 
 
 
A-3. Policy #6420: Transportation 

Management 
 
 
 
A-4. Policy #6425: Use of College-

Owned Vehicles 
 
 
 
 
A-5. Policy #6426: Authorization to 

Drive College-Owned 
Vehicles 

 

Some of the content from 
the retired policy is 
included in both the new 
local policy and a 
procedure, handbook, 
manual, etc. 

All of the content from the 
retired policy is included in 
either a procedure, 
handbook, manual, etc. 

None of the content from 
the retired policy is 
included in the new local 
policy or procedure, 
handbook, manual, etc. 

All of the content from the 
retired policy is included in 
either a procedure, 
handbook, manual, etc. 

 
 

 
Appendix B 

 
New policies follow in the packet. 

 
 

  

236



  
  
  
TRANSPORTATION MANAGEMENT CJ
 (LOCAL)

 

DATE ISSUED: 4/12/2022   ADOPTED: 1 of 1
UPDATE 43 
CJ(LOCAL)-AJC 

 

Modes of transportation used for student travel shall include, but 
are not limited to, cars, vans, and buses. Travel arrangements for 
student groups shall be made in accordance with administrative 
regulations. 

A driver who is transporting students in College District-owned or  
-leased vehicles must:  

1. Be an employee of the College District. 

2. Hold a valid driver’s license appropriate for the vehicle to be 
driven. A driver of a commercial motor vehicle must have a 
commercial driver’s license. 

3. Have an acceptable driving record. 

The driver shall ensure that the number of passengers does not 
exceed the designed capacity of the vehicle and that each passen-
ger is secured by a safety belt, if provided.  

A driver shall not drive for more than 5 consecutive hours without 
taking a 15-minute break or relief from driving. 

Student Travel 

Modes of 
Transportation 

Driver 
Requirements 

Safety Standards 

Driver Fatigue 

237



November 19, 2024 Special Board Meeting 
Page 47, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 9:06 AM 
 

   

Review and Recommend Action to Adopt Community and 
Governmental Relations Policy and Retire Current Policy 

Purpose To adopt new Community and Governmental Relations Policy 
and retire the current policy to align with the Texas 
Association of School Boards (TASB) policy manual. 
 

Justification To provide the new policy in the TASB standardized format 
and contain all, some, or none of the content from the retired 
policies. In addition to the policy and, as applicable, internal 
procedures are currently in place and will continue to be 
enhanced. 
 
The new and retired policy have been reviewed by staff, 
administrators, TASB staff, STC Legal Counsel, and the Chief 
of Staff 
 

Enclosed Documents 
 

Appendix A – List of New and Retired Policies 
Appendix B – New Policies 
 

Funding No funds are required 
 

Staff Resource 
 

Gardenia Perez, Chief of Staff 
 

Additional  
Information 
 

The Finance, Audit, and Human Resources Committee did 
not meet in November 2024; therefore, this item is presented 
without a committee recommendation.  Administration 
recommends approval as presented. 
 

Recommendation 
 

It is recommended that the Board of Trustees of South 
Texas College approve and authorize the following 
Minute Order proposed for consideration: 
The Board of Trustees of South Texas College approves and 
authorizes to adopt new Community and Governmental 
Relations Policy and retire current policy as presented, and 
which supersedes any previously adopted Board policy. 
 

 
 

  

238



November 19, 2024 Special Board Meeting 
Page 48, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 9:06 AM 
 

   

Appendix A  
 

List of New and Retired Policies 
 

Adopt New Policy Retired Policy(ies) Retired Policy  
Content Transition 

A-1.  GCB (Local) Public 
Information Program – 
Requests for 
Information 

A-2. Policy #2510: Requests for 
Public Information 

 
 

None of the content from 
the retired policy is 
included in the new local 
policy or procedure, 
handbook, manual, etc. 

 
 
 

Appendix B 
 

New policies follow in the packet. 
  

239



  
  
  
PUBLIC INFORMATION PROGRAM GCB
REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION (LOCAL)

 

DATE ISSUED: 11/3/2023   ADOPTED: 1 of 1
UPDATE 46 
GCB(LOCAL)-AJC 

 

Requests for public information shall be made to the College     
District by one of the following methods: 

1. Hand delivery  

2.  U.S. mail to South Texas College, Office of the President 
3201 W. Pecan Boulevard McAllen, TX 78501; or 

3. Email at publicinformationrequests@southtexascollege.edu.  

The College President may designate a day on which the College 
District’s administrative offices are closed or operating with minimal 
staffing as a nonbusiness day for purposes of compliance with the 
Texas Public Information Act (PIA). The College President may 
designate at most 10 nonbusiness days each calendar year. 
Designated nonbusiness days will be posted on the College’s main 
website.  

In the event a catastrophe, as defined by law, significantly impacts 
the College District such that the catastrophe directly causes the 
inability of the College District to comply with the requirements of 
the Texas Public Information Act (PIA), the College President shall 
suspend the applicability of the PIA to the College District for the 
time permitted by law and provide the required notices to the attor-
ney general and the public. The College President shall extend an 
initial suspension period as necessary in accordance with law. [See 
GCB(LEGAL)]  

In addition to other labor charges permitted by, and in accordance 
with law, the College District shall charge a requestor for additional 
personnel time spent producing information for the requestor after 
College District personnel have collectively spent: 

1. Thirty-six hours of time during the College District’s fiscal 
year; or 

2. Fifteen hours of time during a one-month period. 

Nonbusiness Days 

Suspension of 
Public Information 
During a 
Catastrophe 

Charging for 
Personnel Time 

240



November 19, 2024 Special Board Meeting 
Page 49, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 9:06 AM 
 

   

Review and Recommend Action to Adopt New Instruction Policy 

Purpose To adopt the new Instruction Policy to align with the Texas 
Association of School Boards (TASB) policy manual. 
 

Justification To provide the new policy in the TASB standardized format. In 
addition to the policy and, as applicable, internal procedures are 
currently in place and will continue to be enhanced. 
 
The new policy has been reviewed by staff, administrators, TASB 
staff, STC Legal Counsel, and the Vice President and Provost for 
Academic Affairs and Economic Development. 
 

Enclosed  
Documents 
 

Appendix A – List of New Policy 
Appendix B – New Policy 
 

Staff Resource 
 
 
 
 

Dr. Anahid Petrosian, Vice President and Provost for Academic 
Affairs and Economic Development 
Dr. Brett Millan, Associate Vice President for Academic Success and 
Advancement 
 

Additional  
Information 
 

The Finance, Audit, and Human Resources Committee did not meet 
in November 2024; therefore, this item is presented without a 
committee recommendation.  Administration recommends approval 
as presented. 
 

Recommendation It is recommended that the Board of Trustees of South Texas 
College approve and authorize the following Minute Order 
proposed for consideration: 
The Board of Trustees of South Texas College approves and 
authorizes to adopt the new Instruction Policy as presented, and 
which supersedes any previously adopted Board policy. 
 

 
Appendix A 

 
List of New and Retired Policies 

 
Adopt New Policy Retired Policy(ies) Retired Policy  

Content Transition 
A-1.  EA (Local) Academic 

Year and Calendar 
N/A N/A 

 
Appendix B 

 
New policies follow in the packet. 

  

241



  
  
  
ACADEMIC YEAR AND CALENDAR EA 
 (LOCAL) 

 

DATE ISSUED: 4/2/2018   ADOPTED: 1 of 1 
UPDATE 34  
EA(LOCAL)-AJC  

 

Each fall, the Board shall approve the College District’s academic 
calendar for the subsequent academic year. The calendar shall in-
clude dates for orientation, registration, holidays, final examina-
tions, and the end of each semester and summer term. As neces-
sary, the Board may amend the calendar. 

The calendar shall be published in the College District catalog and 
other College District publications as appropriate. 

 

 

242



November 19, 2024 Special Board Meeting 
Page 50, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 9:06 AM 
 

   

Review and Recommend Action to Adopt Local Governance Policies 
and Retire Current Policies 

Purpose To adopt new Local Governance Policies and retire the 
current policies to align with the Texas Association of School 
Boards (TASB) policy manual. 
 

Justification To provide the new policies in the TASB standardized format 
and contain all, some, or none of the content from the retired 
policies. In addition to the policy and, as applicable, internal 
procedures are currently in place and will continue to be 
enhanced. 
 
The new and retired policies have been reviewed by staff, 
administrators, TASB staff, STC Legal Counsel, and the 
Board Relations Administrator 
 

Enclosed Documents 
 

Appendix A – List of New and Retired Policies 
Appendix B – New Policies 
 

Staff Resource 
 

Venisa Earhart, Board Relations Administrator 
 

Additional  
Information 
 

The Finance, Audit, and Human Resources Committee did 
not meet in November 2024; therefore, this item is presented 
without a committee recommendation.  Administration 
recommends approval as presented. 
 

Recommendation 
 

It is recommended that the Board of Trustees of South 
Texas College approve and authorize the following 
Minute Order proposed for consideration: 
The Board of Trustees of South Texas College approves and 
authorizes to adopt new Local Governance Policies and retire 
current policies as presented, and which supersedes any 
previously adopted Board policy. 
 

 
  

243



November 19, 2024 Special Board Meeting 
Page 51, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 9:06 AM 
 

   

Appendix A  
 

List of New and Retired Policies 
 

Adopt New Policy Retired Policy(ies) Retired Policy  
Content Transition 

A-1.  BFB (Local) Chief 
Executive Officer - 
Contract 

A-2. Policy #2130: Contract of 
Employment for the 
President 

A-3. Policy #2150: Annual 
Salary of the President 

 

All of the content from the 
retired policy is included in 
the new local policy. 

B-1.  BFC (Local) Chief 
Executive Officer – 
Termination of 
Employment 

B-2. Policy #2170: Non-
Renewal of the President's 
Contract 

B-3. Policy #2180: Dismissal of 
the President 

 

All of the content from the 
retired policy is included in 
the new local policy. 

 
 

Appendix B 
 

New policies follow in the packet. 

 

  

244



South Texas College  
108500  
  
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER BFB 
CONTRACT (LOCAL) 

 

DATE ISSUED ADOPTED: 1 of 1 
UPDATE/LDU  
CODE(TYPE)-VERSION  

 

The Board shall approve the College President's annual salary and 
benefit program, which shall be forwarded to the Office of Human 
Resources for payroll processing. 

A contract of employment with the College District creates a prop-
erty interest in employment only for the period of time stated in the 
contract. Such a contract creates no property interest of any kind 
beyond the period of time stated in the contract. 

Salary 

Property Interest 

245



South Texas College  
108500  
  
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER BFC 
TERMINATION OF EMPLOYMENT (LOCAL) 

 

DATE ISSUED ADOPTED: 1 of 1 
UPDATE/LDU  
CODE(TYPE)-VERSION  

 

Note: For more information about termination mid-contract, 
see DMAA. 

The Board may decide by vote or inaction not to offer the College 
President further employment with the College District beyond the 
term of the contract for any reason or for no reason. 

The College President may be dismissed for good cause before 
the completion of the term fixed in the contract. 

Before the College President is dismissed, the College President 
shall be given reasonable notice in writing of the proposed action 
and the grounds, set out in sufficient detail to fairly enable the Col-
lege President to show any error that may exist. 

If, upon written notification, the President desires to be heard and 
contest the proposed action of the Board, the President shall give 
the Board written notice. The hearing shall be set on a date that af-
fords the President reasonable time to prepare an adequate de-
fense. 

The Board may conduct the hearing in open session or in closed 
session unless the President requests a public hearing, in which 
case the hearing shall be open to the public. 

At the hearing before the Board, the President may employ coun-
sel. The President also has the right to hear the evidence upon 
which the charges are based, to cross-examine all adverse wit-
nesses, and to present evidence of innocence or extenuating cir-
cumstances. Prior to dismissal, the Board shall determine the ex-
istence of the good cause for termination. Such determination shall 
be based solely on the evidence presented in the hearing. 

Non-Renewal of 
Contract 

Dismissal 

Notice 

Hearing 

246



November 19, 2024 Special Board Meeting 
Page 52, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 9:06 AM 
 

   

Review and Recommend Action to Adopt New Students Policies and 
Retire Current Policies  

Purpose To adopt new Students Policies and retire the current policies to align 
with the Texas Association of School Boards (TASB) policy manual. 
 

Justification To provide the new policies in the TASB standardized format and 
contain all, some, or none of the content from the retired policy. In 
addition to the policy and, as applicable, internal procedures are 
currently in place and will continue to be enhanced. 
 
The new and retired policies have been reviewed by staff, 
administrators, TASB staff, STC Legal Counsel, and the Vice 
President for Student Affairs and Enrollment Management, Vice 
President for Finance and Administrative Services, and Vice 
President and Provost for Academic Affairs and Economic 
Development. 
 

Enclosed 
Documents 
 

Appendix A – List of New and Retired Policies 
Appendix B – New Policies 
 

Staff Resource 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Dr. Matthew Hebbard, Vice President for Student Affairs and 
Enrollment Management 
Mary Del Paz, Vice President for Finance and Administrative 
Services  
Dr. Anahid Petrosian, Vice President and Provost for Academic 
Affairs and Economic Development 
Dr. Brett Millan, Associate Vice President for Academic Success and 
Advancement 
Maria Alonso, Director of Student Rights and Responsibilities 
Dr. Zachary Suarez, Executive Director of Human Resources and 
Talent Development 

Additional  
Information 
 

The Finance, Audit, and Human Resources Committee did not meet 
in November 2024; therefore, this item is presented without a 
committee recommendation.  Administration recommends approval 
as presented. 
 

Recommendation It is recommended that the Board of Trustees of South Texas 
College approve and authorize the following Minute Order 
proposed for consideration: 
The Board of Trustees of South Texas College approves and 
authorizes to adopt new Students Policies and retire current policies 
as presented, and which supersedes any previously adopted Board 
policy. 

 
 
 
 

247



November 19, 2024 Special Board Meeting 
Page 53, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 9:06 AM 
 

   

Appendix A  
 

List of New and Retired Policies 
 

Adopt New Policy Retired Policy(ies) Retired Policy  
Content Transition 

A-1. FAA (Local) Equal 
Educational Opportunity 

A-2. Policy #3216: 
Discrimination Against 
Pregnant and Parenting 
Students Prohibited 

All of the content from the 
retired policy is included 
in either a procedure, 
handbook, manual, etc. 

B-1. FC (Local) Attendance B-2. Policy #3335: Student 
Attendance 

All of the content from the 
retired policy is included 
in either a procedure, 
handbook, manual, etc. 

C-1. FMA (Local) Discipline 
and Penalties – 
Discipline Procedure 

N/A N/A 

 
 
 

 
Appendix B 

 
New policies follow in the packet. 

  

248



South Texas College  
108500  
  
EQUAL EDUCATIONAL OPPORTUNITY FAA 
PREGNANT AND PARENTING STUDENTS (LOCAL) 

 

DATE ISSUED: 12/13/2023   Adopted: 1 of 1 
UPDATE 46  
FAA(LOCAL)-AJC  

 

Note: For complaints of discrimination, harassment, and retali-
ation on the basis of sex or gender, see FFDA. For all 
other discrimination, harassment, and retaliation com-
plaints related to this policy, see FFDB. 

The College President or designee shall develop procedures ad-
dressing protections and accommodations, consistent with law, for 
students who are pregnant or parenting, including procedures ad-
dressing early registration and leaves of absence. 

The College President shall designate a pregnant and parenting 
student liaison for current or incoming students. Under this policy, 
parenting students are those who are the parents or legal guardians of 
children younger than 18 years of age. 

The liaison shall provide the students information regarding sup-
port services and other available resources and serve as the point 
of contact for a student requesting a protection or accommodation 
under Education Code 51.982. The liaison’s contact information 
shall be included in the procedures described above. 

The procedures and the liaison’s contact information shall be pub-
lished in the student and employee handbooks and posted on the 
College District’s website.  

Procedures 

Liaison 

Publication 

249



  
  
  
ATTENDANCE FC 
 (LOCAL) 

 

DATE ISSUED: 2/12/2013   ADOPTED: 1 of 1 
UPDATE 28  
FC(LOCAL)-AJC  

 

The Office of the Vice President for Academic Affairs and Eco-
nomic Development shall develop procedures addressing attend-
ance requirements, including procedures for all excused absences 
consistent with applicable law. The attendance procedures shall be 
published in the College District catalog, official bulletins, and other 
appropriate publications. 

250



  
  
  
DISCIPLINE AND PENALTIES FMA 
DISCIPLINE PROCEDURE (LOCAL) 

 

DATE ISSUED: 6/23/2020    1 of 2 
UPDATE 39  
FMA(LOCAL)-AJC  

 

College District faculty and staff shall submit an alleged violation or 
violations of College District policies and procedures, including the 
rules for student conduct [see FLB], committed by a student to the 
dean of student affairs or designee within a reasonable time follow-
ing an alleged incident, not to exceed ten College District business 
days. The allegations must be submitted in writing, through tradi-
tional or electronic means, and must describe the violation and any 
surrounding facts. 

The dean of student affairs or designee shall investigate the matter 
as necessary. If an allegation is deemed to be unfounded, the dean 
of student affairs or designee shall dismiss the allegation and shall 
provide the student written notice that the allegation of misconduct 
was made against the student and that the allegation was dis-
missed. 

Reports of sex discrimination or sexual harassment shall be sub-
mitted in accordance with DIAA or FFDA, as appropriate. 

If, however, the dean of student affairs or designee determines that 
the allegation warrants further consideration, the dean of student 
affairs or designee shall summon the student for a conference to 
be held within a reasonable time, not to exceed ten College District 
business days, following the receipt of the allegation of miscon-
duct. 

At the conference, the dean of student affairs or designee shall no-
tify the student of the allegation or allegations and provide the stu-
dent an opportunity to respond.  

After conferring with the student, if the dean of student affairs or 
designee determines that the student did not commit a violation, 
the allegation or allegations shall be dismissed as unfounded. The 
student shall be provided written notice of the dismissal. 

If the dean of student affairs or designee determines that the stu-
dent committed misconduct that warrants a penalty other than sus-
pension or expulsion, the dean of student affairs or designee shall 
provide the student written notice of the Student Code of Conduct 
violation penalty, the student’s right to appeal to the Student Con-
duct Review Panel. 

If the dean of student affairs or designee determines that the stu-
dent is responsible for misconduct that may warrant suspension or 
expulsion, the dean of student affairs or designee shall inform the 
student in writing of alleged violation(s) of student Code of Con-
duct and the date, time, and location of the disciplinary hearing to 
determine the responsibility of the student for the misconduct and 
to determine consequences as appropriate.  

Reports of Alleged 
Misconduct 

Exception 

Conference 

Unfounded 
Allegations 

Misconduct 
Warranting a 
Penalty 

 
 
 

Suspension or 
Expulsion 
 

251



  
  
  
DISCIPLINE AND PENALTIES FMA 
DISCIPLINE PROCEDURE (LOCAL) 

 

DATE ISSUED: 6/23/2020   ADOPTED: 2 of 2 
UPDATE 39  
FMA(LOCAL)-AJC  

 

The dean of student affairs or designee may take immediate disci-
plinary action, including suspension pending a hearing, against a 
student for policy violations if the continuing presence of the stu-
dent poses a danger to persons or property or an ongoing threat of 
disrupting the educational environment. 

For cases requiring a hearing by the review panel, the dean of stu-
dent affairs or designee will convene a student hearing, which will 
follow the processes and procedures delineated in the student 
handbook. The hearing will be at least ten business days from the 
date the charges are presented.  

Any student who has received sanctions, conditions, and/or re-
strictions may appeal the disciplinary decision made by the student 
conduct hearing. All appeals must be completed and submitted 
within five College District business days of the date the discipli-
nary decision is transmitted.  

Once an appeal is received, the dean of student affairs or designee 
shall convene a student discipline appeals committee, which will 
follow the processes and procedures delineated in the student 
handbook. 

 

 

Interim Disciplinary 
Action 

Student Conduct 
Hearing  

Appeal to the 
Student Discipline 

252



November 19, 2024 Special Board Meeting 
Page 54, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 9:06 AM 
 

   

Review and Recommend Action to Revise Policies 

Purpose To revise policies to align with the Texas Association of School 
Boards (TASB) policy manual. 
 

Justification TASB issues numbered updates semiannually (Spring and Fall) to 
the College. The number updates respond to changes to state and 
federal law, court cases, and decisions by the attorney general, and 
may also contain suggested changes to a local policy made by TASB.   
 
The revised policies have been reviewed by staff, administrators, 
TASB staff, STC Legal Counsel, and the Vice President for Finance 
and Administrative Services and the Vice President and Provost for 
Academic Affairs and Economic Development 
 

Enclosed 
Documents 
 

Appendix A – List of Revised Policies 
Appendix B – Revised Policies 
 

Staff Resource 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Mary Del Paz, Vice President for Finance and Administrative 
Services 
Myriam M. Lopez, Associate Vice President for Finance and 
Management 
Dr. Anahid Petrosian, Vice President and Provost for Academic 
Affairs and Economic Development 
Dr. Brett Millan, Associate Vice President for Academic Success and 
Advancement 
 

Additional  
Information 

The Finance, Audit, and Human Resources Committee did not meet 
in November 2024; therefore, this item is presented without a 
committee recommendation.  Administration recommends approval 
as presented. 
 

Recommendation It is recommended that the Board of Trustees of South Texas 
College approve and authorize the following Minute Order 
proposed for consideration: 
The Board of Trustees of South Texas College approves and 
authorizes to revise and adopt the policies as presented, which 
supersedes any previously adopted Board policies. 
 

 
 

  

253



November 19, 2024 Special Board Meeting 
Page 55, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 9:06 AM 
 

   

Appendix A  
 

Numbered Update Policy 

A-1.  CC (Local) Annual Operating Budget  

A-2.  EBA (Local) Alternate Methods of Instruction – Distance Education 

 
 
 

Appendix B 
 

Revised policies follow in the packet. 
  

254



South Texas College  
108500  
  
ANNUAL OPERATING BUDGET CC 
 (LOCAL) 

 

DATE ISSUED: 2/21/20235/17/2024   Adopted: 
1/31/2023 

1 of 1 
LDU 2023.01UPDATE 47  
CC(LOCAL)-X  

 

Budget planning shall be an integral part of overall program plan-
ning so that the budget effectively reflects the College District’s 
programs and activities and provides the resources to implement 
them. In the planning process, general educational goals, specific 
program goals, and alternatives for achieving program goals shall 
be considered. Budget planning and evaluation are continuous pro-
cesses and should be a part of each month’s activities. 

The budget shall conform to Coordinating Board requirements and 
meet the standards of the Southern Association of Colleges and 
Schools Commission on Colleges (SACSCOC).College District’s 
accreditor [see GK]. 

The annual public meeting to discuss the proposed budget shall be 
conducted as follows:  

1. The presiding officer shall request at the beginning of the 
meeting that all persons who desire to speak on the proposed 
budget sign up on the sheet provided. 

2. Prior to the beginning of the meeting, the Board may establish 
time limits for speakers. 

3. Speakers shall confine their remarks to the appropriation of 
funds as contained in the proposed budget. 

4. No officer or employee of the College District shall be re-
quired to respond to questions from speakers at the meeting. 

The adopted budget provides authority to expend funds for the pur-
poses indicated and in accordance with state law, Board policy, 
and the College District’s approved purchasing procedures. The 
expenditure of funds shall be under the direction of the College 
President or designee who shall ensure that funds are expended in 
accordance with the adopted budget. 

The Board may amend the budget at any time during the fiscal 
year. The College District shall develop procedures for budget 
amendments. 

The College District shall maintain an unrestricted fund balance 
sufficient to cover no less than three months of budgeted expendi-
tures, unless the Board approves the use, transfer, or designation 
of fund balance, and a plan to restore the fund balance to the mini-
mum amount. 

Budget Planning 

Budget Preparation 

Budget Meeting 

Budget Adoption 

Budget Amendments 

Unrestricted Fund 
Balance 

255



South Texas College  
108500  
  
ALTERNATE METHODS OF INSTRUCTION EBA 
DISTANCE EDUCATION (LOCAL) 

 

DATE ISSUED: 12/13/20235/17/2024   Adopted: 1 of 1 
UPDATE 4647  
EBA(LOCAL)-X  

 

The College District shall offer distance education in traditional 
online, hybrid, and competency-based online courses and pro-
grams in accordance with:  

• Applicable law; 

• Coordinating Board regulations and guidelines, including the 
Principles of Good Practice for Distance Education; 

• Principles, policies, and guidelines of the Southern Associa-
tion of Colleges and Schools Commission on Colleges 
(SACSCOC);College District’s accreditor [see GK]; and 

• College District policies and procedures.  

In the event of a natural disaster, pandemic, or other event in which 
instruction is adversely affected at any or all of the College Dis-
trict’s campuses or centers, instruction shall, as much as possible, 
continue and/or be facilitated through the use of the College Dis-
trict’s Learning Management System. 

The College District, in accordance with local, state, and federal 
guidelines, will continue instruction for academic and workforce 
courses, as much as possible, in an online format, with face-to-
face instruction as permitted, to ensure the safety of students, fac-
ulty, and staff. 

The vice president for academic affairs, collaboratively with the 
other divisions, shall develop specific guidelines for distance edu-
cation and instructional continuity to implement this policy. 

Instructional 
Continuity 

256



November 19, 2024 Special Board Meeting 
Page 56, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 9:06 AM 
 

   

Review and Recommend Action to Retire Current Policies 

Purpose To retire the current policies to align with the Texas Association of 
School Boards (TASB) policy manual. 
 

Justification Based on internal operations and functions, content from the retired 
policies may transition to a procedure, handbook, or operations 
manual as deemed appropriate by College staff. 
 
The retired policies have been reviewed by staff and administrators. 
 

Enclosed  
Documents 
 

Appendix A – List of Retired Policies 
Appendix B –Retired Policies 
 

Staff Resource 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Mary Del Paz, Vice President for Finance and Administrative 
Services  
Dr. Matthew Hebbard, Vice President for Student Affairs and 
Enrollment Management 
Myriam M. Lopez, Associate Vice President for Finance and 
Management 
Cynthia A. Blanco, Dean of Enrollment Systems and Registrar 
Elibariki V. Nguma, Director of Student Activities and Wellness 

Additional  
Information 
 

The Finance, Audit, and Human Resources Committee did not meet 
in November 2024; therefore, this item is presented without a 
committee recommendation.  Administration recommends approval 
as presented. 
 

Recommendation It is recommended that the Board of Trustees of South Texas 
College approve and authorize the following Minute Order 
proposed for consideration: 
The Board of Trustees of South Texas College approves and 
authorizes to retire current policies as presented, and which 
supersedes any previously adopted Board policy. 
 

 
  

257



November 19, 2024 Special Board Meeting 
Page 57, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 9:06 AM 
 

   

Appendix A  
 

Policy Retired Policy(ies) Retired Policy  
Content Transition 

CDC (Local) Accounting: 
Audits  
(Board Approved 5/28/24) 

 
A-1. Policy #2250: Evaluation 

of the Internal Auditor 

Some of the content from 
the retired policy is included 
in the new local policy.  

 
EGA (Local) Academic 
Achievement - Grading and 
Credit 
(Board Approved 1/30/24) 

B-1. Policy #3331: Students 
Called to Active Military 
Duty 

Some of the content from 
the retired policy is included 
in the new local policy.  

 
FKC (Local) Student 
Activities – Registered 
Student Organizations 
(Board Approved 10/29/24) 

C-1. Policy #3630: Student 
Organizations  

Some of the content from 
the retired policy is included 
in both the new local policy 
and a procedure, handbook, 
manual, etc.  

 
 
 
 

Appendix B 
 

Retired policies follow in the packet. 
 
  

258



RETIR
E

 MANUAL OF POLICY 

Title                         Evaluation of the Internal Auditor       2250 

Legal Authority                     Approval of the Board of Trustees          

Date Approved by Board     Board Minute Order dated May 30, 2019 

I. Purpose

Performance appraisals are an integral part of the College’s ongoing commitment to annually measure
the extent to which the employee’s performance meets the requirements of their employment and to
establish goals for the future; strengthen the relationship between the supervisor and the employee;
facilitate clear channels of communication; appraise and recognize performance; identify areas that
might require improvement; and assess communication and supervisory skills.

II. Policy

It is the policy of South Texas College that the Board meets in executive session to conduct a
performance appraisal of the Internal Auditor annually.  In reviewing the performance, the Board
provides feedback to the Internal Auditor on observed strengths and any areas needing improvement
for the upcoming academic year.

The performance appraisal will be retained at the Office of the President upon completion.

III. History

Origination Date Approved by Board:
May 30, 2019

Date Amended and Approved by Board:

259



RETIR
E

MANUAL OF POLICY 

Title  Students Called to Active Military Duty 3331 

Legal Authority By Approval of the Board of Trustees  

Date Approved by Board Board Minute Order dated March 13, 2003

In accordance with Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board Rules, South Texas College will 
adhere to the following regarding students called to active military duty: 

If a student withdraws because the student is called into active military service, the institution, at 
the student's option, shall:  

(1) refund the tuition and fees paid by the student for the semester in which the student
withdraws;

(2) grant a student, who is eligible under the institution's guidelines, an incomplete grade in all
courses by designating  "withdrawn-military" on the student's transcript; or

(3) as determined by the instructor, assign an appropriate final grade or credit to a student who
has satisfactorily completed a  substantial amount of course work and who has demonstrated
sufficient mastery of the course material

Initiation of Military Withdrawal 

It is the student’s responsibility to initiate the withdrawal process. The College is not responsible 
for any liabilities incurred as result of the student’s failure to officially withdraw from the 
College. Students whose circumstances require them to discontinue attending a course should 
promptly take steps through the Office of Admissions and Records to officially withdraw from it. 
Failure to withdraw properly will result in a grade of “F” in the course. 

South Texas College Page 1   Last Printed 08/06/2004  

260



RETIR
E

 

 MANUAL OF POLICY 
 
 
Title   Student Organizations    3630 
 
Legal Authority  Approval of the Board of Trustees  
 
Date Approved by Board Board Minute Order dated November 9,1995 

As Amended by Minute Order dated July 18, 1996 
    As Amended by Board Minute Order dated July 28, 2005 
 
South Texas College seeks to encourage students interested in a common purpose to organize and request 
approval as a recognized student organization.  Student organizations must be recognized as such in order 
to be permitted to use college facilities.  Student organizations will be required to comply with College 
policy, rules, and legal requirements. 
 
The College recognizes and encourages student organizations as an integral part of college life. Student 
organizations offer an opportunity for personal growth and development of special talents and interests.  
Student participation in the planning and administration of varied College student activities affords 
practical learning experiences of invaluable benefit to all.  Student and faculty fraternalism is fostered and 
thus provides for an atmosphere conducive to long-lasting friendships as well as meaningful learning 
experiences. 
 
Funds from Student Activities may assist recognized student organizations with specific needs.  A 
Committee on student organizations will be established to decide eligibility of student organizations to 
receive support.  A student organization requesting such funding will be allowed, if necessary, to present 
documentation to justify the request. 
 
The Director of Student Life and Wellness has the responsibility for the registration and official College 
recognition of student organizations.  Approval of student organizations is granted by the Director of 
Student Life and Wellness after approval has been obtained from the Committee on Student 
Organizations.  Student organizations must be sponsored by a full time staff or faculty member.  
 
The President is authorized to develop procedures for the process of recognizing student organizations 
and their remaining on active status. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
South Texas College  Page 1                                      Last Printed 07/29/2005  
 
 261



November 19, 2024 Special Board Meeting 
Page 58, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 9:06 AM 
 

   

Review and Status Update on Pecan Campus Kinesiology Building Q 

Purpose To provide an update on the status of the Pecan Campus Kinesiology 
Building Q project. 
 

Justification The Board approved a new location for Pecan Campus Kinesiology 
Building Q on July 16, 2024. 

The design team has provided a plan for the new location.  They have 
been working with College staff to propose changes to the plans to 
reduce the overall cost of the project.   

 
Enclosed 
Documents 
 

Appendix A – Project Presentation and Cost Reduction Measures 

Funding No funds are required. 
 

Staff Resource Ricardo de la Garza, Executive Director for Facilities Planning & 
Construction 
 

Recommendation No action is required. This item is presented for information purposes. 
 

 
Appendix A 

 
 

Project Presentation and Cost Reduction Measures follows in the packet. 
  

262



263



264



PR
EV

IO
U

S
BU

IL
D

IN
G

LO
C

AT
IO

N

N
EW

BL
D

G
.L

O
C

AT
IO

N

-B
U

IL
D

IN
G

H
AS

BE
EN

R
EL

O
C

AT
ED

N
O

R
TH

TO
N

EW
SI

TE
.

-N
EW

SI
TE

H
AS

36
PA

R
KI

N
G

SP
AC

ES
-

R
ED

U
C

ED
FR

O
M

47
-N

O
LO

N
G

D
R

IV
EW

AY
R

EQ
U

IR
ED

-B
LD

G
.C

LO
SE

R
TO

AL
L

U
N

D
ER

G
R

O
U

N
D

U
TI

LI
TE

S
AL

O
N

G
C

AM
PU

S
BA

C
KB

O
N

E
R

ED
U

C
IN

G
C

O
ST

S

265



-B
U

IL
D

IN
G

H
AS

BE
EN

R
O

TA
TE

D
90

D
EG

R
EE

S
TO

O
R

IE
N

T
AL

O
N

G
TH

E
M

AI
N

C
AM

PU
S

D
R

IV
E

-M
AI

N
EN

TR
Y

N
O

W
FA

C
ES

EA
ST

-E
XE

R
C

IS
E

AN
D

SP
IN

R
O

O
M

S
N

O
W

FA
C

E
N

O
R

TH
-C

LA
SS

R
O

O
M

S
AN

D
C

O
N

FE
R

EN
C

E
R

O
O

M
N

O
W

FA
C

E
SO

U
TH

-J
O

G
G

IN
G

TR
AC

K/
SI

D
EW

AL
K

IN
TR

O
D

U
C

ED
-F

U
TU

R
E

C
O

U
LD

H
AV

E
O

U
TD

O
O

R
S

EX
ER

C
IS

E
N

O
D

ES
AL

O
N

G
TR

AC
K.

266



D
EL

ET
ED

4'
O

F
BU

IL
D

IN
G

SH
AD

E
O

VE
R

H
AN

G
-N

O
W

FA
C

ES
N

O
R

TH

D
EL

ET
ED

SK
YL

IG
H

T

D
EL

ET
ED

O
VE

R
H

EA
D

D
O

O
R

TO
SP

IN
R

O
O

M

R
ED

U
C

E
TH

E
AM

O
U

N
T

O
F

W
ES

T
FA

C
IN

G
G

LA
SS

D
EL

ET
ED

IN
TE

R
IO

R
PO

R
TI

O
N

O
F

PL
AN

TE
R

BE
N

C
H

D
EL

ET
ED

LA
R

G
E

ST
O

R
EF

R
O

N
TS

FA
C

IN
G

W
ES

T-
R

EP
LA

C
ED

W
IT

H
SM

AL
LE

R
O

PE
N

IN
G

S

D
EL

ET
ED

IN
TE

R
IO

R
ST

O
R

EF
R

O
N

T
AT

SU
IT

E

D
EL

ET
ED

IN
TE

R
IO

R
ST

O
R

EF
R

O
N

T
AT

C
O

M
PU

TE
R

LA
B

D
EL

ET
ED

TH
E

O
VE

R
H

EA
D

SH
AD

E
C

AN
O

PY
-

LE
FT

C
O

N
N

EC
TI

O
N

PO
IN

TS

R
ED

U
C

ED
PL

AN
TE

R
BE

N
C

H
BY

50
%

267



R
EP

LA
C

ED
AL

L
KI

N
ET

IX
TE

XT
IL

E
FL

O
O

R
IN

G
IN

TH
E

SO
U

TH
EN

D
O

F
TH

E
BU

IL
D

IN
G

W
IT

H
C

AM
PU

S
ST

AN
D

AR
D

BR
AN

D
M

O
D

U
LA

R
C

AR
PE

T-
M

AN
N

IN
G

TO
N

268



D
EL

ET
ED

4'
O

F
SH

AD
E

O
VE

R
H

AN
G

FR
O

M
TH

IS
SI

D
E

O
F

TH
E

BU
IL

D
IN

G

269



D
EL

ET
ED

4'
O

F
SH

AD
E

O
VE

R
H

AN
G

FR
O

M
TH

IS
SI

D
E

O
F

TH
E

BL
D

G
.

D
EL

ET
ED

EX
TE

R
IO

R
ST

O
R

EF
R

O
N

T
SY

ST
EM

FA
C

IN
G

W
ES

T

D
EL

ET
ED

EX
TE

R
IO

R
ST

O
R

EF
R

O
N

T-
R

EP
LA

C
ED

W
IT

H
SM

AL
L

O
PE

N
IN

G
S

FA
C

IN
G

W
ES

T

270



November 19, 2024 Special Board Meeting 
Page 59, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 9:06 AM 
 

   

Review and Action on Authorization to Solicit Architectural Services 
for the Pecan Campus Institutional Support Services Building N 

Expansion 

Purpose To approve the solicitation of architectural services for the Pecan 
Campus Institutional Support Services Building N Expansion project.   
 

Justification Solicitation of Request for Qualifications (RFQ) for architectural 
services is necessary to procure a design team to prepare all 
necessary design development drawings and specifications in 
preparation for construction.  
 
The project consists of expanding the existing Institutional Support 
Services Building N to provide more space for the Business Office, 
Purchasing, and Facilities Planning & Construction departments.   
 
The proposed scope of work is summarized as follows: 

• Expansion of Building N to the east and west sides of the 
building. 

• Total Expansion 10,665 sq. ft. 
 

Enclosed 
Documents 
 

Appendix A – Project Presentation 
Appendix B – Fact Sheet 
 

Funding The total Project 2025-004C estimated cost, including construction, 
design, miscellaneous, and FFE, is $4,991,220.  

• Construction       $3,839,400 
• Design                     383,940 
• Miscellaneous         115,182 
• FFE                         326,349 
• Technology             326,349 

          Total                   $4,991,220 
 
The funds are available in the Unexpended Construction Plant Fund 
for use in FY 2024 – 2025. 
 

Staff Resource Ricardo de la Garza, Executive Director for Facilities Planning & 
Construction 
Mary Del Paz, Vice President for Finance and Administrative 
Services 
 

Additional 
Information 

The Facilities Committee did not meet in November 2024; therefore, 
this item is presented without a committee 
recommendation.  Administration recommends approval as 
presented. 
 

Recommendation It is recommended that the Board of Trustees of South Texas 
College approve and authorize the following Minute Order 
proposed for consideration: 

271



November 19, 2024 Special Board Meeting 
Page 60, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 9:06 AM 
 

   

The Board of Trustees of South Texas College approves and 
authorizes to proceed with the solicitation of architectural services 
for the Pecan Campus Institutional Support Services Building N 
Expansion project as presented. 

Approval Recommended: 

 Dr. Ricardo J. Solis 
President 
 

 
Appendix A 

 
 

Project presentation follows in the packet. 
 

Appendix B 
 
 

Fact Sheet follows in the packet. 

  

272



P
ec

an
 C

am
p

u
s 

In
st

it
u

ti
o

n
al

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 S
er

vi
ce

s 

B
u

ild
in

g
 N

 E
xp

an
si

o
n

24
25

-0
04

C

273



PR
O

JE
C

T 
LO

C
AT

IO
N

P
ec

an
 C

am
p

u
s 

In
st

it
u

ti
o

n
al

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
 

B
u

ild
in

g
 N

 E
xp

an
si

o
n

N
or

th

274



P
ec

an
 C

am
p

u
s 

In
st

it
u

ti
o

n
al

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
 

B
u

ild
in

g
 N

 E
xp

an
si

o
n

N
or

th

275



R
eq

u
es

te
d

 B
y

Fi
na

nc
e 

an
d 

Ad
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
Se

rv
ic

es
, B

us
in

es
s 

O
ffi

ce
, P

ur
ch

as
in

g,
 a

nd
 F

ac
ilit

ie
s 

Pl
an

ni
ng

 &
 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n

S
co

p
e 

o
f 

W
o

rk
Ex

pa
ns

io
n 

of
 P

ec
an

 In
st

itu
tio

na
l S

up
po

rt 
Se

rv
ic

es
 B

ui
ld

in
g 

N
  t

o 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
e 

fu
nc

tio
ns

 fo
r t

he
 

G
ra

nt
 A

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
an

d 
Ac

co
un

ts
 R

ec
ei

va
bl

es
 S

er
vi

ce
s


To

ta
l S

qu
ar

e 
Fe

et
 =

 1
0,

66
5 

s.
f.

o
Ea

st
 S

id
e 

Ex
pa

ns
io

n 
   

5,
10

0 
s.

f.
o

W
es

t S
id

e 
Ex

pa
ns

io
n 

  5
,5

65
 s

.f.


Sp
ac

es
 to

 In
cl

ud
e:

o
O

ffi
ce

s
o

C
on

fe
re

nc
e 

R
oo

m
s

o
St

or
ag

e 
R

oo
m

s
o

W
or

kr
oo

m
s

o
R

es
tro

om
s 

o
Su

pp
or

t S
er

vi
ce

s 
R

oo
m

s

E
st

im
at

ed
 T

o
ta

l P
ro

je
ct

 B
u

d
g

et
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
$ 

3,
83

9,
40

0
D

es
ig

n 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
38

3,
94

0
M

is
ce

lla
ne

ou
s 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 1
15

,1
82

FF
E 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  3

26
,3

49
Te

ch
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  3
26

,3
49

To
ta

l P
ro

je
ct

 B
u

d
g

et
   

   
   

   
  $

 4
,9

91
,2

20

P
ec

an
 C

am
p

u
s 

In
st

it
u

ti
o

n
al

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
 

B
u

ild
in

g
 N

 E
xp

an
si

o
n

276



Project Fact Sheet

11/1/2024

Project Name: Project No.

Funding Source(s):  

Project Budget

FY 24-25

Actual 

Expenditures

Variance of 

Project Budget 

vs. Actual 

Expenditures Project Budget

FY 25-26

Actual 

Expenditures

Variance of 

Project Budget 

vs. Actual 

Expenditures

Total Actual  

Expenditures To 

Date

Construction: -$    -$  -$     -$     -$  -$    -$      

Design: 307,152.00              - - - - 

Miscellaneous: 10,000.00 - - - - 

FFE: - - - - 

Technology: - - - - 

Total: 317,152.00$      -$    -$     -$     -$  -$      -$      

Approval to Solicit 

Architect/Engineer: TBD Vendor

Contract 

Amount

Actual 

Expenditures Variance

Architect/Engineer: TBD TBD -$    -$  -$    

TBD -$    -$  -$    

Contractor: TBD
Substantial 

Completion TBD Board Acceptance TBD

STC FPC Project Manager:

Final Completion TBD Board Acceptance TBD

Board Approval to 

Solicit Architect/Engineer

Board Approval of 

Architect/Engineer

Board Approval 

of Contractor

Construction Start 

Date

11/26/2024 1/28/2025 8/26/2025 9/15/2025

Fiscal Year FFE

2024-25 - 

2025-26 - 

Project Total  $ -   

 PROJECT SITE 

FPC Project Manager FPC Asst. Director FPC Director

11/19/2024 Board Meeting: Review and Action on Authorization to Solicit for Architectural Services for the Pecan Campus Institutional Support Services Building N Expansion

 $ -   -$         $ -    $ -    $ -   

Current Agenda Item

Pecan Campus Institutional Support Services Building N Expansion 2025-002C

Unexpended Plant Fund

FY 24-25 FY 25-26

Board Status

Board Approval of 

Schematic Design

TBD

Project Team

Projected Timeline

10/31/2026 10/30/2026

Board Approval of 

Schematic Design

5/27/2025

Board Approval of 

Substantial Completion Date

Board Approval of 

Final Completion Date FFE Completion of Move In

Total

Project Budget

3,839,400.00$       

383,940.00 

115,182.00 

326,249.00 

326,249.00 

4,991,020.00$      

- 

Design and construct an expansion of the Institutional Support building N at the Pecan 

Campus for Business Office, Purchasing and Planning & Construction departments.

Design and construct an expansion to the west side and east side of Pecan Campus building N at a total square feet of 10,665 to 

include offices, conference rooms, storage rooms, workrooms, restrooms, and support services rooms.

                                    -   - -$        -   

Project ScopeProject Description

Martin Villarreal

Project Calendar of Expenditures by Fiscal Year

-   

Project TotalDesign Construction

9/24/2026

Miscellaneous Tech

- - -$     -   

277



November 19, 2024 Special Board Meeting 
Page 61, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 9:06 AM 
 

   

Review and Action on Authorization to Solicit Architectural Services 
for the Pecan Campus Administration Building  

Purpose To approve the solicitation of architectural services for the Pecan 
Campus Administration Building project.   
 

Justification Solicitation of Request for Qualifications (RFQ) for architectural 
services is necessary to procure a design team to prepare all 
necessary design development drawings and specifications in 
preparation for construction.  
 
The Board of Trustees recommended moving forward with this project 
at the November 2, 2024 Board Work Session. The project consists 
of constructing a building for Administration and related departments.   
 
The proposed scope of work is summarized as follows: 

• Construction of an Administration building on the north side of 
Pecan Campus. 

• Total Square Footage: 60,000 sq. ft. 
 

Enclosed 
Documents 
 

Appendix A – Project Presentation 

Funding The total Project 2025-003C estimated cost, including construction, 
design, miscellaneous, and FFE, is $31,200,000.  

• Construction         $24,000,000 
• Design                       2,400,000 
• Miscellaneous              720,000 
• FFE                         2,040,000 
• Technology             2,040,000 

          Total                     $31,200,000 
 
The funds are available in the Unexpended Construction Plant Fund 
for use in FY 2024 – 2025. 
 

Staff Resource Ricardo de la Garza, Executive Director for Facilities Planning & 
Construction 
Mary Del Paz, Vice President for Finance and Administrative 
Services 
 

Additional 
Information 

The Facilities Committee did not meet in November 2024; therefore, 
this item is presented without a committee 
recommendation.  Administration recommends approval as 
presented. 
 

Recommendation It is recommended that the Board of Trustees of South Texas 
College approve and authorize the following Minute Order 
proposed for consideration: 

278



November 19, 2024 Special Board Meeting 
Page 62, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 9:06 AM 
 

   

The Board of Trustees of South Texas College approves and 
authorizes to proceed with the solicitation of architectural services for 
the Pecan Campus Administration Building project as presented. 

Approval Recommended: 

 Dr. Ricardo J. Solis 
President 

 
 

Appendix A 
 
 

Project presentation follows in the packet. 
  

279



P
ec

an
 C

am
p

u
s 

A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
io

n
 B

u
ild

in
g

 S
 

280



PR
O

JE
C

T 
LO

C
AT

IO
N

P
ec

an
 C

am
p

u
s 

A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
io

n
 B

u
ild

in
g

 S

P
ro

je
ct

 L
o

ca
ti

o
n N
or

th

Pr
op

os
ed

 6
0,
00

0 
sq
.ft
. 

Ad
m
in
ist
ra
tio

n 
Bu

ild
in
g 

(2
0,
00

0 
sq
.ft
. e
ac
h 
flo

or
)

Pr
op

os
ed

 A
dm

in
ist
ra
tio

n 
Bu

ild
in
g 
Pa
rk
in
g 
Lo
t

281



S
co

p
e 

o
f 

W
o

rk

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
of

 a
 n

ew
 6

0,
00

0 
sq

.ft
. A

dm
in

is
tra

tio
n 

Bu
ild

in
g 

at
 th

e 
Pe

ca
n 

C
am

pu
s 

w
hi

ch
 w

ou
ld

 in
cl

ud
e 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g:
•

Pr
es

id
en

t’s
 O

ffi
ce

•
Vi

ce
 P

re
si

de
nt

 o
f F

in
an

ce
 a

nd
 A

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

Se
rv

ic
es

 o
ffi

ce
s

•
Vi

ce
 P

re
si

de
nt

 o
f A

ca
de

m
ic

 A
ffa

irs
 a

nd
 E

co
no

m
ic

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
ffi

ce
s

•
Vi

ce
 P

re
si

de
nt

 o
f I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

Se
rv

ic
es

, P
la

nn
in

g,
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 a

nd
 S

tra
te

gi
c 

In
iti

at
iv

es
 o

ffi
ce

s
•

Vi
ce

 P
re

si
de

nt
 o

f S
tu

de
nt

 A
ffa

irs
 a

nd
 E

nr
ol

lm
en

t M
an

ag
em

en
t

•
Ad

di
tio

na
l V

ic
e 

Pr
es

id
en

t’s
 o

ffi
ce

s 
•

Bo
ar

d 
R

oo
m

 
•

Ev
en

t C
en

te
r

•
Pa

rk
in

g 
an

d 
Si

te
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
•

Bu
ild

in
g 

Su
pp

or
t S

pa
ce

s

E
st

im
at

ed
 T

o
ta

l 
P

ro
je

ct
 B

u
d

g
et

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
   

   
   

   
   

  $
 2

4,
00

0,
00

0
D

es
ig

n 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 2

,4
00

,0
00

M
is

ce
lla

ne
ou

s 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 7
20

,0
00

FF
E 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  2

,0
40

,0
00

Te
ch

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  2

,0
40

,0
00

To
ta

l P
ro

je
ct

 B
ud

ge
t  

   
$ 

31
,2

00
,0

00

P
ec

an
 C

am
p

u
s 

A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
io

n
 B

u
ild

in
g

 S

P
ro

je
ct

 B
u

d
g

et

282



November 19, 2024 Special Board Meeting 
Page 63, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 9:06 AM 
 

   

Review and Action on Contracting Engineering Services for the Pecan 
Campus Physical Plant Building E Cooling Tower Above Ground 

Piping System  

Purpose To contract engineering services for the Pecan Campus Physical 
Plant Building E Cooling Tower Above Ground Piping System project.  
 

Justification Engineering services are necessary for design and construction 
administration services for this project. The design scope of work 
includes, but is not limited to, design, analysis, preparation of plans 
and specifications, permit applications, construction administration, 
and inspection of the project. 
 
Due to several leaks in the underground piping system in May 2024 
and a subsequent assessment of the piping, the Board approved 
solicitation of engineering services on September 24, 2024 to provide 
the above-ground piping system needed for the Pecan Campus 
Physical Plant. 
 
The proposed scope of work is summarized as follows: 

• Disconnection and abandonment of existing underground 
piping system. 

• Construction of an above-ground piping system. 
 

Enclosed 
Documents 
 

Appendix A – RFQ Solicitation Information 
Appendix B – Project Presentation 
Appendix C – Ranking and Evaluations of Respondents 
Appendix D – Fact Sheet 
 

Funding The total Project 2024-010R estimated cost, including construction, 
design, and miscellaneous, is $731,250.  

• Construction       $650,000 
• Design                    65,000 
• Miscellaneous        16,250 

          Total                   $731,250 
 
The funds are available in the Renewals & Replacements Fund for 
use in FY 2024 – 2025. 
 

Staff Resource George McCaleb, Executive Director for Facilities Operations and 
Maintenance 
Ricardo de la Garza, Executive Director for Facilities Planning & 
Construction 
Mary Del Paz, Vice President for Finance and Administrative 
Services 
 

Additional 
Information 

The Facilities Committee did not meet in November 2024; therefore, 
this item is presented without a committee 

283



November 19, 2024 Special Board Meeting 
Page 64, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 9:06 AM 
 

   

recommendation.  Administration recommends approval as 
presented. 
 

Recommendation It is recommended that the Board of Trustees of South Texas 
College approve and authorize the following Minute Order 
proposed for consideration: 

The Board of Trustees of South Texas College approves and 
authorizes to contract engineering services with DBR Engineering 
Consultants, Inc. for the Pecan Campus Physical Plant Building E 
Cooling Tower Above Ground Piping System project as presented. 

Approval Recommended: 

 Dr. Ricardo J. Solis 
President 
 

Appendix A 
RFQ Solicitation Information 

 
Advertised RFQ October 2, 2024 and October 9, 2024 
RFQ Responses Due October 17, 2024 
RFQ Issued To Thirty-seven (37) Vendors 
Responses Received From Seven (7) Responses 

Responses Reviewed By 
Facilities Operations & Maintenance, Facilities 
Planning & Construction, and Purchasing 
Departments 

 
 

Appendix B 
Project Presentation follows in the packet. 

 
Appendix C 

Ranking and Evaluations of Respondents follow in the packet. 
 

Appendix D 
Fact Sheet follows in the packet. 

  

284



P
ec

an
 C

am
p

u
s

P
h

ys
ic

al
 P

la
n

t 
B

u
ild

in
g

 E
 C

o
o

lin
g

 T
o

w
er

s

A
b

o
ve

 G
ro

u
n

d
 P

ip
in

g
 S

ys
te

m

20
25

-0
26

R

285



PR
O

JE
C

T 
LO

C
AT

IO
N

P
ec

an
 C

am
p

u
s 

 P
h

ys
ic

al
 P

la
n

t 
B

u
ild

in
g

 E
 C

o
o

lin
g

 T
o

w
er

 

A
b

o
ve

 G
ro

u
n

d
 P

ip
in

g
 S

ys
te

m

P
ro

je
ct

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 S
it

e

286



Pr
oj

ec
t 

Lo
ca

tio
n

N
or

th

P
ec

an
 C

am
p

u
s 

 P
h

ys
ic

al
 P

la
n

t 
B

u
ild

in
g

 E
 C

o
o

lin
g

 T
o

w
er

 

A
b

o
ve

 G
ro

u
n

d
 P

ip
in

g
 S

ys
te

m

P
ro

je
ct

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 S
it

e

287



Pr
op

os
ed

 L
oc

at
io

n

P
ec

an
 C

am
p

u
s 

 P
h

ys
ic

al
 P

la
n

t 
B

u
ild

in
g

 E
 C

o
o

lin
g

 T
o

w
er

 

A
b

o
ve

 G
ro

u
n

d
 P

ip
in

g
 S

ys
te

m

E
xt

er
io

r 
P

h
o

to
s

288



R
eq

u
es

te
d

 B
y

Fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
O

pe
ra

tio
ns

 a
nd

 M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 

S
co

p
e 

o
f 

W
o

rk
N

ew
 A

bo
ve

 G
ro

un
d 

C
oo

lin
g 

To
w

er
 P

ip
in

g 
to

 R
ep

la
ce

 th
e 

Ex
is

tin
g 

U
nd

er
gr

ou
nd

 
Pi

pi
ng

 S
ys

te
m

E
st

im
at

ed
 T

o
ta

l P
ro

je
ct

 B
u

d
g

et
   

   
   

 
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

$ 
   

65
0,

00
0 

 
D

es
ig

n 
65

,0
00

 
M

is
ce

lla
ne

ou
s 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 1

6,
25

0
To

ta
l P

ro
je

ct
 B

ud
ge

t  
   

 $
   

 7
31

,2
50

P
ec

an
 C

am
p

u
s 

 P
h

ys
ic

al
 P

la
n

t 
B

u
ild

in
g

 E
 C

o
o

lin
g

 T
o

w
er

 

A
b

o
ve

 G
ro

u
n

d
 P

ip
in

g
 S

ys
te

m

P
ro

p
o

se
d

 S
co

p
e 

&
 B

u
d

g
et

289



V
E

N
D

O
R

B
at

h 
G

ro
up

, L
LC

.
D

B
R

 E
ng

in
ee

rin
g

C
on

su
lta

nt
s, 

In
c.

ED
C

O
N

Et
ho

s H
ol

is
tiq

ue
 H

ol
di

ng
s, 

LL
C

./d
ba

 E
th

os
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g
H

al
ff

 A
ss

oc
ia

te
s, 

In
c.

Si
gm

a 
H

N
 E

ng
in

ee
rs

, P
LL

C
.

Tr
in

ity
 M

EP
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g,
 L

LC
.

A
D

D
R

E
SS

56
56

 S
 S

ta
pl

es
 S

t S
te

 1
10

20
0 

S 
10

th
 S

t S
te

 9
01

10
1 

E 
D

el
ta

 S
t S

te
 A

B
11

26
 S

 C
om

m
er

ce
 S

t
50

00
 W

 M
ili

ta
ry

 S
te

 1
00

70
1 

S 
15

th
 S

t
35

33
 M

or
el

an
d 

D
r S

te
 A

C
IT

Y
/S

T
A

T
E

/Z
IP

C
or

pu
s C

hr
is

ti,
 T

X
 7

84
11

M
cA

lle
n,

 T
X

 7
85

01
Ph

ar
r, 

TX
 7

85
77

H
ar

lin
ge

n,
 T

X
 7

85
50

M
cA

lle
n,

 T
X

 7
85

03
M

cA
lle

n,
 T

X
 7

85
01

W
es

la
co

, T
X

 7
85

96

PH
O

N
E

36
1-

99
2-

22
84

95
6-

68
3-

16
40

95
6-

88
4-

70
06

95
6-

23
0-

34
35

95
6-

66
4-

02
86

95
6-

33
2-

32
06

95
6-

97
3-

05
00

FA
X

36
1-

99
2-

22
87

95
6-

68
3-

19
03

95
6-

72
0-

08
30

95
6-

66
4-

02
82

95
6-

68
7-

55
61

95
6-

35
1-

57
50

C
O

N
T

A
C

T
W

ill
ia

m
 B

. S
ta

rk
H

ug
o 

A
vi

la
D

an
ie

l C
ha

ve
z

C
es

ar
 G

on
za

le
z

M
ar

co
s D

ia
z

Je
su

s G
ab

rie
l H

in
oj

os
a

Le
on

ar
do

 M
un

oz

2.
1.

1 
 S

ta
te

m
en

t o
f 

In
te

re
st

 fo
r 

Pr
oj

ec
t

St
at

es
 th

ey
 h

av
e 

co
ns

id
er

ab
le

 
ex

pe
rie

nc
e 

de
si

gn
in

g 
en

gi
ne

er
ed

 
sy

st
em

s f
or

 n
ew

 a
nd

 e
xi

st
in

g 
bu

ild
in

gs
. P

ro
vi

de
d 

M
EP

 
Pr

of
es

si
on

al
 se

rv
ic

es
 fo

r t
he

 p
as

t 
66

 y
ea

rs
 to

 c
lie

nt
s i

n 
va

rio
us

 
m

ar
ke

ts
. P

ro
je

ct
 M

an
ag

er
 h

as
 

ov
er

 3
0 

ye
ar

s o
f e

xp
er

ie
nc

e.
 

Po
in

te
d 

ou
t t

he
 w

or
k 

th
e 

fir
m

 h
as

 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 m
or

e 
th

an
 1

5 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 

ov
er

 th
e 

la
st

 te
n 

ye
ar

s f
or

 S
TC

. 
In

di
ca

te
d 

th
at

 th
ey

 c
an

 b
eg

in
 w

or
k

on
 n

ew
 p

ro
je

ct
s i

m
m

ed
ia

te
ly

.

In
di

ca
te

d 
th

e 
fir

m
's 

hi
gh

ly
 

qu
al

ifi
ed

 te
am

 h
as

 fa
m

ili
ar

ity
 

w
ith

 p
ub

lic
 sc

ho
ol

s a
nd

 
co

lle
ge

s. 
  

In
di

ca
te

d 
th

e 
fir

m
's 

hi
gh

ly
 

qu
al

ifi
ed

 te
am

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
pr

ov
id

in
g 

M
EP

 e
ng

in
ee

rin
g 

se
rv

ic
es

 to
 h

ig
he

r e
du

ca
tio

n 
fo

r 
ab

ou
t 2

0 
ye

ar
s. 

  E
m

ph
as

iz
ed

 
th

ei
r p

re
vi

ou
s w

or
k 

fo
r S

TC
 a

n d
th

er
ef

or
e 

th
ei

r f
am

ili
ar

ity
 w

ith
 

th
e 

ca
m

pu
se

s a
nd

 st
af

f.

In
di

ca
te

d 
th

at
 th

ei
r p

re
vi

ou
s 

ex
pe

rie
nc

e 
w

ith
 S

TC
, t

he
y 

ha
ve

 
de

m
on

st
ra

te
d 

th
ei

r c
om

m
itm

en
t 

to
 th

e 
C

ol
le

ge
 a

nd
 th

e 
qu

al
ity

 o
f 

w
or

k.

Th
e 

fir
m

 e
m

ph
as

iz
ed

 th
e 

ex
pe

rie
nc

e 
of

 th
e 

tw
o 

pr
in

ci
pa

ls
 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
fir

m
.  

Th
ey

 in
di

ca
te

d 
th

at
 S

TC
 w

ou
ld

 b
e 

w
or

ki
ng

 
di

re
ct

ly
 w

ith
 th

e 
tw

o 
pr

in
ci

pa
ls

 
an

d 
po

in
te

d 
ou

t t
ha

t t
he

 fi
rm

's 
si

ze
 w

ou
ld

 b
e 

be
tte

r a
bl

e 
to

 m
ee

t
th

e 
ne

ed
s i

n 
a 

co
st

-e
ff

ec
tiv

e 
m

an
ne

r.

In
di

ca
te

d 
th

at
 th

ei
r p

re
vi

ou
s 

ex
pe

rie
nc

e 
w

ith
 S

TC
 a

nd
 si

m
ila

r 
in

st
itu

tio
na

l c
us

to
m

er
s, 

de
m

on
st

ra
te

s t
he

ir 
cl

ie
nt

 c
en

tri
c,

 
an

d 
re

le
nt

le
ss

ly
 c

om
m

itm
en

t t
o 

th
e 

C
ol

le
ge

 a
nd

 th
e 

qu
al

ity
 o

f 
w

or
k.

2.
1.

2 
 H

is
to

ry
 a

nd
 

St
at

is
tic

s o
f F

ir
m

- P
ro

vi
di

ng
 se

rv
ic

es
 si

nc
e 

19
57

- 6
0+

 st
af

f m
em

be
rs

 in
 C

or
pu

s 
C

hr
is

ti 
of

fic
e

- 1
,0

00
 y

ea
r o

f c
om

bi
ne

d 
ex

pe
rie

nc
e

- P
ro

vi
di

ng
 se

rv
ic

es
 si

nc
e 

19
72

- 2
00

+ 
st

af
f m

em
be

rs
 fi

rm
-w

id
e

- O
ff

ic
es

 in
 H

ou
st

on
, S

an
 A

nt
on

io
,

A
us

tin
, M

cA
lle

n,
 D

al
la

s, 
El

 P
as

o,
 

an
d 

La
re

do

- F
ou

nd
ed

 in
 2

01
8

- 2
5+

 y
ea

rs
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

e
- P

rim
ar

y 
O

ff
ic

e 
in

 P
ha

rr
, T

X

- F
ou

nd
ed

 in
 2

01
4

- H
ea

dq
ua

rte
rs

 L
oc

at
ed

 in
 

H
ar

lin
ge

n,
 T

X
- 2

0 
Fu

ll 
Ti

m
e 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s, 
2 

R
eg

is
te

re
d 

En
gi

ne
er

s

- F
ou

nd
ed

 in
 D

al
la

s i
n 

19
50

- A
bo

ut
 1

,5
00

 to
ta

l s
ta

ff
- 3

4 
of

fic
es

 o
ff

er
in

g 
se

rv
ic

es
 

-E
st

ab
lis

he
d 

in
 2

01
2 

-O
ve

r 2
0 

Y
ea

rs
 o

f c
om

bi
ne

d 
ex

pe
rie

nc
e

-C
om

pl
et

ed
 o

ve
r 3

00
 p

ro
je

ct
s, 

65
 o

f w
hi

ch
 w

er
e 

fo
r H

ig
he

r 
Ed

uc
at

io
n

-E
st

ab
lis

he
d 

in
 2

00
8

-O
ff

ic
e 

in
 W

es
la

co
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-1
6 

em
pl

oy
ee

s

2.
1.

3 
 N

ar
ra

tiv
e 

de
sc

ri
bi

ng
 th

e 
de

si
gn

 
te

am
's

 u
ni

qu
e 

qu
al

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 a
nd

 
sp

ec
ia

liz
ed

 d
es

ig
n 

ex
pe

ri
en

ce
 a

s i
t r

el
at

es
 

to
 th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t

St
at

ed
 th

ey
 p

ro
vi

de
 d

es
ig

n 
an

d 
co

ns
ul

tin
g 

se
rv

ic
es

 fo
r h

ea
tin

g,
 

ve
nt

ila
tio

n 
an

d 
ai

r c
on

di
tio

ni
ng

 
sy

st
em

s f
or

 c
om

m
er

ci
al

, i
nd

us
tri

al
, 

ed
uc

at
io

na
l a

nd
 g

ov
er

nm
en

t c
lie

nt
s. 

O
ur

 e
ng

in
ee

rs
 a

re
 p

ro
fe

ss
io

na
lly

 
lic

en
se

d 
in

 se
ve

ra
l s

ta
te

s a
nd

 a
re

 
fa

m
ili

ar
 w

ith
 th

e 
fe

de
ra

l, 
st

at
e 

an
d 

lo
ca

l c
od

es
 a

nd
 th

e 
st

an
da

rd
s o

f 
th

ei
r p

ro
fe

ss
io

n.
 

St
at

ed
 th

at
 a

re
 u

ni
qu

el
y 

qu
al

ifi
ed

 
fo

r t
hi

s p
ro

je
ct

 b
ec

au
se

 o
f t

he
 

fo
llo

w
in

g:
 In

tim
at

e 
kn

ow
le

dg
e 

of
 

ex
is

tin
g 

sy
st

em
s, 

U
nd

er
st

an
di

ng
 

of
 E

xi
st

in
g 

C
ha

lle
ng

es
, a

nd
 

Ex
pe

rie
nc

e 
w

ith
 S

TC
.

St
at

ed
 th

at
 th

e 
po

rtf
ol

io
 in

cl
ud

e s
de

si
gn

 o
f n

ew
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

sy
st

em
s 

an
d 

th
e 

re
de

si
gn

 o
f e

xi
st

in
g 

sy
st

em
s f

or
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

re
no

va
tio

ns
, r

et
ro

fit
tin

g 
to

 m
ee

t 
up

da
te

d 
co

de
s. 

St
at

ed
 th

ey
 h

av
e 

su
cc

es
sf

ul
 

w
or

ke
d 

w
ith

 S
TC

 fo
r o

ve
r 1

5 
ye

ar
s. 

D
es

ig
ne

d 
ov

er
 $

50
 

m
ill

io
n 

in
 H

V
A

C
 re

pl
ac

em
en

t i
n

th
e 

pa
st

 1
2 

m
on

th
s. 

St
at

ed
 th

ey
 a

re
 a

 fu
ll-

se
rv

ic
e 

fir
m

 w
ith

 a
 fu

ll 
ra

ng
e 

st
af

f 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

en
gi

ne
er

s, 
la

nd
sc

ap
e 

ar
ch

ite
ct

s, 
pl

an
ne

rs
, a

rc
hi

te
ct

s, 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l s

ci
en

tis
ts

, 
su

rv
ey

or
s a

nd
 m

or
e.

St
at

ed
 th

ey
 h

av
e 

ga
in

ed
 

fa
m

ili
ar

ity
 w

ith
 S

TC
 o

ve
r t

he
 

co
ur

se
 o

f t
he

ir 
ca

re
er

s. 
Fo

rty
 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 w
er

e 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 fo
r 

ST
C

.

St
at

ed
 th

at
 th

ey
 h

av
e 

de
di

ca
te

d 
em

pl
oy

ee
s h

av
e 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 m
os

t t
h e

cu
rr

en
t s

of
tw

ar
e,

 te
ch

no
lo

gy
, a

nd
 

ce
rti

fic
at

io
ns

 to
m

 w
or

k 
at

 th
ei

r 
be

st
. W

or
k 

w
ith

 b
us

in
es

s a
nd

 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l p
ro

je
ct

s a
nd

 p
rid

e 
ou

rs
el

ve
s i

n 
pr

ov
id

in
g 

fir
st

-r
at

e 
w

or
k 

to
 a

ll 
cu

st
om

er
s. 

2.
1.

4 
 S

ta
te

m
en

t o
f 

A
va

ila
bi

lit
y 

an
d 

C
om

m
itm

en
t

In
di

ca
te

 th
at

 th
e 

m
aj

or
 p

ro
je

ct
s 

th
ey

 h
av

e 
ar

e 
at

 th
e 

en
d 

of
 th

ei
r 

de
si

gn
 p

ha
se

 a
nd

 o
th

er
s a

re
 in

 th
e 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

ph
as

e,
 fr

ee
in

g 
up

 
en

gi
ne

er
in

g 
ca

pa
ci

ty
 a

nd
 a

llo
w

in
g 

th
em

 to
 ta

ke
 o

n 
ad

di
tio

na
l 

pr
oj

ec
ts

. 

In
di

ca
te

d 
th

at
 th

e 
fir

m
's 

de
si

gn
 

te
am

 m
ee

ts
 e

ac
h 

w
ee

k 
to

 d
is

cu
ss

 
pr

oj
ec

t s
ch

ed
ul

es
 a

nd
 c

oo
rd

in
at

e 
th

e 
al

lo
ca

tio
n 

of
 st

af
f t

o 
m

ee
t 

ne
ed

s o
f e

ac
h 

cl
ie

nt
. 

In
di

ca
te

d 
th

at
 th

ey
 a

re
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

as
 so

on
 a

s t
he

y 
ar

e 
aw

ar
de

d 
an

d 
w

ill
 m

ak
e 

th
e 

ST
C

 p
ro

je
ct

s t
he

i r
to

p 
pr

io
rit

y.

In
di

ca
te

d 
th

at
 th

ey
 a

re
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

as
 so

on
 a

s t
he

y 
ar

e 
aw

ar
de

d 
an

d 
w

ill
 m

ak
e 

th
e 

ST
C

 p
ro

je
ct

s t
he

i r
to

p 
pr

io
rit

y.

In
di

ca
te

d 
th

at
 th

ey
 a

re
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

an
d 

co
m

m
itt

ed
 to

 p
ro

vi
di

ng
 

ex
ce

pt
io

na
l c

lie
nt

 se
rv

ic
e 

to
 

ST
C

.  
 

In
di

ca
te

d 
th

at
 fi

rm
 h

as
 th

e 
re

so
ur

ce
s t

o 
pe

rf
or

m
 w

or
k 

im
m

ed
ia

te
ly

 fo
r S

TC
.  

Li
st

ed
 a

 
st

af
f o

f e
ig

ht
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 th
e 

pr
in

ci
pa

ls
.  

St
at

ed
 th

at
 th

ey
 w

ill
 

en
su

re
 th

e 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 a

re
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 
su

cc
es

sf
ul

ly
 o

n 
tim

e 
an

d 
w

ith
in

 
bu

dg
et

.

In
di

ca
te

d 
th

at
 th

ey
 a

re
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

an
d 

co
m

m
itt

ed
 to

 p
ro

vi
di

ng
 

ex
ce

pt
io

na
l c

lie
nt

 se
rv

ic
e 

to
 S

TC
. 

2.
2.

1 
R

es
um

es
 o

f 
Pr

in
ci

pa
ls

 a
nd

 K
ey

 
M

em
be

rs

In
cl

ud
ed

 re
su

m
es

 fo
r t

he
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

st
af

f:
- W

ill
ia

m
 B

. S
ta

rk
, P

E,
 L

EE
D

 A
P,

 
M

B
A

, P
rin

ci
pa

l/S
r. 

El
ec

tri
ca

l E
ng

in
ee

r
- B

ria
n 

M
en

de
, P

E,
 C

C
P,

 S
r. 

M
ec

ha
ni

ca
l E

ng
in

ee
r

- J
ef

re
y 

D
. T

ab
b,

 P
E,

 C
C

P,
 L

EE
D

 A
P 

, 
Se

ni
or

 M
ec

ha
ni

ca
l E

ng
in

ee
r

- B
ria

n 
S.

 K
el

ly
, P

E,
 L

EE
D

 A
P,

 S
en

io
r 

M
ec

ha
ni

ca
l E

ng
in

ee
r

- R
ic

ha
rd

 L
. R

ob
er

so
n,

 Jr
., 

Pi
pe

 
D

es
ig

ne
r

- B
ria

n 
R

ud
ac

il,
  M

ec
ha

ni
ca

l E
ng

in
ee

r 
/D

es
ig

ne
r, 

C
X

 T
ec

hn
ic

ia
n

In
cl

ud
ed

 re
su

m
es

 fo
r t

he
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

st
af

f:
- E

dw
ar

d 
Pu

en
te

s, 
PE

, C
EM

, L
EE

D
, 

Pa
rtn

er
-in

-C
ha

rg
e

- H
ug

o 
H

. A
vi

la
, P

E,
 A

ss
oc

ia
te

 / 
Pr

in
ci

pa
l 

- R
ob

er
t T

ije
rin

a,
 P

E,
 P

ro
je

ct
 M

an
ag

er
- M

ax
im

o 
A

nt
on

io
 L

eo
ch

ic
o,

 A
ss

oc
ia

te
Se

ni
or

 P
lu

m
bi

ng
 D

es
ig

ne
r

- J
ai

m
e 

R
od

rig
ue

z,
 E

le
ct

ric
al

 D
es

ig
ne

r
- M

ar
itz

a 
G

ar
za

, E
IT

, A
ss

oc
ia

te
 / 

A
ss

t. 
Pr

oj
ec

t M
an

ag
er

 / 
Se

ni
or

 M
ec

ha
ni

ca
l 

D
es

ig
ne

r

In
cl

ud
ed

 re
su

m
es

 fo
r t

he
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

st
af

f:
- D

an
ie

l C
ha

ve
z,

 P
rin

ci
pa

l
- F

er
na

nd
o 

G
al

le
go

s, 
M

ec
ha

ni
ca

l, 
P.

E.
- S

er
gi

o 
Sa

nc
he

z,
 E

le
ct

ric
al

, P
.E

.

In
cl

ud
ed

 re
su

m
es

 fo
r t

he
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

st
af

f:
- R

aj
es

h 
K

ap
ile

sh
w

ar
i, 

PE
, L

EE
D

 
A

P,
 P

rin
ci

pa
l

- G
ui

lle
rm

o 
Q

ui
nt

an
ill

a,
 P

rin
ci

pa
l 

+ 
Pr

oj
ec

t M
an

ag
er

- C
es

ar
 G

on
za

le
z,

 P
E,

 P
rin

ci
pa

l +
 

M
ec

ha
ni

ca
l/E

le
ct

ric
al

 E
ng

in
ee

r
- M

ar
k 

W
ar

re
n,

 C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

D
ire

ct
or

In
cl

ud
ed

 re
su

m
es

 fo
r t

he
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

st
af

f:
- M

ar
co

s D
ia

z,
 P

E,
 L

EE
D

 L
G

PP
, 

Pr
in

ci
pa

l i
n 

C
ha

rg
e

- T
re

y 
M

ur
ra

y 
II

I, 
PE

, R
C

D
D

, L
EE

D
 

A
P,

 T
ec

hn
ic

al
 A

dv
is

or
- M

ar
k 

Si
sl

en
, P

E,
 C

PD
, M

ec
ha

ni
ca

l 
En

gi
ne

er
in

g 
Ta

sk
 L

ea
d 

- G
re

g 
M

cF
ar

la
nd

, P
E,

 Q
A

/Q
C

 
M

an
ag

er
- L

er
oy

 M
ar

tin
ez

, P
E,

 P
ro

je
ct

 M
an

ag
er

- G
ab

rie
l B

en
av

id
es

, J
r.,

 P
E,

 E
le

ct
ric

al
 

En
gi

ne
er

in
g 

Ta
sk

 L
ea

d
- L

ui
s H

er
na

nd
ez

 N
av

a,
 P

E,
 C

PD
, 

W
el

l A
P,

 P
lu

m
bi

ng
 T

as
k 

Le
ad

Pr
ov

id
ed

 re
su

m
es

 fo
r t

he
 tw

o 
pr

in
ci

pa
ls

:
- J

es
us

 G
ab

rie
l H

in
oj

os
a,

 P
E,

 
LE

ED
 A

P,
 P

rin
ci

pa
l

- J
os

e 
A

nt
on

io
 N

ic
an

or
, P

E,
 L

EE
D

 
A

P,
 P

rin
ci

pa
l

In
cl

ud
ed

 re
su

m
es

 fo
r t

he
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

st
af

f:
- L

eo
na

rd
o 

M
un

oz
, P

E,
 R

.M
.E

. /
 

C
EO

 a
nd

 P
re

si
de

nt
- F

id
en

ci
o 

A
lv

ar
ad

o,
 L

ea
d 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

M
an

ag
er

, S
r. 

El
ec

tri
ca

l D
es

ig
ne

r
- W

ilf
or

d 
L 

M
cG

ee
 II

I, 
PE

, P
rin

ci
pa

l 
M

ec
ha

ni
ca

l E
ng

in
ee

r B
io

gr
ap

hy

2.
2.

2 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
A

ss
i g

nm
en

ts
 a

nd
 L

in
es

 o
f 

A
ut

ho
ri

ty

Sh
ow

ed
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
tim

e 
as

si
gn

m
en

ts
 fo

r s
ix

  n
am

ed
 st

af
f 

m
em

be
rs

 w
ho

 w
ou

ld
 b

e 
in

vo
lv

ed
 in

 
th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t. 
 

Li
st

ed
 th

e 
as

si
gn

m
en

ts
 fo

r t
he

 a
bo

ve
 

na
m

ed
 st

af
f a

nd
 th

e 
tim

e 
co

m
m

itm
en

t e
ac

h 
w

ill
 d

ev
ot

e 
to

 th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t. 

 

Li
st

ed
 th

e 
as

si
gn

m
en

ts
 o

f e
ac

h 
st

af
f m

em
be

r. 
Li

st
ed

 th
e 

as
si

gn
m

en
ts

 o
f e

ac
h 

st
af

f m
em

be
r. 

Sh
ow

ed
 k

ey
 p

er
so

nn
el

 
as

si
gn

m
en

ts
 fo

r s
ix

  n
am

ed
 st

af
f 

m
em

be
rs

 w
ho

 w
ou

ld
 b

e 
in

vo
lv

ed
 

in
 th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t. 
 

In
di

ca
te

d 
a 

10
0%

 ti
m

e 
co

m
m

itm
en

t f
ro

m
 b

ot
h 

pr
in

ci
pl

es
 

fo
r t

he
 p

ro
je

ct
 a

nd
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

th
e 

tim
e 

co
m

m
itm

en
ts

 fr
om

 n
in

e 
st

af
f.

Li
st

ed
 th

e 
te

am
s a

ss
ig

ne
d 

to
 e

ac
h 

pr
oj

ec
t. 

 

2.
2.

3 
 P

ri
m

e 
Fi

rm
's

 
Pr

ox
im

ity
 a

nd
 a

bi
lit

y 
to

 
re

sp
on

d 
to

 u
np

la
nn

ed
 

m
ee

tin
gs

St
at

ed
 th

ey
 a

re
 2

.5
 h

ou
rs

 fr
om

 
ST

C
. T

he
y 

ca
n 

be
 h

er
e 

on
 a

 d
ai

ly
 

ba
si

s i
f n

ee
de

d.
 

St
at

ed
 th

ey
 a

re
 a

bo
ut

 2
.3

 m
ile

s 
aw

ay
 a

nd
 a

pp
ro

xi
m

at
el

y 
7 

m
in

ut
e s

aw
ay

 fr
om

 P
ec

an
 C

am
pu

s. 

St
at

ed
 th

ey
 a

re
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

to
 m

ee
t 

in
 a

ny
 u

ne
xp

ec
te

d 
m

ee
tin

gs
. 

St
at

ed
 th

ey
 a

re
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

to
 m

ee
t 

fo
r f

ac
e-

to
-f

ac
e 

di
sc

us
si

on
s w

ith
in

 
th

e 
ho

ur
. S

in
ce

 th
ey

 h
av

e 
se

ve
ra

l 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 in

 th
e 

up
pe

r v
al

le
y,

 o
ne

 o
f 

th
e 

pr
in

ci
pa

ls
 o

r e
ng

in
ee

rs
 is

 
al

w
ay

s i
n 

th
e 

ar
ea

.

In
di

ca
te

d 
th

ei
r o

ff
ic

e 
is

 lo
ca

te
d 

in
 M

cA
lle

n,
 1

5-
m

in
ut

es
 a

w
ay

 
fr

om
 M

id
-V

al
le

y 
C

am
pu

s a
nd

 
th

ey
 a

re
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

to
 b

eg
in

 
se

rv
ic

e 
im

m
ed

ia
te

ly
. 

St
at

ed
 th

ey
 a

re
 lo

ca
te

d 
in

 
do

w
nt

ow
n 

M
cA

lle
n,

 a
nd

 o
nl

y 
3 

m
ile

s a
w

ay
 fr

om
 th

e 
Fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

Pl
an

ni
ng

 a
nd

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
B

ui
ld

in
g.

 

Th
e 

pr
ox

im
ity

 to
 S

TC
 g

iv
es

 u
s 

av
ai

la
bi

lit
y 

to
 b

e 
at

 a
ny

 p
la

nn
ed

 o
r

un
pl

an
ne

d 
or

 e
ve

n 
un

ex
pe

ct
ed

 
m

ee
tin

gs
. 

2.
2.

4 
L

iti
ga

tio
n 

th
at

 
co

ul
d 

af
fe

ct
 fi

rm
's

 a
bi

lit
y 

pr
ov

id
e 

se
rv

ic
es

Fi
rm

 st
at

es
 th

ey
 a

re
 n

ot
 in

vo
lv

ed
 in

 
an

y 
lit

ig
at

io
n.

 
Fi

rm
 st

at
es

 th
ey

 a
re

 n
ot

 in
vo

lv
ed

 in
 

an
y 

lit
ig

at
io

n.
 

Fi
rm

 st
at

es
 th

ey
 a

re
 n

ot
 in

vo
lv

ed
 

in
 a

ny
 li

tig
at

io
n.

 
Fi

rm
 st

at
es

 th
ey

 a
re

 n
ot

 in
vo

lv
ed

 
in

 a
ny

 li
tig

at
io

n.
 

Fi
rm

 st
at

es
 th

ey
 a

re
 n

ot
 in

vo
lv

ed
 

in
 a

ny
 li

tig
at

io
n.

 
Fi

rm
 st

at
es

 th
ey

 a
re

 n
ot

 in
vo

lv
ed

 
in

 a
ny

 li
tig

at
io

n.
 

Fi
rm

 st
at

es
 th

ey
 a

re
 n

ot
 in

vo
lv

ed
 in

 
an

y 
lit

ig
at

io
n.

 

SO
U

T
H

 T
E

X
A

S 
C

O
L

L
E

G
E

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S 

- M
E

C
H

A
N

IC
A

L
, E

L
E

C
T

R
IC

A
L

, A
N

D
 P

L
U

M
B

IN
G

PE
C

A
N

 C
A

M
PU

S 
PH

Y
SI

C
A

L
 P

L
A

N
T

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 E
 C

O
O

L
IN

G
 T

O
W

E
R

 A
B

O
V

E
 G

R
O

U
N

D
 P

IP
IN

G
 S

Y
ST

E
M

PR
O

JE
C

T
 N

O
. 2

4-
25

-1
02

2

2.
2 

Pr
im

e 
Fi

rm

2.
1 

St
at

em
en

t o
f I

nt
er

es
t

290



V
E

N
D

O
R

B
at

h 
G

ro
up

, L
LC

.
D

B
R

 E
ng

in
ee

rin
g

C
on

su
lta

nt
s, 

In
c.

ED
C

O
N

Et
ho

s H
ol

is
tiq

ue
 H

ol
di

ng
s, 

LL
C

./d
ba

 E
th

os
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g
H

al
ff

 A
ss

oc
ia

te
s, 

In
c.

Si
gm

a 
H

N
 E

ng
in

ee
rs

, P
LL

C
.

Tr
in

ity
 M

EP
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g,
 L

LC
.

SO
U

T
H

 T
E

X
A

S 
C

O
L

L
E

G
E

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S 

- M
E

C
H

A
N

IC
A

L
, E

L
E

C
T

R
IC

A
L

, A
N

D
 P

L
U

M
B

IN
G

PE
C

A
N

 C
A

M
PU

S 
PH

Y
SI

C
A

L
 P

L
A

N
T

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 E
 C

O
O

L
IN

G
 T

O
W

E
R

 A
B

O
V

E
 G

R
O

U
N

D
 P

IP
IN

G
 S

Y
ST

E
M

PR
O

JE
C

T
 N

O
. 2

4-
25

-1
02

2

2.
3.

1 
 O

rg
an

iz
at

io
n 

ch
ar

t w
ith

 R
ol

e 
of

 
Pr

im
e 

Fi
rm

 a
nd

 e
ac

h 
co

ns
ul

ta
nt

s f
ir

m

In
cl

ud
ed

 o
rg

an
iz

at
io

n 
ch

ar
t w

ith
 

th
e 

st
af

f w
ho

 w
ill

 b
e 

as
si

gn
ed

 to
 

pr
oj

ec
t. 

 In
di

ca
te

d 
th

at
 n

o 
co

ns
ul

ta
nt

s w
ill

 b
e 

us
ed

 fo
r t

hi
s 

pr
oj

ec
t.

In
cl

ud
ed

 o
rg

an
iz

at
io

n 
ch

ar
t w

ith
 

th
e 

st
af

f w
ho

 w
ill

 b
e 

as
si

gn
ed

 to
 

pr
oj

ec
t. 

 In
di

ca
te

d 
th

at
 n

o 
su

b-
co

ns
ul

ta
nt

s w
ill

 b
e 

us
ed

 fo
r t

hi
s 

pr
oj

ec
t.

In
cl

ud
ed

 o
rg

an
iz

at
io

n 
ch

ar
t t

ha
t 

sh
ow

ed
 th

e 
3 

m
ai

n 
pe

rs
on

al
 

st
af

f. 

In
cl

ud
ed

 o
rg

an
iz

at
io

n 
ch

ar
t t

ha
t 

sh
ow

ed
 a

ll 
fir

m
 st

af
f a

nd
 w

hi
ch

 
in

cl
ud

ed
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

su
b 

co
ns

ul
ta

nt
s:

- B
ou

lti
ng

ho
us

e 
Si

m
ps

on
 G

at
es

 
A

rc
hi

te
ct

s -
 A

rc
hi

te
ct

- G
re

en
 R

ub
ia

no
 &

 A
ss

oc
ia

te
s -

 
St

ru
ct

ur
al

 E
ng

in
ee

r
- P

er
ez

 C
on

su
lti

ng
 E

ng
in

ee
rs

 - 
C

iv
il 

En
gi

ne
er

In
cl

ud
ed

 o
rg

an
iz

at
io

n 
ch

ar
t t

ha
t 

sh
ow

ed
 a

ll 
fir

m
 st

af
f a

nd
 w

hi
ch

 
in

cl
ud

ed
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

su
b 

co
ns

ul
ta

nt
s:

- C
ha

ni
n 

St
ru

ct
ur

al
 E

ng
in

ee
r -

 
St

ru
ct

ur
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s

O
rg

an
iz

at
io

n 
ch

ar
t w

as
 in

cl
ud

ed
 

sh
ow

in
g 

th
e 

pr
im

ar
y 

ro
ll 

of
 th

e 
tw

o 
pr

in
ci

pa
ls

 a
nd

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
su

b 
co

ns
ul

ta
nt

s:
-  

C
H

LH
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g,
 In

c

In
cl

ud
ed

 o
rg

an
iz

at
io

n 
ch

ar
t w

ith
 

th
e 

st
af

f w
ho

 w
ill

 b
e 

as
si

gn
ed

 to
 

pr
oj

ec
t. 

2.
4.

1 
 M

in
im

um
 o

f 
th

re
e 

(3
) p

ro
je

ct
s f

ir
m

 
ha

s w
or

ke
d 

on

- T
ul

os
o-

M
id

w
ay

 In
te

rm
ed

ia
te

 
Sc

ho
ol

 - 
H

V
A

C
 R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t 

($
1,

50
0,

00
0)

- U
T 

M
ar

in
e 

Sc
ie

nc
e 

In
st

itu
te

 - 
Po

rt 
A

ra
ns

as
, T

ex
as

 B
23

 (p
ro

je
ct

 
no

t c
on

st
ru

ct
ed

)
- C

os
ta

l B
en

d 
C

ol
le

ge
 - 

M
as

te
r 

Pl
an

ni
ng

 &
 V

ar
io

us
 P

ro
je

ct
s 

(P
ro

je
ct

 c
ur

re
nt

 F
21

)

-S
ou

th
 T

ex
as

 C
ol

le
ge

-M
id

 V
al

le
y 

C
am

pu
s -

  C
en

tra
l T

he
rm

al
 P

la
nt

  
($

4.
4 

M
ill

io
n)

- D
el

 M
ar

 C
ol

le
ge

 - 
N

ew
 S

ou
th

 
C

am
pu

s W
ith

 N
ew

 C
en

tra
l P

la
nt

 
($

97
,0

00
,0

00
)

- M
er

ce
de

s I
SD

 - 
C

hi
lle

r a
nd

 
C

oo
lin

g 
To

w
er

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t 
($

40
0,

00
0)

- V
an

gu
ar

d 
A

ca
de

m
y 

B
ee

th
ov

e n
($

15
,0

00
,0

00
)

- V
an

gu
ar

d 
R

em
br

an
dt

 
Se

co
nd

ar
y 

($
5,

00
0,

00
0)

- S
an

 B
en

ito
 C

IS
D

 - 
N

at
at

or
iu

m
 

($
5,

00
0,

00
0)

- S
an

 B
en

ito
 C

IS
D

 - 
Pe

rf
or

m
in

g 
A

rts
 ($

20
,0

00
,0

00
)

- T
ex

as
 S

ou
th

m
os

t C
ol

le
ge

 
Th

er
m

al
 P

la
nt

 U
pg

ra
de

s -
 C

oo
lin

g 
To

w
er

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t (
$1

,1
30

,0
00

)
- U

TR
G

V
 - 

C
am

pu
s C

hi
lle

r 
R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t a

t E
IT

TB
 &

 E
V

A
B

L 
($

66
0,

70
0)

- L
os

 F
re

sn
os

 C
IS

D
 H

ig
h 

Sc
ho

ol
 - 

C
en

tra
l P

la
nt

 C
hi

lle
r a

nd
 C

oo
lin

g 
To

w
er

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t (
$1

,2
75

,4
67

)

- T
ex

as
 A

&
M

 U
ni

ve
rs

ity
 

K
in

gs
vi

lle
, T

ex
as

 - 
D

ef
er

re
d 

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 ($
40

 M
)

- T
ex

as
 A

&
M

 U
ni

ve
rs

ity
 

K
in

gs
vi

lle
, T

ex
as

 - 
K

le
be

rg
 H

al
l 

H
V

A
C

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 
($

25
5,

51
5)

- S
ou

th
 T

ex
as

 C
ol

le
ge

 - 
Th

er
m

a l
Pl

an
t E

xp
an

si
on

 ($
4.

25
M

)

- S
ou

th
 T

ex
as

 C
ol

le
ge

 - 
St

ar
r 

C
ou

nt
y 

C
am

pu
s T

he
rm

al
 P

la
nt

 
($

5,
30

0,
00

0)
- E

di
nb

ur
g 

H
ig

h 
Sc

ho
ol

 
C

on
de

ns
er

 W
at

er
 P

ip
in

g 
R

et
ro

fi t
($

50
4,

00
0)

- L
a 

Jo
ya

 IS
D

 P
al

m
vi

ew
 H

ig
h 

Sc
ho

ol
 C

oo
lin

g 
To

w
er

 
R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t (

$1
,0

50
,0

00
 

M
ill

io
n)

- L
a 

Jo
ya

 IS
D

 - 
R

os
en

do
 B

en
av

id
es

 
El

em
en

ta
ry

 S
ch

oo
l (

$1
,2

23
,0

00
)

- P
SJ

A
 IS

D
 - 

PS
JA

 E
ar

ly
 C

ol
le

ge
 

H
ig

h 
Sc

ho
ol

 ($
7,

00
0,

00
0)

- L
ar

ed
o 

U
ni

te
d 

IS
D

 - 
N

ew
 

El
em

en
ta

ry
 N

o.
 2

7 
($

14
,2

00
,0

00
)  

- 
M

is
si

on
 C

on
so

lid
at

ed
 IS

D
 - 

M
is

si
on

 
Ea

rly
 C

ol
le

ge
 H

ig
h 

Sc
ho

ol
 

($
14

,0
00

,0
00

) -
 Z

ap
at

a 
C

ou
nt

y 
IS

D
 - 

H
V

A
C

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t f
or

 V
ar

io
us

 
C

am
pu

se
s (

$5
,0

00
,0

00
)

2.
5.

1 
 R

ef
er

en
ce

s f
or

 
th

re
e 

(3
) p

ro
je

ct
s

- F
lin

t H
ill

s R
es

ou
rc

es
- T

ex
as

 S
ta

te
 U

ni
ve

rs
ity

- C
oa

st
al

 B
en

d 
C

ol
le

ge

- E
di

nb
ur

g 
C

IS
D

- M
er

ce
de

s I
SD

- T
ex

as
 S

ta
te

 T
ec

hn
ic

al
 C

ol
le

ge

- G
on

za
le

z 
En

gi
ne

er
in

g 
&

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t
- I

nt
er

na
tio

na
l C

on
su

lti
ng

 
En

gi
ne

er
s

- E
R

O
 A

rc
hi

te
ct

s

- T
ex

as
 S

ou
th

m
os

t C
ol

le
ge

- L
os

 F
re

sn
os

 C
IS

D
- U

TR
G

V

- U
TR

G
V

- B
ro

w
ns

vi
lle

 P
ub

lic
 U

til
iti

es
 

B
oa

rd
 

- H
id

al
go

 C
ou

nt
y 

C
om

m
is

si
on

er
's 

C
ou

rt

- B
ro

w
ns

vi
lle

 IS
D

- E
di

nb
ur

g 
C

IS
D

- H
ar

lin
ge

n 
C

IS
D

- W
es

la
co

 IS
D

- A
la

m
o 

IS
D

- C
ar

riz
o 

Sp
rin

gs
 IS

D
   

   
   

   
   

   
- R

O
FA

 A
rc

hi
te

ct
s

- N
K

 A
rc

hi
te

ct
s

- E
G

V
 A

rc
hi

te
ct

s
- J

im
 H

og
g 

C
ou

nt
y 

IS
D

2.
6.

1 
Su

m
m

ar
y 

of
 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 to
 p

ro
je

ct
 

th
at

 a
dd

re
ss

es
 

in
te

ra
ct

io
n 

w
ith

 S
T

C
 

st
af

f, 
m

an
ag

em
en

t o
f 

di
ff

er
en

t p
ha

se
s o

f t
he

 
pr

oj
ec

t, 
ho

w
 y

ou
 

m
ai

nt
ai

n 
qu

al
ity

 
co

nt
ro

l, 
an

d 
fin

al
 

pr
oj

ec
t c

lo
se

-o
ut

.

In
 o

rd
er

 fo
r t

he
 d

es
ig

n 
to

 su
cc

ee
d,

 
th

e 
de

si
gn

 e
ff

or
t m

us
t b

e 
ro

ot
ed

 in
 

a 
th

or
ou

gh
 u

nd
er

st
an

di
ng

 o
f t

he
 

go
al

s o
f t

he
 p

ro
je

ct
. 

St
at

ed
 th

ey
 b

el
ie

ve
 th

at
 th

ei
r 

em
pl

oy
ee

s m
us

t c
ol

la
bo

ra
te

 in
 

or
de

r t
o 

pr
od

uc
e 

a 
w

el
l 

co
or

di
na

te
d 

de
si

gn
. I

nc
lu

de
d 

th
ei

r 
de

ta
il 

de
si

gn
 a

pp
ro

ac
h.

In
cl

ud
ed

 a
 d

et
ai

le
d 

w
or

k 
pl

an
 

an
d 

tim
el

in
e.

 
In

cl
ud

ed
 a

 d
et

ai
le

d 
w

or
k 

pl
an

 
an

d 
sc

he
du

le
. 

St
at

ed
 th

ey
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

cc
ur

ac
y 

by
 

re
vi

ew
in

g 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

da
ta

 a
nd

 
su

cc
es

sf
ul

 p
ro

je
ct

 e
xe

cu
tio

n 
pl

an
ni

ng
. P

ro
vi

de
d 

a 
ve

ry
 

de
ta

ile
d 

pr
oj

ec
t a

pp
ro

ac
h.

 

St
at

ed
 th

at
 to

 c
om

pl
et

e 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 

w
ith

in
 b

ud
ge

t w
e 

co
m

m
un

ic
at

e 
w

ith
 o

ur
 c

lie
nt

s a
nd

 v
is

it 
th

e 
jo

b 
si

te
 to

 c
le

ar
ly

 d
ef

in
e 

a 
sc

op
e 

of
 

w
or

k.
 T

he
y 

pr
ep

ar
e 

an
 e

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
co

st
 e

st
im

at
e 

an
d 

es
ta

bl
is

h 
a 

bu
dg

et
. T

he
 b

as
ic

 e
le

m
en

ts
 o

f 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

bu
dg

et
 c

on
tro

l a
llo

w
 u

s 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 q
ua

lit
y 

de
si

gn
s, 

w
hi

ch
 

m
in

im
iz

e 
un

an
tic

ip
at

ed
 c

os
t i

n 
th

e 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
ph

as
e 

su
ch

 a
s c

ha
ng

e 
or

de
rs

.

In
cl

ud
ed

 a
 d

et
ai

le
d 

w
or

k 
pl

an
 a

nd
 

sc
he

du
le

. 

2.
6.

2 
 W

ill
in

gn
es

s a
nd

 
ab

ili
ty

 to
 e

xp
ed

ite
 

se
rv

ic
es

. A
bi

lit
y 

to
 

su
pp

le
m

en
t p

ro
du

ct
io

n.

St
at

ed
 th

at
 th

e 
ba

ck
lo

g 
of

 w
or

k 
w

ill
 

al
lo

w
 th

em
 to

 e
xp

ed
ite

 th
e 

de
si

gn
. 

Th
ey

 w
ill

 in
cl

ud
e 

an
 e

ng
in

ee
r o

n-
si

te
 to

 a
ss

is
t t

he
 c

on
tra

ct
or

 a
nd

 th
e 

C
ol

le
ge

 w
ith

 g
et

tin
g 

th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t 

co
m

m
is

si
on

ed
, t

he
 fa

ci
lit

y 
m

an
ag

er
s 

tra
in

ed
, a

nd
 m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 sc

he
du

le
s 

id
en

tif
ie

d.
 

In
di

ca
te

d 
th

ei
r w

ill
in

g 
an

d 
ab

le
 to

 
ex

pe
di

te
 d

es
ig

n 
se

rv
ic

es
.  

St
at

ed
 

th
at

 th
ey

 d
o 

no
t f

or
es

ee
 a

ny
 n

ee
d 

to
 su

pp
le

m
en

t p
ro

du
ct

io
n 

ca
pa

bi
lit

y,
 b

ut
 c

an
 d

o 
so

 b
y 

ut
ili

zi
ng

 st
af

f f
ro

m
 o

th
er

 o
ff

ic
es

.

St
at

ed
 th

ei
r c

om
m

itm
en

t t
o 

th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t, 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
co

m
m

itm
en

t 
by

 th
ei

r t
ea

m
 a

nd
 a

ny
 

co
ns

ul
ta

nt
s.

R
ei

te
ra

te
d 

th
ei

r c
om

m
itm

en
t t

o 
th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t, 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

co
m

m
itm

en
t b

y 
th

ei
r s

ub
 

co
ns

ul
ta

nt
s.

St
at

ed
 th

at
 th

e 
M

cA
lle

n 
of

fic
e 

ha
s t

he
 a

dv
an

ta
ge

 o
f b

ei
ng

 a
bl

e 
to

 re
ac

h 
ou

t f
or

 a
ss

is
ta

nc
e 

fr
om

 
an

y 
of

 th
ei

r o
ff

ic
es

, s
ho

ul
d 

th
ey

 
ne

ed
 to

. 

St
at

ed
 th

at
 th

ey
 a

re
 w

ill
in

g 
an

d 
ab

le
 to

 e
xp

ed
ite

 se
rv

ic
es

.  
Po

in
te

d 
to

 a
 p

ro
ve

n 
tra

ck
 re

co
rd

 
fo

r t
he

 tw
o 

pr
in

ci
pa

ls
.

St
at

ed
 th

ei
r c

om
m

itm
en

t t
o 

th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t, 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
co

m
m

itm
en

t t
o 

on
-s

ite
 q

ua
lit

y 
co

nt
ro

l, 
an

d 
sc

he
du

lin
g 

si
te

 v
is

its
 a

nd
 re

vi
ew

 
m

ee
tin

gs
. 

T
ot

al
 E

va
lu

at
io

n 
Po

in
ts

48
2.

15
56

1.
20

49
5.

90
50

9.
50

55
1.

00
54

1.
80

53
5.

80

R
an

ki
ng

7
1

6
5

2
3

4
Th

e 
D

ire
ct

or
 o

f P
ur

ch
as

in
g 

ha
s r

ev
ie

w
ed

 a
ll 

th
e 

re
sp

on
se

s a
nd

 e
va

lu
at

io
ns

 c
om

pl
et

ed
.

2.
6 

Pr
oj

ec
t E

xe
cu

tio
n

2.
4 

R
ep

re
se

nt
at

iv
e 

Pr
oj

ec
ts

2.
5 

R
ef

er
en

ce
s

2.
3 

Pr
oj

ec
t T

ea
m

291



V
E

N
D

O
R

A
D

D
R

E
SS

C
IT

Y
/S

T
A

T
E

/Z
IP

PH
O

N
E

FA
X

C
O

N
T

A
C

T

2.
1 

St
at

em
en

t o
f I

nt
er

es
t (

up
 to

 1
00

 p
oi

nt
s)

88
92

87
90

92
91

90
85

90
80

80
90

85
80

84
90

83
83

82
82

84
90

90
85

95
95

85
80

92
95

92
93

94
93

94

2.
2 

Pr
im

e 
Fi

rm
 (u

p 
to

 1
00

 p
oi

nt
s)

90
91

87
90

92
91

90

90
95

80
90

90
90

85

86
94

81
82

85
81

87

80
90

85
90

95
90

85

93
95

93
93

94
93

94

2.
3 

Pr
oj

ec
t T

ea
m

 (u
p 

to
 1

00
 p

oi
nt

s)

90
91

85
90

92
91

90

80
90

80
80

85
80

85

81
89

84
85

86
81

80

80
95

85
85

90
85

80

92
95

92
93

94
93

94

B
at

h 
G

ro
up

, L
LC

.

56
56

 S
 S

ta
pl

es
 S

t S
te

 1
10

Ph
ar

r, 
TX

 7
85

77

95
6-

88
4-

70
06

70
1 

S 
15

th
 S

t

95
6-

33
2-

32
06

M
cA

lle
n,

 T
X

 7
85

01
C

or
pu

s C
hr

is
ti,

 T
X

 7
84

11

36
1-

99
2-

22
84

Je
su

s G
ab

rie
l H

in
oj

os
a

Et
ho

s H
ol

is
tiq

ue
 

H
ol

di
ng

s, 
LL

C
./d

ba
 E

th
os

 
En

gi
ne

er
in

g

11
26

 S
 C

om
m

er
ce

H
ar

lin
ge

n,
 T

X
 7

85
50

95
6-

23
0-

34
35

95
6-

68
7-

55
61

36
1-

99
2-

22
87

95
6-

68
3-

19
03

95
6-

72
0-

08
30

95
6-

66
4-

02
82

89
85

.2

85
.2

92
86

93

87
.2

Si
gm

a
H

N
 E

ng
in

ee
rs

, P
LL

C
.

D
B

R
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g
C

on
su

lta
nt

s, 
In

c.

20
0 

S 
10

th
 S

t S
te

 9
01

M
cA

lle
n,

 T
X

 7
85

01

95
6-

68
3-

16
40

ED
C

O
N

10
1 

E 
D

el
ta

 S
t S

te
 A

B

D
an

ie
l C

ha
ve

z

85
.4

91
.4

H
ug

o 
A

vi
la

H
al

ff
 A

ss
oc

ia
te

s, 
In

c.

50
00

 W
 M

ili
ta

ry
 S

te
 1

00

M
cA

lle
n,

 T
X

 7
85

03

95
6-

66
4-

02
86

M
en

to
n 

J. 
M

ur
ra

y,
 II

I
 

87
.8

87
.8

84
.6

2.
1.

1 
St

at
em

en
t o

f i
nt

er
es

t o
n 

pr
oj

ec
t

2.
1.

2 
Fi

rm
 H

is
to

ry
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

cr
ed

en
tia

ls
 

2.
1.

3 
N

ar
ra

tiv
e 

de
sc

rib
in

g 
th

e 
de

si
gn

 te
am

's 
un

iq
ue

 
qu

al
ifi

ca
tio

ns
 a

nd
 sp

ec
ia

liz
ed

 d
es

ig
n 

ex
pe

rie
nc

e 
as

 it
 

re
la

te
s t

o 
th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t
2.

1.
4 

A
va

ila
bi

lit
y 

an
d 

co
m

m
itm

en
t o

f f
irm

 a
nd

 it
s 

pr
in

ci
pa

l(s
) a

nd
 k

ey
 p

ro
fe

ss
io

na
ls

 

2.
2.

1 
R

es
um

es
 g

iv
in

g 
th

e 
ex

pe
rie

nc
e 

an
d 

ex
pe

rti
se

 p
rin

ci
pl

es
 a

nd
 

ke
y 

m
em

be
rs

 fo
r t

he
 p

rim
e 

fir
m

 th
at

 w
ill

 b
e 

in
vo

lv
ed

 in
 th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t(s
), 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
th

ei
r e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
w

ith
 si

m
ila

r p
ro

je
ct

s a
nd

 th
e

nu
m

be
r o

f y
ea

rs
 w

ith
 th

e 
pr

im
e 

fir
m

2.
2.

2 
Pr

op
os

ed
 p

ro
je

ct
 a

ss
ig

nm
en

ts
, l

in
es

 o
f a

ut
ho

rit
y,

 a
nd

 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
fo

r p
rin

ci
pa

ls
 a

nd
 k

ey
 p

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l m

em
be

rs
 o

f 
th

e 
pr

im
e 

fir
m

 th
at

 w
ill

 b
e 

in
vo

lv
ed

 in
 th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t(s
). 

In
di

ca
te

 th
e 

es
tim

at
ed

 p
er

ce
nt

 o
f t

im
e 

th
es

e 
in

di
vi

du
al

s w
ill

 b
e 

in
vo

lv
ed

 in
 th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t(s
).

2.
2.

3 
Pr

im
e 

Fi
rm

  m
ee

tin
g 

av
ai

la
bi

lit
y

2.
2.

4 
D

es
cr

ib
e 

an
y 

lit
ig

at
io

n 
th

e 
pr

im
e 

fir
m

 is
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 in
vo

lv
ed

 
in

 w
hi

ch
 c

ou
ld

 a
ff

ec
t t

he
 fi

rm
's 

ab
ili

ty
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 p
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l 
se

rv
ic

es
 to

 S
TC

2.
3.

1 
O

rg
an

iz
at

io
na

l c
ha

rt 
sh

ow
in

g,
 th

e 
ro

le
s o

f t
he

 p
rim

e 
fir

m
 

an
d 

ea
ch

 c
on

su
lta

nt
 fi

rm
 o

r i
nd

iv
id

ua
l i

nc
lu

de
d.

--
Id

en
tif

y 
th

e 
co

ns
ul

ta
nt

 a
nd

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
 b

rie
f h

is
to

ry
 a

bo
ut

 th
e 

co
ns

ul
ta

nt
--

D
es

cr
ib

e 
th

e 
co

ns
ul

ta
nt

's 
pr

op
os

ed
 ro

le
 in

 th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t a

nd
 it

s 
re

la
te

d 
pr

oj
ec

t e
xp

er
ie

nc
e

--
Li

st
 a

 p
ro

je
ct

(s
) t

ha
t t

he
 p

rim
e 

fir
m

 a
nd

 th
e 

co
ns

ul
ta

nt
 h

av
e 

w
or

ke
d 

to
ge

th
er

 o
n 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
la

st
 fi

ve
 y

ea
rs

 
--

Pr
ov

id
e 

a 
st

at
em

en
t o

f t
he

 c
on

su
lta

nt
's 

av
ai

la
bi

lit
y 

fo
r t

he
 

pr
oj

ec
ts

(s
)

--
Pr

ov
id

e 
re

su
m

es
 g

iv
in

g 
th

e 
ex

pe
rie

nc
e 

an
d 

ex
pe

rti
se

 o
f 

pr
in

ci
pa

ls
 a

nd
 k

ey
 p

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l m

em
be

rs
 fo

r t
he

 c
on

su
lta

nt
 w

ho
 

w
ill

 b
e 

as
si

gn
ed

 to
 th

e 
pr

oj
ec

ts
(s

)

91
.2

89
.4

G
ui

lle
rm

o 
Q

ui
nt

an
ill

a
 

88
.2 89 86
.6

W
ill

ia
m

 B
. S

ta
rk

SO
U

T
H

 T
E

X
A

S 
C

O
L

L
E

G
E

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S 

- M
E

C
H

A
N

IC
A

L
, E

L
E

C
T

R
IC

A
L

, A
N

D
 P

L
U

M
B

IN
G

PE
C

A
N

 C
A

M
PU

S 
PH

Y
SI

C
A

L
 P

L
A

N
T

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 E
 C

O
O

L
IN

G
 T

O
W

E
R

 A
B

O
V

E
 G

R
O

U
N

D
 P

IP
IN

G
 S

Y
ST

E
M

PR
O

JE
C

T
 N

O
. 2

4-
25

-1
02

2
E

V
A

L
U

A
T

IO
N

 S
U

M
M

A
R

Y

Le
on

ar
do

 M
un

oz

85
.6

88
.2

85
.8

Tr
in

ity
 M

EP
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g,
 L

LC
.

35
33

 M
or

el
an

d 
D

r S
te

 A

W
es

la
co

, T
X

 7
85

96

95
6-

97
3-

05
00

95
6-

35
1-

57
50

90
.6

292



V
E

N
D

O
R

B
at

h 
G

ro
up

, L
LC

.

Et
ho

s H
ol

is
tiq

ue
 

H
ol

di
ng

s, 
LL

C
./d

ba
 E

th
os

 
En

gi
ne

er
in

g
Si

gm
a

H
N

 E
ng

in
ee

rs
, P

LL
C

.
D

B
R

 E
ng

in
ee

rin
g

C
on

su
lta

nt
s, 

In
c.

ED
C

O
N

H
al

ff
 A

ss
oc

ia
te

s, 
In

c.

SO
U

T
H

 T
E

X
A

S 
C

O
L

L
E

G
E

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S 

- M
E

C
H

A
N

IC
A

L
, E

L
E

C
T

R
IC

A
L

, A
N

D
 P

L
U

M
B

IN
G

PE
C

A
N

 C
A

M
PU

S 
PH

Y
SI

C
A

L
 P

L
A

N
T

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 E
 C

O
O

L
IN

G
 T

O
W

E
R

 A
B

O
V

E
 G

R
O

U
N

D
 P

IP
IN

G
 S

Y
ST

E
M

PR
O

JE
C

T
 N

O
. 2

4-
25

-1
02

2
E

V
A

L
U

A
T

IO
N

 S
U

M
M

A
R

Y

Tr
in

ity
 M

EP
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g,
 L

LC
.

2.
4 

R
ep

re
se

nt
at

iv
e 

Pr
oj

ec
ts

 (u
p 

to
 1

00
 p

oi
nt

s)

90
91

85
90

92
91

90

85
95

90
90

90
90

95

82
91

82
82

87
84

83

95
95

90
95

95
95

80

91
95

92
93

91
93

92

45
.7

5
10

0
67

.5
67

.5
10

0
10

0
10

0

45
.7

5
10

0
67

.5
67

.5
10

0
10

0
10

0

45
.7

5
10

0
67

.5
67

.5
10

0
10

0
10

0

45
.7

5
10

0
67

.5
67

.5
10

0
10

0
10

0

45
.7

5
10

0
67

.5
67

.5
10

0
10

0
10

0

2.
6 

Pr
oj

ec
t E

xe
cu

tio
n 

(u
p 

to
 1

00
 p

oi
nt

s)

91
92

87
90

92
92

91

85
90

80
85

85
90

90

81
88

82
81

85
83

90

90
95

85
95

90
90

80

91
92

90
90

92
90

90

T
O

T
A

L
 E

V
A

L
U

A
T

IO
N

 P
O

IN
T

S

R
A

N
K

IN
G

Th
e 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f P

ur
ch

as
in

g 
ha

s r
ev

ie
w

ed
 a

ll 
th

e 
re

sp
on

se
s a

nd
 e

va
lu

at
io

ns
 c

om
pl

et
ed

.

54
1.

80 3

8910
0

93
.4

90
.6

10
0

87
.8

67
.5

56
1.

20 1

91
.4

84
.8

49
5.

90 6

90 67
.5

88
.2

50
9.

50 5

10
0

88
.8

7

88
.6

45
.7

5

87
.6

2.
6.

1 
Pr

ov
id

e 
a 

su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 y
ou

r a
pp

ro
ac

h 
to

 th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t 

th
at

 a
dd

re
ss

es
 k

ey
 e

le
m

en
ts

 su
ch

 a
s y

ou
r i

nt
er

ac
tio

n 
w

ith
 

ST
C

 st
af

f, 
m

an
ag

em
en

t o
f t

he
 d

iff
er

en
t p

ha
se

s o
f t

he
 

pr
oj

ec
t, 

ho
w

 y
ou

 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
qu

al
ity

 c
on

tro
l, 

an
d 

fin
al

 
pr

oj
ec

t c
lo

se
-o

ut
.

2.
6.

2 
Pr

ov
id

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
as

 p
ar

t o
f s

ub
m

is
si

on
 re

sp
on

se
 

to
 a

ss
ur

e 
th

at
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
fir

m
 is

 w
ill

in
g 

an
d 

ab
le

 to
 

ex
pe

di
te

 d
es

ig
n 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
nd

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
ad

m
in

is
tra

tio
n 

fo
r t

he
 p

ro
je

ct
.  

Pl
ea

se
 p

ro
vi

de
 in

si
gh

t i
f E

ng
in

ee
r i

s 
in

te
nd

in
g 

to
 su

pp
le

m
en

t p
ro

du
ct

io
n 

ca
pa

bi
lit

y 
in

 o
rd

er
 to

 
m

ee
t s

ch
ed

ul
e 

de
m

an
ds

.

2.
4.

1 
Sp

ec
ifi

c 
da

ta
 o

n 
3 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 th
e 

pr
im

e 
fir

m
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

or
 is

 p
ro

vi
di

ng
 p

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l s

er
vi

ce
s i

n 
an

 e
du

ca
tio

na
l 

se
tti

ng
--

Pr
oj

ec
t n

am
e 

an
d 

lo
ca

tio
n;

 P
ro

je
ct

 O
w

ne
r a

nd
 c

on
ta

ct
 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n;

  P
ro

je
ct

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
co

st
; P

ro
je

ct
 si

ze
 in

 
gr

os
s s

qu
ar

e 
fe

et
; D

at
e 

pr
oj

ec
t w

as
 st

ar
te

d 
an

d 
co

m
pl

et
ed

; 
Pr

of
es

si
on

al
 se

rv
ic

es
 p

rim
e 

fir
m

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
fo

r t
he

 p
ro

je
ct

; 
Pr

oj
ec

t m
an

ag
er

; P
ro

je
ct

 e
ng

in
ee

r; 
Pr

oj
ec

t d
es

ig
ne

r; 
N

am
es

 o
f c

on
su

lta
nt

 fi
rm

s a
nd

 th
ei

r e
xp

er
tis

e.

2.
5.

1 
Pr

ov
id

e 
re

fe
re

nc
es

 fo
r 3

 p
ro

je
ct

s, 
ot

he
r t

ha
n 

ST
C

.  
Th

e 
re

fe
re

nc
es

 sh
al

l i
nc

lu
de

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
cu

rr
en

t i
nf

or
m

at
io

n:
--

O
w

ne
r's

 n
am

e,
 O

w
ne

r's
 re

pr
es

en
ta

tiv
e 

w
ho

 se
rv

ed
 

as
 th

e 
da

y-
to

-d
ay

 li
ai

so
n 

du
rin

g 
pl

an
ni

ng
, d

es
ig

n,
 

an
d 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

of
 th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t, 
an

d 
th

e 
O

w
ne

r 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tiv
e's

 te
le

ph
on

e 
nu

m
be

r a
nd

 e
m

ai
l a

dd
re

ss

91

48
2.

15

2.
5 

T
hr

ee
 R

ef
er

en
ce

s (
up

 to
 1

00
 p

oi
nt

s)

88 10
0

88
.2

53
5.

80 4

55
1.

00 2

293



Project Fact Sheet

11/1/2024

Project Name: Project No.

Funding Source(s):  

Original

Project Budget Project Budget

FY 24-25

Actual 

Expenditures

Variance of 

Project Budget 

vs. Actual 

Expenditures

Total Actual  

Expenditures To 

Date

Construction: 650,000.00$    650,000.00$     -$    650,000.00$       -$     

Design: 65,000.00            65,000.00 - 65,000.00 - 

Miscellaneous: 16,250.00            16,250.00 - 16,250.00 - 

FFE: - - - -

Technology: - - - -

Total: 731,250.00$       731,250.00$     -$    731,250.00$       -$     

Approval to Solicit 

Architect/Engineer: 9/24/2024 Vendor

Contract 

Amount

Actual 

Expenditures Variance

Architect/Engineer: TBD -$    

Contractor:
TBD

-$    

TBD -$   -$  -$   
Substantial 

Completion TBD Board Acceptance TBD

STC FPC Project Manager:

Final Completion TBD Board Acceptance TBD

Board Approval to 

Solicit Architect/Engineer

Board Approval of 

Architect/Engineer

Board Approval 

of 

Schematic 

Design

Board Approval of 

Contractor

Construction Start 

Date

9/24/2024 11/26/2024 N/A 2/25/2025 3/10/2025

Fiscal Year Construction FFE

2024-25 -   
Project Total  $    -   $    -  

FPC Project Manager FPC Asst. Director FPC Director

Tech

Board Approval of 

Substantial Completion Date

Board Approval of 

Final Completion Date FFE Completion of Move In

5/27/2025 06/22/2025 N/A

Current Agenda Item

11/19/2024 Board Meeting: Review and Action on Approval of Mechanical Engineering Services for the Pecan Campus Physical Plant Building E Cooling Tower Above Ground Piping System

 $    -  -$      $    -   $    -  

Martin Villarreal

Board Status

Board Approval of 

Schematic Design
N/A

Project Team

Pecan Campus - Physical Plant Building E Cooling Towers 2025-026R

Renewals & Replacements Fund

FY 24-25

Design and construction of above ground piping system.

Project Calendar of Expenditures by Fiscal Year

Miscellaneous

Design and construction of an above ground piping system to replace the existing underground piping system installed in 2016 as 

part of the expansion of the Physical Plant due to several leaks occurring underground.

Project ScopeProject Description

-   - -$     
Project TotalDesign 

Projected Timeline

294



November 19, 2024 Special Board Meeting 
Page 65, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 9:06 AM 
 

   

Review and Action on Contracting Architectural Services for the 
Nursing and Allied Health Campus East Building A Renovation of 

Radiology Lab to Multipurpose Skills Lab and Community Pharmacy 
Lab 

Purpose To contract architectural services for the Nursing and Allied Health 
Campus East Building A Renovation of Radiology Lab to 
Multipurpose Skills Lab and Community Pharmacy Lab project.  
 

Justification Architectural services are necessary for design and construction 
administration services for this project. The design scope of work 
includes, but is not limited to, design, analysis, preparation of plans 
and specifications, permit applications, construction administration, 
and inspection of the project. 
 
The project consists of renovating the existing Radiology lab to a 
Multipurpose Skills Lab for instruction, and renovating the Community 
Pharmacy Lab on the 3rd floor to meet American Society of Health-
System Pharmacists / Accreditation Council for Pharmacy Education 
(ASHP/ACPE) standards for accreditation. 
 
The proposed scope of work is summarized as follows: 

• Renovation and conversion of the Radiology Lab 
o Total Renovation Space 1,278 sq. ft. 

• Renovation of the Community Pharmacy Lab on 3rd Floor  
o Total Square Feet = 1,373 sq. ft. 
o Spaces to Include: 

 Large Pharmacy Lab 
 Pharmacy Prep Area 
 Pharmacy Storage  

 
Enclosed 
Documents 
 

Appendix A – RFQ Solicitation Information 
Appendix B – Project Presentation 
Appendix C – Ranking and Evaluations of Respondents 
Appendix D – Fact Sheet 
 

Funding The total Nursing and Allied Health Campus East Building A 
Renovation of Radiology Lab to Multipurpose Skills Lab Project 2023-
003C estimated cost, including construction, design, miscellaneous, 
FFE, and technology, is $161,640.  

• Construction       $125,000 
• Design                    12,500 
• Miscellaneous          3,500 
• FFE                        10,320 
• Technology            10,320 

           Total                  $161,640 
 
The total Nursing and Allied Health Campus East Building A 
Community Pharmacy Lab Renovations Project 2025-005C 

295



November 19, 2024 Special Board Meeting 
Page 66, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 9:06 AM 
 

   

estimated cost, including construction, design, miscellaneous, FFE, 
and technology, is $355,607.  

• Construction       $274,600 
• Design                    27,460 
• Miscellaneous          6,865 
• FFE                        23,341 
• Technology            23,341 

           Total                  $355,607 
 
The funds are available in the Unexpended Construction Plant Fund 
for use in FY 2024 – 2025. 
 

Staff Resource Ricardo de la Garza, Executive Director for Facilities Planning & 
Construction 
 

Additional 
Information 

The Facilities Committee did not meet in November 2024; therefore, 
this item is presented without a committee 
recommendation.  Administration recommends approval as 
presented. 
 

Recommendation It is recommended that the Board of Trustees of South Texas 
College approve and authorize the following Minute Order 
proposed for consideration: 

The Board of Trustees of South Texas College approves and 
authorizes to contract architectural services with Boultinghouse 
Simpson Gates Architects for the Nursing and Allied Health Campus 
East Building A Renovation of Radiology Lab to Multipurpose Skills 
Lab and Community Pharmacy Lab project as presented. 

Approval Recommended: 

 Dr. Ricardo J. Solis 
President 
 

Appendix A 
RFQ Solicitation Information 

 
Advertised on October 2, 2024 and October 9, 2024 
RFQ Responses Due October 17, 2024 
RFQ Issued To Thirty-six (36) Vendors 
Responses Received From Five (5) Responses 

Responses Reviewed By 
Academic Affairs, Facilities Operations & 
Maintenance, Facilities Planning & Construction, 
and Purchasing Departments 

 
Appendix B 

Project Presentation follows in the packet. 
 
 

296



November 19, 2024 Special Board Meeting 
Page 67, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 9:06 AM 
 

   

Appendix C 
Ranking and Evaluations of Respondents follow in the packet. 

 
Appendix D 

Fact Sheet follows in the packet. 
 
  

297



N
u

rs
in

g
 &

 A
lli

ed
 H

ea
lt

h
 C

am
p

u
s

C
o

n
ve

rs
io

n
 o

f 
R

ad
io

lo
g

y 
L

ab

298



PR
O

JE
C

T 
LO

C
AT

IO
N

N
u

rs
in

g
 &

 A
lli

ed
 H

ea
lt

h
 C

am
p

u
s

C
o

n
ve

rs
io

n
 o

f 
R

ad
io

lo
g

y 
L

ab

N
or

th

299



N
u

rs
in

g
 &

 A
lli

ed
 H

ea
lt

h
 C

am
p

u
s

C
o

n
ve

rs
io

n
 o

f 
R

ad
io

lo
g

y 
L

ab

N
or

th

PR
O

JE
C

T 
LO

C
AT

IO
N

En
la
rg
ed

 V
ie
w

300



N
u

rs
in

g
 &

 A
lli

ed
 H

ea
lt

h
 C

am
p

u
s

C
o

n
ve

rs
io

n
 o

f 
R

ad
io

lo
g

y 
L

ab

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 P

H
O

TO
S

301



R
eq

u
es

te
d

 B
y

N
ur

si
ng

 a
nd

 A
llie

d 
H

ea
lth

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t

S
co

p
e 

o
f 

W
o

rk
R

en
ov

at
io

n 
of

 e
xi

st
in

g 
R

ad
io

lo
gy

 L
ab

 R
oo

m
 1

03
 to

 a
 m

ul
ti 

pu
rp

os
e 

in
st

ru
ct

io
na

l s
ki

lls
 la

b 
fo

r h
an

ds
 

on
 tr

ai
ni

ng
.


To

ta
l S

qu
ar

e 
Fe

et
 =

 1
,2

78
 s

.f.


R
en

ov
at

io
n 

to
 In

cl
ud

e:
o

R
em

ov
al

 o
f a

ll 
le

ad
 w

al
ls

o
N

ew
 F

lo
or

in
g/

 C
ei

lin
g,

 P
ai

nt
 w

al
ls

/ c
ov

e 
ba

se
o

El
im

in
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

ro
om

s:
o

X-
R

ay
 1

03
B

o
D

ar
k 

R
oo

m
 1

03
 B

o
X-

R
ay

 1
03

A

E
st

im
at

ed
 T

o
ta

l P
ro

je
ct

 B
u

d
g

et
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 $
 1

25
,0

00
D

es
ig

n 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

12
,5

00
M

is
ce

lla
ne

ou
s 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  3

,5
00

FF
E 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 1
0,

32
0

Te
ch

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 1
0,

32
0

To
ta

l P
ro

je
ct

 B
u

d
g

et
   

   
   

   
   

  $
 1

61
,6

40

N
u

rs
in

g
 &

 A
lli

ed
 H

ea
lt

h
 C

am
p

u
s

C
o

n
ve

rs
io

n
 o

f 
R

ad
io

lo
g

y 
L

ab

302



N
u

rs
in

g
 &

 A
lli

ed
 H

ea
lt

h
 C

am
p

u
s

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

P
h

ar
m

ac
y 

L
ab

 R
en

o
va

ti
o

n

303



PR
O

JE
C

T 
LO

C
AT

IO
N

N
u

rs
in

g
 &

 A
lli

ed
 H

ea
lt

h
 C

am
p

u
s

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

P
h

ar
m

ac
y 

L
ab

 R
en

o
va

ti
o

n

N
or

th

304



N
u

rs
in

g
 &

 A
lli

ed
 H

ea
lt

h
 C

am
p

u
s

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

P
h

ar
m

ac
y 

L
ab

 R
en

o
va

ti
o

n

N
or

th

305



R
eq

u
es

te
d

 B
y

N
ur

si
ng

 a
nd

 A
llie

d 
H

ea
lth

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t

S
co

p
e 

o
f 

W
o

rk
R

en
ov

at
io

n 
of

 e
xi

st
in

g 
C

om
m

un
ity

 P
ha

rm
ac

y 
La

b 
an

d 
Ph

ar
m

ac
y 

Te
ch

no
lo

gy
 L

ec
tu

re
 a

re
a 

in
 N

AH
A 

2.
20

6 
& 

2.
20

8 
to

 in
cl

ud
e 

1 
la

rg
e 

C
om

m
un

ity
 P

ha
rm

ac
y 

La
b 

fo
r 8

 s
tu

de
nt

s,
 1

 in
st

ru
ct

or
, a

nd
 1

 la
b 

as
si

st
an

t t
o 

w
or

k 
in

 c
om

m
un

ity
 p

ha
rm

ac
y 

si
m

ul
at

io
n 

si
m

ul
ta

ne
ou

sl
y.


To

ta
l S

qu
ar

e 
Fe

et
 =

 1
,3

73
 s

.f.
o

2.
20

6 
  3

17
 s

.f.
o

2.
20

8 
  8

88
 s

.f.
o

2.
21

0 
  1

68
 s

.f.


Sp
ac

es
 to

 In
cl

ud
e:

o
La

rg
e 

Ph
ar

m
ac

y 
La

b
o

Ph
ar

m
ac

y 
Pr

ep
 a

re
a

o
Ph

ar
m

ac
y 

St
or

ag
e

E
st

im
at

ed
 T

o
ta

l P
ro

je
ct

 B
u

d
g

et
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 $
 2

74
,6

00
D

es
ig

n 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

27
,4

60
M

is
ce

lla
ne

ou
s 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  6

,8
65

FF
E 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 2
3,

34
1

Te
ch

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 2
3,

34
1

To
ta

l P
ro

je
ct

 B
u

d
g

et
   

   
   

   
   

  $
 3

55
,6

07

N
u

rs
in

g
 &

 A
lli

ed
 H

ea
lt

h
 C

am
p

u
s 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

P
h

ar
m

ac
y 

L
ab

 R
en

o
va

ti
o

n

306



VENDOR

Boultinghouse Simpson
Gates Architects CG5 Architect, LLC Duncan Architects, LLC

Negrete & Kolar 
Architects, LLP

Sam Garcia
Architect, LLC

ADDRESS 3301 N McColl Rd 901 Lindberg Ave 804 Pecan Blvd Ste 113 11720 North IH-35
1200 Auburn Ave Suite 

280

CITY/STATE/ZIP McAllen, TX 78501 McAllen, TX 78501 McAllen, TX 78501 Austin, TX 78753 McAllen, TX 78504

PHONE 956-630-9494 956-239-2438 956-443-3755 512-461-8810 956-631-8327

CONTACT Danny Boultinghouse Jose Carlos Garcia III Ryan Duncan David Negrete Sam R. Garcia

2.1.1  Statement of 
Interest for Project

Stated their 20-year history 
working with South Texas 

College which includes 
familiarity with requirements 

and expectations. 

Stated their design and 

professional services team has 

extensive experience that 

includes multiple and varied 

from Gas Stations/Convenience 

Stores to Municipal parks and 

School District  projects 

including Higher Education, 

that closely match the Scope of 

Work indicated for STC. 

Licensed to practice 
architecture in the states of 
Texas and Ohio and have 
20+ years of experiencee. 

 Indicated their 
qualifications demonstrates 

a long resume of 
conversion, repurpose and 

renovation of facilities.

Indicated they are looking 
forward to the opportunity 
to work closely with STC 

and show the firm's 
capabilities. Stated they are 
available and well-qualified 

for this project.

2.1.2  History and 
Statistics of Firm

- Firm established in 1990
- 600+ successful projects 
and 85% repeat client rate
- Staff of 11 

- Established in 2014

- Principal's experience spans 30 

years and includes leadership 

roles on multi-million-dollar 

projects

- Principal's credentials include 

State of Texas licensed; State of 

Texas Registered Architectural 

Firm; member of the American 

Institute of Architects; former 

Board of Trustee, President & 

Member for Mission CISD

- Established in 2021
- Licensed Architect in State 
of California, Texas and 
recently in Ohio. Adjunct 
Instructor in the Architecture 
program at South Texas 
College. 

- Offices in Austin and 
Edinburg
- Principal has 40+ years 
experience
- Established in 2003

- Founded in 2013
- Based in McAllen, TX

2.1.3  Narrative 
describing the design 
team's unique 
qualifications and 
specialized design 
experience as it relates 
to the project

Stated the firm's philosophy 
of being "client" oriented as 
much as "project" oriented. 
Over 25 years of providing 
A/E services to STC, very 
familiar with our system, 

staff and campus. 

Stated that their team of 
consultants have a broad 

experience base from which 
to call upon for any size 

and type of project. 
Especially has extensive 

knowledge and experience 
with educational settings for 

both K-12 and higher 
education levels. 

Pointed out the teams has a 
vast amount of experience 

designing commercial, 
office, residential, 

educational, and medical 
facilities. 

Stated that with DBR and 
Chanin Engineering as our 
design team members, we 

collectively have decades of 
experience completing 
successful educational 

setting projects throughout 
Texas.

Cited the principal's 
extensive experience and 

his personal involvement in 
a project throughout the 

entire process.

2.1.4  Statement of 
Availability and 
Commitment

Indicated their availability 
and commitment to the 

project.  Stated that project 
architect and project 

manager would be involved 
with the project until 

completed.

CG5 believes that one point of 

contact is key to project 

success. This allows us to 

maintain quality control from 

project start to project close-out 

and owner occupancy. CG5 

stands ready, willing, and able 

to meet any project timelines 

and is very aware and able to 

meet higher education time 

milestones. 

Confirmed the availability 
of their principals being 

there for the duration of any 
project that may come 

available through STC. 

Indicated the firm will 
commit to having staff 

available according to the 
schedules determined.

Indicated they are ready and 
available to execute 

assignments associated with 
the project and commit to 

the timely execution of this 
project.

SOUTH TEXAS COLLEGE
ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES FOR NURSING AND ALLIED HEALTH CAMPUS EAST BUILDING A COMMUNITY PHARMACY LAB RENOVATIONS 

AND RENOVATION OF RADIOLOGY LAB TO MULTIPURPOSE SKILLS LAB
PROJECT NO. 24-25-1021

2.1  Statement of Interest

307



VENDOR

Boultinghouse Simpson
Gates Architects CG5 Architect, LLC Duncan Architects, LLC

Negrete & Kolar 
Architects, LLP

Sam Garcia
Architect, LLC

SOUTH TEXAS COLLEGE
ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES FOR NURSING AND ALLIED HEALTH CAMPUS EAST BUILDING A COMMUNITY PHARMACY LAB RENOVATIONS 

AND RENOVATION OF RADIOLOGY LAB TO MULTIPURPOSE SKILLS LAB
PROJECT NO. 24-25-1021

2.2.1  Resumes of 
Principals and Key 
Members

Included resumes for the 
following:
- Robert S. Simpson, 
Principal Architect
- John Gates, Principal 
Architect

Included resumes for the 
following: 
- Jose Charlie Garcia III, 
Owner, Principal
-Olga N. Garcia, Owner/ 
Partner
- Herman Mendez, Chief 
Project Manager
- David Mejia, Project 
Manager                                  
- Emily Cavazos - 
Desinger/Drafter

Included resumes for the 
following staff:
- Ryan Duncan, AIA Partner 
& Principal Architect 
- Jaclyn Duncan, Partner & 
Princiapl Designer

Included resumes for the 
following staff:
- David N. Negrete, 
Principal Partner
- Andres L. Mata, Jr., Project 
Manager
- Esteban Zamora, Project 
Architect
- Bruce W. Menke, Project 
Manager
- Jason T. George, Architect/ 
Project Manager

Included resumes for the 
following: 
- Sam R. Garcia, Principal 
- Sergio Castillo, 
Production Manager
- Zuri Rivera, Lead Designer
- Jose Luis Rios, Jr., Project 
Architect                                  
- Hector A. Guevara, Project 
Architect

2.2.2  Project 
Assignments and 
Lines of Authority

Lines of authority and 
assignments within firm are 
shown in an organizational 
chart that includes ten staff 

members.

Lines of authority and 
assignments within firm are 
shown in an organization 

chart. 

Lines of authority are 
handled by the 2 principals 

Ryan Duncan and Jaclyn 
Duncan.

Lines of authority are 
indicated in an organization 
chart.  Indicate that all team 

members will, at some point, 
dedicate 100% of time to 

project.

Indicated duties and time 
assignments for the two key 

team members.

2.2.3 Prime Firm 
proximity and 
meeting availability

Indicated that their local 
presence give them the 

opportunity to respond in a 
timely many to any planned 

or unexpected meetings 
with STC.

Indicated they are local to 
the RGV and is able to met 

and provide services 
immediately to STC.

Will be available and 
flexable to attend 

unscheduled meeting within 
24 hours often within just a 

few hours. 

Firm is located within 15 
miles from the Pecan 

Campus.

Indicated that the firm is 2.7 
miles away from the Pecan 

Campus.

2.2.4 Describe any 
litigation the prime 
firm is currently 
involved in which 
could affect the firm's 
ability to provide 
professional services 
to STC

Indicated that the firm is not 
involved in any litigation 
that could affect the firm's 

ability to provide 
professional services.

Indicated that the firm is not 
or has not ever been 

involved in any litigation.

Proud to say that the firm 
has not been involved in 

any litigations. 

Indicated that the firm is not 
involved in any litigation.

Indicated that the firm is not 
involved in any litigation.

2.3.1  Organization 
chart with Role of 
Prime Firm and each 
consultants firm

Included organizational 
chart which showed the 
following consultant:
- MEP Solutions 
Engnieering 

Included organizational 
chart which showed the 
following consultants:
- CLH Engineering - Civil & 
Structural Engineering
- VME Engineering LLC - 
MEP 

Included organization chart 
showing prime firm and the 
following consultants:
- MEP Engineer - DBR 
Engineering Consultants, 
Inc. 
- Structural Engineer - Atlas 
Engineering Consultants
- Landscape Architect - 
Heffner Design Team              
- Civil Engineer - Spoor 
Engineering

Included organizational 
chart showing prime firm 
and the following 
consultant: 
- DBR Engineering - MEP
- Chanin Engineering - 
Structural

Included organizational chart 

showing prime firm and the 

following consultants: 

- Melden & Hunt - 

Surveyor/Civil Engineer - Ethos 

Engineering, Inc. - Electrical 

Engineer - Heffner Design Team 

- Architectural Landscape - 

Green, Rubiano & Associates - 

Structural - Texas Fire Sprinkler 

Contractors, LLC - Fire 

Protection Engineer - Halff 

Associates, Inc. - Information 

Communication Technology 

Services 

2.2 Prime Firm

2.3  Project Team

308



VENDOR

Boultinghouse Simpson
Gates Architects CG5 Architect, LLC Duncan Architects, LLC

Negrete & Kolar 
Architects, LLP

Sam Garcia
Architect, LLC

SOUTH TEXAS COLLEGE
ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES FOR NURSING AND ALLIED HEALTH CAMPUS EAST BUILDING A COMMUNITY PHARMACY LAB RENOVATIONS 

AND RENOVATION OF RADIOLOGY LAB TO MULTIPURPOSE SKILLS LAB
PROJECT NO. 24-25-1021

2.4.1  Minimum of 
five (5) projects firm 
has worked on

 UTRGV  HACRB 
Academic Research 
Building Renovations 
($342,000) 
- UTRGV - (BROBL) 
Employee/Student 
Clinic+Counseling 
Renovation ($800,000)           
- UTRGV - HCEBL Clinical 
Education Building 
($53,839)

-Vanguard Academy 
Beethoven
Campus - Edinburg 
($4,700,000M)
-Vanguard Academy Mozart 
Campus - Alamo ($4.5M)
- Palm Valley Church 
($10M)

- Laser Surgical Solutions 

Hyperbaric Oxygen Therapy 

Clinic Addition, McAllen, 

Texas ($250,000)

- Mireles Autism and Behavioral 

Center, McAllen, Texas 

($300,000)

- Training, Rehabilitation & 

Development Institute, Inc. 

Pharr, Texas ($750,000)

- STC Nursing & Allied 
Health Kitchen Lab 
Expansion ($180,000)
- UTPA Health Sicences 
Center ($1,600,000)
- Dietetics Lab Renovation 
($280,000)

- City of Falfurrias Urgent 
Care Center Office Building   
-Texas Wellness Spay & 
Neuter Clinic 
-KHIT Chiropractic 
Corporation HQ

2.5.1  References for 
five (3) projects

- UTRGV
- City of McAllen
- City of McAllen - McAllen 
International Airport

- Vanguard Academy - 
Edinburg
- Vanguard Academy - 
Alamo
- Palm Valley

- Mireles Autism and 
Behavioral Center
- Laser Surgical Solutions 
RGV Hyperbaric Oxygen 
Therapy Clinic Addition
- Top Grade Physical 
Therapy New Clinic

- City of Edinburg
- Edinburg CISD
- Washington Alliance 
Capital, LLC

- City of La Joya
- EB Merit Construction 
-KHIT Multidisplinary 
Group

2.6 Project Execution

2.6.1 Summary of 
approach to project 
that addresses 
interaction with STC 
staff, management of 
different phases of the 
project, how you 
maintain quality 
control, and final 
project close-out.

3 registered Architects, five 
full time CAD technicians,a 

nd two administrative 
personnel. Stated they 

currently utilize Building 
Information Modeling 

(BIM).  

Stated that communication 
is key between all 

stakeholders and key 
personnel to expedite the 
design and construction 
process and mitigate any 

issues before time and cost 
are effected. 

Prioritize open communication 

on the Schematic Design phase 

and we refine the approval floor 

plan on the Design Development 

phase. On the Construction 

phase we refine very detailed 

the set of documents and always 

facilitate the communication 

between the design team and 

the construtcion team with the 

owner. 

Provided a project timeline 
that covers key events of 

entire project.

Firm indicated that their 
project approach emphasizes 
communication between the 
design team, the client and 

other stakeholders. 

2.6.2  Willingness 
and ability to expedite 
services. Ability to 
supplement 
production.

Stated they have been 
successful in controlling 

their workload so that they 
don't have to add staff 

solely to meet the demands 
of any project.

Stated have the ability to staff 

up to 10 people for immediate 

resources on any size project. 

Our consultants are staffed 

locally in the RGV and also 

have the ability to meet any 

size work demand to meet 

schedules and timelines.

Indicated they are able to 
adjust schedules and fast-

track projects to meet owner 
deadlines.

Indicated that they are 
involved in a limited 

amount of major long-term 
project delivery programs 

and their staff is fully 
capable of undertaking the 

projects assigned. 

Stated they can and will do 
what needs to be done from 

a staffing and manpower 
perspective to meet client's 

project deadlines.

EVALUATION 
POINTS 580.00 480.80 533.00 554.40 569.00

RANKING 1 5 4 3 2

The Director of Purchasing has reviewed all the responses and evaluations completed.

2.5 References

2.4 Representative Projects

309



2.1 Statement of Interest (up to 100 points)

95 85 85 90 90

100 90 95 100 95

95 90 90 95 90

100 95 95 98 98

98 98 95 97 95

2.2 Prime Firm (up to 100 points)

95 85 85 95 90

100 95 100 95 100

90 85 85 95 80

99 95 97 97 97

98 95 92 97 96

2.3 Project Team (up to 100 points)

90 90 90 95 95

95 95 95 95 95

90 85 85 95 95

100 100 100 100 100

98 93 90 97 96

9291.6

Sam R. Garcia

93.6

92.6

96.2

2.2.1 Resumes giving the experience and expertise 
principles and key members for the prime firm that will be
involved in the project(s), including their experience with 
similar projects and the number of years with the prime 
firm
2.2.2 Proposed project assignments, lines of authority, 
and communication for principals and key professional 
members of the prime firm that will be involved in the 
project(s). Indicate the estimated percent of time these 
individuals will be involved in the project(s).
2.2.3 Prime Firm proximity and meeting availability
2.2.4 Describe any litigation the prime firm is currently 
involved in which could affect the firm's ability to provide 
professional services to STC

2.3.1 Organizational chart showing, the roles of the prime 
firm and each consultant firm or individual included.
--Identify the consultant and provide a brief history about 
the consultant
--Describe the consultant's proposed role in the project 
and its related project experience
--List a project(s) that the prime firm and the consultant 
have worked together on during the last five years 
--Provide a statement of the consultant's availability for 
the projects(s)
--Provide resumes giving the experience and expertise of 
principals and key professional members for the 
consultant who will be assigned to the projects(s)

96.4

94.6 92

91.8

David Negrete

96

95.8

96.4

91

92.6

SOUTH TEXAS COLLEGE
ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES FOR NURSING AND ALLIED HEALTH CAMPUS EAST BUILDING A COMMUNITY PHARMACY LAB RENOVATIONS 

AND RENOVATION OF RADIOLOGY LAB TO MULTIPURPOSE SKILLS LAB
PROJECT NO. 24-25-1021

EVALUATION SUMMARY

Sam Garcia
Architect, LLC

1200 Auburn Ave
Suite 280

McAllen, TX 78504

956-631-8327

ADDRESS

CITY/STATE/ZIP

Negrete & Kolar 
Architects, LLP

11720 North IH-35

Austin, TX 78753

512-461-8810PHONE

CONTACT

956-443-3755

Ryan Duncan

VENDOR

McAllen, TX 78501

Duncan Architects, LLC

804 Pecan Blvd Ste 113

CG5 Architect, LLC

901 Lindberg Ave

McAllen, TX 78501

956-239-2438

Jose Carlos Garcia III

97.6

Boultinghouse Simpson
Gates Architects

3301 N McColl Rd

McAllen, TX 78501

956-630-9494

Danny Boultinghouse

2.1.1 Statement of interest on project
2.1.2 Firm History including credentials 
2.1.3 Narrative describing the design team's unique 
qualifications and specialized design experience as it 
relates to the project
2.1.4 Availability and commitment of firm and its 
principal(s) and key professionals 

310



SOUTH TEXAS COLLEGE
ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES FOR NURSING AND ALLIED HEALTH CAMPUS EAST BUILDING A COMMUNITY PHARMACY LAB RENOVATIONS 

AND RENOVATION OF RADIOLOGY LAB TO MULTIPURPOSE SKILLS LAB
PROJECT NO. 24-25-1021

EVALUATION SUMMARY

Sam Garcia
Architect, LLC

Negrete & Kolar 
Architects, LLPVENDOR Duncan Architects, LLCCG5 Architect, LLC

Boultinghouse Simpson
Gates Architects

2.4 Representative Projects (up to 100 points)

95 90 85 95 95

90 90 95 100 100

95 95 85 95 85

100 85 90 95 95

95 90 88 95 92

2.5 Five References (up to 100 points)

100 25 76 76 100

100 25 76 76 100

100 25 76 76 100

100 25 76 76 100

100 25 76 76 100

2.6 Project Execution (up to 100 points)

95 85 85 90 90

95 90 95 95 90

95 90 90 90 90

99 90 95 98 98

98 98 98 98 98

The Director of Purchasing has reviewed all the responses and evaluations completed.

100

93.2

569.00

2

93.4

4

92.6

3

554.40

96

76

94.2

533.00

RANKING

TOTAL EVALUATION POINTS

2.4.1 Specific data on 5 projects the prime firm provided 
or is providing professional services in an educational 
setting
--Project name and location; Project Owner and contact 
information;  Project construction cost; Project size in 
gross square feet; Date project was started and completed;
Professional services prime firm provided for the project; 
Project manager; Project architect; Project designer; 
Names of consultant firms and their expertise.

2.5.1 Provide references for 3 projects, other than 
STC.  The references shall include the following 
current information:
--Owner's name, Owner's representative who served 
as the day-to-day liaison during planning, design, and
construction of the project, and the Owner 
representative's telephone number and email address

95

100 76

88.6

2.6.1 Provide a summary of your approach to the project 
that addresses key elements such as your interaction with 
STC staff, management of the different phases of the 
project, how you maintain quality control, and final 
project close-out.
2.6.2 Provide information as part of submission response 
to assure that Architectural firm is willing and able to 
expedite design services and construction administration 
for the project.  Please provide insight if Architect is 
intending to supplement production capability in order to 
meet schedule demands.

90

25

90.6

580.00

1

480.80

5

96.4

311



Project Fact Sheet

11/1/2024

Project No.

Funding Source(s):  

Total

Project Budget

 FY 24-25

Actual 

Expenditures

Variance of Project 

Budget vs. Actual 

Expenditures

125,000.00$        -$                      125,000.00$      

12,500.00            -                        12,500.00 

3,500.00 3,500.00 

10,320.00            - 10,320.00 

10,320.00            - 10,320.00 

161,640.00$       -$    161,640.00$     

Approval to Solicit : 9/24/2024 Vendor

Contract 

Amount

Actual 

Expenditures Variance

Architect/Engineer: N/A TBD -$       

Contractor: TBD

Substantial 

Completion TBD Board Acceptance TBD

STC FPC Project Manager:

Final Completion TBD Board Acceptance TBD

Board Approval to 

Solicit Architect/Engineer

Board Approval of 

Architect/Engineer

Board Approval of 

Schematic Design

Board Approval of 

Contractor

Construction Start 

Date

9/24/2024 11/26/2024 2/25/2025 6/24/2025 7/15/2025

Fiscal Year Design FFE

2024-25 -   - 

Project Total  $ -    $ -   

FPC Project Manager FPC Director

11/19/2024 Board Meeting: Review and Action of Architectural Services for the Nursing and Allied Health Campus East Building A Renovation of Radiology Lab to Multipurpose Skills Lab and Community Pharmacy 

Lab.

FPC Asst. Director

- - -$        

 $ -    $ -   -$        

                                                                        -   

 $ -   

FFE Completion of Move In

1/27/2026 2/24/2026 1/15/2026

Current Agenda Item

Project Calendar of Expenditures by Fiscal Year

Miscellaneous Tech Project TotalConstruction

Renovation of existing Radiation Lab Room 103 to a multi purpose instructional skills lab for hands on training.

Total:

Project Team Board Status
Board Approval 

of Schematic 

Design

NA

Samuel Saldana

Project Description Project Scope

Projected Timeline

Board Approval of 

Substantial Completion Date

Board Approval of 

Final Completion Date

Technology:

Nursing and Allied Health Campus  - Renovation of Radiology Lab to Multipurpose Skills Lab 2023-003C

Unexpended Construction Fund

Construction:

Design

Miscellaneous:

FFE:

FY 24-25

Renovation of existing Radiation Lab Room 103 to a multi purpose instructional skills lab for 

hands on training.

Existing
Radiology LabPrject Location

Nursing and Allied Heath 
Campus

312



Project Fact Sheet

11/1/2024

Project No.

Funding Source(s):  

Total

Project Budget

 FY 24-25

Actual 

Expenditures

Variance of Project 

Budget vs. Actual 

Expenditures

274,600.00$        -$                      274,600.00$      

27,460.00            -                        27,460.00 

6,865.00 6,865.00 

23,341.00            - 23,341.00 

23,341.00            - 23,341.00 

355,607.00$       -$    355,607.00$     

Approval to Solicit : 9/24/2024 Vendor

Contract 

Amount

Actual 

Expenditures Variance

Architect/Engineer: N/A TBD -$       

Contractor: TBD

Substantial 

Completion TBD Board Acceptance TBD

STC FPC Project Manager:

Final Completion TBD Board Acceptance TBD

Board Approval to 

Solicit Architect/Engineer

Board Approval of 

Architect/Engineer

Board Approval of 

Schematic Design

Board Approval of 

Contractor

Construction Start 

Date

9/24/2024 11/26/2024 2/25/2025 6/24/2025 7/22/2025

Fiscal Year Design FFE

2024-25 -   - 

Project Total  $ -    $ -   

FPC Project Manager FPC Director

11/19/2024 Board Meeting: Review and Action of Architectural Services for the Nursing and Allied Health Campus East Building A Renovation of Radiology Lab to Multipurpose Skills Lab and Community Pharmacy 

Lab.

FPC Asst. Director

- - -$        

 $ -    $ -   -$        

                                                                        -   

 $ -   

Current Agenda Item

FFE Completion of Move In

1/27/2026 4/25/2026 1/15/2026

Construction

Project Calendar of Expenditures by Fiscal Year

Miscellaneous Tech Project Total

Renovation of existing Community Pharmacy Lab and Pharmacy Technology Lecture area in NAHA 2.206 & 2.208 to include 1 large 

Community Pharmacy Lab for 8 students, 1 instructor, and 1 lab assistant to work in community pharmacy simulation simultaneously.

Total:

Project Team Board Status
Board Approval 

of Schematic 

Design

NA

Samuel Saldana

Project Description Project Scope

Projected Timeline

Board Approval of 

Substantial Completion Date

Board Approval of 

Final Completion Date

Technology:

Nursing and Allied Health Campus  - Community Pharmacy Lab Renovations 2025-005C

Unexpended Construction Fund

Construction:

Design

Miscellaneous:

FFE:

FY 24-25

Renovation of existing Community Pharmacy Lab and Pharmacy Technology Lecture area in 

NAHA 2.206 & 2.208 to include 1 large Community Pharmacy Lab for 8 students, 1 instructor, 

and 1 lab assistant to work in community pharmacy simulation simultaneously.

Existing
Pharmacy 

Prject Location

Nursing and Allied Heath 
Campus

313



November 19, 2024 Special Board Meeting 
Page 68, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 9:06 AM 
 

   

Review and Action on Contracting Construction Services for the 
Pecan Campus Cooper Center for Performing Arts Building L 
Expansion and Renovations for Music and Dance Programs  

Purpose To contract construction services for the Pecan Campus Cooper 
Center for Performing Arts Building L Expansion and Renovations for 
Music and Dance Programs project.  
 

Justification On June 28, 2022, the Board of Trustees approved contracting 
architectural services with BRW for this project. On October 31, 2023, 
the Board approved a schematic design of Phase I of the project. On 
March 26, 2024, the Board approved the additional scope for Phase 
I and the schematic design of Phase II. 
 
The project consists of the construction of an expansion and 
renovation to the Pecan Campus Cooper Center for Performing Arts 
Building L for the Music and Dance Programs.   

• Design and construction of the expansion and renovation to 
include: 

o 1 Large Rehearsal Classroom, 1 Small Rehearsal 
Classroom, 5 Music Practice Rooms, 2 Music Practice 
Rooms with Piano, 4 Faculty Studio Offices, 4 Faculty 
Studio Offices with Piano, 1 Department Chair Office, 
and Support Spaces. Percussion Suites, Faculty 
Office, Lockers, Storage, and Support Spaces 

• Proposed spaces:  
o Music Expansion: 14,500 s.f. 

 
Enclosed 
Documents 
 

Appendix A – RFP Solicitation Information 
Appendix B – Project Presentation 
Appendix C – Ranking and Evaluations of Respondents 
Appendix D – Fact Sheet 
 

Funding The total Project 2022-043C estimated cost, including construction, 
design, miscellaneous, FFE, and technology, is $10,766,375.  

• Construction       $8,355,000 
• Design                     815,375 
• Miscellaneous         236,900 
• FFE                         679,550 
• Technology             679,550 

           Total                $10,766,375 
 
The highest ranked bid proposal is $8,440,000, which is $85,000 
more than the $8,355,000 construction budget.   
 
The funds are available in the Unexpended Construction Plant Fund 
for use in FY 2024 – 2025.  

Staff Resource Ricardo de la Garza, Executive Director for Facilities Planning & 
Construction 
 

314



November 19, 2024 Special Board Meeting 
Page 69, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 9:06 AM 
 

   

Additional 
Information 

The Facilities Committee did not meet in November 2024; therefore, 
this item is presented without a committee 
recommendation.  Administration recommends approval as 
presented. 
 

Recommendation It is recommended that the Board of Trustees of South Texas 
College approve and authorize the following Minute Order 
proposed for consideration: 

The Board of Trustees of South Texas College approves and 
authorizes to contract construction services with Peacock General 
Contractors, Inc. in the amount of $8,440,000 for the Pecan Campus 
Cooper Center for Performing Arts Building L Expansion and 
Renovations for Music and Dance Programs project as presented. 

Approval Recommended: 

 Dr. Ricardo J. Solis 
President 
 

Appendix A 
RFP Solicitation Information 

 

Advertised RFP September 25, 2024 and October 2, 2024 
RFP Responses Due October 17, 2024 
RFP Issued To Seven (7) Vendors 
Responses Received From Three (3) Responses 

Responses Reviewed By 
Representatives from the Architect, Facilities 
Operations & Maintenance, Facilities Planning & 
Construction, and Purchasing Departments 

 
Appendix B 

Project Presentation follows in the packet. 
 

Appendix C 
Ranking and Evaluations of Respondents follow in the packet. 

 

Appendix D 
Fact Sheet follows in the packet. 

  

315



P
ec

an
 C

am
p

u
s

C
o

o
p

er
 C

en
te

r 
fo

r 
P

er
fo

rm
in

g
 A

rt
s 

B
u

ild
in

g
 L

 
E

xp
an

si
o

n
 a

n
d

 R
en

o
va

ti
o

n
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

M
u

si
c 

an
d

 
D

an
ce

 P
ro

g
ra

m
s 

   

20
22

-0
43

C

IM
AG

ES
 P
RO

VI
DE

D 
BY

 B
RW

 A
RC

HI
TE
CT

S

316



PR
O

JE
C

T 
LO

C
AT

IO
N

P
ec

an
 C

am
p

u
s 

C
o

o
p

er
 C

en
te

r 
fo

r 
P

er
fo

rm
in

g
 A

rt
s 

B
u

ild
in

g
 L

 
E

xp
an

si
o

n
 a

n
d

 R
en

o
va

ti
o

n
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

M
u

si
c 

an
d

 D
an

ce
 P

ro
g

ra
m

s 

P
ro

je
ct

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 S
it

e

N
or

th

317



4,
75

0 
Sq

.F
t.

Pr
op

os
ed

 
Ex

pa
ns

io
n

N
or

th

P
ec

an
 C

am
p

u
s 

C
o

o
p

er
 C

en
te

r 
fo

r 
P

er
fo

rm
in

g
 A

rt
s 

B
u

ild
in

g
 L

 
E

xp
an

si
o

n
 a

n
d

 R
en

o
va

ti
o

n
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

M
u

si
c 

an
d

 D
an

ce
 P

ro
g

ra
m

s 

P
ro

je
ct

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 L
o

ca
ti

o
n

9,
75

0 
Sq

.F
t.

Pr
op

os
ed

 
Ex

pa
ns

io
n

318



P
ec

an
 C

am
p

u
s 

C
o

o
p

er
 C

en
te

r 
fo

r 
P

er
fo

rm
in

g
 A

rt
s 

B
u

ild
in

g
 L

 
E

xp
an

si
o

n
 a

n
d

 R
en

o
va

ti
o

n
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

M
u

si
c 

an
d

 D
an

ce
 P

ro
g

ra
m

s 

F
lo

o
r 

P
la

n

IM
AG

ES
 P
RO

VI
DE

D 
BY

 B
RW

 A
RC

HI
TE
CT

S

319



P
ec

an
 C

am
p

u
s 

C
o

o
p

er
 C

en
te

r 
fo

r 
P

er
fo

rm
in

g
 A

rt
s 

B
u

ild
in

g
 L

 
E

xp
an

si
o

n
 a

n
d

 R
en

o
va

ti
o

n
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

M
u

si
c 

an
d

 D
an

ce
 P

ro
g

ra
m

s 

W
es

t 
E

le
va

ti
o

n

IM
AG

ES
 P
RO

VI
DE

D 
BY

 B
RW

 A
RC

HI
TE
CT

S

320



P
ec

an
 C

am
p

u
s 

C
o

o
p

er
 C

en
te

r 
fo

r 
P

er
fo

rm
in

g
 A

rt
s 

B
u

ild
in

g
 L

 
E

xp
an

si
o

n
 a

n
d

 R
en

o
va

ti
o

n
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

M
u

si
c 

an
d

 D
an

ce
 P

ro
g

ra
m

s 

L
ar

g
e 

R
eh

ea
rs

al
 R

o
o

m

IM
AG

ES
 P
RO

VI
DE

D 
BY

 B
RW

 A
RC

HI
TE
CT

S

321



P
ec

an
 C

am
p

u
s 

C
o

o
p

er
 C

en
te

r 
fo

r 
P

er
fo

rm
in

g
 A

rt
s 

B
u

ild
in

g
 L

 
E

xp
an

si
o

n
 a

n
d

 R
en

o
va

ti
o

n
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

M
u

si
c 

an
d

 D
an

ce
 P

ro
g

ra
m

s 

N
o

rt
h

 E
le

va
ti

o
n

IM
AG

ES
 P
RO

VI
DE

D 
BY

 B
RW

 A
RC

HI
TE
CT

S

322



P
ec

an
 C

am
p

u
s 

C
o

o
p

er
 C

en
te

r 
fo

r 
P

er
fo

rm
in

g
 A

rt
s 

B
u

ild
in

g
 L

 
E

xp
an

si
o

n
 a

n
d

 R
en

o
va

ti
o

n
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

M
u

si
c 

an
d

 D
an

ce
 P

ro
g

ra
m

s 

L
ar

g
e 

P
er

cu
ss

io
n

 R
eh

ea
rs

al

IM
AG

ES
 P
RO

VI
DE

D 
BY

 B
RW

 A
RC

HI
TE
CT

S

323



R
eq

u
es

te
d

 B
y

M
us

ic
 a

nd
 D

an
ce

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

S
co

p
e 

o
f 

W
o

rk
1 

La
rg

e 
R

eh
ea

rs
al

 C
la

ss
ro

om
, 1

 S
m

al
l R

eh
ea

rs
al

 C
la

ss
ro

om
, 5

 M
us

ic
 P

ra
ct

ic
e 

R
oo

m
s,

 2
 

M
us

ic
 P

ra
ct

ic
e 

R
oo

m
s 

w
ith

 P
ia

no
, 4

 F
ac

ul
ty

 S
tu

di
o 

O
ffi

ce
s,

 4
 F

ac
ul

ty
 S

tu
di

o 
O

ffi
ce

s 
w

ith
 

Pi
an

o,
 1

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t C

ha
ir 

O
ffi

ce
, a

nd
 S

up
po

rt 
Sp

ac
es

. P
er

cu
ss

io
n 

Su
ite

s,
 F

ac
ul

ty
 O

ffi
ce

, 
Lo

ck
er

s,
 S

to
ra

ge
, a

nd
 S

up
po

rt 
Sp

ac
es

To
ta

l S
qu

ar
e 

Fe
et

 A
re

a 
= 

14
,5

00
 s

q.
ft.

 
Es

tim
at

ed
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

C
os

t p
er

 S
qu

ar
e 

Fo
ot

 =
 $

57
6/

sq
.ft

.

E
st

im
at

ed
 T

o
ta

l 
P

ro
je

ct
 B

u
d

g
et

   
  

  
  

 
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

$ 
8,

35
5,

00
0 

 
D

es
ig

n 
81

5,
37

5 
M

is
ce

lla
ne

ou
s 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
23

6,
90

0
FF

E 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 6

79
,5

50
Te

ch
no

lo
gy

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
67

5,
55

0
To

ta
l P

ro
je

ct
 B

ud
ge

t  
   

$ 
10

,7
66

,3
75

P
ec

an
 C

am
p

u
s 

C
o

o
p

er
 C

en
te

r 
fo

r 
P

er
fo

rm
in

g
 A

rt
s 

B
u

ild
in

g
 L

 
E

xp
an

si
o

n
 a

n
d

 R
en

o
va

ti
o

n
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

M
u

si
c 

an
d

 D
an

ce
 P

ro
g

ra
m

s 

O
ri

g
in

al
 P

ro
p

o
se

d
 S

co
p

e 
&

 B
u

d
g

et

324



# 1 2 3 Th
e 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f P

ur
ch

as
in

g 
ha

s r
ev

ie
w

ed
 a

ll 
th

e 
re

sp
on

se
s a

nd
 e

va
lu

at
io

ns
 c

om
pl

et
ed

.

G
er

la
ch

 B
ui

ld
er

s, 
LL

C
.

91
8 

B
ig

 H
or

n 
D

r

Ed
in

bu
rg

, T
X

 7
85

04

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 8

,9
93

,0
00

.0
0 

95
6-

78
1-

97
81

Sh
aw

n 
G

er
la

ch

88
.9

3

2

H
ol

ch
em

on
t, 

Lt
d.

90
0 

N
 M

ai
n 

St

M
cA

lle
n,

 T
X

 7
85

01

95
6-

68
6-

29
01

95
6-

68
6-

29
25

M
ic

ha
el

 C
. M

on
ta

lv
o

 P
ro

po
se

d 

10
 W

or
ki

ng
 D

ay
s

R
A

N
K

IN
G

PH
O

N
E

T
O

T
A

L
 E

V
A

L
U

A
T

IO
N

 P
O

IN
T

S

 P
ro

po
se

d 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  1
0,

75
0,

00
0.

00
 

83
.4

3

3

5 
W

or
ki

ng
 D

ay
s

A
D

D
R

E
SS

C
IT

Y
/S

T
A

T
E

/Z
IP

C
O

N
T

A
C

T

T
O

T
A

L
 A

M
O

U
N

T
 P

R
O

PO
SE

D

FA
X

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n B
eg

in
 W

or
k 

W
ith

in

90
.4

1

1

SO
U

T
H

 T
E

X
A

S 
C

O
L

L
E

G
E

PE
C

A
N

 C
A

M
PU

S 
C

O
O

PE
R

 C
E

N
T

E
R

 F
O

R
 P

E
R

FO
R

M
IN

G
 A

R
T

S 
B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 L

 E
X

PA
N

SI
O

N
 

A
N

D
 R

E
N

O
V

A
T

IO
N

 F
O

R
 T

H
E

 M
U

SI
C

 A
N

D
 D

A
N

C
E

 P
R

O
G

R
A

M
S 

PR
O

JE
C

T
 N

O
. 2

4-
25

-1
01

9

Pe
ca

n 
C

am
pu

s C
oo

pe
r C

en
te

r f
or

 P
er

fo
rm

in
g 

A
rts

 B
ui

ld
in

g 
L 

Ex
pa

ns
io

n 
an

d 
R

en
ov

at
io

n 
fo

r 
th

e 
M

us
ic

 D
an

ce
 P

ro
gr

am
s

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  1
0,

75
0,

00
0.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 8

,9
93

,0
00

.0
0 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 8

,4
40

,0
00

.0
0 

95
6-

42
5-

56
83

Tr
e 

Pe
ac

oc
k

 P
ro

po
se

d 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 8

,4
40

,0
00

.0
0 

Pe
ac

oc
k 

G
en

er
al

 
C

on
tra

ct
or

s, 
In

c.
 

80
1 

E 
G

rim
es

H
ar

lin
ge

n,
 T

X
 7

85
50

95
6-

42
3-

67
33

N
A

M
E

10
 W

or
ki

ng
 D

ay
s

C
om

pl
et

io
n 

of
 W

or
k 

W
ith

in
36

5 
C

al
en

da
r D

ay
s

36
5 

C
al

en
da

r D
ay

s
40

0 
C

al
en

da
r D

ay
s

325



35.33 42.23 45

35.33 42.23 45

35.33 42.23 45

35.33 42.23 45

35.33 42.23 45

9 8 8

9 9 9

9 8 7.5

8 7 8

9 9 9

9 8 8

9 8 9

8 7.5 7

9 8 8

9 9 9

5 5 5

4 4 4

4.5 4 4.5

4 4 4

4 3 4

8.8 8.22

The Respondent's experience and reputation. 
(up to 10 points)
-a. Provide total number of current company employees.
-b. Provide dollar amounts for each project contracted in the past 
twenty four months.
-c. Provide number of years your company has been in business.
-d. Are there currently or in the past five years, any judgements, claims, 
arbitration proceedings, claim on bonds or suits pending or outstanding 
against your organization or its officers?
-e. Provide a customer reference list of no less than five (5) 
organizations from whom your organization has previously provided 
services of equal type and scope within the past five (5) years as 
requested in the RFP.  Reference list is to include company name, 
contact person, telephone number and description of the project.  
References will be contacted as part of this evaluation.

4.3

3

The quality of the Respondent's goods or services. 
(up to 10 points)
-a. Describe your company's quality control program.
-b. Explain the methods used to maintain quality control in the 
construction project.
-c. Describe company's process for addressing warranty claims.
-d. Describe the experience of key personnel responsible for 
maintaining quality control.
-e. Provide examples of past STC construction projects or other similar 
projects.  (all respondents will receive an minimum of 3 points for item 
(e) unless it is determined that past performance bond is poor).  
Reference for similar projects will be contacted and responses will be 
considered as part of this evaluation.

8.8 8.1 8.2

4.3 44

The Respondent's safety record.
(up to 5 points)
-a. Provide copy of your company's safety program or 
describe how job site safety is managed.  Include safety 
policies which employees must be in compliance with.
-b. What is your company's Experience Modifier Rate 
(EMR) for the three (3) most recent annual insurance-year 
ratings?
-c. Have you had any OSHA fines within the last three (3) 
years?  If yes, provide details.

956-423-6733

CITY/STATE/ZIP Edinburg, TX 78504 McAllen, TX 78501 Harlingen, TX 78550

PHONE 956-781-9781 956-686-2901

801 E Grimes

SOUTH TEXAS COLLEGE
PECAN COOPER CENTER FOR PERFORMING ARTS BUILDING L EXPANSION AND

RENOVATION FOR THE MUSIC AND DANCE PROGRAMS
PROJECT NO. 24-25-1019

EVALUATION SUMMARY

VENDOR Gerlach Builders, LLC. Holchemont, Ltd.
Peacock General 
Contractors, Inc. 

ADDRESS 918 Big Horn Dr 900 N Main St

FAX 956-686-2925 956-425-5683

Tre PeacockCONTACT Shawn Gerlach Michael C. Montalvo

8.3

1

The Respondent's price proposal. 
(up to 45 points)
-a. Refer to RFP Section 4, Pricing and Delivery 
Schedule.

35.33 42.23 45

326



SOUTH TEXAS COLLEGE
PECAN COOPER CENTER FOR PERFORMING ARTS BUILDING L EXPANSION AND

RENOVATION FOR THE MUSIC AND DANCE PROGRAMS
PROJECT NO. 24-25-1019

EVALUATION SUMMARY

VENDOR Gerlach Builders, LLC. Holchemont, Ltd.
Peacock General 
Contractors, Inc. 

7 6.5 6.5

7 7 7

7.5 7 7

7 7 7

7 7 7

7.5 6 6.5

7 7 7

7.5 7 7

7 6 6

7 7 7

5 5 4.5

5 5 5

4.5 5 5

5 5 4

5 5 5

7 6.9 6.31

7 6.9 6.31

7 6.9 6.31

7 6.9 6.31

7 6.9 6.31

0 1 0

0 1 0

0 1 0

0 1 0

0 1 0

The Director of Purchasing has reviewed all the responses and evaluations completed.

RANKING 3 2 1

83.43 88.93 90.41

0

6.318

The Respondent's time frame for completing the project. 
(up to 7 points)
-a. Refer to RFP Section 4, Pricing and Delivery 
Schedule.

7 6.9

9

The impact on the ability of the district to comply with 
laws and rules relating to historically underutilized 
businesses. 
(up to 1 point)

0 1

7.1 6.9

4.7

6.76

The Respondent's financial capability in relation to the size and 
scope of the project.  (up to 8 points)
-a. Attach a letter of intent from a surety company indicating your 
company's ability to bond for the entire construction cost of the 
project and total bonding limitation.
-b. Is your company currently in default on any loan agreement or 
financing agreement with any bank, financial institution or other 
entity?  If yes, provide details and prospects for resolution.
-c. Provide a list and description of all construction projects 
currently under contract including total cost and star and end dates.
-d. Attach a Dunn and Bradstreet Analysis or current financial 
statements, preferably audited.

7.2 6.6

7

The Respondent's organization and approach to the 
project. (up to 6 points)
-a. Provide a statement of the project approach.
-b. Submit a work schedule with key dates and 
milestones.
-c. Do you anticipate difficulties in serving STC and 
how do you plan to manage these?  What assistance will 
you require from STC?

4.9 5

6.95

TOTAL EVALUATION POINTS

The Respondent's proposed personnel. (up to 8 points)
-a. Provide resumes of the Respondent's team that will be directly 
involved in the project.  The resume must include experience in 
similar projects, number of years with the firm and city of 
residence.
-b. Describe the project assignment and the percent of time each 
team will be involved in the project.
c. Provide list of member(s) on your staff, directly involved in 
managing the project, who are Certified Construction Manager 
through the Construction Management Association of America 
(CMAA) or similar.
-d. Within 24 hours after the proposal delivery date and time, 
provide a list of key subcontractors to be used including a list of 
five projects recently completed by each subcontractor.

327



Project Fact Sheet

11/1/2024

Project Name: Pecan Campus - Cooper Center for Performing Arts Building L Expansion and Renovations for the Music & Dance Programs Project No.

Funding Source(s):  

Total

Project Budget

*Revised Total

Project Budget

Additional Scope 

Total

Project Budget

Percussion

Project Budget

**Revised Total

Project Budget Project Budget

FY 21-22

Actual 

Expenditures

Variance of 

Project Budget 

vs. Actual 

Expenditures Project Budget

FY 22-23

Actual 

Expenditures

Variance of 

Project Budget vs. 

Actual 

Expenditures

Construction:  $    3,360,000.00 4,800,000.00$     805,000.00$     2,750,000.00$    8,355,000.00$     -$   -$  -$    336,000.00$     -$   336,000.00$    

Design 336,000.00            480,000.00 60,375.00           275,000.00            815,375.00 7,560.00 - 7,560.00 261,240.00          41,895.00           219,345.00            

Miscellaneous: 100,800.00            144,000.00 24,150.00 68,750.00            236,900.00 10,080.00             456.12 9,623.88 20,160.00             - 20,160.00 

FFE: 285,600.00            408,000.00 68,425.00           203,125.00            679,550.00 - - - - - -

Technology: 285,600.00            408,000.00 68,425.00           203,125.00            679,550.00 - - - - - -

Total:  $    4,368,000.00 6,240,000.00$     1,026,375.00$     3,500,000.00$    10,766,375.00$   17,640.00$     456.12$     17,183.88$     617,400.00$     41,895.00$     575,505.00$     

Project Budget

FY 23-24

Actual 

Expenditures

Variance of 

Project Budget vs. 

Actual 

Expenditures Project Budget

FY 24-25

Actual 

Expenditures

Variance of 

Project Budget vs. 

Actual 

Expenditures

Total Actual  

Expenditures To 

Date

Construction: 1,090,000.00$     -$   1,090,000.00$     3,310,000.00$    -$   3,310,000.00$     -$     

Design: 305,000.00 455,266.25          (150,266.25)         135,000.00         - 135,000.00 497,161.25            

Miscellaneous: 10,000.00 14,378.65             (4,378.65) 100,000.00         231.01 99,768.99 15,065.78 

FFE: -   - - - - - - 

Technology: -   - - - - - - 

Total: 1,405,000.00$     469,644.90$     935,355.10$     3,545,000.00$    231.01$     3,544,768.99$     512,227.03$     

Approval to Solicit 

Architect/Engineer: 4/26/2022 Vendor

Contract 

Amount

Actual 

Expenditures Variance

Architect/Engineer: BRW Architects BRW Architects 675,225.00$    497,161.25$      178,063.75$    

TBD -$   -$  -$   

Contractor: TBD
Substantial 

Completion TBD

Board 

Acceptance TBD

STC FPC Project Manager:

Final Completion TBD

Board 

Acceptance TBD

Board Approval to 

Solicit Architect/Engineer

Board Approval of 

Architect/Engineer

Board Approval of 

Schematic Design

Board Approval of 

Additional Scope

Board Approval of 

Contractor

Construction Start 

Date

4/26/2022 6/28/2022 10/31/2023 3/26/2024 10/29/2024 12/4/2024

Fiscal Year FFE

2021-22
-$     

2022-23 - 

2023-24 - 

2024-25
Project Total  $    -  

FPC Project Manager FPC Asst. Director FPC Director

*Revised Project Budget based on the Schematic Design estimate amount.

** Revised Project Budget based on Additional Scope estimate amount

2022-043C

Unexpended Plant Fund

FY 21-22 FY 22-23

Board Status

Board Approval 

of Schematic 

Design

10/31/2023

Project Scope

FY 23-24 FY 24-25

Project Team

Project Description

Martin Villarreal

FFE Completion of Move In

1/27/2026 2/24/2026 1/4/2026

2 Large Classrooms, Small Classroom, Faculty Studios, Piano Studio, Administrative Assistant Area, Lockers, 15 Practice Rooms, 

Large Rehearsal Room, Percussion Suite, Library, Storage, Dance Studio, Recording Studio, Workshop, and Support Spaces.

Current Agenda Item

11/19/24 Board Meeting: Review and Action on Construction Services for the Pecan Campus - Cooper Center for Performing Arts Building L Expansion and Renovations for the Music & Dance Programs

- - 41,895.00$     

 $    15,065.78  $    -  512,227.03$     

-   

 $    -  

41,895.00 

 $    497,161.25 

-   455,266.25 14,378.65 - 469,644.90$     

Expansion of approximately 8,615 square feet for the Pecan Campus Cooper Center for Performing Arts 

Building L and additional 1,150 square feet for the Large Rehearsal Room. Expansion of approximately 4,775 

square feet for Percussion at the Pecan Campus Cooper Center for Performing Arts Building L.

Project Calendar of Expenditures by Fiscal Year

Miscellaneous Tech Project Total

456.12$     -$     456.12$     

Construction

 $    -  

Design 

 $    -  

Projected Timeline

Board Approval of 

Substantial Completion Date

Board Approval of 

Final Completion Date

231.01 

328



November 19, 2024 Special Board Meeting 
Page 70, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 9:06 AM 
 

   

Review and Action on Contracting Construction Services for the 
Technology Campus Resurface of Parking Lot #2 and Regrading of 

Existing Swales 

Purpose To contract construction services for the Technology Campus 
Resurface of Parking Lot #2 and Regrading of Existing Swales 
project.  
 

Justification On March 26, 2024, the Board of Trustees approved contracting civil 
engineering services with Perez Consulting Engineers, LLC. 
 
The existing Parking Lot 2 and existing drainage swales were 
constructed in 2004. The parking lot is in need of resurfacing and the 
swales needs to be regraded to allow for proper drainage flow. 
 
The proposed scope of work is summarized as follows: 

• Asphalt resurfacing and restriping of existing 147 parking 
spaces in the parking lot 

• Regrading of the existing drainage swale along Military 
Highway. 

 
Enclosed 
Documents 
 

Appendix A – RFP Solicitation Information 
Appendix B – Project Presentation 
Appendix C – Ranking and Evaluations of Respondents 
Appendix D – Fact Sheet 
 

Funding The total Project 2024-010R estimated cost, including construction, 
design, and miscellaneous, is $395,000.  

• Construction         $350,000 
• Design                      35,000 
• Miscellaneous          10,000 

           Total                    $395,000 
 
The highest ranked bid proposal is $178,723.73, which is 
$171,276.27 less than the $350,000.00 construction budget.  
 
The funds are available in the Unexpended Construction Plant Fund 
for use in FY 2024 – 2025.  
 

Staff Resource Ricardo de la Garza, Executive Director for Facilities Planning & 
Construction 
 

Additional 
Information 

The Facilities Committee did not meet in November 2024; therefore, 
this item is presented without a committee 
recommendation.  Administration recommends approval as 
presented. 
 

329



November 19, 2024 Special Board Meeting 
Page 71, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 9:06 AM 
 

   

Recommendation It is recommended that the Board of Trustees of South Texas 
College approve and authorize the following Minute Order 
proposed for consideration: 

The Board of Trustees of South Texas College approves and 
authorizes to contract construction services with D&J Site 
Construction in the amount of $178,723.73 for the Technology 
Campus Resurface of Parking Lot #2 and Regrading of Existing 
Swales project as presented. 

Approval Recommended: 

 Dr. Ricardo J. Solis 
President 

 
Appendix A 

RFP Solicitation Information 
 

Advertised RFP October 16, 2024 and October 23, 2024 
RFP Responses Due October 31, 2024 
RFP Issued To Eight (8) Vendors 
Responses Received From Six (6) Responses 

Responses Reviewed By 
Representatives from the Engineer, Facilities 
Operations & Maintenance, Facilities Planning & 
Construction, and Purchasing Departments 

 
Appendix B 

Project Presentation follows in the packet. 
 

Appendix C 
Ranking and Evaluations of Respondents follow in the packet. 

 
Appendix D 

Fact Sheet follows in the packet. 
 

  

330



Te
ch

n
o

lo
g

y 
C

am
p

u
s 

R
es

u
rf

ac
in

g
 o

f 
P

ar
ki

n
g

 
L

o
t 

#2
 a

n
d

 R
eg

ra
d

in
g

 E
xi

st
in

g
 S

w
al

es

331



PR
O

JE
C

T 
LO

C
AT

IO
N

 
Pa

rk
in

g 
Lo

t #
 2

 
R

es
ur

fa
ci

ng
 a

nd
 

R
eg

ra
di

ng
 E

xi
st

in
g 

Sw
al

es

Te
ch

n
o

lo
g

y 
C

am
p

u
s 

R
es

u
rf

ac
in

g
 o

f 
P

ar
ki

n
g

 L
o

t 
#2

 a
n

d
 

R
eg

ra
d

in
g

 E
xi

st
in

g
 S

w
al

e N
or

th

332



Te
ch

n
o

lo
g

y 
C

am
p

u
s 

R
es

u
rf

ac
in

g
 o

f 
P

ar
ki

n
g

 L
o

t 
#2

 a
n

d
 

R
eg

ra
d

in
g

 E
xi

st
in

g
 S

w
al

e

Lo
ok

in
g 

W
es

t t
o 

Ea
st

 -
Sw

al
e

Lo
ok

in
g 

W
es

t t
o 

Ea
st

 –
Bu

s 
st

op
 S

he
lte

r 
be

lo
w

 e
xi

st
in

g 
G

ra
de

333



Te
ch

n
o

lo
g

y 
C

am
p

u
s 

R
es

u
rf

ac
in

g
 o

f 
P

ar
ki

n
g

 L
o

t 
#2

 a
n

d
 

R
eg

ra
d

in
g

 E
xi

st
in

g
 S

w
al

e

Ex
is

tin
g 

St
or

m
 O

ut
le

t

Lo
ok

in
g 

So
ut

h 
to

 N
or

th
 -

Pa
ve

m
en

t d
am

ag
e 

du
e 

to
 p

ar
ki

ng
 lo

t f
lo

od
in

g 

334



Te
ch

n
o

lo
g

y 
C

am
p

u
s 

R
es

u
rf

ac
in

g
 o

f 
P

ar
ki

n
g

 L
o

t 
#2

 a
n

d
 

R
eg

ra
d

in
g

 E
xi

st
in

g
 S

w
al

e

Lo
ok

in
g 

Ea
st

 to
 

W
es

t -
Pa

ve
m

en
t 

da
m

ag
e 

du
e 

to
 

pa
rk

in
g 

lo
t f

lo
od

in
g 

Lo
ok

in
g 

W
es

t t
o 

Ea
st

 -
Pa

rk
in

g 
lo

t 2

335



R
eq

u
es

te
d

 B
y

Sa
ra

 L
oz

an
o

S
co

p
e 

o
f 

W
o

rk
1.

R
es

ur
fa

ce
 e

xi
st

in
g 

pa
rk

in
g 

lo
t #

2
2.

R
eg

ra
de

 th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

dr
ai

na
ge

 s
w

al
e 

on
 th

e 
so

ut
h 

si
de

 o
f p

ar
ki

ng
 lo

t #
2 

to
 

pr
ev

en
t f

lo
od

in
g.

E
st

im
at

ed
 T

o
ta

l P
ro

je
ct

 B
u

d
g

et
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

 
$ 

35
0,

00
0

D
es

ig
n 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

35
,0

00
M

is
ce

lla
ne

ou
s 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 1
0,

00
0

To
ta

l P
ro

je
ct

 B
ud

ge
t  

   
$ 

39
5,

00
0

Te
ch

n
o

lo
g

y 
C

am
p

u
s 

R
es

u
rf

ac
in

g
 o

f 
P

ar
ki

n
g

 L
o

t 
#2

 a
n

d
 

R
eg

ra
d

in
g

 E
xi

st
in

g
 S

w
al

e

336



# 1 2 3 Th
e 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f P

ur
ch

as
in

g 
ha

s r
ev

ie
w

ed
 a

ll 
th

e 
re

sp
on

se
s a

nd
 e

va
lu

at
io

ns
 c

om
pl

et
ed

.

H
um

be
rto

 G
ar

ci
a,

 Jr
. 

4

93
.8

9

73
37

 E
 O

w
as

sa
 R

d

Pe
ñi

ta
s, 

TX
 7

85
76

Ed
in

bu
rg

, T
X

 7
85

42

95
6-

42
4-

34
14

95
6-

21
2-

38
98

 P
ro

po
se

d 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  2
18

,9
99

.1
9 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  2
42

,1
79

.6
6 

15
 W

or
ki

ng
 D

ay
s

10
 W

or
ki

ng
 D

ay
s

45
 C

al
en

da
r D

ay
s

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  1
78

,7
23

.7
3 

75
 C

al
en

da
r D

ay
s

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  2
18

,9
99

.1
9 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  2
42

,1
79

.6
6 

84
.6

2
75

.2
4

1
5

 P
ro

po
se

d 
 P

ro
po

se
d 

3

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  2
67

,0
41

.5
0 

60
 C

al
en

da
r D

ay
s

60
 C

al
en

da
r D

ay
s

 P
ro

po
se

d 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  1
78

,7
23

.7
3 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  2
67

,0
41

.5
0 

73
.5

0

10
 W

or
ki

ng
 D

ay
s

Ja
co

bo
 G

ar
za

A
rtu

ro
 G

ar
za

, I
II

K
ar

la
 G

ol
da

m
m

er

2G
S,

 L
LC

./ 
db

a 
Ea

rth
w

or
ks

 
En

te
rp

ris
e

G
ST

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n,
 In

c.

PO
 B

ox
 5

95

D
&

J S
ite

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n

75
12

 N
 1

7t
h 

St
10

83
7 

M
ile

 1
7 

N
 R

d

M
cA

lle
n,

 T
X

 7
85

04
El

sa
, T

ex
as

 7
85

43

95
6-

26
2-

44
75

C
al

id
ad

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n,
 L

LC
.

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  2
38

,8
97

.0
0 

73
.2

9

14
 W

or
ki

ng
 D

ay
s

12
0 

C
al

en
da

r D
ay

s

10
 W

or
ki

ng
 D

ay
s

 P
ro

po
se

d 

95
6-

46
0-

36
14

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

Te
ch

no
lo

gy
 C

am
pu

s R
es

ur
fa

ci
ng

 
of

 P
ar

ki
ng

 L
ot

 #
2 

an
d 

R
eg

ra
di

ng
 

of
 E

xi
st

in
g 

Sw
al

es

A
J3

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n,
 L

LC
.

29
00

 N
 T

ex
as

 B
lv

d 
St

e 
20

1

W
es

la
co

, T
X

 7
85

99

95
6-

53
6-

85
68

95
6-

44
7-

20
03

A
rtu

ro
 G

on
za

le
z

N
A

M
E

A
D

D
R

E
SS

C
IT

Y
/S

T
A

T
E

/Z
IP

C
O

N
T

A
C

T

FA
X

PH
O

N
E

B
eg

in
 W

or
k 

W
ith

in

T
O

T
A

L
 P

R
O

JE
C

T
 A

M
O

U
N

T
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  2

38
,8

97
.0

0 

C
om

pl
et

io
n 

of
 W

or
k 

W
ith

in

6

SO
U

T
H

 T
E

X
A

S 
C

O
L

L
E

G
E

T
E

C
H

N
O

L
O

G
Y

 C
A

M
PU

S 
R

E
SU

R
FA

C
IN

G
 O

F 
PA

R
K

IN
G

 L
O

T
 #

2 
A

N
D

 R
E

G
R

A
D

IN
G

 O
F 

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 S
W

A
L

E
S

PR
O

JE
C

T
 N

O
.  

24
-2

5-
10

13

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  2
06

,7
43

.2
5 

85
.2

0

2

M
is

si
on

, T
X

 7
85

74

95
6-

22
2-

66
24

D
ag

ob
er

to
 P

er
ez

, J
r.

 P
ro

po
se

d 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  2
06

,7
43

.2
5 

10
 W

or
ki

ng
 D

ay
s

90
 C

al
en

da
r D

ay
s

R
io

 U
ni

te
d

B
ui

ld
er

s, 
LL

C
.

57
83

 Io
w

a 
R

d

T
O

T
A

L
 E

V
A

L
U

A
T

IO
N

 P
O

IN
T

S

R
A

N
K

IN
G

337



33
.6

6
30

.1
1

45
36

.7
2

33
.2

0
38

.9
0

33
.6

6
30

.1
1

45
36

.7
2

33
.2

0
38

.9
0

33
.6

6
30

.1
1

45
36

.7
2

33
.2

0
38

.9
0

33
.6

6
30

.1
1

45
36

.7
2

33
.2

0
38

.9
0

33
.6

6
30

.1
1

45
36

.7
2

33
.2

0
38

.9
0

6
7

9
9

7
8

8.
50

8.
50

9
8.

50
8

8.
50

6
8

9
9

6
9

8
8.

50
9

9
8

9

8.
50

7
9.

50
8

8
9

7
7

9
9

8
8

8.
50

8
8.

50
8.

50
8

9

6
8

9
9

6
9

8
8

9
9

8
9

8.
50

7
9.

50
8

8
9

4
4

4
4

5
5

4
3

3
4

4.
50

4

4
4

4
4

4
4

4
4

5
4

4
4.

50

4
4

4
4

4
4

6
5

8
7

6
7

7
6

7
7

7
7

5
7

7
7

5
7

7
7

7
7

7
7.

50

6.
50

6
7.

50
7

7
7.

50D
ag

ob
er

to
 P

er
ez

, J
r.

38
.9

8.
7

8.
8

4.
3

7.
2

R
io

 U
ni

te
d 

B
ui

ld
er

s, 
LL

C
.

57
83

 Io
w

a 
R

d

M
is

si
on

, T
X

 7
85

74

95
6-

22
2-

66
24

7.
6

H
um

be
rto

 G
ar

ci
a,

 Jr
. 

Ja
co

bo
 G

ar
za

7.
4

4.
3

El
sa

, T
ex

as
 7

85
43

Pe
ñi

ta
s, 

TX
 7

85
76

Ed
in

bu
rg

, T
X

 7
85

42 6.
4

95
6-

26
2-

44
75

95
6-

42
4-

34
14

95
6-

21
2-

38
98

45
36

.7
2

33
.2

K
ar

la
 G

ol
da

m
m

er

C
al

id
ad

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n,
 L

LC
.

D
&

J S
ite

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n
2G

S,
 L

LC
./ 

db
a 

Ea
rth

w
or

ks
 

En
te

rp
ris

e
G

ST
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n,

 In
c.

75
12

 N
 1

7t
h 

St
10

83
7 

M
ile

 1
7 

N
 R

d
PO

 B
ox

 5
95

73
37

 E
 O

w
as

sa
 R

d
A

D
D

R
E

SS
29

00
 N

 T
ex

as
 B

lv
d 

St
e 

20
1

V
E

N
D

O
R

A
J3

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n,
 L

LC
.

PH
O

N
E

95
6-

53
6-

85
68

C
IT

Y
/S

T
A

T
E

/Z
IP

W
es

la
co

, T
X

 7
85

99
M

cA
lle

n,
 T

X
 7

85
04

95
6-

46
0-

36
14

1
Th

e 
R

es
po

nd
en

t's
 p

ric
e 

pr
op

os
al

. (
up

 to
 4

5 
po

in
ts

)
-a

. R
ef

er
 to

 R
FP

 S
ec

tio
n 

4,
 P

ric
in

g 
an

d 
D

el
iv

er
y 

Sc
he

du
le

.
33

.6
6

30
.1

1

C
O

N
T

A
C

T
A

rtu
ro

 G
on

za
le

z

FA
X

95
6-

44
7-

20
03

A
rtu

ro
 G

ar
za

, I
II

3

Th
e 

qu
al

ity
 o

f t
he

 R
es

po
nd

en
t's

 g
oo

ds
 o

r s
er

vi
ce

s. 
(u

p 
to

 1
0 

po
in

ts
)

-a
. D

es
cr

ib
e 

yo
ur

 c
om

pa
ny

's 
qu

al
ity

 c
on

tro
l p

ro
gr

am
.

-b
. E

xp
la

in
 th

e 
m

et
ho

ds
 u

se
d 

to
 m

ai
nt

ai
n 

qu
al

ity
 c

on
tro

l i
n 

th
e 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

pr
oj

ec
t.

-c
. D

es
cr

ib
e 

co
m

pa
ny

's 
pr

oc
es

s f
or

 a
dd

re
ss

in
g 

w
ar

ra
nt

y 
cl

ai
m

s.
-d

. D
es

cr
ib

e 
th

e 
ex

pe
rie

nc
e 

of
 k

ey
 p

er
so

nn
el

 re
sp

on
si

bl
e 

fo
r m

ai
nt

ai
ni

ng
 q

ua
lit

y 
co

nt
ro

l.
-e

. P
ro

vi
de

 e
xa

m
pl

es
 o

f p
as

t S
TC

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 o

r o
th

er
 si

m
ila

r p
ro

je
ct

s. 
 

(a
ll 

re
sp

on
de

nt
s w

ill
 re

ce
iv

e 
an

 m
in

im
um

 o
f 3

 p
oi

nt
s f

or
 it

em
 (e

) u
nl

es
s i

t i
s 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 th

at
 p

as
t p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 b

on
d 

is
 p

oo
r)

.  
R

ef
er

en
ce

 fo
r s

im
ila

r p
ro

je
ct

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
co

nt
ac

te
d 

an
d 

re
sp

on
se

s w
ill

 b
e 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 a

s p
ar

t o
f t

hi
s e

va
lu

at
io

n.

7.
6

7.
6

9
8.

7

2

Th
e 

R
es

po
nd

en
t's

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

an
d 

re
pu

ta
tio

n.
 (u

p 
to

 1
0 

po
in

ts
)

-a
. P

ro
vi

de
 to

ta
l n

um
be

r o
f c

ur
re

nt
 c

om
pa

ny
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

s.
-b

. P
ro

vi
de

 d
ol

la
r a

m
ou

nt
s f

or
 e

ac
h 

pr
oj

ec
t c

on
tra

ct
ed

 in
 th

e 
pa

st
 tw

en
ty

 fo
ur

 m
on

th
s.

-c
. P

ro
vi

de
 n

um
be

r o
f y

ea
rs

 y
ou

r c
om

pa
ny

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
in

 b
us

in
es

s.
-d

. A
re

 th
er

e 
cu

rr
en

tly
 o

r i
n 

th
e 

pa
st

 fi
ve

 y
ea

rs
, a

ny
 ju

dg
em

en
ts

, c
la

im
s, 

ar
bi

tra
tio

n 
pr

oc
ee

di
ng

s, 
cl

ai
m

 o
n 

bo
nd

s o
r s

ui
ts

 p
en

di
ng

 o
r o

ut
st

an
di

ng
 a

ga
in

st
 y

ou
r o

rg
an

iz
at

io
n 

or
 it

s 
of

fic
er

s?
-e

. P
ro

vi
de

 a
 c

us
to

m
er

 re
fe

re
nc

e 
lis

t o
f n

o 
le

ss
 th

an
 fi

ve
 (5

) o
rg

an
iz

at
io

ns
 fr

om
 w

ho
m

 y
ou

r 
or

ga
ni

za
tio

n 
ha

s p
re

vi
ou

sl
y 

pr
ov

id
ed

 se
rv

ic
es

 o
f e

qu
al

 ty
pe

 a
nd

 sc
op

e 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

pa
st

 fi
ve

 
(5

) y
ea

rs
 a

s r
eq

ue
st

ed
 in

 th
e 

R
FP

.  
R

ef
er

en
ce

 li
st

 is
 to

 in
cl

ud
e 

co
m

pa
ny

 n
am

e,
 c

on
ta

ct
 

pe
rs

on
, t

el
ep

ho
ne

 n
um

be
r a

nd
 d

es
cr

ip
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t. 

 R
ef

er
en

ce
s w

ill
 b

e 
co

nt
ac

te
d 

as
 

pa
rt 

of
 th

is
 e

va
lu

at
io

n.

7.
4

7.
8

9.
1

8.
7

5

Th
e 

R
es

po
nd

en
t's

 p
ro

po
se

d 
pe

rs
on

ne
l. 

(u
p 

to
 8

 p
oi

nt
s)

-a
. P

ro
vi

de
 re

su
m

es
 o

f t
he

 R
es

po
nd

en
t's

 te
am

 th
at

 w
ill

 b
e 

di
re

ct
ly

 in
vo

lv
ed

 in
 th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t. 
 

Th
e 

re
su

m
e 

m
us

t i
nc

lu
de

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

in
 si

m
ila

r p
ro

je
ct

s, 
nu

m
be

r o
f y

ea
rs

 w
ith

 th
e 

fir
m

 a
nd

 
ci

ty
 o

f r
es

id
en

ce
.

-b
. D

es
cr

ib
e 

th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t a

ss
ig

nm
en

t a
nd

 th
e 

pe
rc

en
t o

f t
im

e 
ea

ch
 te

am
 w

ill
 b

e 
in

vo
lv

ed
 in

 
th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t.
c.

 P
ro

vi
de

 li
st

 o
f m

em
be

r(
s)

 o
n 

yo
ur

 st
af

f, 
di

re
ct

ly
 in

vo
lv

ed
 in

 m
an

ag
in

g 
th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t, 
w

ho
 

ar
e 

C
er

tif
ie

d 
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

M
an

ag
er

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
M

an
ag

em
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

of
 

A
m

er
ic

a 
(C

M
A

A
) o

r s
im

ila
r.

-d
. W

ith
in

 2
4 

ho
ur

s a
fte

r t
he

 p
ro

po
sa

l d
el

iv
er

y 
da

te
 a

nd
 ti

m
e,

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
 li

st
 o

f k
ey

 
su

bc
on

tra
ct

or
s t

o 
be

 u
se

d 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

a 
lis

t o
f f

iv
e 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 re
ce

nt
ly

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 b

y 
ea

ch
 

su
bc

on
tra

ct
or

.

6.
3

6.
2

7.
3

7

4

Th
e 

R
es

po
nd

en
t's

 sa
fe

ty
 re

co
rd

. (
up

 to
 5

 p
oi

nt
s)

-a
. P

ro
vi

de
 c

op
y 

of
 y

ou
r c

om
pa

ny
's 

sa
fe

ty
 p

ro
gr

am
 o

r d
es

cr
ib

e 
ho

w
 jo

b 
si

te
 sa

fe
ty

 
is

 m
an

ag
ed

.  
In

cl
ud

e 
sa

fe
ty

 p
ol

ic
ie

s w
hi

ch
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

s m
us

t b
e 

in
 c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
.

-b
. W

ha
t i

s y
ou

r c
om

pa
ny

's 
Ex

pe
rie

nc
e 

M
od

ifi
er

 R
at

e 
(E

M
R

) f
or

 th
e 

th
re

e 
(3

) 
m

os
t r

ec
en

t a
nn

ua
l i

ns
ur

an
ce

-y
ea

r r
at

in
gs

?
-c

. H
av

e 
yo

u 
ha

d 
an

y 
O

SH
A

 fi
ne

s w
ith

in
 th

e 
la

st
 th

re
e 

(3
) y

ea
rs

? 
 If

 y
es

, p
ro

vi
de

 
de

ta
ils

.

4
3.

8
4

4

SO
U

T
H

 T
E

X
A

S 
C

O
L

L
E

G
E

T
E

C
H

N
O

L
O

G
Y

 C
A

M
PU

S 
R

E
SU

R
FA

C
IN

G
 O

F 
PA

R
K

IN
G

 L
O

T
 #

2 
A

N
D

 R
E

G
R

A
D

IN
G

 O
F 

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 S
W

A
L

E
S

PR
O

JE
C

T
 N

O
. 2

4-
25

-1
01

3
E

V
A

L
U

A
T

IO
N

 S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

338



D
ag

ob
er

to
 P

er
ez

, J
r.

R
io

 U
ni

te
d 

B
ui

ld
er

s, 
LL

C
.

57
83

 Io
w

a 
R

d

M
is

si
on

, T
X

 7
85

74

95
6-

22
2-

66
24

H
um

be
rto

 G
ar

ci
a,

 Jr
. 

Ja
co

bo
 G

ar
za

El
sa

, T
ex

as
 7

85
43

Pe
ñi

ta
s, 

TX
 7

85
76

Ed
in

bu
rg

, T
X

 7
85

42

95
6-

26
2-

44
75

95
6-

42
4-

34
14

95
6-

21
2-

38
98

K
ar

la
 G

ol
da

m
m

er

C
al

id
ad

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n,
 L

LC
.

D
&

J S
ite

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n
2G

S,
 L

LC
./ 

db
a 

Ea
rth

w
or

ks
 

En
te

rp
ris

e
G

ST
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n,

 In
c.

75
12

 N
 1

7t
h 

St
10

83
7 

M
ile

 1
7 

N
 R

d
PO

 B
ox

 5
95

73
37

 E
 O

w
as

sa
 R

d
A

D
D

R
E

SS
29

00
 N

 T
ex

as
 B

lv
d 

St
e 

20
1

V
E

N
D

O
R

A
J3

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n,
 L

LC
.

PH
O

N
E

95
6-

53
6-

85
68

C
IT

Y
/S

T
A

T
E

/Z
IP

W
es

la
co

, T
X

 7
85

99
M

cA
lle

n,
 T

X
 7

85
04

95
6-

46
0-

36
14

C
O

N
T

A
C

T
A

rtu
ro

 G
on

za
le

z

FA
X

95
6-

44
7-

20
03

A
rtu

ro
 G

ar
za

, I
II

SO
U

T
H

 T
E

X
A

S 
C

O
L

L
E

G
E

T
E

C
H

N
O

L
O

G
Y

 C
A

M
PU

S 
R

E
SU

R
FA

C
IN

G
 O

F 
PA

R
K

IN
G

 L
O

T
 #

2 
A

N
D

 R
E

G
R

A
D

IN
G

 O
F 

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 S
W

A
L

E
S

PR
O

JE
C

T
 N

O
. 2

4-
25

-1
01

3
E

V
A

L
U

A
T

IO
N

 S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

5
6

7
7

7
7

6.
50

7
6.

50
6.

50
7

7

6
7

7
7

6
7

7
7

8
7

7
7.

50

5
6

7.
50

6
7

7.
50

5
4

6
5

5
4

4.
50

4
5

5
5

5

3
5

5
5

4
5

5
5

5
5

5
5

4
4

5.
50

4
4

5.
50

3.
13

5.
99

5.
99

7
4.

94
4.

20

3.
13

5.
99

5.
99

7
4.

94
4.

20

3.
13

5.
99

5.
99

7
4.

94
4.

20

3.
13

5.
99

5.
99

7
4.

94
4.

20

3.
13

5.
99

5.
99

7
4.

94
4.

20

1
1

1
1

0
1

1
1

1
1

0
1

1
1

1
1

0
1

1
1

1
1

0
1

1
1

1
1

0
1

Th
e 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f P

ur
ch

as
in

g 
ha

s r
ev

ie
w

ed
 a

ll 
th

e 
re

sp
on

se
s a

nd
 e

va
lu

at
io

ns
 c

om
pl

et
ed

.

3
4

7.
2

4.
9

4.
2

85
.2

0

2

1

6.
8

4.
94

76.
7

4.
8

4.
6

Th
e 

R
es

po
nd

en
t's

 o
rg

an
iz

at
io

n 
an

d 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 to

 th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t.

(u
p 

to
 6

 p
oi

nt
s)

-a
. P

ro
vi

de
 a

 st
at

em
en

t o
f t

he
 p

ro
je

ct
 a

pp
ro

ac
h.

-b
. S

ub
m

it 
a 

w
or

k 
sc

he
du

le
 w

ith
 k

ey
 d

at
es

 a
nd

 m
ile

st
on

es
.

-c
. D

o 
yo

u 
an

tic
ip

at
e 

di
ff

ic
ul

tie
s i

n 
se

rv
in

g 
ST

C
 a

nd
 h

ow
 d

o 
yo

u 
pl

an
 to

 m
an

ag
e 

th
es

e?
  W

ha
t a

ss
is

ta
nc

e 
w

ill
 y

ou
 re

qu
ire

 fr
om

 S
TC

?

4.
3

4.
4

5.
3

6

Th
e 

R
es

po
nd

en
t's

 fi
na

nc
ia

l c
ap

ab
ili

ty
 in

 re
la

tio
n 

to
 th

e 
si

ze
 a

nd
 sc

op
e 

of
 th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t. 
 (u

p 
to

 
8 

po
in

ts
)

-a
. A

tta
ch

 a
 le

tte
r o

f i
nt

en
t f

ro
m

 a
 su

re
ty

 c
om

pa
ny

 in
di

ca
tin

g 
yo

ur
 c

om
pa

ny
's 

ab
ili

ty
 to

 b
on

d 
fo

r t
he

 e
nt

ire
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

co
st

 o
f t

he
 p

ro
je

ct
 a

nd
 to

ta
l b

on
di

ng
 li

m
ita

tio
n.

-b
. I

s y
ou

r c
om

pa
ny

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 in

 d
ef

au
lt 

on
 a

ny
 lo

an
 a

gr
ee

m
en

t o
r f

in
an

ci
ng

 a
gr

ee
m

en
t w

ith
 

an
y 

ba
nk

, f
in

an
ci

al
 in

st
itu

tio
n 

or
 o

th
er

 e
nt

ity
? 

 If
 y

es
, p

ro
vi

de
 d

et
ai

ls
 a

nd
 p

ro
sp

ec
ts

 fo
r 

re
so

lu
tio

n.
-c

. P
ro

vi
de

 a
 li

st
 a

nd
 d

es
cr

ip
tio

n 
of

 a
ll 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 u

nd
er

 c
on

tra
ct

 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

to
ta

l c
os

t a
nd

 st
ar

 a
nd

 e
nd

 d
at

es
.

-d
. A

tta
ch

 a
 D

un
n 

an
d 

B
ra

ds
tre

et
 A

na
ly

si
s o

r c
ur

re
nt

 fi
na

nc
ia

l s
ta

te
m

en
ts

, p
re

fe
ra

bl
y 

au
di

te
d.

5.
9

6.
6

7.
2

R
A

N
K

IN
G

6
5

1

1
0

T
O

T
A

L
 E

V
A

L
U

A
T

IO
N

 P
O

IN
T

S
73

.2
9

73
.5

0
93

.8
9

84
.6

2
75

.2
4

9

Th
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

n 
th

e 
ab

ili
ty

 o
f t

he
 d

is
tri

ct
 to

 c
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 la
w

s a
nd

 
ru

le
s r

el
at

in
g 

to
 h

is
to

ric
al

ly
 u

nd
er

ut
ili

ze
d 

bu
si

ne
ss

es
.

(u
p 

to
 1

 p
oi

nt
)

1
1

1

8
Th

e 
R

es
po

nd
en

t's
 ti

m
e 

fr
am

e 
fo

r c
om

pl
et

in
g 

th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t.

(u
p 

to
 7

 p
oi

nt
s)

-a
. R

ef
er

 to
 R

FP
 S

ec
tio

n 
4,

 P
ric

in
g 

an
d 

D
el

iv
er

y 
Sc

he
du

le
.

3.
13

5.
99

5.
99

7

339



Project Fact Sheet

11/1/2024

Project Name: Technology Campus - Resurfacing of Parking Lot #2 and Regrading of Swale Project No. 2024-010R

Funding Source Renewal and Replacements Fund

Original Project 

Budget Project Budget

FY 23-24

Actual Expenditures

Variance of Project 

Budget vs. Actual 

Expenditures Project Budget

FY 24-25

Actual Expenditures

Variance of 

Project Budget 

vs. Actual 

Expenditures

Total Actual  

Expenditures To 

Date

Construction: 350,000.00$     $    350,000.00  $  - 350,000.00$     $    350,000.00  $  - 350,000.00$    -$     

Design: 35,000.00 35,000.00 10,816.25 24,183.75 7,000.00 7,000.00          10,816.25 

Miscellaneous: 10,000.00 10,000.00 521.40 9,478.60 5,000.00 5,000.00          521.40 

FFE: - - -   - -                                  -   - - 

Technology: - - -   - -                                  -   - - 

Total: 395,000.00$     395,000.00$      $    11,337.65 383,662.35$     362,000.00$     $  - 362,000.00$    11,337.65$     

Approval to Solicit 

Architect/Engineer: 10/31/2023 Vendor

Contract 

Amount
Actual 

Expenditures Variance

Architect/Engineer: Perez Consulting Engineers

Perez Consulting 

Engineers 30,080.00$     10,816.25$      19,263.75$    

Contractor:  TBD -$     -$   -$    

STC FPC Project Manager:

Substantial 

Completion TBD Board Acceptance TBD

Final Completion TBD Board Acceptance TBD

Board Approval to Solicit 

Architect/Engineer

Board Approval of 

Architect/Engineer

Board Approval of 

Schematic Design

Board Approval of 

Contractor

Construction Start 

Date

10/31/2023 3/26/2024 N/A 11/28/2024 12/15/2024

Fiscal Year Construction Misc. FFE

2023-24  $    -  521.40$     -$     

2024-25 - - 

Project Total  $    -   $    521.40  $    -  

FPC Project Manager FPC Asst. Director FPC Director

Samuel Saldana

FY 24-25

Project Team Board Status

Board Approval of 

Schematic Design

FY 23-24

TBD

TBD

Design and Construction of parking lot #2 resurfacing and regradging of swale along Military Highway.  Parking Lot # 2: 53,606 SF, Swale: 13.045 

SF  Parking Spaces: 142- HCP Parking: 5

Project Scope

 $    10,816.25 

Current Agenda Item

FFE Completion of Move In

N/A
Board Approval of Final Completion Date

3/25/2025

Board Approval of  Substantial Completion 

Date

2/25/2025

Projected Timeline

Parking lot 2 on the South side of the Technology Campus will be resurfaced.  The swale on the 

South side of parking lot # 2 and along Military Hwy will be regraded.

Project Description

11/19/2024 Board Meeting:  Review and Action on Authorization to Proceed with Contracting Services for the Technology Campus Resurfacing of Parking Lot #2 and Regrading of Exising Swales.

 $    11,337.65 -$     

Project Calendar of Expenditures by Fiscal Year

Project Total

11,337.65$     

Design Tech

10,816.25$     

- - - 

340



November 19, 2024 Special Board Meeting 
Page 72, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 9:06 AM 
 

   

Review and Action on Contracting Construction Services for the 
Regional Center for Public Safety Excellence Parking Lot #1 Additional 

Spaces 

Purpose To contract construction services for the Regional Center for Public 
Safety Excellence Parking Lot #1 Additional Spaces project.  
 

Justification On February 27, 2024, the Board of Trustees approved contracting 
civil engineering services with Perez Consulting Engineers, LLC. 
 
The existing parking lot contains one hundred thirty-six (136) spaces. 
The project consists of constructing an additional seventy-six (76) 
parking spaces to the existing parking lot for students and visitors.   
 
The proposed scope of work is summarized as follows: 

• Construction of a parking lot expansion 
• 76 additional parking spaces 

 
Enclosed 
Documents 
 

Appendix A – RFP Solicitation Information 
Appendix B – Project Presentation 
Appendix C – Ranking and Evaluations of Respondents 
Appendix D – Fact Sheet 
 

Funding The total Project 2024-008C estimated cost, including construction, 
design, and miscellaneous, is $330,700.  

• Construction         $287,000 
• Design                      28,700 
• Miscellaneous          15,000 

           Total                    $330,700 
 
The highest ranked bid proposal is $278,334.29, which is $8,665.71 
less than the $287,000.00 construction budget.  
 
The funds are available in the Unexpended Construction Plant Fund 
for use in FY 2024 – 2025.  
 

Staff Resource Ricardo de la Garza, Executive Director for Facilities Planning & 
Construction 
 

Additional 
Information 

The Facilities Committee did not meet in November 2024; therefore, 
this item is presented without a committee 
recommendation.  Administration recommends approval as 
presented. 
 

Recommendation It is recommended that the Board of Trustees of South Texas 
College approve and authorize the following Minute Order 
proposed for consideration: 

341



November 19, 2024 Special Board Meeting 
Page 73, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 9:06 AM 
 

   

The Board of Trustees of South Texas College approves and 
authorizes to contract construction services with 2GS, LLC./ dba 
Earthworks Enterprise in the amount of $278,334.29 for the 
Regional Center for Public Safety Excellence Parking Lot 1 
Additional Spaces project as presented. 

Approval Recommended: 

 Dr. Ricardo J. Solis 
President 

 
Appendix A 

RFP Solicitation Information 
 

Advertised RFP October 9, 2024 and October 16, 2024 
RFP Responses Due October 24, 2024 
RFP Issued To Eight (8) Vendors 
Responses Received From Six (6) Responses 

Responses Reviewed By 
Representatives from the Engineer, Facilities 
Operations & Maintenance, Facilities Planning & 
Construction, and Purchasing Departments 

 
Appendix B 

Project Presentation follows in the packet. 
 

Appendix C 
Ranking and Evaluations of Respondents follow in the packet. 

 
Appendix D 

Fact Sheet follows in the packet. 
  

342



R
eg

io
n

al
C

en
te

r
fo

r
P

u
b

li
c

S
af

et
y

E
xc

el
le

n
ce

Pa
rk

in
g

Lo
t#

1 
Ad

di
tio

na
l S

pa
ce

s
20

24
-0

08
C

343



R
eg

io
n

al
 C

en
te

r 
fo

r 
P

u
b

li
c 

S
af

et
y 

E
xc

el
le

n
ce

P
ar

ki
n

g
 L

o
t 

#1
 A

d
d

it
io

n
al

 S
p

ac
es

P
ro

je
ct

S
it

e

PR
O

JE
C

T 
LO

C
AT

IO
N

344



PR
O

JE
C

T 
LO

C
AT

IO
N

R
eg

io
n

al
 C

en
te

r 
fo

r 
P

u
b

li
c 

S
af

et
y 

E
xc

el
le

n
ce

P
ar

ki
n

g
 L

o
t 

#1
 A

d
d

it
io

n
al

 S
p

ac
es

P
ro

je
ct

 S
it

e

345



PR
O

JE
C

T 
LO

C
AT

IO
N

R
eg

io
n

al
 C

en
te

r 
fo

r 
P

u
b

li
c 

S
af

et
y 

E
xc

el
le

n
ce

P
ar

ki
n

g
 L

o
t 

#1
 A

d
d

it
io

n
al

 S
p

ac
es

P
ro

je
ct

 S
it

e

346



S
co

p
e

o
f

W
o

rk
D

es
ig

n
an

d
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

of
a

ne
w

pa
rk

in
g

lo
ta

dd
iti

on
to

th
e

R
eg

io
na

lC
en

te
rf

or
Pu

bl
ic

 
Sa

fe
ty

 E
xc

el
le

nc
e

Pa
rk

in
g 

Lo
t #

1.

E
st

im
at

ed
 T

o
ta

lP
ro

je
ct

B
u

d
g

et
$

28
7,

00
0

28
,7

00
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

 
D

es
ig

n*
M

is
ce

lla
ne

ou
s

15
,0

00
To

ta
lP

ro
je

ct
B

u
d

g
et

$
33

0,
70

0

*C
iv

il 
en

gi
ne

er
in

g,
 s

ur
ve

ys
, T

D
LR

re
vi

ew
s 

&
in

sp
ec

tio
ns

, l
an

ds
ca

pe
 &

 ir
rig

at
io

n 
se

rv
ic

es

R
eg

io
n

al
 C

en
te

r 
fo

r 
P

u
b

li
c 

S
af

et
y 

E
xc

el
le

n
ce

P
ar

ki
n

g
 L

o
t 

#1
 A

d
d

it
io

n
al

 S
p

ac
es

P
ro

je
ct

 S
co

p
e 

an
d

 B
u

d
g

et

347



# 1 2 3 Th
e 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f P

ur
ch

as
in

g 
ha

s r
ev

ie
w

ed
 a

ll 
th

e 
re

sp
on

se
s a

nd
 e

va
lu

at
io

ns
 c

om
pl

et
ed

.

T
O

T
A

L
 E

V
A

L
U

A
T

IO
N

 P
O

IN
T

S

R
A

N
K

IN
G

T
O

T
A

L
 P

R
O

JE
C

T
 A

M
O

U
N

T
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
42

7,
78

3.
00

 

5

N
A

M
E

A
D

D
R

E
SS

C
IT

Y
/S

T
A

T
E

/Z
IP

C
O

N
T

A
C

T

PH
O

N
E

C
al

id
ad

 
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n,

 L
LC

.

75
12

 N
 1

7t
h 

St

M
cA

lle
n,

 T
X

 7
85

04

95
6-

46
0-

36
14

A
rtu

ro
 G

ar
za

, I
II

 P
ro

po
se

d 

95
6-

26
2-

44
75

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

C
om

pl
et

io
n 

of
 W

or
k 

W
ith

in

B
eg

in
 W

or
k 

W
ith

in

R
eg

io
na

l C
en

te
r f

or
 P

ub
lic

 S
af

et
y 

Ex
ce

lle
nc

e 
Pa

rk
in

g 
Lo

t #
1 

A
dd

iti
on

al
 S

pa
ce

s

D
ag

ob
er

to
 P

er
ez

, J
r.

M
ar

k 
G

ol
da

m
m

er
H

um
be

rto
 G

ar
ci

a,
 Jr

. 

G
ST

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n,
 In

c.
R

io
 U

ni
te

d 
B

ui
ld

er
s, 

LL
C

.

73
37

 E
 O

w
as

sa
 R

d

2G
S,

 L
LC

./ 
db

a 
Ea

rth
w

or
ks

 
En

te
rp

ris
e

10
83

7 
M

ile
 1

7 
N

 R
d

PO
 B

ox
 5

95

El
sa

, T
ex

as
 7

85
43

Pe
ñi

ta
s, 

TX
 7

85
76

57
83

 Io
w

a 
R

d

Ed
in

bu
rg

, T
X

 7
85

42
M

is
si

on
, T

X
 7

85
74

95
6-

21
2-

38
98

95
6-

22
2-

66
24

SO
U

T
H

 T
E

X
A

S 
C

O
L

L
E

G
E

R
E

G
IO

N
A

L
 C

E
N

T
E

R
 F

O
R

 P
U

B
L

IC
 S

A
FT

Y
 E

X
C

E
L

L
E

N
C

E
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
 L

O
T

 #
1 

A
D

D
IT

IO
N

A
L

 S
PA

C
E

S
PR

O
JE

C
T

 N
O

.  
24

-2
5-

10
15

90
 C

al
en

da
r D

ay
s

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

40
7,

88
0.

52
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

35
3,

59
3.

32
 

69
.2

8
82

.4
2

60
 C

al
en

da
r D

ay
s

 P
ro

po
se

d 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

27
8,

33
4.

29
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

39
9,

67
4.

20
 

77
.9

9

95
6-

42
4-

34
14

D
&

J S
ite

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n

Ja
co

bo
 G

ar
za

 P
ro

po
se

d 
 P

ro
po

se
d 

 P
ro

po
se

d 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

40
7,

88
0.

52
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

35
3,

59
3.

32
 

15
0 

W
or

ki
ng

 D
ay

s
10

 W
or

ki
ng

 D
ay

s

2

92
.9

0

18
0 

C
al

en
da

r D
ay

s

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

27
8,

33
4.

29
 

10
 W

or
ki

ng
 D

ay
s

1
3

4

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

39
9,

67
4.

20
 

12
0 

C
al

en
da

r D
ay

s

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

42
7,

78
3.

00
 

68
.4

0

20
 W

or
ki

ng
 D

ay
s

21
0 

C
al

en
da

r D
ay

s

10
 W

or
ki

ng
 D

ay
s

348



29
.2

7
31

.3
3

45
30

.7
0

35
.4

2

29
.2

7
31

.3
3

45
30

.7
0

35
.4

2

29
.2

7
31

.3
3

45
30

.7
0

35
.4

2

29
.2

7
31

.3
3

45
30

.7
0

35
.4

2

29
.2

7
31

.3
3

45
30

.7
0

35
.4

2

6
9

9
7

8

8.
50

9
8.

50
8

8.
50

8
9

9
6

9

8.
50

9
9

8
9

7
9.

5
8

8
9

7
9

9
8

8

8
8.

50
8.

50
8

9

8
9

9
6

9

8
9

9
8

9

6
9.

50
8

8
9

4
4

4
5

5

3
3

4
4.

50
4

4
4

4
4

4

4
5

4
4

4.
50

4
4

4
4

4

4.
3

4

Th
e 

R
es

po
nd

en
t's

 sa
fe

ty
 re

co
rd

. (
up

 to
 5

 p
oi

nt
s)

-a
. P

ro
vi

de
 c

op
y 

of
 y

ou
r c

om
pa

ny
's 

sa
fe

ty
 p

ro
gr

am
 o

r d
es

cr
ib

e 
ho

w
 jo

b 
si

te
 

sa
fe

ty
 is

 m
an

ag
ed

.  
In

cl
ud

e 
sa

fe
ty

 p
ol

ic
ie

s w
hi

ch
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

s m
us

t b
e 

in
 

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

.
-b

. W
ha

t i
s y

ou
r c

om
pa

ny
's 

Ex
pe

rie
nc

e 
M

od
ifi

er
 R

at
e 

(E
M

R
) f

or
 th

e 
th

re
e 

(3
) 

m
os

t r
ec

en
t a

nn
ua

l i
ns

ur
an

ce
-y

ea
r r

at
in

gs
?

-c
. H

av
e 

yo
u 

ha
d 

an
y 

O
SH

A
 fi

ne
s w

ith
in

 th
e 

la
st

 th
re

e 
(3

) y
ea

rs
? 

 If
 y

es
, 

pr
ov

id
e 

de
ta

ils
.

3.
8

4
4

4.
3

8.
7

3

Th
e 

qu
al

ity
 o

f t
he

 R
es

po
nd

en
t's

 g
oo

ds
 o

r s
er

vi
ce

s. 
(u

p 
to

 1
0 

po
in

ts
)

-a
. D

es
cr

ib
e 

yo
ur

 c
om

pa
ny

's 
qu

al
ity

 c
on

tro
l p

ro
gr

am
.

-b
. E

xp
la

in
 th

e 
m

et
ho

ds
 u

se
d 

to
 m

ai
nt

ai
n 

qu
al

ity
 c

on
tro

l i
n 

th
e 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

pr
oj

ec
t.

-c
. D

es
cr

ib
e 

co
m

pa
ny

's 
pr

oc
es

s f
or

 a
dd

re
ss

in
g 

w
ar

ra
nt

y 
cl

ai
m

s.
-d

. D
es

cr
ib

e 
th

e 
ex

pe
rie

nc
e 

of
 k

ey
 p

er
so

nn
el

 re
sp

on
si

bl
e 

fo
r m

ai
nt

ai
ni

ng
 q

ua
lit

y
co

nt
ro

l.
-e

. P
ro

vi
de

 e
xa

m
pl

es
 o

f p
as

t S
TC

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 o

r o
th

er
 si

m
ila

r 
pr

oj
ec

ts
.  

(a
ll 

re
sp

on
de

nt
s w

ill
 re

ce
iv

e 
an

 m
in

im
um

 o
f 3

 p
oi

nt
s f

or
 it

em
 (e

) 
un

le
ss

 it
 is

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

 th
at

 p
as

t p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 b
on

d 
is

 p
oo

r)
.  

R
ef

er
en

ce
 fo

r 
si

m
ila

r p
ro

je
ct

s w
ill

 b
e 

co
nt

ac
te

d 
an

d 
re

sp
on

se
s w

ill
 b

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 a
s p

ar
t o

f 
th

is
 e

va
lu

at
io

n.

7.
4

9
8.

7
7.

6
8.

8

2

Th
e 

R
es

po
nd

en
t's

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

an
d 

re
pu

ta
tio

n.
 (u

p 
to

 1
0 

po
in

ts
)

-a
. P

ro
vi

de
 to

ta
l n

um
be

r o
f c

ur
re

nt
 c

om
pa

ny
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

s.
-b

. P
ro

vi
de

 d
ol

la
r a

m
ou

nt
s f

or
 e

ac
h 

pr
oj

ec
t c

on
tra

ct
ed

 in
 th

e 
pa

st
 tw

en
ty

 fo
ur

 m
on

th
s.

-c
. P

ro
vi

de
 n

um
be

r o
f y

ea
rs

 y
ou

r c
om

pa
ny

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
in

 b
us

in
es

s.
-d

. A
re

 th
er

e 
cu

rr
en

tly
 o

r i
n 

th
e 

pa
st

 fi
ve

 y
ea

rs
, a

ny
 ju

dg
em

en
ts

, c
la

im
s, 

ar
bi

tra
tio

n 
pr

oc
ee

di
ng

s, 
cl

ai
m

 o
n 

bo
nd

s o
r s

ui
ts

 p
en

di
ng

 o
r o

ut
st

an
di

ng
 a

ga
in

st
 y

ou
r o

rg
an

iz
at

io
n 

or
its

 o
ff

ic
er

s?
-e

. P
ro

vi
de

 a
 c

us
to

m
er

 re
fe

re
nc

e 
lis

t o
f n

o 
le

ss
 th

an
 fi

ve
 (5

) o
rg

an
iz

at
io

ns
 fr

om
 w

ho
m

 
yo

ur
 o

rg
an

iz
at

io
n 

ha
s p

re
vi

ou
sl

y 
pr

ov
id

ed
 se

rv
ic

es
 o

f e
qu

al
 ty

pe
 a

nd
 sc

op
e 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
pa

st
 fi

ve
 (5

) y
ea

rs
 a

s r
eq

ue
st

ed
 in

 th
e 

R
FP

.  
R

ef
er

en
ce

 li
st

 is
 to

 in
cl

ud
e 

co
m

pa
ny

 n
am

e,
 

co
nt

ac
t p

er
so

n,
 te

le
ph

on
e 

nu
m

be
r a

nd
 d

es
cr

ip
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t. 

 R
ef

er
en

ce
s w

ill
 b

e 
co

nt
ac

te
d 

as
 p

ar
t o

f t
hi

s e
va

lu
at

io
n.

7.
6

9.
1

8.
7

7.
4

Ja
co

bo
 G

ar
za

D
ag

ob
er

to
 P

er
ez

, J
r.

1
Th

e 
R

es
po

nd
en

t's
 p

ric
e 

pr
op

os
al

. (
up

 to
 4

5 
po

in
ts

)
-a

. R
ef

er
 to

 R
FP

 S
ec

tio
n 

4,
 P

ric
in

g 
an

d 
D

el
iv

er
y 

Sc
he

du
le

.
29

.2
7

31
.3

3
45

C
O

N
T

A
C

T
A

rtu
ro

 G
ar

za
, I

II
M

ar
k 

G
ol

da
m

m
er

H
um

be
rto

 G
ar

ci
a,

 Jr
. 

30
.7

35
.4

2

95
6-

21
2-

38
98

95
6-

22
2-

66
24

PH
O

N
E

95
6-

46
0-

36
14

95
6-

26
2-

44
75

95
6-

42
4-

34
14

C
IT

Y
/S

T
A

T
E

/Z
IP

M
cA

lle
n,

 T
X

 7
85

04
El

sa
, T

ex
as

 7
85

43
Pe

ñi
ta

s, 
TX

 7
85

76
Ed

in
bu

rg
, T

X
 7

85
42

M
is

si
on

, T
X

 7
85

74

A
D

D
R

E
SS

75
12

 N
 1

7t
h 

St
10

83
7 

M
ile

 1
7 

N
 R

d
PO

 B
ox

 5
95

SO
U

T
H

 T
E

X
A

S 
C

O
L

L
E

G
E

R
E

G
IO

N
A

L
 C

E
N

T
E

R
 F

O
R

 P
U

B
L

IC
 S

A
FE

T
Y

 E
X

C
E

L
L

E
N

C
E

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

 L
O

T
 #

1 
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 S

PA
C

E
S

PR
O

JE
C

T
 N

O
. 2

4-
25

-1
01

5
E

V
A

L
U

A
T

IO
N

 S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

V
E

N
D

O
R

C
al

id
ad

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n,
 L

LC
.

D
&

J S
ite

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n
2G

S,
 L

LC
./ 

db
a 

Ea
rth

w
or

ks
 

En
te

rp
ris

e
G

ST
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

R
io

 U
ni

te
d

B
ui

ld
er

s, 
LL

C
.

73
37

 E
 O

w
as

sa
 R

d
57

83
 Io

w
a 

R
d

349



Ja
co

bo
 G

ar
za

D
ag

ob
er

to
 P

er
ez

, J
r.

C
O

N
T

A
C

T
A

rtu
ro

 G
ar

za
, I

II
M

ar
k 

G
ol

da
m

m
er

H
um

be
rto

 G
ar

ci
a,

 Jr
. 

95
6-

21
2-

38
98

95
6-

22
2-

66
24

PH
O

N
E

95
6-

46
0-

36
14

95
6-

26
2-

44
75

95
6-

42
4-

34
14

C
IT

Y
/S

T
A

T
E

/Z
IP

M
cA

lle
n,

 T
X

 7
85

04
El

sa
, T

ex
as

 7
85

43
Pe

ñi
ta

s, 
TX

 7
85

76
Ed

in
bu

rg
, T

X
 7

85
42

M
is

si
on

, T
X

 7
85

74

A
D

D
R

E
SS

75
12

 N
 1

7t
h 

St
10

83
7 

M
ile

 1
7 

N
 R

d
PO

 B
ox

 5
95

SO
U

T
H

 T
E

X
A

S 
C

O
L

L
E

G
E

R
E

G
IO

N
A

L
 C

E
N

T
E

R
 F

O
R

 P
U

B
L

IC
 S

A
FE

T
Y

 E
X

C
E

L
L

E
N

C
E

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

 L
O

T
 #

1 
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 S

PA
C

E
S

PR
O

JE
C

T
 N

O
. 2

4-
25

-1
01

5
E

V
A

L
U

A
T

IO
N

 S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

V
E

N
D

O
R

C
al

id
ad

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n,
 L

LC
.

D
&

J S
ite

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n
2G

S,
 L

LC
./ 

db
a 

Ea
rth

w
or

ks
 

En
te

rp
ris

e
G

ST
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

R
io

 U
ni

te
d

B
ui

ld
er

s, 
LL

C
.

73
37

 E
 O

w
as

sa
 R

d
57

83
 Io

w
a 

R
d

5
8

7
6

7

6
7

7
7

7

7
7

7
5

7

7
7

7
7

7.
50

6
7.

50
7

7
7.

50

6
7

7
7

7

7
6.

5
6.

50
7

7

7
7

7
6

7

7
8

7
7

7.
50

6
7.

5
6

7
7.

50

4
6

5
5

4

4
5

5
5

5

5
5

5
4

5

5
5

5
5

5

4
5.

50
4

4
5.

50

2.
13

3.
76

7
1.

48
4.

90

2.
13

3.
76

7
1.

48
4.

90

2.
13

3.
76

7
1.

48
4.

90

2.
13

3.
76

7
1.

48
4.

90

2.
13

3.
76

7
1.

48
4.

90

4.
9

8
Th

e 
R

es
po

nd
en

t's
 ti

m
e 

fr
am

e 
fo

r c
om

pl
et

in
g 

th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t.

(u
p 

to
 7

 p
oi

nt
s)

-a
. R

ef
er

 to
 R

FP
 S

ec
tio

n 
4,

 P
ric

in
g 

an
d 

D
el

iv
er

y 
Sc

he
du

le
.

2.
13

3.
76

7
1.

48

7.
2

7

Th
e 

R
es

po
nd

en
t's

 o
rg

an
iz

at
io

n 
an

d 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 to

 th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t.

(u
p 

to
 6

 p
oi

nt
s)

-a
. P

ro
vi

de
 a

 st
at

em
en

t o
f t

he
 p

ro
je

ct
 a

pp
ro

ac
h.

-b
. S

ub
m

it 
a 

w
or

k 
sc

he
du

le
 w

ith
 k

ey
 d

at
es

 a
nd

 m
ile

st
on

es
.

-c
. D

o 
yo

u 
an

tic
ip

at
e 

di
ff

ic
ul

tie
s i

n 
se

rv
in

g 
ST

C
 a

nd
 h

ow
 d

o 
yo

u 
pl

an
 to

 m
an

ag
e 

th
es

e?
  W

ha
t a

ss
is

ta
nc

e 
w

ill
 y

ou
 re

qu
ire

 fr
om

 
ST

C
?

4.
4

5.
3

4.
8

4.
6

4.
9

6

Th
e 

R
es

po
nd

en
t's

 fi
na

nc
ia

l c
ap

ab
ili

ty
 in

 re
la

tio
n 

to
 th

e 
si

ze
 a

nd
 sc

op
e 

of
 th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t. 
 (u

p 
to

 8
 p

oi
nt

s)
-a

. A
tta

ch
 a

 le
tte

r o
f i

nt
en

t f
ro

m
 a

 su
re

ty
 c

om
pa

ny
 in

di
ca

tin
g 

yo
ur

 c
om

pa
ny

's 
ab

ili
ty

 to
 

bo
nd

 fo
r t

he
 e

nt
ire

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
co

st
 o

f t
he

 p
ro

je
ct

 a
nd

 to
ta

l b
on

di
ng

 li
m

ita
tio

n.
-b

. I
s y

ou
r c

om
pa

ny
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 in
 d

ef
au

lt 
on

 a
ny

 lo
an

 a
gr

ee
m

en
t o

r f
in

an
ci

ng
 a

gr
ee

m
en

t 
w

ith
 a

ny
 b

an
k,

 fi
na

nc
ia

l i
ns

tit
ut

io
n 

or
 o

th
er

 e
nt

ity
? 

 If
 y

es
, p

ro
vi

de
 d

et
ai

ls
 a

nd
 p

ro
sp

ec
ts

 
fo

r r
es

ol
ut

io
n.

-c
. P

ro
vi

de
 a

 li
st

 a
nd

 d
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

of
 a

ll 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 u
nd

er
 c

on
tra

ct
 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
to

ta
l c

os
t a

nd
 st

ar
 a

nd
 e

nd
 d

at
es

.
-d

. A
tta

ch
 a

 D
un

n 
an

d 
B

ra
ds

tre
et

 A
na

ly
si

s o
r c

ur
re

nt
 fi

na
nc

ia
l s

ta
te

m
en

ts
, p

re
fe

ra
bl

y 
au

di
te

d.

6.
6

7.
2

6.
7

6.
8

5

Th
e 

R
es

po
nd

en
t's

 p
ro

po
se

d 
pe

rs
on

ne
l. 

(u
p 

to
 8

 p
oi

nt
s)

-a
. P

ro
vi

de
 re

su
m

es
 o

f t
he

 R
es

po
nd

en
t's

 te
am

 th
at

 w
ill

 b
e 

di
re

ct
ly

 in
vo

lv
ed

 in
 th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t
Th

e 
re

su
m

e 
m

us
t i

nc
lu

de
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
in

 si
m

ila
r p

ro
je

ct
s, 

nu
m

be
r o

f y
ea

rs
 w

ith
 th

e 
fir

m
 

an
d 

ci
ty

 o
f r

es
id

en
ce

.
-b

. D
es

cr
ib

e 
th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t a
ss

ig
nm

en
t a

nd
 th

e 
pe

rc
en

t o
f t

im
e 

ea
ch

 te
am

 w
ill

 b
e 

in
vo

lv
ed

 in
 

th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t.

c.
 P

ro
vi

de
 li

st
 o

f m
em

be
r(

s)
 o

n 
yo

ur
 st

af
f, 

di
re

ct
ly

 in
vo

lv
ed

 in
 m

an
ag

in
g 

th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t, 

w
h

ar
e 

C
er

tif
ie

d 
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

M
an

ag
er

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
M

an
ag

em
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

of
 A

m
er

ic
a 

(C
M

A
A

) o
r s

im
ila

r.
-d

. W
ith

in
 2

4 
ho

ur
s a

fte
r t

he
 p

ro
po

sa
l d

el
iv

er
y 

da
te

 a
nd

 ti
m

e,
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

 li
st

 o
f k

ey
 

su
bc

on
tra

ct
or

s t
o 

be
 u

se
d 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
a 

lis
t o

f f
iv

e 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 re

ce
nt

ly
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 b
y 

ea
ch

 
su

bc
on

tra
ct

or
.

6.
2

7.
3

7
6.

4
7.

2

350



Ja
co

bo
 G

ar
za

D
ag

ob
er

to
 P

er
ez

, J
r.

C
O

N
T

A
C

T
A

rtu
ro

 G
ar

za
, I

II
M

ar
k 

G
ol

da
m

m
er

H
um

be
rto

 G
ar

ci
a,

 Jr
. 

95
6-

21
2-

38
98

95
6-

22
2-

66
24

PH
O

N
E

95
6-

46
0-

36
14

95
6-

26
2-

44
75

95
6-

42
4-

34
14

C
IT

Y
/S

T
A

T
E

/Z
IP

M
cA

lle
n,

 T
X

 7
85

04
El

sa
, T

ex
as

 7
85

43
Pe

ñi
ta

s, 
TX

 7
85

76
Ed

in
bu

rg
, T

X
 7

85
42

M
is

si
on

, T
X

 7
85

74

A
D

D
R

E
SS

75
12

 N
 1

7t
h 

St
10

83
7 

M
ile

 1
7 

N
 R

d
PO

 B
ox

 5
95

SO
U

T
H

 T
E

X
A

S 
C

O
L

L
E

G
E

R
E

G
IO

N
A

L
 C

E
N

T
E

R
 F

O
R

 P
U

B
L

IC
 S

A
FE

T
Y

 E
X

C
E

L
L

E
N

C
E

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

 L
O

T
 #

1 
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 S

PA
C

E
S

PR
O

JE
C

T
 N

O
. 2

4-
25

-1
01

5
E

V
A

L
U

A
T

IO
N

 S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

V
E

N
D

O
R

C
al

id
ad

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n,
 L

LC
.

D
&

J S
ite

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n
2G

S,
 L

LC
./ 

db
a 

Ea
rth

w
or

ks
 

En
te

rp
ris

e
G

ST
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

R
io

 U
ni

te
d

B
ui

ld
er

s, 
LL

C
.

73
37

 E
 O

w
as

sa
 R

d
57

83
 Io

w
a 

R
d

1
1

1
0

1

1
1

1
0

1

1
1

1
0

1

1
1

1
0

1

1
1

1
0

1

Th
e 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f P

ur
ch

as
in

g 
ha

s r
ev

ie
w

ed
 a

ll 
th

e 
re

sp
on

se
s a

nd
 e

va
lu

at
io

ns
 c

om
pl

et
ed

.

4
2

R
A

N
K

IN
G

5
3

1

0
1

T
O

T
A

L
 E

V
A

L
U

A
T

IO
N

 P
O

IN
T

S
68

.4
0

77
.9

9
92

.9
0

69
.2

8
82

.4
2

9

Th
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

n 
th

e 
ab

ili
ty

 o
f t

he
 d

is
tri

ct
 to

 c
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 la
w

s a
nd

 
ru

le
s r

el
at

in
g 

to
 h

is
to

ric
al

ly
 u

nd
er

ut
ili

ze
d 

bu
si

ne
ss

es
. (

up
 to

 1
 

po
in

t)
1

1
1

351



Project Fact Sheet

11/1/2024

Project Name: Project No.

Funding Source(s):  Unexpended Plant Fund

Total

Project Budget Project Budget

FY 23-24

Actual 

Expenditures

Variance of 

Project Budget 

vs. Actual 

Expenditures Project Budget

FY 24-25

Actual 

Expenditures

Variance of 

Project Budget vs. 

Actual 

Expenditures

Total Actual  

Expenditures To 

Date

Construction: 287,000.00$       287,000.00$       287,000.00$       287,000.00$       287,000.00$     -$      

Design: 28,700.00           28,700.00           8,421.50 20,278.50$     28,700.00           28,700.00$      8,421.50             

Miscellaneous: 15,000.00           15,000.00           6,257.45 8,742.55$     14,000.00           197.97 13,802.03$      6,257.45             

FFE: - - -$     - -$      - 

Technology: - - -$     - -$      - 

Total: 330,700.00$       330,700.00$       316,021.05$       329,700.00$       329,502.03$     14,678.95$      

Approval to Solicit 

Architect/Engineer: 10/31/2023 Vendor

Contract 

Amount

Actual 

Expenditures Variance

Architect/Engineer: Perez Consulting Engineers, LLC

Perez Consulting 

Engineers, LLC 31,775.00$     8,421.50$      23,353.50$      

Contractor: TBD TBD -$     -$    -$     

STC FPC Project Manager: David Valdez

Substantial 

Completion
TBD

Board 

Acceptance TBD

Final Completion
TBD

Board 

Acceptance TBD

Board Approval to Solicit 

Architect/Engineer

Board Approval of 

Architect/Engineer

Board Approval of 

Schematic Design

Board Approval of 

Contractor

Construction Start 

Date

10/31/2023 2/27/2024 N/A 11/26/2024 12/9/2024

Fiscal Year Design FFE

2023-24  $       8,421.50  $      -   

2024-25

Project Total  $       8,421.50  $      -   

FPC Project Manager FPC Director

 $       -  

Miscellaneous
6,257.45$     

Projected Timeline

14,678.95$      

FFE Completion of Move In

TBD

197.97$      197.97$     

FPC Asst. Director

Board Approval of Substantial 

Completion Date

Board Approval of Final Completion 

Date

 $       -  

5/27/2025 06/24/2025

Technology

 $      6,257.45 

Project Calendar of Expenditures by Fiscal Year

Project Total

11/19/2024 Board Meeting: Review and Action on Contracting Construction Services for the Regional Center for Public Safety Excellence Parking Lot #1 Additional Spaces

14,678.95$      

Current Agenda Item

Construction
 $      -   

 $      -   

2024-008C 

FY 23-24

 Board Status 

Regional Center for Public Safety Excellence - Parking Lot #1 for Additional Spaces

FY 24-25

Design and construction of a parking lot extension to the existing Regional Center for Public Safety 

Excellence Parking Lot #1. 

Additional extension of the existing parking lot at the Regional Center for Public Safety Excellence.

Project Team

Project Description Project Scope

Board Approval 

of Schematic 

Design

N/A

352



November 19, 2024 Special Board Meeting 
Page 74, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 9:06 AM 
 

   

Review and Action on Final Completion of the District Wide Flooring 
Replacements Phase III at Mid Valley Campus North Academic 

Building G 

Purpose To approve final completion of the District Wide Flooring 
Replacements Phase III at Mid Valley Campus North Academic 
Building G project.  
 

Justification On October 29, 2024, the Board of Trustees approved Substantial 
Completion of this project. 

• Contractor: Terra Fuerte. 
 
Final Completion, including punch list items, was accomplished as 
required in the Owner/Contractor agreement for this project. It is 
recommended that final completion and release of final payment for 
this project with by Terra Fuerte.  The original cost approved for this 
project was $360,800.  
 

Enclosed 
Documents 
 

Appendix A – Current Budget Status 
Appendix B – Photos  
Appendix C – Final Completion Letter 
Appendix D – Fact Sheet 
 

Funding The funds for Project 2024-012R are available in the Renewals & 
Replacements Fund for use in FY 2024 – 2025. 
 

Staff Resource Ricardo de la Garza, Executive Director for Facilities Planning & 
Construction 
 

Additional 
Information 

The Facilities Committee did not meet in November 2024; therefore, 
this item is presented without a committee 
recommendation.  Administration recommends approval as 
presented. 
 

Recommendation It is recommended that the Board of Trustees of South Texas 
College approve and authorize the following Minute Order 
proposed for consideration: 

The Board of Trustees of South Texas College approves and 
authorizes final completion and release of final payment of 
$37,359.20 to Terra Fuerte for the District Wide Flooring 
Replacements Phase III at Mid Valley Campus North Academic 
Building G project as presented. 

Approval Recommended: 

 Dr. Ricardo J. Solis 
President 
 

 

353



November 19, 2024 Special Board Meeting 
Page 75, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 9:06 AM 
 

   

 
 

Appendix A 
Current Budget Status 

 

Appendix B 
Photos follow in the packet. 

 
Appendix C 

Final Completion Letter follows in the packet. 
 

Appendix D 
Fact Sheet follows in the packet. 

  

District Wide Flooring Replacements Phase III at  
Mid Valley Campus North Academic Building G 

Construction 
Budget 

Approved 
Proposal 
Amount 

Net Total 
Change Orders 

Current Project 
Cost 

Previous 
Amount Paid 

Remaining 
Balance 

$360,800.00 $360,800.00 $0 $360,800.00 $323,440.80 $37,359.20 

354



Di
st
ric
t W

id
e 
Fl
oo

rin
g 
Re
pl
ac
em

en
ts
 P
ha
se
 II
I a
t 

M
id
 V
al
le
y 
Ca
m
pu

s N
or
th
 A
ca
de
m
ic
 B
ui
ld
in
g 
G
 

355



Di
st
ric
t W

id
e 
Fl
oo

rin
g 
Re
pl
ac
em

en
ts
 P
ha
se
 II
I a
t 

M
id
 V
al
le
y 
Ca
m
pu

s N
or
th
 A
ca
de
m
ic
 B
ui
ld
in
g 
G
 

356



Di
st
ric
t W

id
e 
Fl
oo

rin
g 
Re
pl
ac
em

en
ts
 P
ha
se
 II
I a
t 

M
id
 V
al
le
y 
Ca
m
pu

s N
or
th
 A
ca
de
m
ic
 B
ui
ld
in
g 
G
 

357



Di
st
ric
t W

id
e 
Fl
oo

rin
g 
Re
pl
ac
em

en
ts
 P
ha
se
 II
I a
t 

M
id
 V
al
le
y 
Ca
m
pu

s N
or
th
 A
ca
de
m
ic
 B
ui
ld
in
g 
G
 

358



359



Project Fact Sheet

11/4/2024

Project Name Project No.

Funding Source(s):  

Total

Project Budget

 FY 23-24

Actual 

Expenditures

Variance of 

Project Budget 

vs. Actual 

Expenditures

Total

Project Budget

 FY 24-25

Actual 

Expenditures

Variance of 

Project Budget 

vs. Actual 

Expenditures

Total Actual  

Expenditures To 

Date

500,000.00$     386,767.59$     113,232.41$     500,000.00$     -$    500,000.00$       386,767.59$       

- - - -$   -$   -$    - 

4,000.00 433.23 3,566.77 4,000.00$     -$    4,000.00$    433.23 

- - - -$   -$   -$    - 

- - - -$   -$   -$    - 

504,000.00$       387,200.82$       116,799.18$       504,000.00$     -$    504,000.00$       387,200.82$       

Approval to Solicit : 2/14/2024 Location
Vendor

Contract 

Amount

Actual 

Expenditures Variance

Architect/Engineer: N/A MVC Bldg. F Intertech Flooring 44,384.00$    44,059.00$     325.00$     

MVC Bldg. G Terra Fuerte 360,800.00$     323,440.80$       37,359.20$    

Contractor: Interch Flooring PCN Bldg. F Diaz Flooring 18,160.00$    18,160.00$     -$     

Contractor: Terra Fuerte Tech Bldg. B Mohawk 1,007.79$    1,107.00$     (99.21)$     

Substantial 

Completion

Building F: 

06/18/2024 Board Acceptance

Building F: 

7/23/2024

Building G: 

10/07/2024

Building G:

10/29/2024

STC FPC Project Manager:

Final Completion

Building F: 

07/18/2024 Board Acceptance

Building F: 

08/27/2024

Building G: 

10/25/2024

Board Approval to 

Solicit Architect/Engineer

Board Approval of 

Architect/Engineer

Board Approval of 

Schematic Design

Board Approval of 

Contractor

Construction Start 

Date

N/A N/A N/A 4/23/2024 5/20/2024

Fiscal Year Design FFE

2023-24 -   - 

2024-25 -   - 

Project Total  $    -   $    -  

FPC Project Manager FPC Director

Technology:

District Wide - Flooring Replacement Phase III 2024-012R

Renewals & Replacements Fund

Construction:

Design

Miscellaneous:

FFE:

FY 24-25FY 23-24

Replacing various flooring material district wide due to flooring reaching their life 

expectancy.  Request for Proposals or Request for Quotes are issued depending on the 

estimated construction cost.

Every fiscal year, different facilities are scheduled to have the flooring replaced.   Maintenance developed a flooring priority schedule 

determining which flooring material needs to be replaced.  Average six flooring replacements per fiscal year.

Total:

Project Team Board Status
Board Approval 

of Schematic 

Design

NA

Samuel Saldana

Project Description Project Scope

Project Calendar of Expenditures by Fiscal Year

Miscellaneous Tech Project Total

Projected Timeline

Board Approval of 

Substantial Completion Date

Board Approval of 

Final Completion Date FFE Completion of Move In

8/13/2024 9/24/2024 N/A

Construction

Current Agenda Item

11/19/2024 Board Meeting: Review and Action on Final Completion of the District Wide Flooring Replacements Phase III at Mid Valley Campus North Academic Building G

FPC Asst. Director

433.23 - 387,200.82$     

 $    433.23  $    -  387,200.82$     

386,767.59 

 $    386,767.59 

-   - - -$     

Mid-Valley 
Campus

360



November 19, 2024 Special Board Meeting 
Page 76, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 9:06 AM 
 

   

Approval of Financial Reports for September 2024 

Administration recommends Board approval of the financial reports for the month of 
September 2024.  
 
The following financial reports have been provided under separate cover: 
 
1) Quarterly Investment Report and Money Market Accounts for September 2024. 
2)  Summary of Revenues for September 2024. 
3)  Summary of State Appropriations Revenue for September 2024. 
4)  Summary of Property Tax Revenue for September2024. 
5)  Summary of Expenditures by Classification for September 2024. 
6)  Summary of Expenditures by Function for September 2024. 
7)  Summary of Auxiliary Fund Revenues and Expenditures for September 2024. 
8)  Summary of Grant Revenues and Expenditures for September 2024. 
9)  Foundation Financial Activity for September 2024. 
 
Ms. Mary Del Paz, Vice President for Finance and Administrative Services, will respond 
to questions posed by the Board. 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Trustees of South Texas College approve the 
following Minute Order proposed for consideration:  
The Board of Trustees of South Texas College approves and authorizes the submitted 
financial reports for the month of September 2024. 
 
Approval Recommended: 
 
Dr. Ricardo J. Solis 
President 
  

361



November 19, 2024 Special Board Meeting 
Page 77, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 9:06 AM 
 

   

Review of Informational Reports as of October 2024 

Administration includes the following information reports as of October 2024 for the 
Board’s information. 
 
1) Checks for $125,000 and above for October 2024. 
2) Check Register for October 2024. 
3) Summary of Purchase Orders (Purchasing) for October 2024. 
4) Summary of Bid Solicitations (Purchasing) for October 2024. 
5) Employee New Hires for October 2024. 
6) Employee Resignations/Retirements for October 2024. 
 
The reports are presented for review by the Board and are provided under separate cover. 
 
Ms. Mary Del Paz, Vice President for Finance and Administrative Services, will respond 
to questions posed by the Board. 
 
No action is required from the Board.  This item is presented for information purposes. 
  

362



November 19, 2024 Special Board Meeting 
Page 78, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 9:06 AM 
 

   

Establishment of an Executive Committee of the Board for the Review 
and Recommendation of Action as Necessary  

Purpose Dr. Alejo Salinas, Jr., Chairman, will appoint an Executive 
Committee of the Board to review and recommend any formal Board 
action as necessary. 
 

Justification As outlined in Policy BCB (Local) – Board Internal Organization: 
Board Committees, the Chairman may as they deem necessary 
create committees to advise the Board and facilitate efficient 
operations.  
 
All committees shall consist of a maximum of three Board members, 
and the Board is not bound by the action of a Board committee or any 
of its individual members.   
 
Dr. Salinas is provided this opportunity to establish a committee of no 
more than three trustees and to outline a scope for their review and 
recommendation of any action as necessary. 
 

Documents 
Enclosed 
 

Appendix A – Policy BCB (Local) Board Internal Organization:  Board 
Committees 

Staff Resource Dr. Ricardo J. Solis, College President 
 

Additional  
Information 

The Finance, Audit, and Human Resources Committee did not meet 
in November 2024; therefore, this item is presented without a 
committee recommendation.  Administration recommends approval 
as presented. 
 

Recommendation It is recommended that the Board of Trustees of South Texas 
College approve and authorize the following Minute Order 
proposed for consideration: 
The Board Chair announces the following appointments to Committee 
Chair and Committee Membership: 
 
Chair: 
Member: 
Member: 

 
 
  

363



November 19, 2024 Special Board Meeting 
Page 79, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 9:06 AM 
 

   

Review and Discussion of College President’s Contract (Texas 
Government Code 551.074, Personnel Matters) 

The Board of Trustees is asked to review and take action as necessary regarding a 
proposed amendment to the President’s Contract. 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Trustees of South Texas College approve and 
authorize the following Minute Order proposed for consideration: 
The Board of Trustees of South Texas College approves and authorizes the proposed 
amendment to the President’s Contract as presented. 
 
 
 
Approval Recommended: 
 
 
Dr. Ricardo J. Solis 
President 

 

Update and Action as Necessary Regarding Acquisition of Real 
Property (Texas Government Code 551.072, Deliberation Regarding 

Real Property) 

The Board of Trustees is asked to review and take action as necessary regarding a real 
property acquisition opportunity. 
 
Dr. Solis will discuss this real property acquisition opportunity and recommended actions 
as necessary in Executive Session. 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Trustees of South Texas College approve and 
authorize the following Minute Order proposed for consideration: 
The Board of Trustees of South Texas College approves and authorizes action as 
necessary regarding the proposed acquisition of real property. 
 
 
 
Approval Recommended: 
 
 
Dr. Ricardo J. Solis 
President 
  

364



November 19, 2024 Special Board Meeting 
Page 80, Revised 11/15/2024 @ 9:06 AM 
 

   

Announcements  

A. Next Meetings: 

• Tuesday, January 14, 2025 
 3:00 p.m. – Education and Workforce Development Committee 
 4:00 p.m. – Facilities Committee 
 5:00 p.m. – Finance, Audit, and Human Resources Committee 

 
• Tuesday, January 28, 2025 
 5:30 p.m. – Regular Board Meeting 

 
B. Other Announcements: 

• The College will be closed November 28 – 29, 2024 in observance of the  
Thanksgiving holiday 

• STRC Laptop Distribution will be December 3, 2024 at 10:00 AM 

• Graduation ceremonies will be Sunday, December 15, 2024 

• The College will be closed December 19, 2024 – January 5, 2025 for Winter 
Break 

 

365


	Approval of Board Meeting Minutes
	Report of New Grants
	Approval of Resolution #2025-005 and Ballot Casting Votes for Members of the Hidalgo County Appraisal District Board of Directors for Calendar Years 2025 – 2027
	Presentation on Enrollment
	Review and Action as Necessary on Proposed Institutional Credentials Leading to Licensure or Certification (ICLC)
	Presentation of the Delinquent Tax Collection Report for the Period Ending August 31, 2024
	Presentation on South Texas College Foundation Annual Report
	Presentation on the Interlocal Agreement Between Hidalgo County and South Texas College for American Rescue Plan Act Recovery Funds
	Review and Action as Necessary on Award of Proposals, Rejection of Proposals, Purchases, and Renewals at a total cost of $1,440,764.78
	Review and Recommend Action on 2024 Tax Roll/Tax Levy for Hidalgo and Starr Counties
	Review and Action as Necessary on Appraisal District Allocated Cost Payments for Starr County
	Review and Recommend Action on Annual Investment Report for FY 2023 – 2024
	Review and Action as Necessary on Quarterly Investment Report for Quarter Ending August 31, 2024
	Review and Recommend Action on Change Order for Contract with Precision Task Group (PTG) / Workday
	Review and Recommend Action on South Texas College Public Transportation Agency Safety Plan
	Discussion and Action as Necessary on Proposed Facility Use Rental Fees for External Entities
	Discussion and Action as Necessary on Proposed Revision to Tuition and Fees Schedules for FY 2024 – 2025 for Dual Credit Students
	Review and Recommend Acceptance of Internal Audit Report in the Area of Faculty Overloads
	Review and Recommend Action to Adopt New Business and Support Services Policy and Retire Current Policies
	Review and Recommend Action to Adopt Community and Governmental Relations Policy and Retire Current Policy
	Review and Recommend Action to Adopt New Instruction Policy
	Review and Recommend Action to Adopt Local Governance Policies and Retire Current Policies
	Review and Recommend Action to Adopt New Students Policies and Retire Current Policies
	Review and Recommend Action to Revise Policies
	Review and Recommend Action to Retire Current Policies
	Review and Status Update on Pecan Campus Kinesiology Building Q
	Review and Action on Authorization to Solicit Architectural Services for the Pecan Campus Institutional Support Services Building N Expansion
	Review and Action on Authorization to Solicit Architectural Services for the Pecan Campus Administration Building
	Review and Action on Contracting Engineering Services for the Pecan Campus Physical Plant Building E Cooling Tower Above Ground Piping System
	Review and Action on Contracting Architectural Services for the Nursing and Allied Health Campus East Building A Renovation of Radiology Lab to Multipurpose Skills Lab and Community Pharmacy Lab
	Review and Action on Contracting Construction Services for the Pecan Campus Cooper Center for Performing Arts Building L Expansion and Renovations for Music and Dance Programs
	Review and Action on Contracting Construction Services for the Technology Campus Resurface of Parking Lot #2 and Regrading of Existing Swales
	Review and Action on Contracting Construction Services for the Regional Center for Public Safety Excellence Parking Lot #1 Additional Spaces
	Review and Action on Final Completion of the District Wide Flooring Replacements Phase III at Mid Valley Campus North Academic Building G
	Approval of Financial Reports for September 2024
	Review of Informational Reports as of October 2024
	Establishment of an Executive Committee of the Board for the Review and Recommendation of Action as Necessary
	Review and Discussion of College President’s Contract (Texas Government Code 551.074, Personnel Matters)
	Update and Action as Necessary Regarding Acquisition of Real Property (Texas Government Code 551.072, Deliberation Regarding Real Property)
	Announcements
	2024-10-29 Regular Board Meeting Minutes.pdf
	Call Meeting to Order:
	Determination of a Quorum
	Invocation
	Mission Moment
	Public Comments
	Presentations
	Presentation on the Food Pantry Initiative in Collaboration with the STC Foundation
	Update by the College President
	Consideration and Action on Consent Agenda
	Approval of Board Meeting Minutes
	Consideration and Action on New Items
	Report of New Grant Awards
	Consideration and Action on Committee Items
	Review and Action as Necessary on Consent Agenda Items from the Education and Workforce Development Committee
	Consent Agenda:
	a.  Approval on Proposed Free GED Program Partnership

	Review of Presentations Delivered to Education and Workforce Committee
	A. Presentation on the Division of Nursing and Allied Health

	Review of Presentations Delivered to Finance, Audit, and Human Resources Committee
	Review and Action as Necessary on Consent Agenda Items from the Finance, Audit, and Human Resources Committee
	Consent Agenda: a. Approval of Award of Purchases, Renewals, and Interlocal Agreements at a total cost of $2,283,041.79
	Consent Agenda:
	b. Approval of Compensatory Time for Winter Break Holidays Worked by Exempt Personnel on the Enterprise Resources Planning (ERP) Implementation
	Consent Agenda:
	c. Approval of Resolution #2025-003 Authorizing Investment Brokers/Dealers
	Consent Agenda:
	d. Approval on Change Order for Contract with Precision Task Group (PTG) / Workday
	Consent Agenda
	e. Approval to Reclassify Existing Vacant Position(s) in Accordance with Policy DEA (Local)
	Consent Agenda:
	Consent Agenda:
	g. Approval to Revise Business and Support Services Policy
	Consent Agenda:
	h. Approval to Adopt New Basic District Foundations Policy and Retire Current Policy
	Consent Agenda:
	i. Approval to Adopt New Local Governance Policy
	Consent Agenda:
	j. Approval to Adopt New Business and Support Services Policies and Retire Current Policies
	Consent Agenda:
	k. Approval to Adopt New Instruction Policy and Retire Current Policies
	Consent Agenda:
	l. Approval to Adopt New Personnel Policy and Retire Current Policy
	Consent Agenda:
	m. Approval to Adopt New Students Policies and Retire Current Policies
	Consent Agenda:
	n. Approval to Retire Current Policies

	Discussion and Action as Necessary to Amend Online Test Proctoring Software Agreement
	Review of Presentations Delivered to Facilities Committee
	Review and Action as Necessary on Consent Agenda Items from the Facilities Committee
	Consent Agenda: a. Approval to Proceed with Solicitation of Architectural Services for the Pecan Campus Business & Science Building G Engineering Labs Renovation
	Consent Agenda: b. Approval to Proceed with Solicitation of Engineering Services for the District Wide HVAC Replacements Phase II at Pecan Campus
	Consent Agenda: c. Review and Recommend Action on Approval to Proceed with Solicitation of Construction Services for the Mid Valley Campus Child Development Center Canopy for Portable Building L2A

	Enclosed Documents
	Consent Agenda:
	d. Approval to Rescind Awards of Construction Services for the District Wide Stucco Repainting at Pecan Campus, Mid Valley Campus, and Starr County Campus
	Consent Agenda:
	e. Approval of the Substantial Completion of the District Wide Flooring Replacements Phase III at Mid Valley Campus North Academic Building G
	Consent Agenda:
	f. Approval of the Renewal of Lease Agreement with Milagro Clinic and the City of McAllen for Use of the El Milagro Clinic Parking Lot

	Review and Recommend Action on Contracting Construction for the District Wide Stucco Repainting at Pecan Campus, Mid Valley Campus, and Starr County Campus
	Update on Status of Unexpended Plant Fund Construction Projects and Renewals & Replacements Projects
	Approval of Financial Reports for August 2024
	Review of Informational Reports as of September 2024
	Announcements
	Adjournment

	2024-11-02-Board Retreat-Minutes.pdf
	Minutes
	Call Meeting to Order:
	Determination of a Quorum
	Update on STC Foundation
	Review Current Agenda and Packet Format
	Review and Evaluation of Themes Submitted for Further Discussion by Trustees
	Adjournment

	C 008 2024 08 SAO Annual Investment Report.pdf
	Investment Table

	C 011 Transportation- PTASP Update Version 3 10.23.24 ALL.pdf
	South Texas College PTASP Update Version 3 10.23.24
	1. Executive Summary
	A. Plan Adoption – 673.11(a)(1)
	B. Certification of Compliance – 673.13(a)(b)
	2. Transit Agency Information
	A. Authorities & Responsibilities – 673.23(d)
	3. Safety Management Policy
	A. Policy Statement – 673.23(a)
	I. Employee Safety Reporting Program – 673.23(b)
	II. Communicating the Policy Throughout the Agency – 673.23(c)

	B. PTASP Development and Coordination with TxDOT – 673.11(d)
	C. PTASP Annual Review – 673.11(a)(5)
	D. PTASP Maintenance – 673.11(a)(2)(c)
	E. PTASP Documentation and Recordkeeping – 673.31
	F. Safety Performance Measures – 673.11(a)(3)
	G. Safety Performance Target Coordination – 673.15(a)(b)

	4. Safety Management System
	A. Safety Risk Management – 673.25
	I. Safety Hazard Identification – 673.25(b)
	II. Safety Risk Assessment – 673.25(c)
	III. Safety Risk Mitigation – 673.25(d)

	B. Safety Assurance – 673.27 (a)
	I. Safety Performance Monitoring and Measuring – 673.27 (b)
	II. Monitoring Compliance and Sufficiency of Procedures – 673.27 (B)(1)
	III. Monitoring Operations – 673.27(B)(2)
	IV. Safety Event Investigation – 673.27(B)(3)
	V. Monitoring Internal Safety Reporting Programs – 673.27(B)(4)

	C. Safety Promotion – 673.29
	I. Safety Competencies and Training – 673.29(a)
	II. Safety Communication – 673.29(b)

	5. APPENDIX A:
	A. Glossary of Terms
	B. Acronyms Used


	PTASP Appendix B Response Plan
	6. APPENDIX B:
	A.  Infectious Disease Exposure Response Plan

	1. Objectives
	2. Scope
	3. Approval of an Infectious Disease Exposure Response Plan
	4. Elements of the Response Plan
	A. Pandemic Alert Phases
	B. Information and Education Program
	C. Disinfection Program
	D. Sanitary Aids
	E. Vaccine/Antiviral Medications
	F. Self-Screening
	G. Service Reduction, Shutdown and Restoration

	PTASP Appendix C
	7. APPENDIX C:
	A. Board Minutes or Resolution


	Business - CJ and Retired Policies Combined.pdf
	5. CJ(L)-Clean for Board_11.7

	Local Gov- BFB_BFC_ and Retired policies Combined.pdf
	Salary
	Property Interest
	1. BFC(L) - Clean for Board.pdf
	Non-Renewal of Contract
	Dismissal
	Notice
	Hearing



	Students Combined.pdf
	Procedures
	Liaison
	Publication
	8. FMA(L)-Clean for Board_10.9.24.pdf
	Reports of Alleged Misconduct
	Exception

	Conference
	Unfounded Allegations
	Misconduct Warranting a Penalty
	Suspension or Expulsion

	Interim Disciplinary Action

	Student Conduct Hearing
	Appeal to the Student Discipline


	Revised- Numbered Update - Combined.pdf
	Budget Planning
	Budget Preparation
	Budget Meeting
	Budget Adoption
	Budget Amendments
	Unrestricted Fund Balance
	EBA.pdf
	Instructional Continuity


	Retired Policies - Combined.pdf
	2250
	3331
	MANUAL OF POLICY

	3630

	008A RCPSE P Lot #1 Additional Spaces Ppt.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Regional Center for Public Safety Excellence�Parking Lot #1 Additional Spaces�Project Site
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5


	Return to Agenda: 


